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SECTION I - DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Term Description

CLI3

“DK”,“our Company”, “we”,
“us”, “our”, “the Company”,
“the Issuer Company” or “the
Issuer”

D.K. Enterprises Global Limited, a public limited company, registered under the
Companies Act, 2013 and having its registered office at Plot No-235 Industrial Area
Phase-2 Panchkula-134109 Haryana.

Our Promoters

Mr. Rakesh Kumar, Mrs. Rekha Bansal And Mr. Dhruv Rakesh

Promoters’ Group

Companies, individuals and entities (other than companies) as defined under
Regulation 2(1)(pp) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 which is provided in the
chapter titled “Our Promoters and Promoter’s Group”.

COMPANY RELATED TERMS

Term Description

Articles /  Articles  of | Articles of Association of our Company.

Association/AOA

Audit Committee The audit committee of the Board of Directors constituted in accordance with Section
177 of the Companies Act, 2013. For details refer section titled “Our Management”
on page No. 117 of this prospectus.

Board of Directors /| The Board of Directors of D.K. Enterprises Global Limited unless otherwise

Board/BOD specified.

Companies Act

Companies Act, 1956 and/ or the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to
time.

CMD Chairman Cum Managing Director

Chief Financial Officer (CFO) | The Chief Financial officer of our Company, being Mr. Baljeet Singh
Company  Secretary  and | The Company Secretary of our Company, being Ms. Amanpreet Kaur
Company Officer (CS)

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time

Equity Shares Equity Shares of our Company of Face Value of ¥ 10/- each unless otherwise
specified in the context thereof
ED Executive Director

Group Companies

Group Companies as defined under Regulation 2(1)(t) of the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018, “Group companies shall include such companies (other than our
Promoters and Subsidiary) with which there were related party transactions as
disclosed in the Restated Financial Statements as covered under the applicable
accounting standards, and as disclosed in “Information with respect to Group
Companies” on page no. 223 of this Prospectus.

Indian GAAP

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India

Statutory Auditor

The Statutory auditors of our Company, being /s M/s Deepak Jindal & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Chandigarh

Key Managerial Personnel /
Key Managerial Employees

The officer vested with executive power and the officers at the level immediately
below the Board of Directors as described in the section titled “Our Management”
on page no.117 of this Prospectus.

MD

Managing Director

MOA/ Memorandum /
Memorandum of Association

Memorandum of Association of our Company as amended from time to time

Non Residents

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA

Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

The nomination and remuneration committee of our Board of Directors constituted
in accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. For details refer section
titled “Our Management” on page no.117 of this prospectus.

NRIs / Non Resident Indians

A person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and who is a citizen of India
or a Person of Indian Origin under Foreign Outside India Regulation, 2000.
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Description

The Peer Review auditors of our Company, being M/s Deepak Jindal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants.

Registered Office

The Registered office of our Company located at Plot No-235 Industrial Area Phase-
2 Panchkula Haryana 134109 India.

Restated Financial Statements

The restated financial information of our Company, which comprises the standalone
restated statement of assets and liabilities, the standalone restated statement of profit
and loss, standalone the restated statement of cash flows, for the period ended on
June 30, 2021 and for the year ended on March 31, 2021, 2020 and 2019 and
consolidated restated statement of assets and liabilities, the consolidated restated
statement of profit and loss, consolidated the restated statement of cash flows, for
the period ended on June 30, 2021 and for the year ended on March 31, 2021 and
2020, the summary statement of significant accounting policies read together with
the annexures and notes thereto and other restated financial information, prepared in
terms of the requirements of Section 26 and 32 of the Companies Act, the SEBI
ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectuses
(Revised 2019) issued by the ICAI, as amended from time to time.

ROC / Registrar of Companies

Registrar of Companies, Delhi.

Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of our Board of Directors constituted in
accordance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. For details refer section
titled “Our Management” on page no. 117 of this prospectus.

WTD

Whole-Time Director

ISSUE RELATED TERMS

Terms Description

Applicant Any prospective investor who makes an application for Equity Shares in terms of
this Prospectus

Application Form The Form in terms of which the applicant shall apply for the Equity Shares of our
Company

Application  Supported by | An application, whether physical or electronic, used by applicants to make an

Blocked Amount / ASBA application authorising a SCSB to block the application amount in the ASBA
Account maintained with the SCSB.

ASBA Account An account maintained with the SCSB and specified in the application form
submitted by ASBA applicant for blocking the amount mentioned in the application
form.

Allotment Issue of the Equity Shares pursuant to the Issue to the successful applicants

Allottee The successful applicant to whom the Equity Shares are being / have been issued

Basis of Allotment

The basis on which equity shares will be allotted to successful applicants under the
Issue and which is described in the section “Issue Procedure - Basis of allotment” on
page no. 281 of this Prospectus.

Bankers to our Company

Canara Bank

Bankers to the Issue and
Refund Banker

Axis Bank Limited
Ground Floor Manek Plaza Opp Central Plaza, Santacruz East Mumbai- 400098,
Mabharashtra

Depository A depository registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Depositories and Participant)
Regulations, 1996
Designated Date The date on which amounts blocked by the SCSBs are transferred from the ASBA

Accounts, as the case may be, to the Public Issue Account or the Refund Account,
as appropriate, in terms of the Prospectus, after finalisation of the Basis of Allotment
in consultation with the Designated Stock Exchange, following which the Board of
Directors may Allot Equity Shares to successful Bidders in the Offer.

Designated Intermediaries

The members of the Syndicate, sub-syndicate/agents, SCSBs, Registered Brokers,
CDPs and RTAs, who are categorized to collect Application Forms from the
Applicant, in relation to the Issue.
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Terms Description

Depository Participant A Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act, 1996

Draft Prospectus The Draft Prospectus dated August 09, 2021 issued in accordance with Section 32
of the Companies Act filed with the National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(“NSE”) under SEBI (ICDR) Regulations.

Eligible NRI NRIs from jurisdictions outside India where it is not unlawful to make an issue or
invitation under the Issue and in relation to whom the Prospectus constitutes an
invitation to subscribe to the Equity Shares Allotted herein.

Engagement Letter The engagement letter dated August 20, 2020 between our Company and the LM

Issue Opening Date

The date on which the Issue opens for subscription.

Issue Closing date

The date on which the Issue closes for subscription.

Issue Period

The periods between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date inclusive of
both days and during which prospective Applicants may submit their application

IPO

Initial Public Offering

Issue / Issue Size / Public Issue

The Public Issue of 1998000 Equity Shares of X 10/- each at X 40/- per Equity Share
including share premium of ¥ 30/- per Equity Share aggregating to I 799.20 Lakh
by D.K. Enterprises Global Limited.

Issue Price

The price at which the Equity Shares are being issued by our Company through this
Prospectus, being X 40/- (including share premium of X 30/- per Equity Share).

LM / Lead Manager

Lead Manager to the Issue, in this case being Beeline Broking Limited.

Listing Agreement

Unless the context specifies otherwise, this means the SME Equity Listing
Regulation to be signed between our company and the Emerge Platform of NSE.

Market Maker The Market Maker to the Issue, in this case being Nikunj Stock Brokers Limited.

Net Issue The Issue (excluding the Market Maker Reservation Portion) of 1896000 Equity
Shares of ¥ 10/- each at ¥ 40/- per Equity Share including share premium of ¥ 30/-
per Equity Share aggregating to X 758.40 Lakh by D.K. Enterprises Global Limited.

NPCI NPCI, a Reserve Bank of India (RBI) initiative, is an umbrella organization for all

retail payments in India. It has been set up with the guidance and support of the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and Indian Banks Association (IBA).

Non Retail Portion including
Qualified Institution Buyers
(NRII)

The remaining portion of the Net Offer, after retails portion, being not more than
50% of the Net issue which shall be available for allocation to NRIIs in accordance
with the SEBI ICDR Regulations.

Prospectus

The Prospectus, dated September 27, 2021 to be filed with the ROC containing, inter
alia, the Issue opening and closing dates and other information.

Public Issue Account

An Account of the Company under Section 40 of the Companies Act, 2013 where
the funds shall be transferred by the SCSBs from bank accounts of the ASBA
Investors

Qualified Institutional Buyers
/ QIBs

The qualified institutional buyers as defined under Regulation 2(1)(ss) of the SEBI
ICDR Regulations.

Refund Account

Account opened / to be opened with a SEBI Registered Banker to the Issue from
which the refunds of the whole or part of the Application Amount, if any, shall be
made.

Registrar / Registrar to the
Issue

Registrar to the Issue being Skyline Financial Services Private Limited.

Regulations Unless the context specifies something else, this means the SEBI (Issue of Capital
and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2018.

Retail Individual Investors | Individual investors (including HUFs applying through their Karta and Eligible NRI

/(RII) Bidders) who applies or bids for the Equity Shares of a value of not more than ¥
2,00,000.

Retail Portion The portion of the Net Offer being not less than 50% of the Net Equity Shares which

shall be available for allocation to RIIs in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations.
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Terms Description

SCSB A Self Certified Syndicate Bank registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Bankers to
an [ssue) Regulations, 1994 and offers the facility of ASBA, including blocking of
bank account. A list of  all SCSBs is available at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&int
mld=35

Emerge Platform of NSE The Emerge Platform of NSE for listing of equity shares offered under Chapter IX
of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 which was approved by SEBI as an SME
Exchange on September 27, 2011.

Sponsor Bank The Banker to the Offer registered with SEBI and appointed by our Company to act
as a conduit between the Stock Exchanges and the NPCI in order to push the mandate
collect requests and / or payment instructions of the Retail Individual Bidders into
the UPI and carry out other responsibilities, in terms of the UPI Circulars.

Underwriter Underwriter to the issue is Beeline Broking Limited.

Underwriting Agreement The Agreement entered into between the Underwriter and our Company dated March
15,2021.

UPI Unified payment Interface, which is an instant payment mechanism, developed by
NPCIL

UPI Circular The SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1,

2018, SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/50 dated April 3, 2019,
SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28, 2019, SEBI
Circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019, Circular
number SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR2/CIR/P/2019/133 dated November 8, 2019, Circular
number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/50 dated March 30, 2020 and any
Subsequent circulars or notifications issued by SEBI in this regard.

UPI ID ID created on UPI for single-window mobile payment system developed by the
NPCL
UPI Mandate Request A request (intimating the Retail Individual Bidder by way of a notification on the

Mobile App and by way of a SMS directing the Retail Individual Bidder to such
Mobile App) to the Retail Individual Bidder initiated by the Sponsor Bank to
authorize blocking of funds on the Mobile App equivalent to Bid Amount and
Subsequent debit of funds in case of Allotment.

UPI Mechanism The bidding mechanism that may be used by a RII to make a Bid in the Offer in
accordance with the UPI Circulars.

UPI PIN Password to authenticate UPI transactions.

Wilful Defaulter A company or a person categorized as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial

institution or consortium thereof, in accordance with the guidelines on willful
defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India and includes any company whose
director or promoter is categorized as such.

Working Days i.  Till Application / Issue closing date:

All days other than a Saturday, Sunday or a public holiday;

ii. Post Application / Issue closing date and till the Listing of Equity Shares:

All trading days of stock exchanges excluding Sundays and bank holidays in
accordance with the SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL/CIR/P/2016/26 dated
January 21, 2016 and the SEBI circular number
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2018/138 dated November 1, 2018.

TECHNICAL AND INDUSTRY RELATED TERMS

Term Description

ISO International Organization for Standardization
BOPP Biaxially oriented polypropylene

GSM Grams Per Square Meter

MNC Multinational Corporation

MT Metric Ton
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Term Description

PET Polyethylene Terephthalate
PEG Polyethylene Glycol

HMA Hot-melt Adhesives

SOP Standard Operating Procedure
KLD Key Line Dimension

LDPE Low Density Polyethylene
uv Ultraviolet

B2B Business to Business

CONVENTIONAL AND GENERAL TERMS/ ABBREVIATIONS

Term Description

Alc

Account

Act or Companies Act

Companies Act, 1956 and/or the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to
time

AGM Annual General Meeting

AO Assessing Officer

ASBA Application Supported by Blocked Amount
AS Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
AY Assessment Year

BG Bank Guarantee

NSE National Stock Exchange of India Limited
CAGR Compounded Annual Growth Rate

CAN Confirmation Allocation Note

CDSL Central Depository Services (India) Limited
CIN Corporate Identity Number

CIT Commissioner of Income Tax

CRR Cash Reserve Ratio

Depositories NSDL and CDSL

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996 as amended from time to time

Depository A depository registered with SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 1996, as amended from time to time
DIN Director’s identification number

DP/ Depository Participant

A Depository Participant as defined under the Depository Participant Act, 1996

DP ID

Depository Participant’s Identification

EBIDTA Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, Tax and Amortization

ECS Electronic Clearing System

EoGM Extra-ordinary General Meeting

EPS Earnings Per Share i.e. profit after tax for a fiscal year divided by the weighted

average outstanding number of equity shares at the end of that fiscal year

Financial Year/ Fiscal Year/
FY

The period of twelve months ended March 31 of that particular year

FDI Foreign Direct Investment

FDR Fixed Deposit Receipt

FEMA Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999, read with rules and regulations there-
under and as amended from time to time

FII Foreign Institutional Investor (as defined under SEBI FII (Foreign Institutional
Investors) Regulations, 1995, as amended from time to time) registered with SEBI
under applicable laws in India

FII Regulations Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Institutional Investors)
Regulations, 1995, as amended

FIs Financial Institutions
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Term Description

FIPB Foreign Investment Promotion Board

FVCI Foreign Venture Capital Investor registered under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investor) Regulations, 2000, as amended
from time to time

GDP Gross Domestic Product

GIR Number General Index Registry Number

Gov/ Government/Gol Government of India

HUF Hindu Undivided Family

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standard

ICSI Institute of Company Secretaries of India

ICAI Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

Indian GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India

LT. Act Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended from time to time

ITAT Income Tax Appellate Tribunal

INR/ Rs./ Rupees /X Indian Rupees, the legal currency of the Republic of India

Ltd. Limited

Pvt. Ltd. Private Limited

MCA Ministry of Corporate Affairs

Merchant Banker Merchant banker as defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992 as amended

MOF Ministry of Finance, Government of India

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

NA Not Applicable

NAV Net Asset Value

NEFT National Electronic Fund Transfer

NOC No Objection Certificate

NR/ Non Residents Non Resident

NRE Account Non Resident External Account

NRI Non Resident Indian, is a person resident outside India, as defined under FEMA and
the FEMA Regulations

NRO Account Non Resident Ordinary Account

NSDL National Securities Depository Limited

NTA Net Tangible Assets

p.a. Per annum

P/E Ratio Price/ Earnings Ratio

PAN Permanent Account Number allotted under the Income Tax Act, 1961, as amended
from time to time

PAT Profit After Tax

PBT Profit Before Tax

PIO Person of Indian Origin

PLR Prime Lending Rate

R&D Research and Development

RBI Reserve Bank of India

RBI Act Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, as amended from time to time

RoNW Return on Net Worth

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement

SAT Security appellate Tribunal

SCRA Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956, as amended from time to time

SCRR Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended from time to Time

SCSBs Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

SEBI The Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act, 1992

SEBI Act Securities and Exchange Board of India Act 1992, as amended from time to time
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Term
SEBI Insider Trading
Regulations

Description
SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992, as amended from time to
time, including instructions and clarifications issued by SEBI from time to time

SEBI ICDR Regulations /
ICDR Regulations / SEBI
ICDR /ICDR

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time

SEBI Takeover Regulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011, as amended from time to time

SEBI Rules and Regulations

SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, SEBI (Underwriters) Regulations, 1993, as
amended, the SEBI (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992, as amended, and any and
all other relevant rules, regulations, guidelines, which SEBI may issue from time to
time, including instructions and clarifications issued by it from time to time

Sec.

Section

Securities Act

The U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as amended

S&P NSE SENSEX

S&P Bombay Stock Exchange Sensitive Index

SICA Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985, as amended from time to
time

SME Small and Medium Enterprises

Stamp Act The Indian Stamp Act, 1899, as amended from time to time

State Government

The Government of a State of India

Stock Exchanges Unless the context requires otherwise, refers to, the NSE

STT Securities Transaction Tax

TDS Tax Deducted at Source

TIN Tax payer Identification Number

TRS Transaction Registration Slip

UIN Unique Identification Number

U.S. GAAP Generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America

VCFs Venture capital funds as defined in, and registered with SEBI under, the erstwhile

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996,
as amended, which have been repealed by the SEBI AIF Regulations.

In terms of the SEBI AIF Regulations, a VCF shall continue to be regulated by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Funds) Regulations, 1996
till the existing fund or scheme managed by the fund is wound up, and such VCF
shall not launch any new scheme or increase the targeted corpus of a scheme. Such
VCF may seek re-registration under the SEBI AIF Regulations.
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL, INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA
Financial Data

Unless stated otherwise, the financial data in the Prospectus is derived from our restated Financial Statements which
includes Restated Standalone financial Statement for the period ended on June 30, 2021 and for the financial year ended
on March 31, 2021; 2020; 2019 and Restated Consolidated Financial Statement for the period ended on June 30, 2021
and for the financial year ended on March 31, 2021 and 2020 Prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP, the Companies
Act and restated in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and the Indian GAAP which are included in the
Prospectus, and set out in the section titled “RESTATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION” beginning on page no. 135 of
the Prospectus. Our Financial Year commences on April 1 and ends on March 31 of the following year, so all references
to a particular Financial Years are to the twelve-month period ended March 31 of that year. In the Prospectus,
discrepancies in any table, graphs or charts between the total and the sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding-off.

There are significant differences between Indian GAAP, IFRS and U.S. GAAP. Our Company has not attempted to
explain those differences or quantify their impact on the financial data included herein, and the investors should consult
their own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on the financial data. Accordingly, the degree to which
the restated financial statements included in the Prospectus will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on
the reader's level of familiarity with Indian accounting practices. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian
accounting practices on the financial disclosures presented in the Prospectus should accordingly be limited.

Any percentage amounts, as set forth in the sections / chapters titled “RISK FACTORS”, “BUSINESS OVERVIEW”
and “MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS” beginning on page nos. 20, 82 and 210 respectively of this Prospectus and elsewhere in the Prospectus,
unless otherwise indicated, have been calculated on the basis of our restated financial statements prepared in accordance
with Indian GAAP, the Companies Act and restated in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and the
Indian GAAP.

Industry and Market Data

Unless stated otherwise, industry data used throughout the Prospectus has been obtained or derived from industry and
government publications, publicly available information and sources. Industry publications generally state that the
information contained in those publications has been obtained from sources believed to be reliable but that their accuracy
and completeness are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured. Although our Company believes that industry
data used in the Prospectus is reliable, it has not been independently verified.

Further, the extent to which the industry and market data presented in the Prospectus is meaningful depends on the
reader's familiarity with and understanding of, the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are no standard data
gathering methodologies in the industry in which we conduct our business, and methodologies and assumptions may vary
widely among different industry sources.

Currency and units of presentation

In the Prospectus, unless the context otherwise requires, all references to;

» ‘Rupees’ or X’ or ‘Rs.” or ‘INR’ are to Indian rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India.

» ‘US Dollars’ or ‘US$’ or ‘USD’ or “$’ are to United States Dollars, the official currency of the United States of
America, EURO or "€" are Euro currency,

» All references to the word ‘Lakh’, means ‘One hundred thousand’ and the word ‘Million” means ‘Ten Lakh’ and the
word ‘Crore’” means ‘Ten Million’ and the word ‘Billion” means ‘One thousand Million’.
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

All statements contained in the Prospectus that are not statements of historical facts constitute “forward-looking
statements”. All statements regarding our expected financial condition and results of operations, business, objectives,
strategies, plans, goals and prospects are forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include
statements as to our business strategy, our revenue and profitability, planned projects and other matters discussed in the
Prospectus regarding matters that are not historical facts. These forward looking statements and any other projections
contained in the Prospectus (whether made by us or any third party) are predictions and involve known and unknown
risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially
different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements
or other projections.

All forward looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us that could cause actual results
to differ materially from those contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement. Important factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially from our expectations include but are not limited to:

General economic and business conditions in the markets in which we operate and in the local, regional, national
and international economies;

Competition from existing and new entities may adversely affect our revenues and profitability;

Political instability or changes in the Government could adversely affect economic conditions in India and
consequently our business may get affected to some extent.

Our business and financial performance is particularly based on market demand and supply of our products/services;
The performance of our business may be adversely affected by changes in, or regulatory policies of, the Indian
national, state and local Governments;

Any downgrading of India’s debt rating by a domestic or international rating agency could have a negative impact
on our business and investment returns;

Changes in Government Policies and political situation in India may have an adverse impact on the business and
operations of our Company;

The occurrence of natural or man-made disasters could adversely affect our results of operations and financial
condition.

vV V VV VYV V

Y

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from the expectations, see the
sections/chapters “RISK FACTORS”, “BUSINESS OVERVIEW” and “MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS” on page nos.20, 82 and 210 respectively
of this Prospectus. By their nature, certain market risk disclosures are only estimates and could be materially different
from what actually occurs in the future. As a result, actual gains or losses could materially differ from those that have
been estimated.

Forward looking statements reflect the current views as of the date of this Prospectus and are not a guarantee of future
performance. These statements are based on the management’s beliefs and assumptions, which in turn are based on
currently available information. Although our Company believes the assumptions upon which these forward-looking
statements are based are reasonable, any of these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and the forward-looking
statements based on these assumptions could be incorrect. None of our Company, the Directors, the LM, or any of their
respective affiliates have any obligation to update or otherwise revise any statements reflecting circumstances arising
after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of underlying events, even if the underlying assumptions do not come to
fruition. Our Company and the Directors will ensure that investors in India are informed of material developments until
the time of the grant of listing and trading permission by the Stock Exchange.
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SECTION II- SUMMARY OF PROSPECTUS

PRIMARY BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

We are mainly engaged in manufacturing of Paper Based Packing Material, Self Adheshive Tapes (specialty tapes likes
Masking, Siliconized, Medical and Surface protection Tapes), Laminated Products and flexible Packaging. Our Company
is ISO 9001:2015, 45001:2018 certified company. We have been working almost exclusive with major multinational
corporations in consumer space.

D.K. Enterprises, a proprietorship concern of Mrs. Rekha Bansal running its business since last two decades which was
taken over by our company (including all its movable assets, current assets and liabilities of manufacturing facilities of
Panchkula and Vadodara) at a total consideration of ¥ 200.00 Lakhs (including goodwill of Rs. 162079.48) in terms of
agreement dated May 15, 2019 by issuing 20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each of our company to Mrs. Rekha Bansal.

Our company’s registered office and manufacturing facilities Unit I is located in Panchkula at Haryana and Unit II at
Vadodra in Gujarat. We are proposing to commence manufacturing facilities at Baddi in Himachal Pradesh for
manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Masking/specialty tapes and Laminated Products. We are also proposing to
install machinery at Vadodara (Unit IT) for manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Masking/specialty tapes and
Laminated Products.

At present, our company is also holding 80% stake in partnership firm namely M/s. Satguru Engravures which is engaged
in manufacturing and sale of Soap Stiffners, Soap Wrappers, Banding BOPP Tapes, Laminates etc. and its manufacturing
facilities is located at Khasra No. 619/489, Village Koundi, Tehsil Baddi, Distt. Solan, Himachal Pradesh. Our company
has invested ¥ 312.87 Lakhs (including share of profit to the extent of Rs. 75.87 Lakhs upto FY 2020-21) in M/s. Satguru
Engravures. The turnover of M/s. Satguru Engravures is Rs. 2,666.36 Lakhs and profit after tax is Rs. 90.28 Lakhs for
the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

SUMMARY OF INDUSTRY IN WHICH THE COMPANY IS OPERATING

Rise of the Indian e-commerce sector

India has been witnessing a surge in its e-commerce sector over the last 5-6 years. The Indian e-commerce market is
projected to grow to US$ 200 billion by 2026 from USS$ 38.5 billion in 2017. This growth is likely to be propelled by an
increase in internet and smartphone penetration and the ongoing digital transformation in the country. After India locked
down in March this year, the e-commerce segment witnessed a momentary decline for a few weeks; however, re-opening
of markets led to recovery and subsequently, an upsurge. Marketplaces as well as direct brand websites witnessed an
overall 130% spike in online orders.

Since June, the sector has recorded massive sales events such as Myntra’s End of Reason Sale, Flipkart’s Independence
Day Sale and Amazon’s Prime Day Sales, boosting order volumes. In fact, recently, Walmart declared (in its latest
earnings report) that Flipkart’s GMV (Gross Merchandising Volume) has exceeded the pre-COVID 19 levels.

Another driving factor for this surge in e-commerce transactions is the emergence of first-time shoppers and the digital-
first approach. Social distancing has led to significant growth of first-time online shoppers. While India’s top 5
metropolitan cities continue to dominate the e-commerce sector, Tier II and III cities have also joined the race with a
rising share of online shoppers. Amazon and Flipkart have gone a step further in supporting this growth in smaller cities
by offering their platform content in local languages.

Surge in e-commerce to continue post pandemic

The post-lockdown numbers indicate a systemic shift in consumer purchasing preferences from offline to online.
Customers are increasingly getting used to the comforts of online shopping.

Local retail outlets (Kirana shops) are also digitising and starting to deliver online to keep up with changing customer
preferences and not lose business to large marketplaces such as Amazon and Flipkart. This is largely adding to the
convenience of customers—in having everything delivered to their doorstep and saving time.

In a post-pandemic scenario, whether consumers go back to their old ways of purchasing or will the comfort, ease and

discounts of online shopping continue to lure them remains a question. Nonetheless, it can be assumed that not all
consumers will switch back to in-store shopping and continue buying online in the near future.

10
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Another point to note is the change towards hygienic living—sanitisation, personal hygiene, social distancing or using
healthy products—as this is expected to have a lasting impact on consumers even after the pandemic.

Mixed impact of e-commerce on the packaging sector

Amid the e-commerce surge, the Indian packaging industry is witnessing steep growth and is one of the strongest growing
segments. According to the Indian Institute of Packaging (IIP), packaging consumption in India increased 200% in the
past decade, from 4.3 kgs per person per annum (pppa) to 8.6 kgs pppa.

The industry is expected to reach US$ 204.81 billion by 2025 from US$ 50.5 billion in 2019 at 26.7% annually. The e-
commerce segment of the packaging market was estimated at US$ 451.4 million in 2019 and is forecast to reach US$
975.4 million by 2025 at 13.8% annually.

The packaging sector is categorised into two major segments (by type)—rigid and flexible packaging, with rigid
packaging accounting for 64% market share. In terms of packaging materials, 55% of the sector is dominated by plastics,
followed by paper & cardboard (20%) and glass (10%).

Food processing is the largest consumer of packaging at 45%, followed by pharmaceuticals (25%) and personal care
products (10%). Increasing demand from these end-user segments is creating a huge potential for expansion.

(Sources: https://www.ibef.org/blogs/indian-packaging-industry-riding-on-the-e-commerce-wave)

NAME OF PROMOTERS

The Promoters of our Company are Mr. Rakesh Kumar, Mrs. Rekha Bansal and Mr. Dhruv Rakesh. For detailed
information on our Promoter and Promoters’ Group, please refer to Chapter titled “OUR PROMOTER AND
PROMOTERS’” GROUP” on page no. 129 of this Prospectus.

SIZE OF THE ISSUE

Our company is proposing the fresh public issue of 1998000 equity shares of face value of ¥ 10 each of D.K. Enterprises
Global Limited (“DK” or the “Company” or the “Issuer”) for cash at a price of ¥ 40 per equity share including a share
premium of ¥ 30 per equity share (the “issue price”) aggregating to ¥ 799.20 lakh (“the issue”), of which 102000 equity
shares of face value of X 10 each for cash at a price of T 40 per equity share including a share premium of X 30 per equity
share aggregating to ¥ 40.80 lakh will be reserved for subscription by market maker to the issue (the “market maker
reservation portion”). The issue less the market maker reservation portion i.e. net issue of 1896000 equity shares of face
value of X 10 each at a price of T 40 per equity share including a share premium of ¥ 30 per equity share aggregating to
¥ 758.40 lakh is herein after referred to as the “net issue”. The issue and the net issue will constitute 26.61% and 25.25%
respectively of the post issue paid up equity share capital of our company.

OBJECT OF THE ISSUE

COST OF PROJECT AND MEANS OF FINANCE

COST OF PROJECT:
% of Total

Particulars émount Project

® in) Lakhs Cost

1. | Setting up of new Manufacturing Unit at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh# 690.00 44.54

2. | Incremental Working Capital Requirements 415.00 26.79

3. | Purchase of Plant and Machinery for Vadodara Unit 260.00 16.78

4. | For General Corporate Purposes 105.00 6.78

5. | Public Issue Expenses 79.20 5.11
Total Cost of Project 1549.20 100.00

# BREAK UP OF THE NEW MANUFACTURING UNIT AT BADDI, HIMACHAL PRADESH
Amount Required

Sr. No. Particulars  in Lakhs)

1. Acquisition of Land 200.00

2. Construction of Building and Civil Work 250.00
Purchase of Plant and Machinery new Manufacturing Unit at Baddi,

3. - 240.00
Himachal Pradesh
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Amount Required

Particulars

R in Lakhs)
Total 690.00
MEANS OF FINANCE:
(X In Lakhs)

Amount From IPO Lhifie i1l Balance from

Borrowing*

Particulars Accruals/Equ

Required Proceeds

ity/Reserves
Acquisition of Land for new

1. Manufacturing Plant at Baddi, 200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00
Himachal Pradesh
Construction of Building and Civil

2. Work for new Manufacturing Plant at 250.00 60.00 25.00 165.00

Baddi, Himachal Pradesh
Purchase of Plant and Machinery at

3. new Manufacturing Plant at Baddi, 240.00 45.00 25.00 170.00
Himachal Pradesh

4, | Incremental — Working  Capital | ;5 oy 310.00 105.00 0.00
Requirements

5 Purchase of Plant and Machinery for 260.00 0.00 9500 165.00
Vadodara Unit

6. For General Corporate Purposes 105.00 105.00 0.00 0.00

7. Public Issue Expenses 79.20 79.20 0.00 0.00

Total 1549.20 799.20 250.00 500.00

*QOur company has received the Expression of Interest from Canara Bank vide letter dated July 27, 2021 for loan amount
of Rs. 500.00 Lakhs for the proposed project of our company as a term loan.

SHAREHOLDING

The shareholding pattern of our Promoter and Promoters’ Group before and after the Issue is as under;
Pre issue Post issue

Name of shareholders No..of asiaolof No. of equity ACE O
equity Issued shares Issued
shares Capital* Capital*

Promoters
1. |Mr. Rakesh Kumar 724850 13.16 724850 9.65
2. [Mrs. Rekha Bansal 4324850 78.49 4324850 57.60
3. |Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 453500 8.23 453500 6.04
Total - A 5503200 99.88 5503200 73.30
Promoters’ Group
1. | Mrs. Bipasha Bharti 200 Negligible 200| Negligible
Total - B 200| Negligible 200| Negligible
Total Promoters and Promoters’ Group (A+B) 5503400 99.88 5503400 73.30
Public
1 |Pre Ipo 6600 0.12 6600 0.09
Total-C 6600 0.12 6600 0.09
1| Initial Public Offer - Public - - 1998000 26.61
Total-D - - 1998000 26.61
Total Public (C+D) 6600 0.12 2004600 26.70
Grand Total (A+B+C+D) 5510000 100.00 7508000 100.00
* Rounded off

12
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FINANCIAL DETAILS
Restated Standalone Financials

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

For the

Period For the year ended on
Particulars ended on

June 30, March March March

2021 31,2021 31,2020 31,2019
1. | Share Capital 551.00 275.50 205.00 5.00
2. | Net worth 888.39 797.75 326.11 4.74
3. | Revenue from operations 1239.53 4499.85 3297.39 0.00
4. | Profit After Tax 90.29 199.18 124.03 -
5. | Earnings Per Share — Basic & Diluted 1.64 4.83 3.50 -
6. | NAV per Equity Shares (Pre Bonus) 16.12 28.96 15.91 9.48
7. | NAV per Equity Shares (Post Bonus) 16.12 14.48 15.91 9.48
8. | Total Borrowings (As per Balance Sheet) 350.97 217.70 211.34 -

Restated Consolidated Financials

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

For the

Period ended For the year ended on
Particulars on
June 30, 2021 March 31, March 31,
2021 2020

1. | Share Capital 551.00 275.50 205.00
2. | Net worth 888.39 797.75 327.18
3. | Revenue from operations 1,900.95 6,483.89 4511.24
4. | Profit After Tax 99.77 243.86 149.51
5. | Earnings Per Share — Basic & Diluted 1.81 5.91 4.22
6. | NAV per Equity Shares (Pre Bonus) 16.12 28.96 15.96
7. | NAV per Equity Shares (Post Bonus) 16.12 14.48 15.96
8. | Total Borrowings (As per Balance Sheet) 938.76 784.18 554.00

AUDITORS’ QUALIFICATIONS

There are no Auditor qualification which have not been given effect to in the Restated Stanalone Financial Statements
and Restated Consolidated Financial Statements.

OUTSTANDING LITIGATIONS

Litigation by our Company

Case No. Institution Parties Authorit Subject Amount Present
Date y/ Court Matter Involved Status

and Relief
Sought

3588/2021 | 09.04.2021 | D.K. Judicial 138 of Rs. Hearing is
Enterprises Magistrate | Negotiable 9,59,137/ on. Next
Global Ltd. First Class | Instruments - hearing
Vs. Deepak Act and relief date is On
Paper Co. sought of November
payment. 08, 2021.
2. | 3589/2021 | 09.04.2021 D.K. Judicial 138 of | Rs. Hearing is
Enterprises Magistrate Negotiable 42,182/- on. Next
Global Ltd. First Class Instruments hearing
Vs. Classic Act and relief date is
Lighting sought of November
Industry payment. 08,2021

13



I--__

www. dkentaerprises.co.in
Litigations against Directors
i. Against Mr. Jeenendra Prakash Singhvi (Independent Director) :

Under Income Tax Act, 1961

Following Demand by Income Tax Department;

Payable NG
Sr. Assessment Date of Demand Reference No Section Amount (In Payable
No. Year Demand . Code Amount(In
Rs.) Rs.)
1 2018 May 20, 2019 2019201837025754156T 143 81,420.00 81,420.00
2 2019 June 02, 2020 2020201937006340594T 143a| 105160.00] 105160.00

Litigations against Subsidiary Company
Against M/s Satguru Engravures (Subsidiary Partnership Firm)
Under Income Tax Act, 1961

Following Demand by Income Tax Department

Sr Assessment Section Net Payable
. Date of Demand Demand Reference No Amount (In

Rs.)
1 2018 December 24, 2020 2020201837023528874T 143(3) 16,430.00

No. Year ' Code

Following Demands for Tax Deducted at Source are raised by Income Tax

Sr. Financial Quarter Form Type of Default Payable Net
No. Year Default Amount Amount Payable
Amount
1. 2021-22 Ql 27EQ Short 12.21 12.21 10.00
Deduction

RISK FACTORS

Investments in equity and equity-related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should not invest any funds in
this Issue unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their investment. Investors are advised to read the risk factors
carefully before taking an investment decision in this offering. For taking an investment decision, investors must rely on
their own examination of our Company and the Issue including the risks involved. The Equity Shares offered in the Issue
have neither been recommended nor approved by Securities and Exchange Board of India nor does Securities and
Exchange Board of India guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this Prospectus. Specific attention of the investors is
invited to the section titled “RISK FACTORS” beginning on page no. 20 of this Prospectus.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As per Restated Standalone Financial Statement

(X In Lakhs)
As at June
Particulars 30 S BV
2021

Bank Guarantee/ LC Discounting for Whlch FDR margin 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
money has been given to the bank as Security

Capital Commitment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Income Tax Demand 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
TDS Demands 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00
Total 0.06 0.03 0.00 0.00

14
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As per Restated Consolidated Financial Statement
(X In Lakhs)

As at June As at March 31

Particulars 30

2021 2021 2020

Bank Guarantee/ LC Discounting for which FDR margin money has

been given to the bank as Securitgy ¢ ! 0.00 0.00 0.00
Capital Commitment 0.00 0.00 0.00
Income Tax Demand 0.00 0.00 0.00
TDS Demands 0.06 0.03 0.00
Total 0.06 0.03 0.00

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
ANNEXURE - J (A): RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

As required under Accounting Standard 18 "Related Party Disclosures" as notified pursuant to Company (Accounting
Standard) Rules 2006, following are details of transactions during the year with related parties of the company as defined
in AS 18.

A. List of Related Parties and Nature of Relationship:

Particulars Name of Related Parties

Mr. Dhruv Rakesh
Mr. Rakesh Kumar
a) Key Management Personnel's  |Mrs. Rekha Bansal

Ms. Amanpreet Kaur (Company's Secretary)

Mr. Baljeet Singh (CFO)

D.K. Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mrs. Rekha Bansal)
Rakesh Kumar HUF

Sankyo Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mr. Dhruv Rakesh)

Note 1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary,
statement of assets and liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

b) Concern's in which KMP or their
relatives are interested

ANNEXURE - J (B) - Transactions carried out with related parties referred to in (1) above, in ordinary course of
business:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
As at June
Tlljtz::sl;ll;eti((j)ils Name of Related Parties 30 rlEUEus ]
2021 2021 | 2020
1. Directors Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 3.00 12.00 10.50
Remuneration Mr. Rakesh Kumar 6.00 24.00 21.00
Total 9.00 36.00 31.50
. Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 1.20 4.80 -
2. Office Rent paid Mrs. Rekha Bansal 7.20 28.80 | 12.60
Total 8.40 33.60 12.60
Rakesh Kumar HUF
Opening Balance - 46.38 -
. Loan Received / Interest during the year - 5.33 46.38
3. Lpan Rt?celved Loan Paid during the year - (51.72)
(Paid) during the Year 1= 0 g tance - 46.38
to Related Parties 2 :

Mr. Rakesh Kumar
Opening Balance - 90.00 -
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As at June
Tlliz::;liii?)is Name of Related Parties 30 AsatiarchS1
2021 2021 2020
Loan Received / Interest during the year - 5.73 90.00
Loan Paid during the year - (95.73)
Closing Balance - - 90.00
Mr. Baljeet Singh (CFO) 1.55 5.95 -
4. Salary to KMP Ms. Amanpreet Kaur (Company's Secretary) 0.75 0.51 -
Total 2.30 6.46 -
5. Sale to Related D K. Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mrs. Rekha
Parties Bansal) ) 437.76
Total 437.76
6. Purchase from ;a;k}g)nintemrlses : : 7.29 38.81 19.73
Related Parties K. rprises (Proprietorship of Mrs. Rekha ) ) 3291
Bansal)
Total 7.29 38.81 52.64
7.Right Issue of Shares | Mr. Dhruv Rakesh - 80.80 -
Mr. Rakesh Kumar - 140.00 -
Mrs. Rekha Bansal - 60.00 -
Mr. Baljeet Singh (CFO) - 0.40 -
- 281.20 -
3 Interest on Loan Mr. Rakesh Kumar - 5.73 8.73
Rakesh Kumar HUF - 5.33 4.46
Total - 11.06 13.19
9. Takeover DK Enterprises* - - 200.00
Total - - 200.00

*Proprietorship of Rekha Bansal - "D.K. Enterprise" was acquired in the F.Y. 2019-20 for the consideration of Rs. 200
Lacs by issue of 2000000 equity shares of Rs. 10 for consideration other than Cash.

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary,
statement of assets and liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - J(C) - Outstanding Balance as at the end of the year
(Rs. In Lakhs)

2020

AELLIE D] Name of Related Parties June 30, 2021 2021 ‘

Transactions
1. Payables Mr. Rakesh Kumar 1.40 - 90.00
Rakesh Kumar HUF 0.00 - 46.38
Total 1.40 - 136.38
2. Receivables | Sankyo Enterprises 0.97 - 0.31
Total 0.97 - 0.31

Note: The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary,
statement of assets and liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - J(A) : RESTATED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
As required under Accounting Standard 18 "Related Party Disclosures" as notified pursuant to Company (Accounting

Standard) Rules 2006, following are details of transactions during the year with related parties of the company as defined in
AS 18.

A. List of Related Parties and Nature of Relationship :

Particulars
a) Key Management Personnel's

\Name of Related Parties
Mr. Dhruv Rakesh
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Particulars

IName of Related Parties

Mr. Rakesh Kumar

Mrs. Rekha Bansal

Ms. Amanpreet Kaur (Company Secretary)

Mr. Baljeet Singh (CFO)

b) Concern's in which KMP or their
relatives are interested

D.K. Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mrs. Rekha Bansal)

Rakesh Kumar HUF

Sankyo Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mr. Dhruv Rakesh)

c) Subsidiary Companies/Firm

Satguru Engravures

Note 1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, statement
of assets and liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - J(B) - Transactions carried out with related parties referred to in (1) above, in ordinary course of

business:

Nature of

Name of Related Parties

As at

June 30 As at March 31

Transactions

2021

2021

2020 2019

1. Directors Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 3.00 12.00 10.50 -
Remuneration Mr. Rakesh Kumar 6.00 24.00 21.00 -
Total 9.00 36.00 31.50 -
. Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 1.20 4.80 - -
2. Office Rent paid - |70 R i ha Bansal 7.20 28.80 12.60 -
Total 8.40 33.60 12.60 -
Rakesh Kumar HUF
Opening Balance 46.38 -
Loan Received / Interest during the year 5.33 46.38
] Loan Paid during the year (51.72)
3. Lpan Re.:celved Closing Balance - 46.38 -
(Paid) during the .
Year to Related
Parties Mr. Rakesh Kumar
Opening Balance 90.00 -
Loan Received / Interest during the year 5.73 90.00
Loan Paid during the year (95.73)
Closing Balance - 90.00 -
Mr. Baljeet Singh (CFO) 1.55 5.95 - -
4. Salary to KMP Ms. Amanpreet Kaur (Company
Secretary) 0.75 0.51 -
Total 2.30 6.46 - -
D.K. Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mrs. ) ) 43776 )
5. Sale Rekha Bansal) )
Satguru Engravures 84.90 220.71 95.57
Total 84.90 220.71 533.33 -
6. Purchases Sankyo Enterprises 7.29 38.81 19.73 -
D.K. Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mrs. ) ) 3291
Rekha Bansal)
Satguru Engravures 399.27 614.02 78.00 -
Total 406.56 652.83 130.64
7. Investment in Firm | Satguru Engravures - 55.00 182.00 -
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N t f | AS at ’—
AHEC O Name of Related Parties June 30 As at March 31

Aransactions 2021 2021 2020 2019
Total - 55.00 182.00 -
8.Profit from
Partnership Firm Satguru Engravures 37.93 47.43 28.44 -
Total 37.93 47.43 28.44 -
Mr. Dhruv Rakesh - 80.80 - -
9.Right Issue of Mr. Rakesh Kumar - 140.00 -
Shares Mrs. Rekha Bansal - 60.00 -
Mr. Baljeet Singh (CFO) - 0.40 -
Total - 281.20 - -
11. Interest on Loan Mr. Rakesh Kumar - 5.73 8.73 -
- tereston Loa Rakesh Kumar HUF - 5.33 4.46
Total - 11.06 13.19
12. Takeover DK Enterprises* - - 200.00 -
Total - - 200.00

*Proprietorship of Rekha Bansal - "D.K. Enterprise" was acquired in the F.Y. 2019-20 for the consideration of Rs. 200
Lacs by issue of 2000000 equity shares of Rs. 10 for consideration other than Cash.

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary,
statement of assets and liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE -J(C) - Outstanding Balance as at the end of the year/Period
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars 2022 (1st Quarter) 2021 2020 2019
Mr. Rakesh Kumar 1.40 - 90.00 -
1. Payables Rakesh Kumar HUF - - 46.38 -
Satguru Engravures 86.50 -
Total 87.90 - 136.38 -
Particulars 2022 (1st Quarter) 2021 2020 2019
. Sankyo Enterprises 0.97 - 0.31 -
2. R 1
eceivables Satguru Engravures - 0.08 34.20 -
Total 0.97 0.08 0.31 -
Particulars 2022 (1st Quarter) 2021 2020 2019
3. Investment Satguru Engravures - 312.88 210.44 -
Total - 312.88 210.44 -

Note: The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary,
statement of assets and liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

The promoter, members of the promoter group, the directors of the company which is a promoter of the issuer, the
directors of the issuer and their relatives have not financed the purchase by any other person of securities of our Company
other than in the normal course of the business of the financing entity during the period of six months immediately
preceding the date of this Prospectus.

COST OF ACQUISITION & WEIGHTED AVERAGE COST

Weighted average price at which the Equity Shares were acquired by our Promoter in Last One Year:
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No. of Equity Average Cost of Acquisition per

Name of Promoters

Shares held equity share (in )
1. Mr. Rakesh Kumar 724850 19.65
2. Mrs. Rekha Bansal 4324850 2.59
3. Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 453500 19.44

* The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoter has been calculated by taking into account the amount
paid by them to acquire, by way of fresh issuance or transfer, the Equity Shares less amount received by them for the sale
of Equity Shares through transfer in last one year, if any and the net cost of acquisition has been divided by total number
of shares acquired (net of sales if any) in last one year”.

Average Cost of Acquisitions of Shares for Promoters:

No. of Equit Average Cost of Acquisition per
WETTELS G RO 0 Shares zeldy gequity share(zin ) -
1. Mr. Rakesh Kumar 724850 19.49
2. Mrs. Rekha Bansal 4324850 6.04
3. Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 453500 19.18

* The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoter has been calculated by taking into account the amount
paid by them to acquire, by way of fresh issuance or transfer, the Equity Shares less amount received by them for the sale
of Equity Shares through transfer, if any and the net cost of acquisition has been divided by total number of shares held
as on date of the Prospectus”.

PRE-IPO PLACEMENT

Our company has not issued any equity shares under Pre IPO Placement except as disclosed under chapter title “Capital
Structure” on Page no. 45 of this Prospectus

ISSUE OF SHARES FOR CONSIDERATION OTHE THAN CASH

Our Company has not issued shares for consideration other than cash during last one year except for allotment of 2755000
equity shares as Bonus Shares (in the ratio of 1:1) on April 26, 2021. For details please refer to chapter title “Capital
Structure” on Page no. 45 of this Prospectus.

SPLIT / CONSOLIDATION

No Split or Consolidation were happened during the last one year.
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SECTION III - RISK FACTORS
RISK FACTORS

An investment in equity involves a high degree of risk. Investors should carefully consider all the information in this
Offer Document, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment in our equity shares.
Any of the following risks as well as other risks and uncertainties discussed in this Offer Document could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations and could cause the trading price of our
Equity Shares to decline, which could result in the loss of all or part of your investment. In addition, the risks set out in
this Offer Document may not be exhaustive and additional risks and uncertainties, not presently known to us, or which
we currently deem immaterial, may arise or become material in the future. Unless otherwise stated in the relevant risk
factors set forth below, we are not in a position to specify or quantify the financial or other risks mentioned herein.

To the extent the COVID-19 pandemic adversely affects our business and results of operations, it may also have the effect
of heightening many of the other risks described in this section. In making an investment decision, prospective investors
must rely on their own examination of us and the terms of the Issue including the merits and risks involved. You should
consult your tax, financial and legal advisers about the particular consequences to you of an investment in our Equity
Shares.

The Prospectus also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Qur actual results
could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of many factors,
including the considerations described below and elsewhere in the Prospectus.

MATERIALITY

The Risk factors have been determined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been considered for
determining the materiality.

1. Some events may not be material individually but may be found material collectively.
2. Some events may have material impact qualitatively instead of quantitatively.
3. Some events may not be material at present but may be having material impact in the future.

NOTE:

The risk factors are disclosed as envisaged by the management along with the proposals to address the risk if any. Unless
specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial implication of
any of the risks described in this section.

In this Prospectus, any discrepancies in any table between total and the sums of the amount listed are due to rounding off.
Any percentage amounts, as set forth in “RISK FACTORS” and elsewhere in this Prospectus unless otherwise indicated,
has been calculated on the basis of the amount disclosed in our restated financial statements prepared in accordance with
Indian GAAP.

Unless otherwise specifically provided in the respective Risk factors given below, the amounts of impact of risks specified
hereunder, on our financial conditions, are not quantifiable.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS:

1. Our business requires us to obtain and renew certain registrations, licenses and permits from government
and regulatory authorities and the failure to obtain and renew them in a timely manner may adversely affect
our business operations.

Our business operations require us to obtain and renew from time to time, certain approvals, licenses, registration and
permits, some of which may expire and for which we may have to make an application for obtaining the approval or its
renewal. If we fail to maintain such registrations and licenses or comply with applicable conditions, then such respective
regulatory can impose fine on our company or suspension and/or cancellation the approval/licenses which may affect our
business adversely.

Some of the permits, licenses and approvals etc. are granted for a fixed period of time and may expire and for which we
may have to make an application for obtaining the approval or its renewal. Failure to renew, maintain or obtain the
required permits or approvals in time may result in the interruption of our operations and may have a material adverse
effect on our business. Moreover, there can be no assurance that the relevant authorities will issue or renew any of such
permits or approvals in time or at all. Further, certain statutory and regulatory authority may put certain terms and
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conditions, which are required to be complied with by us. Any default by our Company in complying with the same, may
result in inter alia the cancellation of such licenses, consents, authorizations and/or registrations, which may adversely
affect our operations. For more information on the various statues applicable to our company, please refer chapter titled
“KEY INDUSTRY REGULATIONS” appearing on Page no. 104 of this Prospectus.

For more information about the licenses required in our business and the licenses and approvals taken by our company
please refer chapter titled “GOVERNMENT APPROVALS” appearing on Page no. 219 of this Prospectus.

2. Our Company is planning to set up the manufacturing facilities at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh for
manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Masking/specialty tapes and Laminated Products.

Our Company is planning to set up the manufacturing facilities at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh for manufacturing of
Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Masking/specialty tapes and Laminated Products for which cost of project is of approx. Rs.
690.00 Lakhs and out of which cost of Land is estimated to Rs. 200.00 Lakhs, construction of building and civil work is
estimated to Rs. 250.00 Lakhs and remaining Rs. 240.00 Lakhs towards plant and machinery and installation thereof. Out
of the total issue proceeds, our company will utilize Rs. 305.00 Lakhs towards setting up the said manufacturing facilities
and remaining amount from amount internal accruals and borrowings. In case, our company unable to set up the
manufacturing facilities or unable to receive requisite approvals for setting up the manufacturing facilities at Baddi,
Himachal Pradesh, we have to find alternates routes for deployment of funds raised through proceeds of IPO. Moreover,
schedule of implementation for competition of project is by financial year 2022-23, our company may use interim
proceeds of IPO until the proposed manufacturing facilities commences and completes.

3. Out of total cost of Plant & Machinery worth X 500.00 lakhs, we are yet to place order for purchase of Plant
& Machinery which constitutes 100% of the total cost of Plant & Machinery.

Our company has not placed any order for purchase of Plant & Machinery out of total budgeted cost of ¥ 500.00 lakhs.
The quotations have been received by our company for Plant & Machinery from various supplier. Out of total cost of
Plant & Machinery of Rs. 500 Lakhs, Plant & Machinery worth Rs. 240.00 Lakhs will be installed at our new
manufacturing facility at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh and remaining Plant & Machinery worth Rs. 260 Lakhs will installed
at our existing manufacturing Unit II situated at Vadodara, Gujarat.

Plant & Machinery to be installed at our proposed new manufacturing facility at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh is expected to
be installed by end of December 2022. Although, our promoters are confident that the machines will be available at the
price as per the quotation given by various suppliers, there can be no assurance that such Plant & Machinery will available
at same pricing on the date of placing order.

4. Our company has not identified proposed land to be acquired from the proceeds of the issue.

Our company intends to utilize part of the issue proceeds to the extent of Rs. 200.00 Lakhs towards acquisition of land
for our proposed Manufacturing project at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh. Our company has not identified proposed land to
be acquired till the date of this prospectus. The management of the company after their internal survey and assessment
have estimated the cost of land of Rs 200 lacs and also availability is ensured by various property dealers of that locality
Although, our promoter and management are confident enough that our company will be in position to acquired requisite
piece of land worth Rs. 200.00 Lakhs for setting up manufacturing facilities at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh, there can no
assurance that our company will be able to acquire such land in budget amount of Rs. 200.00 Lakhs.

5. Our manufacturing and marketing under our own brands are exposed to fluctuations in the prices of raw
materials.

Our Company is dependent on third party suppliers for raw material required for manufacturing our products. We are
exposed to fluctuations in the prices of these raw material as well as its unavailability, particularly as we typically do not
enter into any long term supply agreements with our suppliers for all such raw materials. We may be unable to control
the factors affecting the price at which we procure the raw materials. Upward fluctuations in the prices of such raw
material may thereby affect our margins and profitability, resulting in a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Though we enjoy favourable terms from the suppliers both in prices as well as in
supplies, our inability to obtain high quality raw materials in a timely and cost-effective manner would cause delays in
our production/trade cycles and delivery schedules, which may result in the loss of our customers and revenues.

6. The Company is dependent on few numbers of customers for sales. Loss of any of this large customer may
affect our revenues and profitability.

Our top ten customers namely HUL, ITC, Godrej, Patanjali, Amul, Philips, reckitt/Dettol, phone pe and Vodafone VI
Contributes almost 74.63% and 58.91% of our total sales for the year ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 respectively on
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consolidated basis. Any decline in our quality standards, growing competition and any change in the demand, may
adversely affect our ability to retain them. We cannot assure that we shall generate the same quantum of business, or any
business at all, and the loss of business from one or more of them may adversely affect our revenues and results of
operations. However, the composition and revenue generated from these customers might change as we continue to add
new customers in the normal course of business. Though we believe that we will not face substantial challenges in
maintaining our business relationship with them or finding new customers, there can be no assurance that we will be able
to maintain long term relationships with such customers or find new customers in time.

7. The Company is dependent on few numbers of suppliers for purchase of product. Loss of any of this large
suppliers may affect our business operations.

Our top ten suppliers contributes 64.98% and 65.38% of our total purchase of our product/supplies for the year ended
March 31, 2021 and 2020 respectively on consolidated basis. We cannot assure that we will be able to get the same
quantum and quality of supplies, or any supplies at all, and the loss of supplies from one or more of them may adversely
affect our purchases of stock and ultimately our revenue and results of operations. However, the composition and amount
of purchase from these suppliers might change as we continue seek new suppliers for our product for better quality and
price in the normal course of business. Though we believe that we will not face substantial challenges in maintaining our
business relationship with them or finding new suppliers, there can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain long
term relationships with such suppliers or find new suppliers in time.

8. Our company have not allotted Equity Shares in Demat Mode,.

Our Company was incorporated as public limited company on February 26, 2019. On May 23, 2019, our company has
allotted 20,00,000 Equity Shares of X 10 each, on preferential allotment basis to Mrs. Rekha Bansal against takeover of
running business of DK ENTERPRISES, proprietorship firm of Mrs. Rekha Bansal. Our company has not allotted such
20,00,000 Equity Shares in dematerialized mode in adherence with Rule 9A of Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014. Although ROC, Delhi has not initiated action against our company, in future they might initiate
requisite action and may levy penalty against our company and promoters and as a result if may affect our financial
position to that extent.

9. Our Company requires significant amount of working capital for a continued growth. Our inability to meet
our working capital requirements may have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

Our business is working capital intensive primarily on account of credit period given to customers, amounts blocked in
Finished Goods. Summary of our working capital position is given below:-

(X In Lakh)

Particulars As per Restated Standalone financial statement

31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21
Inventories
» Finished Goods - 15.40 33.80
» Work In Progress 13.93 17.02
» Raw Material - 136.55 409.59
Trade receivables - 414.49 497.74
Cash and cash equivalents - 27.54 91.00
Short-term loans and advances - 52.22 97.76
Other Current Assets - 5.33 14.37
Total Current Assets - 665.46 1,161.28
Trade payables - 613.39 728.87
Other current liabilities - 89.96 75.48
Short-term provisions - - 9.28
Total Current Liabilities - 703.35 813.62
Net Working Capital - (37.89) 347.66
Incremental Working Capital
Sources of Funds
Short Term Borrowing - - 127.79
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As per Restated Standalone financial statement

Particulars 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21

Unsecured Loan from Directors/Relatives - - -
Internal Accruals/Existing Net worth - - 219.87
Proceeds from IPO - - -
Total - - 347.66

Our Company intend to continue growing by expanding our export operations and widening our products base. All these
factors may result in increase in the quantum of current assets. Our inability to maintain sufficient cash flow, credit facility
and other sources of fund, in a timely manner, or at all, to meet the requirement of working capital or pay out debts, could
adversely affect our financial condition and result of our operations. For further details regarding incremental working
capital requirement, please refer to the chapter titled —OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE beginning on page no. 63 of this
Prospectus.

10. The capacity of the manufacturing Unit I and II are not fully utilized, consecutively, if there is any under-
utilization of our proposed capacities in such case this could affect our ability to fully absorb fixed costs and
thus may adversely impact our financial performance.

The capacities at our manufacturing unit I and II have not been fully utilized, the details of which are as follows. In
addition, our company is planning to set up additional manufacturing facilities at Vadodara (Unit II).

FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21
Instal
led
Capa
Name of city
Products No. of No. of No. of No. of
Units Units % of Units % of Units % of
Manufactu (M.T Install Manufactu Install Manufactu Install
red per ed red (M.T ed red ed
(M.T per Annu Capaci per Capac  (M.T per Capac
Annum) m) ty Annum) ity Annum) ity
Panchkula (Unit — I)
Easy
Release/Soap
Banding Tape NA NA NA 401.49 800 50 508 800 63%
Clear/Printed
Bopp Tape NA NA NA 187.38 600 31 448 600 75%
Laminated
Products NA NA NA 221.45 350 63 259 350 74%
Promotional/
Advertising
Shelf Strip
Tapes NA NA NA 65.55 120 55 73 120 61%
MASKING NA NA NA 14.65 100 15 32 100 32%
Vadodara (Unit II)
Corrugated
Box NA NA NA 1233.09 1800 69 1108 1800 62
Sleeve Roll,
Tray & Sheets NA NA NA 1786.60 | 3600 50 2125 3600 59

Note: a) In the financial year 2019-20, our manufacturing facilities at Panchkula (Unit I) and Vadodara (Unit II) were
operative for approx. 10.5 months, as our company had acquired the running business of D.K. Enterprises (including all
its movable assets, current assets and liabilities of manufacturing facilities of Panchkula and Vadodara) in terms of
agreement dated May 15, 2019. The capacity utilization for the financial year 2019-20 is not capitalized, whereas installed
capacity is considered for the full financial year.
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11. If we cannot respond adequately to the increased competition we expect to face, we will lose market share and
our profits will decline, which will adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our products face competition from products commercialized or under development by competitors in all of our product
portfolios. We compete with local companies, multi-national corporations and companies from the rest of world. If our
competitors gain significant market share at our expense, our business, results of operations and financial condition could
be adversely affected.

Many of our competitors may have greater financial, manufacturing, research and development, marketing and other
resources, more experience in obtaining regulatory approvals, greater geographic reach, broader product ranges and
stronger sales forces. Our competitors may succeed in developing products that are more effective, more popular or
cheaper than products which we have developed or we may develop, which may render our products obsolete or
uncompetitive and adversely affect our business and financial results. Also, we face pressure on our margins due to
pricing competition from several small and organized local players. Presence of such players has resulted in increasing
competitive environment characterized by stiff price competition.

12. We generally do business with our customers on purchase order basis and do not enter into long term
contracts with most of them.

Our business is dependent on our continuing relationships with our customers. Our Company neither has any long-term
contract with any of customers. Any change in the buying pattern of our end users or disassociation of major customers
can adversely affect the business of our Company. The loss of or interruption of work by, a significant customer or a
number of significant customers or the inability to procure new orders on a regular basis or at all may have an adverse
effect on our revenues, cash flows and operations.

13. Our Company’s failure to maintain the quality standards of the products or keep pace with the technological
developments could adversely impact our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our products depend on recent inventions and developments as we market the products as per the market trends. Any
failure to maintain the quality standards may affect our business. Although we have put in place strict quality control
procedures, we cannot assure that our products will always be able to satisfy our customer’s quality standards. Any
negative publicity regarding our Company, or products, including those arising from any deterioration in quality of our
products from our vendors, or any other unforeseen events could adversely affect our reputation, our operations and our
results from operations. Also, rapid change in our customer’s expectation on account of changes in technology or
introduction of new products or for any other reason and failure on our part to meet their expectation could adversely
affect our business, result of operations and financial condition. While, we believe that we have always introduced new
products based on consumers need to cater to the growing demand of our customers and also endeavor regularly update
our existing technology, our failure to anticipate or to respond adequately to changing technical, market demands and/or
client requirements could adversely affect our business and financial results.

14. There may be potential conflicts of interest if our Promoters, Promoters’ Group or Directors are involved in
same business activities that compete with or are in the same line of activity as our business operations.

Certain Group Companies/entities and although our subsidiary company are involved in similar line of Business that is
being carried out by our Company. Also our Company has entered into various transactions with our Group Companies,
subsidiary companies and will continue to do in future. For detailed information for our transaction with group
Companies, subsidiary companies please refer to Annexure - J and Annexure - J of Restated financial Statement under
chapter titled “Auditors Report and Financial Information of our Company” beginning on page no. 166 and 196
respectively of this Prospectus. Further, we have not entered into any non-compete agreement with our said entity. We
cannot assure you that our Promoters, Promoter’s Group or Directors who have common interest in said entities may not
favor the interest of the said entity. Any such present and future conflicts could have a material effect on our reputation,
business, results of operations and financial condition which may affect our profitability and results of operations.

15. Our Company is dependent on third party transportation for the delivery of products and any disruption in
their operations or a decrease in the quality of their services could affect our Company's reputation and results
of operations.

Our Company uses third party transportation for delivery of our products. However customers located nearby our
manufacturing Units to whom we supplied our products through our own transport vehicle. Though our business has not
experienced any disruptions due to transportation strikes in the past, any future transportation strikes may have an adverse
effect on our business. These transportation facilities may not be adequate to support our existing and future operations.
In addition such goods may be lost or damaged in transit for various reasons including occurrence of accidents or natural
disasters. There may also be delay in delivery of products which may also affect our business and results of operation

24



16.

— S

www. dkanterprises.co.in

negatively. An increase in the freight costs or unavailability of freight for transportation of our raw materials may have
an adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Further, disruptions of transportation services due to weather-related problems, strikes, lockouts, inadequacies in the road
infrastructure and port facilities, or other events could impair ability to deliver goods on time. Any such disruptions could
materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The average cost of acquisition of Equity shares by our Promoters is lower than the Issue price. Our promoters
average cost of acquisition of Equity shares in our Company is lower than the Issue Price of Equity shares as given

below:

Average Cost of Acquisition

Name of Promoters No. of Equity Shares held

per equity share (in 3)*
1. Mr. Rakesh Kumar 7,24,850 19.49
2. Mrs. Rekha Bansal 43,24,850 6.04
3 Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 4,53,500 19.18

*The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters has been calculated by taking into account the amount
paid by them and also acquisition of the business to acquire, by way of fresh issuance or transfer, the Equity Shares less
amount received by them for the sale of Equity Shares through transfer, if any and the net cost of acquisition has been
divided by total number of shares held as on date of the Prospectus.

17. Our success depends in large part upon the strength of our management team and other skilled professionals.
If we fail to attract, retain and manage transition of these personnel, our business may be unable to grow and
our revenue could decline.

The continued efforts of the senior members of our management team and other skilled professionals are critical to our
success. Our ability to execute engagements and to obtain new clients depends in large part on our ability to attract, train,
motivate and retain skilled professionals, especially senior management personnel, senior technical personnel, project
managers etc. [f we cannot hire and retain additional qualified personnel, our ability to obtain new projects and to continue
to expand our business will be impaired and our revenue could decline. We believe that there is significant competition
within our industry for professionals with the skills necessary for better performance, particularly in the locations in
which we have operations. We may not be able to hire and retain enough skilled and experienced employees to replace
those who leave. Increasing competition for technology professionals may also impact our ability to retain personnel.
Changes in government policies may also affect our ability to attract hire and retain personnel. If we are unable to offer
them higher compensation, we may be unable to attract or retain them. Our business, financial condition and results of
operations could be adversely affected if we are unable to manage employee hiring and attrition to achieve a stable and
efficient workforce structure.

18. In the event there is any delay in the completion of the Issue, or delay in schedule of implementation, there
would be a corresponding delay in the completion of the objects of this Issue which would in turn affect our
revenues and results of operations.

The funds that we receive would be utilized for the objects of the Issue as has been stated in the chapter titled “OBJECTS
OF THE ISSUE” on Page no. 63 of this Prospectus. The proposed schedule of implementation of the objects of the Issue
is based on our management‘s estimates. If the schedule of implementation is delayed for any other reason whatsoever,
including any delay in the completion of the Issue, it may adversely affect our revenues and results of operations.

19. We have not identified any alternate source of raising the funds required for our ‘Objects of the Issue’. Any
shortfall in raising / meeting the same could adversely affect our growth plans, operations and financial
performance.

Our Company has not identified any alternate source of funding and hence any failure or delay on our part to mobilize
the required resources or any shortfall in the Issue proceeds can adversely affect our growth plan and profitability. The
delay/shortfall in receiving these proceeds may require us to borrow the funds on unfavorable terms; such scenarios may
affect the business operation and financial performance of the company.

20. Our operations may be adversely affected by strikes, work stoppages or increased wage demands by our
employees or any other industrial unrest or dispute.

While we have not experienced any unrest or dispute in our company in the past, we cannot be certain that we will not

suffer any disruption to our operations due to strikes, work stoppages or increased salary demands in the future. Further,
if our work force in our unit unionizes in the future, collective bargaining efforts by employee unions may divert our
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management’s attention and result in increased costs. We may be unable to negotiate acceptable collective wage
settlement agreements with those workers who have chosen to be represented by unions, which may lead to union-
initiated strikes or work stoppages. Any shortage of skilled and experienced workers caused by such industrial unrest or
disputes may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition. Further, under Indian law, we
may be held liable for wage payments or benefits and amenities made available to “daily wage” workers. Any requirement
to discharge such payment obligations, benefits or amenities or to absorb a significant portion of the salary on our own
rolls may adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

21. In addition to normal remuneration, other benefits and reimbursement of expenses to our Promoters and
Directors; they are interested to the extent of their shareholding and dividend entitlement thereon in our
Company and for the transactions entered into between our Company and themselves as well as between our
Company and our Group Companies/Entities.

Our Promoters — Directors are interested in our Company to the extent of their shareholding and dividend entitlement
thereon in our Company, in addition to normal remuneration or benefits and reimbursement of expenses. Our Promoters
and Directors are interested in the transactions entered into between our Company and themselves as well as between our
Company and our Group Company/Entity which may be or may not be at Arms’ Length Price and in Ordinary Course of
Business. If the transactions are executed not on Arms’ Length Price and in Ordinary Course of Business, our financial
position may get affected to that extent. For details of transactions already executed by our Company with our Promoters,
Directors and Group Companies/Entities during last three years, please refer to the “Annexure — J”” and Annexure J -
“RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION” of Restated Financial Statements under the Chapter titled “RESTATED
FINANCIAL INFORMATION” beginning on Page No. 166 and 196 of this Prospectus.

22. Our Object has not been appraised by any Bank or Financial Institution. Any significant deviation in the
Object could adversely impact our operations and sustainability in absence of any independent monitoring
agency.

We have estimated fund raising to the extent of I 799.20 Lakh to finance the ‘Objects of the Issue’ (including Issue
Expenses). The proposed objects for which the funds are being raised have not been appraised by any Bank or Financial
Institution and the fund requirements are based primarily on management estimates. There is no guarantee that our
estimates will prove to be accurate and any significant deviation in the project cost could adversely impact our operations
and sustainability in the absence of any independent monitoring agency. For details of the “OBJECT OF THE ISSUE”,
please refer Page no. 63 of this Prospectus.

23. Our insurance coverage may not be adequate to protect us against all potential losses to which we may be
subject to and this may have a material adverse effect on our business.

While we believe that we maintain insurance coverage in amounts consistent with industry norms. If any or all of our
facilities are damaged in whole or in part and our operations are interrupted for a sustained period, there can be no
assurance that our insurance policies will be adequate to cover the losses that may be incurred as a result of such
interruption or the cost of repairing or replacing the damaged facilities. If we suffer a large uninsured loss or any insured
loss suffered by us significantly exceeds our insurance coverage, our business, financial condition and result of operations
may be materially and adversely affected.

24. Our Promoters play key role in our functioning and we heavily rely on their knowledge and experience in
operating our business and therefore, it is critical for our business that our Promoters and Executive Directors
remain associated with us. Our success also depends upon the services of our key managerial personnel and
our ability to attract and retain key managerial personnel and our inability to attract them may affect our
operations.

We benefit from our relationship with our Promoters and our success depends upon the continuing services of our
Promoters and executive Directors who have been responsible for the growth of our business and is closely involved in
the overall strategy, direction and management of our business. Our Promoters and executive Directors have been actively
involved in the day to day operations and management. Accordingly, our performance is heavily dependent upon the
services of our Promoters and executive Directors. If our Promoters and executive directors unable or unwilling to
continue in their present position, we may not be able to replace them easily or at all. Further, we rely on the continued
services and performance of our key executives and senior management for continued success and smooth functioning
of the operations of the Company. If we lose the services of any of our key managerial personnel, we may be unable to
locate suitable or qualified replacements, and may incur additional expenses to recruit and train new personnel, which
could adversely affect our business operations and affect our ability to continue to manage and expand our business. Our
Promoters and executive Directors, along with the key managerial personnel, have over the years built relations with
various customers and other persons who form part of our stakeholders and are connected with us. The loss of their
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services could impair our ability to implement our strategy, and our business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

25. Our Company has entered into related party transactions and may continue to do so in the future.

Our Company has entered into related party transactions with our Promoters, Directors, Promoter Group, Group
companies/entities, subsidiary company during the last two Financial Years. While our Company believes that all such
transactions have been conducted on the arm’s length basis, there can be no assurance that it could not have been achieved
on more favourable terms had such transactions not been entered into with related parties. There can be no assurance that
such transactions, individually or in the aggregate, will not have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results
of operation. For details, please refer to please refer to the “Annexure — J” and “Annexure — J” “RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTION” of Restated Financial Statements on standalone and consolidated basis under the Chapter titled
“RESTATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION” beginning on Page No. 166 and 199 of this Prospectus.

26. Our Promoters and members of the Promoter Group will continue jointly to retain majority control over our
Company after the Issue, which will allow them to determine the outcome of matters submitted to
shareholders for approval.

Post this Issue, our Promoter and Promoter Group will collectively own 73.30% of our post issue equity share capital. As
a result, our Promoter, together with the members of the Promoter Group, will continue to exercise a significant degree
of influence over Company and will be able to control the outcome of any proposal that can be approved by a majority
shareholder vote, including, the election of members to our Board, in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and our
Articles of Association. Such a concentration of ownership may also have the effect of delaying, preventing or deterring
a change in control of our Company.

In addition, our Promoter will continue to have the ability to cause us to take actions that are not in, or may conflict with,
our interests or the interests of some or all of our creditors or other shareholders, and we cannot assure you that such
actions will not have an adverse effect on our future financial performance or the price of our Equity Shares.

27. Any variation in the utilization of the Net Proceeds as disclosed in this Prospectus shall be subject to certain
compliance requirements, including prior Shareholders’ approval.

In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, we cannot undertake any variation in the utilization of the
Net Proceeds as disclosed in this Prospectus without obtaining the shareholders’ approval through a special resolution.
In the event of any such circumstances that requires us to undertake variation in the disclosed utilization of the Net
Proceeds, we may not be able to obtain the Shareholders’ approval in a timely manner, or at all. Any delay or inability in
obtaining such Shareholders’ approval may adversely affect our business or operations. Further, our Promoters or
controlling shareholders would be required to provide an exit opportunity to the shareholders who do not agree with our
proposal to modify the objects of the Issue as prescribed in the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations. If our shareholders exercise
such exit option, our business and financial condition could be adversely affected. Therefore, we may not be able to
undertake variation of objects of the Issue to use any unutilized proceeds of the Issue, if any, even if such variation is in
the interest of our Company, which may restrict our ability to respond to any change in our business or financial condition
and may adversely affect our business and results of operations. For further details of the proposed objects of the Issue,
refer chapter titled “OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE” on Page no. 63 of this Prospectus.

28. There is no monitoring agency appointed by Our Company and the deployment of funds are at the discretion
of our Management and our Board of Directors, though it shall be monitored by our Audit Committee.

The issue proceeds is entirely at the discretion of the issuer/management. As per SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018,
appointment of monitoring agency is required only if Issue size exceeds ¥ 10,000 Lakh. Hence, we have not appointed
any monitoring agency to monitor the utilization of Issue proceeds. However, as per the Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 the Audit Committee of our Company would be monitoring the utilization of the Issue Proceeds.

29. Our inability to manage growth could disrupt our business and reduce profitability.

A principal component of our strategy is to continuously grow by expanding the size and geographical scope of our
businesses. This growth strategy will place significant demands on our management, financial and other resources. It will
require us to continuously develop and improve our operational, financial and internal controls. Continuous expansion
increases the challenges involved in financial management, recruitment, training and retaining high quality human
resources, preserving our culture, values and entrepreneurial environment, and developing and improving our internal
administrative infrastructure. Any inability on our part to manage such growth could disrupt our business prospects,
impact our financial condition and adversely affect our results of operations.
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30. Our ability to pay dividends in the future will depend upon our future earnings, financial condition, cash
flows, working capital requirements, capital expenditure and restrictive covenants in our financing
arrangements.

We may retain all our future earnings, if any, for use in the operations and expansion of our business. As a result, we may
not declare dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination as to the declaration and payment of dividends
will be at the discretion of our Board of Directors and will depend on factors that our Board of Directors deem relevant,
including among others, our results of operations financial condition, cash requirements, business prospects and any other
financing arrangements.

Additionally, we may not be permitted to declare any dividends under the loan financing arrangement that our Company
may enter into future, if there is a default under such loan agreements or unless our Company has paid all the dues to the
lender up to the date on which the dividend is declared or paid or has made satisfactory provisions thereof.

Accordingly, realization of a gain on shareholders investments may largely depend upon the appreciation of the price of
our Equity Shares. There can be no assurance that our Equity Shares will appreciate in value.

31. Our future funds requirements, in the form of fresh issue of capital or securities and/or loans taken by us,
may be prejudicial to the interest of the shareholders depending upon the terms on which they are eventually
raised.

We may require additional capital from time to time depending on our business needs. Any fresh issue of shares or
convertible securities would dilute the shareholding of the existing shareholders and such issuance may be done on terms
and conditions, which may not be favorable to the then existing shareholders. If such funds are raised in the form of loans
or debt, then it may substantially increase our interest burden and decrease our cash flows, thus prejudicially affecting
our profitability and ability to pay dividends to our shareholders.

32. Our inability to effectively implement our business and growth strategy may have an adverse effect on our
operation and growth.

The success of our business will largely depend on our ability to effectively implement our business and growth strategy.
In the past we have generally been successful in execution of our business but there can be no assurance that we will be
able to execute our strategy on time and within the estimated budget in the future. If we are unable to implement our
business and growth strategy, this may have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

33. We could be harmed by employee misconduct or errors that are difficult to detect and any such incidences
could adversely affect our financial condition, results of operations and reputation.

Employee misconduct or errors could expose us to business risks or losses, including regulatory sanctions and serious
harm to our reputation. There can be no assurance that we will be able to detect or deter such misconduct. Moreover, the
precautions we take to prevent and detect such activity may not be effective in all cases. Our employees and agents may
also commit errors that could subject us to claims and proceedings for alleged negligence, as well as regulatory actions
on account of which our business, financial condition, results of operations and goodwill could be adversely affected.

34. Certain data mentioned in this Prospectus has not been independently verified.

We have not independently verified data from industry publications contained herein and although we believe these
sources to be reliable, we cannot assure that they are complete or reliable. Such data may also be produced on a different
basis from comparable information compiled with regard to other countries. Therefore, discussions of matters relating to
India and its economy are subject to the limitation that the statistical and other data upon which such discussions are
based have not been verified by us and may be incomplete or unreliable.

35. The requirements of being a public listed company may strain our resources and impose additional
requirements.

With the increased scrutiny of the affairs of a public listed company by shareholders, regulators and the public at large,
we will incur significant legal, accounting, corporate governance and other expenses that we did not incur in the past. We
will also be subject to the provisions of the listing agreements signed with the Stock Exchange. In order to meet our
financial control and disclosure obligations, significant resources and management supervision will be required. As a
result, management’s attention may be diverted from other business concerns, which could have an adverse effect on our
business and operations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to satisfy our reporting obligations and/or readily
determine and report any changes to our results of operations in a timely manner as other listed companies. In addition,
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we will need to increase the strength of our management team and hire additional legal and accounting staff with
appropriate public company experience and accounting knowledge and we cannot assure that we will be able to do so in
a timely manner. Failure of our Company to meet the listing requirements of stock exchange could lead to imposition of
huge penalties, if any including suspension of trading, imposed by Stock Exchange.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS

1. Global economic, political and social conditions may harm our ability to do business, increase our costs and
negatively affect our stock price.

Global economic and political factors that are beyond our control, influence forecasts and directly affect performance.
These factors include interest rates, rates of economic growth, fiscal and monetary policies of governments, change in
regulatory framework, inflation, deflation, foreign exchange fluctuations, consumer credit availability, consumer debt
levels, unemployment trends, terrorist threats and activities, worldwide military and domestic disturbances and conflicts,
and other matters that influence consumer confidence, spending and tourism.

2. Any changes in the regulatory framework could adversely affect our operations and growth prospects

Our Company is subject to various regulations and policies. For details see section titled “KEY INDUSTRY
REGULATIONS” beginning on Page no. 104 of this Prospectus. Our business and prospects could be materially
adversely affected by changes in any of these regulations and policies, including the introduction of new laws, policies
or regulations or changes in the interpretation or application of existing laws, policies and regulations. There can be no
assurance that our Company will succeed in obtaining all requisite regulatory approvals in the future for our operations
or that compliance issues will not be raised in respect of our operations, either of which could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

3. Civil disturbances, extremities of weather, regional conflicts and other political instability may have adverse
effects on our operations and financial performance.

Certain events that are beyond our control such as earthquake, fire, floods and similar natural calamities may cause
interruption in the business undertaken by us. Our operations and financial results and the market price and liquidity of
our equity shares may be affected by changes in Indian Government policy or taxation or social, ethnic, political,
economic or other adverse developments in or affecting India.

4. Our 100% Revenue is not derived from India and a decrease in economic growth in respective countries could
cause our business to suffer.

We do not derive 100% of revenue from our operations in India and consequently, our performance and the quality and
growth of our business are dependent on the health of the economy of respective countries from where we derive income.
In addition, the Indian and exporting countries economy may be adversely affected by factors such as adverse changes in
liberalization policies, social disturbances, terrorist attacks and other acts of violence or war, natural calamities or interest
rates changes, which may also affect the microfinance industry. Any such factor may contribute to a decrease in economic
growth in India which could adversely impact our business and financial performance.

5. We are subject to risks arising from interest rate fluctuations, which could adversely impact our business,
financial condition and operating results.

Changes in interest rates could significantly affect our financial condition and results of operations. If the interest rates
for future borrowings increase significantly, our cost of servicing such debt will increase. This may negatively impact
our results of operations, planned capital expenditures and cash flows.

6. The price of our Equity Shares may be volatile, or an active trading market for our Equity Shares may not
develop.

Prior to this Issue, there has been no public market for our Equity Shares. Our Company and the Lead Manager appointed
Designated Market maker for the equity shares of our Company. However, the trading price of our Equity Shares may
fluctuate after this Issue due to a variety of factors, including our results of operations and the performance of our business,
competitive conditions, general economic, political and social factors, the performance of the Indian and global economy
and significant developments in India’s fiscal regime, volatility in the Indian and global securities market, performance
of our competitors, the Indian Capital Markets and Finance industry, changes in the estimates of our performance or
recommendations by financial analysts and announcements by us or others regarding contracts, acquisitions, strategic
partnership, joint ventures, or capital commitments.
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7. Taxes and other levies imposed by the Government of India or other State Governments, as well as other
financial policies and regulations, may have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Taxes and other levies imposed by the Central or State Governments in India that impact our industry include customs
duties, excise duties, sales tax, income tax and other taxes, duties or surcharges introduced on a permanent or temporary
basis from time to time. There can be no assurance that these tax rates/slab will continue in the future. Further, with the
Introduction of the Goods and Services Act, tax rates and its implication may have material impact on our products. Any
changes in these tax rates/slabs could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

8. The Issue price of our Equity Shares may not be indicative of the market price of our Equity Shares after the
Issue and the market price of our Equity Shares may decline below the issue price and you may not be able to
sell your Equity Shares at or above the Issue Price.

The Issue Price of our Equity Shares is ¥ 40. This price is be based on numerous factors (For further information, please
refer chapter titled “BASIS FOR ISSUE PRICE” beginning on Page no. 72 of this Prospectus) and may not be indicative
of the market price of our Equity Shares after the Issue. The market price of our Equity Shares could be subject to
significant fluctuations after the Issue, and may decline below the Issue Price. We cannot assure you that you will be able
to sell your Equity Shares at or above the Issue Price. Among the factors that could affect our share price include without
limitation the following;

» Half yearly variations in the rate of growth of our financial indicators, such as earnings per share, net income and
revenues;

» Changes in revenue or earnings estimates or publication of research reports by analysts;

»  Speculation in the press or investment community;

»  General market conditions; and

» Domestic and international economic, legal and regulatory factors unrelated to our performance.

9. You will not be able to sell immediately on Indian Stock Exchanges any of the Equity Shares you purchase in

the Issue until the Issue receives appropriate trading permissions.

The Equity Shares will be listed on the Stock Exchange. Pursuant to Indian regulations, certain actions must be completed
before the Equity Shares can be listed and trading on stock exchange. We cannot assure you that the Equity Shares will
be credited to investor’s demat accounts, or that trading in the Equity Shares will commence, within the time periods
specified in this Prospectus. Any failure or delay in obtaining the approval would restrict your ability to dispose of the
Equity Shares. In accordance with section 40 of the Companies Act, in the event that the permission of listing the Equity
Shares is denied by the stock exchanges, we are required to refund all monies collected to investors.

10. There is no guarantee that the Equity Shares issued pursuant to the Issue will be listed on the Emerge Platform
of National Stock Exchange of India Limited in a timely manner, or at all.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, permission for listing and trading of the Equity Shares issued pursuant to the
Issue will not be granted until after the Equity Shares have been issued and allotted. Approval for listing and trading will
require all relevant documents authorizing the issuing of Equity Shares to be submitted. There could be a failure or delay
in listing the Equity Shares on the Emerge Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited. Any failure or delay in
obtaining the approval would restrict your ability to dispose of your Equity Shares.

11. The COVID-19 pandemic, or any future pandemic or widespread public health emergency, could materially
and adversely impact our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.

Since first being reported in December 2019, the outbreak of COVID-19 has spread globally. The World Health
Organization declared the outbreak of COVID-19 to be a public health emergency of international concern on January 30,
2020, and a global pandemic on March 11, 2020.

The COVID-19 pandemic has had, and any future pandemic or widespread public health emergency could have,
repercussions across regional and global economies and financial markets. The outbreak of COVID-19 in many countries,
including India has significantly and adversely impacted economic activity and has contributed to significant volatility and
negative pressure in financial markets, and it is possible that the outbreak of COVID-19 will cause a prolonged global
economic crisis, recession or depression, despite monetary and fiscal interventions by governments and central banks
globally.

The global impact of the outbreak has been rapidly evolving. As cases of COVID-19 have continued to be identified in

additional countries, many jurisdictions, including the governments of India, have reacted by instituting restrictive
measures including invoking lock downs and quarantines, requiring the closure of non-essential businesses and placing
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restrictions on the types of businesses that may continue to operate, mandating restrictions on travel, implementing “shelter-
in-place” rules and “stay-at-home” orders, and enforcing remote working regulations. No prediction can be made of when
any of the restrictions currently in place will be relaxed or expire, or whether or when further restrictions will be announced.
Although some governments are beginning to ease or lift these restrictions, the impacts from the severe disruptions caused
by the effective shutdown of large segments of the global economy or localized lockdowns remain unknown.

On March 24, 2020, the Government of India ordered a national lockdown in response to the spread of COVID-19. Our
business was determined to be operating in an essential industry, which allowed us to continue our operations subsequent
to the introduction of the lockdown in India, subject to certain adjustments in working patterns.

There can be no assurance that there will not be any material impact on our operations if the outbreak of COVID-19 is not
effectively controlled. Although some restrictions have been eased, it is not yet clear when the lockdown conditions will
be fully lifted in India. Further, although we were declared an essential business and were able to adjust our business to
continue operating during the lockdown, there can be no assurance that further restrictions will not be introduced or that
we will continue to retain such essential status. Further, we may be required to quarantine employees that are suspected of
being infected of COVID-19, as well as others that have come into contact with those employees or shut down our
manufacturing facilities as a health measure, which could have an adverse effect on our business operations or result in a
delay in the production and supply of products to our customers in a timely manner. If any of our suppliers are affected by
COVID-19 to the extent our supply chain is disrupted, this may affect our ability to meet the demand of our customers.

The full extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic, or any future pandemic or widespread public health emergency impacts
our business, operations and financial results will depend on numerous evolving factors that we may not be able to
accurately predict, including the scope, severity, and duration of the pandemic; actions taken by governments, business
and individuals in response to the pandemic; the effect on customer demand for and ability to pay for our products; the
disruptions or restrictions on our employees’ and suppliers’ ability to work and travel; volatility in foreign exchange rates;
any extended period of remote work arrangements; and strain on our or our customers’ business continuity plans, and
resultant operational risk.

The COVID-19 pandemic, or any future pandemic or widespread public health emergency could therefore materially and
adversely impact our business, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations.
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SECTION IV — INTRODUCTION
THE ISSUE

Present Issue in terms of this Prospectus:

Particulars Details

Equity Shares offered 19,98,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each at an Issue Price of ¥ 40 each aggregating to ¥
799.20 Lakh

Of which:

Reserved for Market | 1,02,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each at an Issue Price of ¥ 40 each aggregating to ¥ 40.80

Makers Lakh

Net Issue to the Public* 18,96,000 Equity Shares of X 10/- each at an Issue Price of ¥ 40 each aggregating to X
758.40 Lakh

Of which

Retail Portion 9,48,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each at an Issue Price of ¥ 40/- each aggregating to ¥
379.20 Lakh

Non Retail Portion 9,48,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each at an Issue Price of I40/- each aggregating to ¥
379.20 Lakh

Equity Shares | 55,10,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each

outstanding prior to the

Issue

Equity Shares | 7,508,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each

outstanding  after the

Issue

Use of Proceeds For details please refer chapter titled “OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE” beginning on Page no.
63 of this Prospectus for information on use of Issue Proceeds.

* Since present issue is a fixed price issue, the allocation in the net offer to the public category in terms of Regulation
253(2) of the SEBI (ICDR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 shall be made as follows;

(a) minimum fifty per cent. to retail individual investors; and
(b) remaining to:
i) individual applicants other than retail individual investors; and

ii) other investors including corporate bodies or institutions, irrespective of the number of Equity Shares applied
for;

Provided that the unsubscribed portion in either of the categories specified in clauses (a) or (b) may be allocated to
applicants in the other category.

Explanation: If the retail individual investor category is entitled to more than fifty per cent of the net issue size on a
proportionate basis, the retail individual investors shall be allocated that higher percentage.

NOTES
This Issue is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, as amended from time to time.

The Issue has been authorized by the Board of Directors vide a resolution passed at its meeting held on February 01, 2021

and by the shareholders of our Company, pursuant to section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, vide a special
resolution passed at the EOGM held on March 01, 2021.

32



Sr. | Particulars
No.

— S

www. dkanterprises.co.in

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ANNEXURE - A : RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Note  As at 30th June As at 31st March

- No. 2021 2021 2020
A. | Equity and Liabilities
1 Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital A.l 551.00 275.50 205.00
Reserves & Surplus A2 349.48 534.70 122.18
Minority Interest A3 95.46 85.97 153.85
Subtotal 995.94 896.17 481.04
2 Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Borrowings A4 334.66 356.77 529.41
Other Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Provisions - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) A5 14.94 14.37 10.19
Subtotal 349.60 371.14 539.60
3 Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings A.6 604.10 427.41 24.59
Trade Payables : A7
(A) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises; - - -
and
(B) Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro 730.55 988.18 733.54
enterprises and small enterprises.".]
Other Current Liabilities A.8 103.20 86.15 127.28
Short Term Provisions A9 23.02 9.28 -
Subtotal 1,460.87 1,511.02 885.41
Total 2,806.41 2,778.33 1,906.05
B. | Assets
1 Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Tangible Assets 1039.76 1050.60 520.38
Intangible Assets A.10 1.17 1.28 1.34
Capital Work in Progress - - 455.25
Long Term Loans & Advances A1l 24.13 24.13 24.06
Long Term Trade Receivables A.12 11.97 9.89 -
Subtotal 1,077.03 1,085.89 1,001.03
2 Current Assets
Inventories A.13 749.87 726.73 281.73
Trade Receivables A.14 709.76 682.29 507.78
Cash and Cash Equivalents A.15 169.48 149.08 29.54
Short-Term Loans and Advances A.16 86.21 119.45 80.27
Other Current Assets A.17 14.06 14.89 5.71
Subtotal 1,729.38 1,692.45 905.03
Total 2,806.41 2,778.33 1,906.05

Note: The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, profits
and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure D, B & C.
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ANNEXURE - B: RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
(Rs. in Lakhs)

For The Year Ended 31st March
2021 2021 2020

Not For the Quarter

Particulars € Ended 30th June

No.

A. | Revenue:

Revenue from Operations B.1 1,900.95 6,483.89 4511.24
Other income B.2 11.64 11.9 43.79
Total revenue 1,912.59 6495.79 4555.03
B. | Expenses:
Cost of Raw Material Consumed B.3 1,565.59 5,247.06 3649.10
Changes in Inventories of FG & WIP | B.4 (14.77) (21.49) (29.33)
Employees Benefit Expenses B.5 58.91 241.00 199.58
Finance costs B.6 18.27 70.79 55.39
Depreciation and Amortization B.7 17.32 53.30 34.90
Other expenses B.8 138.20 601.13 438.41
Total Expenses 1,783.52 6191.78 4348.05

Profit before exceptional and

extraordinary items and tax 129.07 304.01 206.97
Exceptional Items -
Profit before extraordinary items 129.07 304.01 206.97
and tax
Extraordinary items -
Profit before tax 129.07 304.01 206.97
Tax expense :
Current tax 28.73 55.97 47.27
Deferred Tax B.9 0.57 4.18 10.19
Tax Provision for previous year
Proﬁt (Loss) for the period from 99.77 243.86 14951
continuing operations
Earning per equity share in Rs.:
(1) Basic 1.81 5.91 4.22
(2) Diluted 1.81 5.91 4.22

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary,
Statement of Assets & liabilities and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A& C.
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ANNEXURE - C: RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Rs. in Lakhs)
For the Quarter
Particulars Ended 3(?& June For The Year Ended 31st March

2021 2021 2020
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 129.07 304.01 206.97
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 17.32 53.30 34.90
Interest Income - (0.91) (0.37)
Interest Expense 18.27 70.79 55.39
Operating profit before working capital changes 164.66 427.19 296.89
Movements in working capital :
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (257.64) 254.64 645.34
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities 17.05 (130.13) 109.06
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (23.09) (445.04) (202.97)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (29.61) (184.35) (319.41)
Increase/(Decrease) in other long term liabilities - - -
(Increase)/Decrease in short-term loans and advances 33.25 (39.18) (35.78)
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets 0.83 (2.12) (5.33)
Cash generated from operations (94.55) (119.00) 487.80
Income tax paid during the year (14.97) (55.58) 45.64
Net cash from operating activities (A) (109.53) (174.59) 442.16
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Sale/(Purchase) of Investments -
Purchase of Fixed Assets (6.38) (128.21) (922.97)
Interest Received - 0.91 0.37
Increase in Other Non-Current Assets/Loans & ) (0.07) (24.06)
Advances
Net cash from investing activities (B) (6.38) (127.36) (946.66)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on borrowings (18.27) (70.79) (55.39)
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings 176.69 402.82 24.59
Change in Minority Interest - (110.73) (54.03)
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Borrowings (22.12) (81.82) 409.25
Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital - - 200.00
Net Proceeds From Right Issue 282.00
Net cash from financing activities (C) 136.29 421.48 524.41
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
(A+BAC) 1 20.39 119.53 19.91
yCei:::h and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 149.09 29.54 5.00
Cash and cash equivalents of firm acquired
during the year ) ] 4.63
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 169.48 149.08 29.54

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary,
Statement of Assets & liabilities and profits and losses appearing in Annexure D,A& B.

35



— S

www. dkanterprises.co.in

ANNEXURE - A: RESTATED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sr. Particulars Note As at 30th June As at 31st March
No. No. 2021 2021 2020 2019
A. | Equity and Liabilities
1 | Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital Al 551.00 275.50 205.00 5.00
Reserves & Surplus A2 349.49 534.70 124.03 -
Subtotal 900.49 810.20 329.03 5.00
2 | Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Borrowings A.3 34.51 42.93 186.75 -
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) A4 14.94 14.37 10.19 -
Subtotal 49.45 57.30 196.94 -
3 | Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings A.5 316.46 174.77 24.59 -
Trade Payables : A.6
(A) total outstanding dues of
micro enterprises and small -
enterprises; and
(B) total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
enterprises and small 459.01 728.87 613.39 -
enterprises.". ]
Other Current Liabilities A.7 80.55 75.47 89.96 0.38
Short Term Provisions A.8 15.66 9.28 - -
Subtotal 871.68 988.39 727.94 0.38
Total 1,821.62 1,855.89 1,253.91 5.38
B. | Assets
1 | Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Tangible Assets A9 357.83 361.83 358.11 0.00
Intangible Assets 1.17 1.28 1.34 -
Non-Current Investments A.10 350.81 312.87 210.44 0.00
Long Term Loans & Advances A.11 19.31 19.32 19.25 -
Long term Trade Receivables A.12 11.38 9.89 - -
Subtotal 740.50 705.18 589.14 -
2 | Current Assets
Inventories A.13 479.44 460.41 165.88 -
Trade Receivables A.14 389.04 487.85 414.49 0.00
Cash and Cash Equivalents A.15 136.52 91.00 27.54 5.00
Short-Term Loans and A-16 62.06 97.08 51.53 .
Other Current Assets A.17 14.06 14.37 5.33 0.38
Subtotal 1,081.12 1,150.71 664.77 5.38
Total 1,821.62 1855.89 1253.91 5.38

Note: The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, profits

and losses, and cash flows appearing in Annexure D, B & C.
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ANNEXURE - B: RESTATED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the Quarter

For The Year Ended 31st March

Particulars 1;0(:‘3 Ended 30th June
: 2021 2021 2020 \ 2019
A. | Revenue:
Revenue from Operations B.1 1239.53 4499.85 3297.39 -
Other income B.2 38.06 48.46 28.69 -
Total revenue 1277.59 4548.32 3326.08 -
B. | Expenses:

Cost of Material Consumed B.3 1030.73 3611.59 2610.87 -
Changes in Inventories of
Finished Goods, Work In 14.77) (21.49) (29.33) -
Progress and Stock in Trade B.4
Employees Benefit Expenses B.5 46.55 203.76 170.70 -
Finance costs B.6 5.34 26.66 32.19 -
Depreciation and Amortization | B.7 7.77 29.63 22.88 -
Other expenses B.8 94.56 447.73 360.16 -
Total Expenses 1170.17 4297.88 3167.47 -
Profit before e).(ceptlonal and 107.42 250.44 158.60 )
extraordinary items and tax
Exceptional Items - - - -
profit before extraordinary 107.42 250.44 158.60 -
Extraordinary items - - - -
Profit before tax 107.42 250.44 158.60 -
Tax expense :

Current tax 16.56 47.08 24.39 -

Deferred Tax B.9 0.57 4.18 10.19 -
i: rofit (Loss) for the period 90.29 199.18 124.03 -

rom continuing operations
Earning per equity share in
Rs.:
(1) Basic 1.64 4.83 3.50 -
(2) Diluted 1.64 4.83 3.50 -
Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary,

Statement of Assets & liabilities and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A& C.
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ANNEXURE - C: RESTATED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the
. Quarter Ended For The Year Ended 31st March
Particulars 30th June
2021 2021 2020 \ 2019
A. CASH FLOW FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 107.42 250.44 158.60 -
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 7.77 29.63 22.88 -
Interest Income - (0.91) (0.25) -
Interest Expense 5.62 26.66 32.19 -
Opf:rating profit before working 120.81 305.81 213.42 )
capital changes
Movements in working capital :
Increase)/Decrease in Trade
lgeceivabl)es (269.85) (73.37) (414.49) -
Increase)/Decrease in Loans &
A(dvances) 0.31 (45.54) (51.34) -
Increase)/Decrease in Other Current
A(ssets/ NZ)n-Current Assets ) (©.04) (4.95) (0.38)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 97.32 (294.53) (165.88) -
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 1.57 115.48 613.39 -
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current
Liabilities( ) (19.03) (14.49) 89.58 0.38
Cash generated from operations (68.87) (15.67) 279.74 -
Income tax paid during the year (10.17) 37.80 24.58 -
Net cash from operating activities (A) (79.05) (53.48) 255.16 -
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Sale/(Purchase) of Investments (37.93) (102.43) (210.44) -
Purchase of Fixed Assets (3.66) (33.28) (382.34) -
Interest Received - 0.91 0.25 -
Increase in Other Non-Current
Assets/Loans & Advances 3501 (9.96) (19.25) )
Net cash from investing activities (B) (6.58) (144.76) (611.78) -
C. CASH FLOW FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on borrowings (5.62) (26.66) (32.19) -
Increas.e/(Decrease) in Short Term 145.19 150.18 2459 )
Borrowings
Proceds from Issue of Share Capital - 282.00 200.00 5.00
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Borrowings (8.42) (143.82) 186.75 -
Net cash from financing activities (C) 131.14 261.70 379.15 5.00
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents (A+B+C) 45.52 63.47 22.53 5.00
Cafh a!nd cash equivalents at the 91.00 27.54 5.00 )
| beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end 136.52 91.00 27.54 5.00
of the year

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary,
Statement of Assets & liabilities and profits and losses appearing in Annexure D,A& B.
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SECTION V — GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated as “D.K.Enterprises Global Hub Limited” at Panchkula, Haryana on February 26, 2019 under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 vide certificate of incorporation issued by the Deputy Registrar Of Companies For and on
behalf of the Jurisdictional Registrar of Companies Central Registration Centre. Later on, the name of our company was changed from
“D.K.Enterprises Global Hub Limited” to “D.K. Enterprises Global Limited” and certificate to that effect was Registrar of Companies,
RoC- Delhi on April 04, 2019.

BRIEF INFORMATION ON COMPANY AND ISSUE

Particulars - Dpetails
Name of Issuer D.K. Enterprises Global Limited

Registered Office Plot No-235 Industrial Area Phase-2 Panchkula Haryana 134109 India;
Telephone No.: +91 172 259 1548; Web site: www.dkenterprises.co.in;
E-Mail: cs@dkenterprises.co.in; Contact Person: Ms. Amanpreet Kaur

Date of Incorporation February 26, 2019

Company U36999HR2019PLC0O78806
Identification Number

Company Registration UL

Number
Company Category Company Limited by Shares
Registrar of Company 8l
Address of the RoC A) 4th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019;
E Mail: roc.delhi@mca.gov.in Phone: 011-26235703; Fax No: 011-26235702
Ol e RSV ET A Ms. Amanpreet Kaur
and (000111 IETYS ] C/o. D.K. Enterprises Global Limited
Officer Plot No-235 Industrial Area Phase-2 Panchkula Haryana 134109 India;
Telephone No.: +91 172 259 1548; Web site: www.dkenterprises.co.in;
E-Mail: cs@dkenterprises.co.in;
Designated cine 'Sl EMERGE Platform of National Stock Exchange of India Limited
Exchange Address: Exchange Plaza, Plot no. C/1, G Block, Bandra - Kurla Complex, Bandra (E),
Mumbai — 400051
Issue Programme Issue THURSDAY, OCTOBER 7, Issue TUESDAY, OCTOBER 12,
Opens 2021 Closes 2021
On: On:

Note:

Investors can contact the Company Secretary and Compliance officer in case of any pre issue or post issue related
problems such as non-receipt of letter of allotment or credit of securities in depository’s beneficiary account or dispatch
of refund order etc.

All grievances relating to the ASBA process and UPI Process may be addressed to the Registrar to the Issue, with a copy
to the relevant SCSB to whom the Application was submitted or Sponsor Bank, as the case may be. The Applicant
should give full details such as name of the sole or first Bidder, Bid cum Application Form number, Bidder’s DP ID,
Client ID, PAN, UPI ID (in case of RII’s if applicable), date of submission of the Bid cum Application Form, address
of the Bidder, number of Equity Shares applied for and the name and address of the Designated Intermediary where the
Bid cum Application Form was submitted by the Bidder.

Further, the Investors shall also enclose a copy of the Acknowledgment Slip received from the Designated
Intermediaries/SCSB in addition to the information mentioned hereinabove.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OUR COMPANY

Presently our Board of Directors comprises of following Directors.

;l(;' Name of Directors Designation Address

1. Mr. Rakesh Kumar Chairman Cum 1062, Sector-02 Panchkula, 08374550
Managing Director Panchkula Sector 8 Haryana, 134109
2. Mrs. Rekha Bansal Whole-Time Director 1062, Sector-02 Panchkula, 08374551
Panchkula Sector 8 Haryana, 134109
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: Name of Directors Designation Address

3. Mr. Dhruv Rakesh Executive Director 1062, Sector -02, Panchkula, 08374549
Panchkula Sector 8, Haryana, 134109
4. | Mr. Jeenendra Non-Executive #647 Sector 33 B Chandigarh - 09027788
Prakash Singhvi Independent Director 160020
5. | Mr. Khagesh Non-Executive #284 Kendriya Vihar, Sector 48 B | 09027797
Kaushal Independent Director Chandigarh-160047

For further details pertaining to the education qualification and experience of our Directors, please refer the chapter titled
“OUR MANAGEMENT?” beginning on Page no. 117 of this Prospectus.

DETAILS OF KEY MARKET INTERMEDIARIES PERTAINING TO THIS ISSUE AND OUR COMPANY

LEAD MANAGER TO THE ISSUE REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE

BEELINE BROKING LIMITED SKYLINE FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE
SEBI Registration Number: INM000012546 LIMITED

Address: 807, Phoenix Tower, Opp. New Girish Cold | SEBI Registration Number: INR000003241

Drinks, Near Vijay Cross Roads, Navrangpura, | Address: D-153/A, Ist Floor, Okhla Industrial Area

Ahmedabad — 380 009 Phase New Delhi - 110020, India

Telephone Number: +91 79 4840 5357 Tel. No.: +91 11-4045 0193-97,

Email Id: mb@beelinemb.com, Email Id: comnliances@skylinerta.com/

mb@beelinebroking.com virenrlalskvlinerta.com

Investors Grievance Id: ig@beelinebroking.com Investors Grievance Id: info@skylinerta.com

Website: www.beelinebroking.com Website: www.skylinerta.com/

Contact Person: Mrs. Khushbu Shah Contact Person: Ms. Sarita Singh

CIN: U51900GJ2014PLC080598 CIN: U74899DL1995PTC071324
STATUTORY & PEER REVIEW AUDITOR OF

THE COMPANY ADVISORY TO THE COMPANY

M/s. Deepak Jindal and Co. , Chartered Accountants | Embee Financial Services Ltd
Address: SCO 2935-36, Level II, Sector 22C, | Address: SCO 2935-36, Sector 22C, Level- 1

Chandigarh- 160022 Chandigarh- 160022

Mobile No.: +91 99886 50002 Contact Person: CA Apurv Bansal
Email: cadeepakjindal@gmail.com Mobile No.: +91 98881 33556
Contact Person: CA Deepak Jindal Email: apurv.bansal@embeegroup.in
Membership Number: 514745 Website: www.embeegroup.in

Firm Registration Number: 023023N
Peer Review Certificate Number: -012493

BANKERS TO THE COMPANY LEGAL ADVISOR TO THE COMPANY

Name: Canara Bank Name: Mrs. Komal Abrol

Address: SCO 311-312, Sector 35B, Chandigarh- | Address: House No. 2242 Sector 27C Chandigarh,
160022 160019

Phone No.- 0172 2601 402 M No: +91 99886 29077

M No: +91 75089 13453 Email: abrol. komal29@gmail.com

Email Id: cb1625@canarabank.com Contact Person: Mrs. Komal Abrol

Website: www.canarabank.com Bar Council Reg. No.- P/1396/2015

Contact Person: Mr. Kamal Kant Sharma

BANKERS TO THE ISSUE, REFUND BANKER AND SPONSOR BANK

Axis Bank Limited
Address: Ground Floor Manek Plaza Opp Central Plaza, Santacruz East Mumbai- 400098, Maharashtra
Phone No.- 022-2654 2007
Fax- NA E-Mail Id- kalina.branchhead@axisbank.com
Contact Persons: Mr. Seshadri Vijayaraghavan Designation: Asst. Vice President & Branch Head
Website- www.axisbank.com

DESIGNATED INTERMEDIARIES

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of SCSBs, as updated till date, is available on website of Securities and Exchange Board of India at below link.

40



I-.__

wwww dkenterprises._co.in

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=34
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=35

Investors are requested to refer the SEBI website for updated list of SCSBs and their designated branches.
Self-Certified Syndicate Banks eligible as Sponsor Banks for UPI

In accordance with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/76 dated June 28, 2019 and SEBI Circular
No.

SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2019/85 dated July 26, 2019, Retail Individual Investors Bidding using the UPI Mechanism
may apply through the SCSBs and mobile applications whose names appears on the website of the SEBI
(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=40) and
(https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=43) respectively, as updated
from time to time.

Investors Banks or Issuer Banks for UPI

The list of Self Certified Syndicate Banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as Investors Bank or Issuer Bank for
UPI mechanism are provide on the website of SEBI on
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognised Fpi=yes&intmld=40 . For details on Designated
Branches of SCSBs collecting the Application Forms, please refer to the above mentioned SEBI link.

BROKERS TO THE ISSUE

All members of the recognized stock exchanges would be eligible to act as Brokers to the Issue.

REGISTRAR TO ISSUE AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENTS

The list of the Registrar to Issue and Share Transfer Agents (RTAs) eligible to accept Applications forms at the
Designated RTA Locations, including details such as address, telephone number and e-mail address, are provided at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=10, as updated from time to
time.

COLLECTING DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANTS

The list of the Collecting Depository Participants (CDPs) eligible to accept Application Forms at the Designated CDP
Locations, including details such as name and contact details, are provided at

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=19 for NSDL CDPs and at
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmld=18for CDSL CDPs, as updated

from time to time. The list of branches of the SCSBs named by the respective SCSBs to receive deposits of the Bid cum
Application Forms from the Designated Intermediaries will be available on the website of the SEBI (www.sebi.gov.in)
and updated from time to time.

STATEMENT OF INTER-SE ALLOCATION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

Since Beeline Broking Limited is only Lead Manager to the issue, all the responsibility of the issue will be managed by
them.

CREDIT RATING

As this is an issue of Equity Shares, there is no credit rating for this Issue.

IPO GRADING

Since the issue is being made in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 there is no requirement of
appointing an [IPO Grading agency.

FILING OF DRAFT PROSPECTUS/ PROSPECTUS WITH THE BOARD AND THE REGISTRAR OF

COMPANIES

A soft copy of Draft Prospectus is being filed with SEBI. However, SEBI will not issue any observation on the offer
document in term of Regulation 246(2) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. Further, a soft copy of the Prospectus
along with due diligence certificate including additional confirmations shall be filed with SEBI. Pursuant to SEBI

41



I--__

www. dkentaerprises.co.in

Circular Number SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2018/011 dated January 19, 2018, a copy of the Prospectus will be filed
online through SEBI Intermediary Portal at https://siportal.sebi.gov.in.

A copy of the Prospectus, along with the material contracts and documents referred elsewhere in the Prospectus, will be
delivered to the RoC Office situated at A) 4th Floor, IFCI Tower, 61, Nehru Place, New Delhi — 110019.

CHANGES IN AUDITORS

There has not been any changes in Auditors of the Company. The Statutory Audit of the company up to financial year
2021-22 was carried out by M/s Deepak Jindal & Co., Chartered Accountants, Chandigarh (FRN: 023023N) ,having
address SCO 2935-36, Level-II, Sector 22-C, Chandigarh-160 022.

TRUSTEES

As this is an issue of Equity Shares, the appointment of Trustees is not required.

APPRAISAL AND MONITORING AGENCY

As per SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, appointment of monitoring agency is required only if Issue size exceeds I
10,000 Lakh. Hence, our Company is not required to appoint a monitoring agency in relation to the issue. However,
Audit Committee of our Company will be monitoring the utilization of the Issue Proceeds.

The object of the issue and deployment of funds are not appraised by any independent agency/bank/financial institution.

UNDERWRITING AGREEMENT

This Issue is 100% Underwritten. The Underwriting agreement has been entered on March 15, 2021. Pursuant to the
terms of the Underwriting Agreement, the obligations of the Underwriters are several and are subject to certain
conditions specified therein. The Underwriters have indicated their intention to underwrite the following number of
specified securities being offered through this Issue:

Amount 70 W
No. of shares total Issue
NIVAS
Underwritten

Details of the Underwriter Underwritten

underwritten ® in Lakh)

BEELINE BROKING LIMITED

SEBI Registration Number: INM000012546

Address: 807, Phoenix Tower, Opp. New Girish Cold Drinks,
Near Vijay Cross Roads, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad — 380 009
Tel Number: +91 79 4840 5357

Email Id: mb@beelinemb.com, beelinebroking.com
Investors Grievance Id: ig@beelinebroking.com

Website: www.beelinebroking.com

Contact Person: Mrs. Khushbu Shah

CIN: U51900GJ2014PLC080598

1998000 799.20 100.00%

In the opinion of our Board of Directors (based on a certificate given by the Underwriter), the resources of the above
mentioned Underwriter is sufficient to enable it to discharge its underwriting obligation in full. The abovementioned
Underwriter is registered with SEBI under Section 12(1) of the SEBI Act and registered as brokers with the Stock
Exchanges.

DETAILS OF THE MARKET MAKING ARRANGEMENT FOR THIS ISSUE

Our Company and the Lead Manager have entered into an agreement dated March 15, 2021 with the following Market
Maker to fulfil the obligations of Market Making:

NIKUNJ STOCK BROKERS LIMITED

CIN: U74899DL1994PLC060413; SEBI Registration No.: INZ000169335

Address: A-92, GF, Left Portion, Kamla Nagar, Delhi, North Delhi, 110007, India.

Contact Person: Mr. Pramod Kumar Sultania; Tel Number: +91 11 4703 0015; Website: www.nikunjonline.com

E-mail: info@nikunjonline.com
SEBI Registration No.: INZ000169335
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The Market Maker shall fulfill the applicable obligations and conditions as specified in the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations,
2018 and the circulars issued by the NSE and SEBI in this regard from time to time.

Following is a summary of the key details pertaining to the proposed Market Making arrangement:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

10)

11

~

The Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) shall be required to provide a 2-way quote for 75% of the time in a
day. The same shall be monitored by the stock exchange. Further, the Market Maker(s) shall inform the exchange
in advance for each and every black out period when the quotes are not being offered by the Market Maker(s).

The minimum depth of the quote shall be ¥ 1,00,000. However, the investors with holdings of value less than I
1,00,000 shall be allowed to offer their holding to the Market Maker(s) (individually or jointly) in that scrip provided
that he/she sells his/her entire holding in that scrip in one lot along with a declaration to the effect to the selling
broker.

Execution of the order at the quoted price and quantity must be guaranteed by the Market Maker(s), for the quotes
given by him.

After a period of three (3) months from the market making period, the market maker would be exempted to provide
quote if the Shares of market maker in our Company reaches to 25% of Issue Size (Including the 56000 Equity
Shares ought to be allotted under this Issue.) Any Equity Shares allotted to Market Maker under this Issue over and
above 56000 Equity Shares would not be taken in to consideration of computing the threshold of 25% of Issue Size.
As soon as the Shares of market maker in our Company reduce to 24% of Issue Size, the market maker will resume
providing 2-way quotes.

There shall be no exemption/threshold on downside. However, in the event the Market Maker exhausts his inventory
through market making process, NSE may intimate the same to SEBI after due verification.

There would not be more than five Market Makers for a script at any point of time and the Market Makers may
compete with other Market Makers for better quotes to the investors.

On the first day of the listing, there will be pre-opening session (call auction) and there after the trading will happen
as per the equity market hours. The circuits will apply from the first day of the listing on the discovered price during
the pre-open call auction. In case equilibrium price is not discovered the price band in the normal trading session
shall be based on issue price.

The Marker Maker may also be present in the opening call auction, but there is no obligation on him to do so.

There will be special circumstances under which the Market Maker may be allowed to withdraw temporarily/fully
from the market — for instance due to system problems, any other problems. All controllable reasons require prior
approval from the Exchange, while force-majeure will be applicable for non-controllable reasons. The decision of
the Exchange for deciding controllable and non-controllable reasons would be final.

The Market Maker(s) shall have the right to terminate said arrangement by giving a three months’ notice or on
mutually acceptable terms to the Merchant Banker, who shall then be responsible to appoint a replacement Market
Maker(s).

In case of termination of the Market Making agreement prior to the completion of the compulsory Market Making
period, it shall be the responsibility of the Lead Manager to arrange for another Market Maker in replacement during
the term of the notice period being served by the Market Maker but prior to the date of releasing the existing Market
Maker from its duties in order to ensure compliance with the requirements of regulation 261 of the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018. Further our Company and the Lead Manager reserve the right to appoint other Market Makers
either as a replacement of the current Market Maker or as an additional Market Maker subject to the total number
of Designated Market Makers does not exceed five or as specified by the relevant laws and regulations applicable
at that particulars point of time. The Market Making Agreement is available for inspection at our registered office
from 11.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. on working days.

Risk containment measures and monitoring for Market Makers: Emerge Platform of NSE will have all margins
which are applicable on the Main Board viz., Mark-to-Market, Value-At-Risk (VAR) Margin, Extreme Loss
Margin, Special Margins and Base Minimum Capital etc. NSE can impose any other margins as deemed necessary
from time-to-time.
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Punitive Action in case of default by Market Makers: Emerge Platform of NSE will monitor the obligations on a
real time basis and punitive action will be initiated for any exceptions and/or non-compliances. Penalties / fines may
be imposed by the Exchange on the Market Maker, in case he is not able to provide the desired liquidity in a
particular security as per the specified guidelines. These penalties / fines will be set by the Exchange from time to
time. The Exchange will impose a penalty on the Market Maker in case he is not present in the market (offering two
way quotes) for at least 75% of the time. The nature of the penalty will be monetary as well as suspension in market
making activities / trading membership.

The Department of Surveillance and Supervision of the Exchange would decide and publish the penalties / fines /
suspension for any type of misconduct/ manipulation/ other irregularities by the Market Maker from time to time.

Price Band and Spreads: SEBI Circular bearing reference no: CIR/MRD/DP/ 02/2012 dated January 20, 2012, has
laid down that for issue size up to I 250 crores, the applicable price bands for the first day shall be:

i.  In case equilibrium price is discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session shall
be 5% of the equilibrium price.

ii. In case equilibrium price is not discovered in the Call Auction, the price band in the normal trading session
shall be 5% of the issue price.

Additionally, the trading shall take place in TFT segment for first 10 days from commencement of trading. The
price band shall be 20% and the market maker spread (difference between the sell and the buy quote) shall be within
10% or as intimated by Exchange from time to time.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular number CIR/MRD/DSA/31/2012 dated November 27, 2012, limits on the upper side for
market makers during market making process has been made applicable, based on the issue size and as follows:

Buy quote exemption threshold Re-Entry threshold for buy quote
Issue Size (including mandatory initial inventory  (including mandatory initial inventory
of 5% of the Issue Size) of 5% of the Issue Size)
Up to X 20 Crore 25% 24%
% 20 Crore To X 50 Crore 20% 19%
% 50 Crore To X 80 Crore 15% 14%
Above X 80 Crore 12% 11%

The Market Making arrangement, trading and other related aspects including all those specified above shall be subject
to the applicable provisions of law and / or norms issued by SEBI / NSE from time to time.
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SECTION VI - CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Equity Share Capital of our Company, before the issue and after giving effect to the issue, as on the date of filing of
the Prospectus, is set forth below:
(X in Lakh except per share amount)

Sr. Particulars Aggregate Agg{'egate v.alue
No. Nominal value at issue price
1. JAUTHORIZED SHARE CAPITAL
7510000 Equity Shares of face value of 10/- each 751.00 -

2. |ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP EQUITY SHARE
CAPITAL BEFORE THE ISSUE
5510000 Equity Shares of face value of ¥ 10/- each 551.00 -

3. |PRESENT ISSUE IN TERMS OF THE PROSPECTUS

Issue of 1998000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each at a price of I 40/- per
Equity Share. 199.80 799.20

‘Which comprises
102000 Equity Shares of I 10/- each at an Issue Price of I 40/- per

Equity Share reserved as Market Maker Portion 10.20 40.80
Net Issue to Public of 1896000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each at an Issue
Price of T40/- per Equity Share to the Public 189.60 758.40

Net Issue* to Public consists of

948000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each at an Issue Price of I 40/- per
Equity Share will be available for allocation for Investors investing
amount up to ¥ 2.00 Lakh 94.80 379.20

948000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each at an Issue Price of I 40/- per
Equity Share will be available for allocation for Investors investing

amount above T 2.00 Lakh (Non Retail Portion) 94.80 379.20
4. |PAID UP EQUITY CAPITAL AFTER THE ISSUE
7508000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 750.80 -
5. |SECURITIES PREMIUM ACCOUNT |Before the Issue
After the Issue 599.40

* For detailed information on the Net Issue and its allocation various categories, please refer chapter titled “THE ISSUE”
on Page no. 32 of this Prospectus.

The Issue has been authorized by the Board of Directors vide a resolution passed at its meeting held on February 01, 2021,
and by the shareholders of our Company vide a special resolution passed at the EoGM held on March 01, 2021.

CLASS OF SHARES

The company has only one class of shares i.e. Equity shares of I 10/- each only and all Equity Shares are ranked pari-
passu in all respect. All Equity Shares issued are fully paid-up as on date of the Prospectus.

Our Company has not issued any partly paid-up equity shares since its incorporation nor does it have any partly paid-up
equity shares as on the date of the Prospectus.

Our Company does not have any outstanding convertible instruments as on the date of the Prospectus.
NOTES TO THE CAPITAL STRUCTURE:
1. Changes in the Authorized Share Capital of our Company:

Since Incorporation of our Company, the authorized share capital of our Company has been changed in the manner set
forth below:

Cumulative Cumulative
Particulars of Increase no. of Equity Authorized Share| Date of Meeting
Shares | Capital (F in Lakh)

Whether AGM/

EoGM

1. |On incorporation
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Cumulative
Particulars of Increase no. of Equity

Increased in authorized capital
2. |from ¥5.00 Lakh to %305.00
Lakh

Shares

3050000

Cumulative
Authorized Share| Date of Meeting
Capital X in Lakh)

305.00

|
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May 14, 2019

Whether AGM/

EoGM

EoGM

Increased in authorized capital
from T305 Lakh to 750 Lakh

7500000

750.00

March 01,2021

EoGM

Increased in authorized capital
from X750 Lakh to Y751 Lakh

7510000

751.00

April 24, 2021

EoGM

2. History of Paid-up Share Capital:

Our existing Paid-up Share Capital has been subscribed and allotted in the manner set forth below:

o Nature of Cumulative
Number e . . Cumulative . Cumulative
Date of Nature of of equity pric consideration Number of Pal:d up Share
allotment allotment shares (R D00 Equity > a.r < Premium
Allotted than Cash, Shares Capital (InX
Bonus) ® in Lakh)
February Subscription to 50000 | 10 10 Cash 50000 5.00 -
26, 2019 | Memorandum of
(On Association
Incorporatio
n)
May 23, | Preferential Issue | 2000000 | 10| 10 |Other than Cash 2050000 205.00 -
2019 (Consideration
other than cash
upon takeover of
running business
of DK
ENTERPRISES,
proprietorship)
2
March  26,| Right Issue® 705000 | 10| 40 Cash 2755000 275.50 211.50
2021
April 26, | BonusIssue®) |27,55,000| 10 - Bonus 5510000 551.00 0.00
2021 (Bonus Ratio
1:1)

() The details of allotment of 50000 Fully Paid up Equity Shares made to the subscribers to the Memorandum of

Associations, at par, are as follows:

Name of Allottee

No. of Equity

Face Value per

Issue Price per

Shares Allotted share (in ) share (in X)

1. Mr. Rakesh Kumar 12425 10 10
2. Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 12425 10 10
3. Mrs. Rekha Bansal 12425 10 10
4. | Mr. Baljeet Singh 100 10 10
5. Mrs. Kanika Rakesh 12425 10 10
6. Mrs. Ishita Swami 100 10 10
7. | Mr. Jatin Sawhney 100 10 10

Total 50000 10 10

@ The details of allotment of 2000000 Fully Paid up Equity Shares made on May 23, 2019, for consideration other than
cash upon takeover of running business of DK ENTERPRISES, proprietorship concern as follows.

No. of Equity

Name of Allottee

Face Val

ue per Issue Price per

Shares Allotted
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1. | Mrs. Rekha Bansal 2000000 10 10
Total 2000000 10 10

® The details of allotment of 705000 Fully Paid up Equity Shares made on March 26, 2021 on Right basis in the ratio of
11 equity shares for each 29 Equity shares held as on February 20, 2021 having face value of ¥ 10/- each at a price of T40/-
each (including premium of ¥ 30/-each) as follows.

No. of Equity Face Value per  Issue Price per

6 ANELD0 Sl Shares Allotted share (in ) share (in )

1. | Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 202000 10 40
2. | Mr. Rakesh Kumar 350000 10 40
3. | Mrs. Rekha Bansal 150000 10 40
4. | Mr. Baljeet Singh 1000 10 40
5. | Mrs. Ishita Swami 1000 10 40
6. | Mr. Jatin Sawhney 1000 10 40

705000 10 40

) The details of allotment of 27,55,000 Fully Paid up Bonus Equity Shares made on April 26, 2021 in the ratio of 1:1 i.e.
1 equity share for each 1 Equity share held as on April 24 ,2021 , by capitalizing ¥ 2,75,50,000 out of balance lying in
Securities and Premium and Profit and Loss Account under major head ““ Reserve and Surplus” as follows

No. of Equity Face Value per  Issue Price per

Name of Allottee

Shares Allotted share (in ) share (in )

1 Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 2,26,750 10 -
2 Mr. Rakesh Kumar 3,62,425 10 -
3. Mrs. Rekha Bansal 21,62,425 10 -
4. Mr. Baljeet Singh 1100 10 -
5 Mrs. Ishita Swami 1100 10 -
6 Mr. Jatin Sawhney 1100 10 -
7 Mrs. Bipasha Bharti 100 10

Total 2755000 10

3. Except allotment of 2000000 Fully Paid up Equity Shares made on May 23, 2019 for consideration other than cash
upon takeover of running business of DK ENTERPRISES, proprietorship concern and issue of Bonus Issue.

Equity Shares issued other than cash;

No. of Equity Face Value i Benefit
Category X Reason for
Name of Allottee of Allottee Shares per share (in Issue accrued to
' Allotted 3) Company
Our Company
For acquired the
acquisition of running
running business along
business of with
1.] Mrs. Rekha Bansal Promoter 2000000 10 10 Mrs. Rekha | manufacturing
Bansal viz. facilities
D.K. located at
Enterprises | Panchkula and
Vadodara.
Total 2000000 10 10 - -

Issue of Bonus Equity Shares;
Issue

NI, 1 Face Value Price Benefit

Category of Equity Reason

Name of Allottee per share per accrued to

(in)  share DAL Company
(in %)

1. Mr. Dhruv Rakesh Promoter | 2,26,750 10 -

Allottee Shares
Allotted
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Name of Allottee

Category of

Allottee

No. of
Equity
Shares

Allotted
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Face Value
per share
(in%)

Reason
for Issue

Benefit
accrued to
Company

2. Mr. Rakesh Kumar Promoter | 3,62,425 10 -
3. Mrs. Rekha Bansal Promoter | 21,62,425 10 -
4| Mr. Baljcet Singh Public 1100 10 3 - 512 "C";;“i?;
5. Mrs. Ishlta Swami Publ%c 1100 10 Allotment | Base of the
6. Mr. Jatin Sawhney Public 1100 10 - Company
7. |Mrs. Bipasha Bharti Promoter 100 10 .
Group
Total | 27,55,000 - - -

8.

Our Company has not allotted any Equity Shares pursuant to any scheme approved under Sections 391 to 394 of the
Companies Act, 1956 and Sections 230 to 234 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Our Company has not revalued its assets since inception and has not issued any Equity Shares (including bonus
shares) by capitalizing any revaluation reserves.

Our Company has not made allotment at price lower than the Issue Price during past one year from the date of the
Prospectus, except for details mentioned in subpoint 4 under point no. 2 above.

Our Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme / Employee Stock Purchase Scheme for our
employees and we do not intend to allot any shares to our employees under Employee Stock Option Scheme /
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme from the proposed issue. As and when, options are granted to our employees
under the Employee Stock Option Scheme, our Company shall comply with the SEBI (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014.

Our shareholding pattern:

The shareholding pattern of our Company before the issue as per Regulation 31 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
is given here below:

Declaration

Promoter
and
Promoter
Group

Non
Promoter-
Non Public

Public

Yes/No shareholder

Particular

1 ‘Whether the Company has issued any partly paid up No No No No
shares?

2 Whet}}e?r the Company has issued any Convertible No No No No
Securities?

3. |Whether the Company has issued any Warrants? No No No No

4 Whether the Cqmpany .has any shares against which No No No No
depository receipts are issued?

5. |Whether the Company has any shares in locked-in?* No No No No

6. Whethc'zr any shares held by promoters are pledge or No No NA NA
otherwise encumbered?

7 Whpthq company has equity shares with differential No No No No
voting rights?

* All Pre-IPO Equity Shares of our Company will be locked-in prior to listing of shares on Emerge Platform of NSE.
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9. The shareholding pattern of our Promoters and Promoters’ Group and public before and after the Issue:

Pre issue \ Post issue
Name of shareholders No. of Asa%of | . equity As a % of
equity Issued shares Issued
shares Capital* Capital*
Promoters
1. |Mr. Rakesh Kumar 724850 13.16 724850 9.65
2. |Mrs. Rekha Bansal 4324850 78.49 4324850 57.60
3. |Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 453500 8.23 453500 6.04
Total - A 5503200 99.88 5503200 73.30
Promoters’ Group
1. I Mrs. Bipasha Bharti 200 Negligible 200] Negligible
Total - B 200) Negligible 200) Negligible
Total Promoters and Promoters’ Group (A+B) 5503400 99.88 5503400 73.30
Public
1 |Pre Ipo 6600 0.12 6600 0.09
Total-C 6600 0.12 6600 0.09
2 | Initial Public Offer - Public - - 1998000 26.61
Total-D - - 1998000 26.61
Total Public (C+D) 6600 0.12 2004600 26.70
Grand Total (A+B+C+D) 5510000 100.00 7508000 100.00

* Rounded off
10. Details of Major Shareholders:

(A) List of Shareholders holding 1.00% or more of the Paid-up Capital of the Company as on date of the

Prospectus:
Sr. No. Name of shareholders No. of Equity Shares held* % of Paid up Capital#
1. Mr. Rakesh Kumar 724850 13.16
2. Mrs. Rekha Bansal 4324850 78.49
3. Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 453500 8.23
Total 5503200 99.88

* The Company has not issued any convertible instruments like warrants, debentures etc. since its Incorporation and there
are no outstanding convertible instruments as on date of the Prospectus.
# the % has been calculated based on existing (pre-issue) Paid up Capital of the Company.

(B) List of Shareholders holding 1.00% or more of the Paid-up Capital of the Company as on date two years prior
to the date of the Prospectus:

No. of Equity Shares

Name of shareholders held*

% of Paid up Capital#
1. | Mrs. Rekha Bansal 2012425 98.17

Total 2012425 98.17
* The Company has not issued any convertible instruments like warrants, debentures etc. since its Incorporation and there
are no outstanding convertible instruments as on date of the Prospectus.

# the % has been calculated based on the then existing Paid up Capital of the Company.

(C) List of Shareholders holding 1.00% or more of the Paid-up Capital of the Company as on date one year prior
to the date of the Prospectus:

No. of Equity Shares
held*

1. | Mrs. Rekha Bansal 2012425 98.17
Total 2012425 98.17

% of Paid up Capital#

Name of shareholders
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* The Company has not issued any convertible instruments like warrants, debentures etc. since its Incorporation and there

are no outstanding convertible instruments as on date of the Prospectus.
# the % has been calculated based on the then existing Paid up Capital of the Company.

(D) List of Shareholders holding 1.00% or more of the Paid-up Capital of the Company as on date ten days prior
to the date of the Prospectus:

Sr. No. Name of shareholders No. of Equity Shares held* % of Paid up Capital#
1. |Mr. Rakesh Kumar 724850 13.16
2. |Mrs. Rekha Bansal 4324850 78.49

3. |Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 453500 8.23
Total 5503200 99.88

* The Company has not issued any convertible instruments like warrants, debentures etc. since its Incorporation and there
are no outstanding convertible instruments as on date of the Prospectus.
# the % has been calculated based on existing (pre-issue) Paid up Capital of the Company.

11. There will be no further issue of capital, whether by way of issue of bonus shares, preferential allotment, right issue
or in any other manner during the period commencing from the date of the Prospectus until the Equity Shares of our
Company have been listed or refund of application monies in pursuance of the Prospectus.

As on the date of filing the offer document, our company does not have any such plan for altering the capital structure
by way of split or consolidation of the denomination of the shares, or issue of specified securities on a preferential
basis or issue of bonus or rights or further public issue of specified securities or qualified institutions placement.
Further, our Company may alter its capital structure by way of split / consolidation of the denomination of Equity
Shares or issue of equity shares on a preferential basis or issue of bonus or rights or further public issue of equity
shares or qualified institutions placement, within a period of six months from the date of opening of the present issue
to finance an acquisition, merger or joint venture or for regulatory compliance or such other scheme of arrangement
or for any other purpose, as the Board of Directors may deem fit, if an opportunity of such nature is determined by
the Board of Directors to be in the interest of our Company.

12. Shareholding of the Promoters of our Company:
As on the date of the Prospectus, our Promoters — Mr. Rakesh Kumar, Mrs. Rekha Bansal and Mr. Dhruv Rakesh hold

total 5503200 Equity Shares representing 99.88% of the pre-issue paid up equity share capital of our Company. The build-
up of equity shareholding of Promoters of our Company are as follows:

MR. RAKESH KUMAR
- Face  Issue/ o
Date of BT Number UL Value Transfer T(?tal . 0 % of Post
Issue ) No. of . . . Considerati  Pre
Allotment / of Equity . (in%) Price (in o Issue
Allotment / Equity on Paid (in  Issue .
Transfer shares per %) per . Capital
Transfer Shares 3) Capital
share  share
February 26, >y
2019 (On| Subscription to |5 15 5 12425 10.00 | 10.00 124250 0.23 0.17
. Memorandum
Incorporation)
March 26, 20211 Allotment —f 355000 | 362425 | 10.00 | 40.00 | 14000000 | 635 4.66
(Right Issue)
April 26,2021 1 Allotment {36,175 | 254850 | 10.00 | - . 6.58 4.83
(Bonus Issue)
Total | 724850 14124250 | 13.16 9.65
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MRS. REKHA BANSAL

Face Issue/
3 o,
Date of B @ Number (TR Value Tran.sfe Total gt % of Post
Issue ) No. of . r Price . . Pre
Allotment / of Equity . (in) R Consideratio Issue
Allotment / Equity (in) oy e Issue .
Transfer shares per n Paid (in ) 3 Capital
Transfer Shares per Capital
share
share
February 26, i
2019 (On| Subscription to 12425 12425| 10.00] 10.00 124250 0.23 0.17
. Memorandum
Incorporation)
May 23,2019 Allotment
(Private
Placement) 2000000 2012425) 10.00 10.00] 20,000,000 36.30 26.64
(Other than
Cash)
March 26, 2021 | - Allotment 150000 2162425| 10.00| 40.00 6000000|  2.72 2.00
(Right Issue)
April 26, 2021 Allotment 2000000  4162425| 10.00]  0.00 0.00] 3630 26.64
(Bonus Issue)
April 26, 2021 Allotment 162425  4324850| 10.00  0.00 0.00| 295 2.16
(Bonus Issue)
Total| 4324850 26124250 78.49 57.60
MR. DHRUV RAKESH
Nature of Cumulative LG Ly Total % of R .upto
Date of Number Value Transfer . . which
Issue ) No. of . . . Considerati Pre
Allotment / of Equity A (in) Price (in o3 7 Shares are
Allotment / Equity on Paid (in  Issue .
Transfer shares per %) per . subject to
Transfer Shares ) Capital .
share share lock in
February 26, oy
2019 (On| Subscription to |5 15 5 12425 10.00 | 10.00 124250 0.23 0.17
. Memorandum
Incorporation)
March 26,2021 1 Allotment 1 5,000 | 214425 | 10.00 | 40.00 | s0so000 | 3.67 2.69
(Right Issue)
April 23, 2021 Transfer 12325 226750 | 10.00 | 40.00 | 493000 0.22 0.16
(Acquisition)
April 26,2021 1 Allotment 1 6750 | 453500 | 1000 | - ; 412 3.02
(Bonus Issue)
Total | 453500 8697250 8.23 6.04

All the Equity Shares allotted and held by our Promoters were fully paid at the time of allotment itself. Further, none of
the Equity Shares held by our Promoters are subject to any pledge.

13. The average cost of acquisition of or subscription to Equity Shares by our Promoters is set forth in the table below:

No. of Equity Average Cost of Acquisition per

Name of Promoters

Shares held equity share (in )
1. Mr. Rakesh Kumar 724850 19.49
2. Mrs. Rekha Bansal 4324850 6.04
3. Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 453500 19.18

The average cost of acquisition of Equity Shares by our Promoters has been calculated by taking into account the amount
paid by them to acquire, by way of fresh issuance or transfer, the Equity Shares less amount received by them for the sale
of Equity Shares through transfer, if any and the net cost of acquisition has been divided by total number of shares held as
on date of the Prospectus.

14. We have 7 (Seven) shareholders as on the date of filing of the Prospectus.

15. As on the date of the Prospectus, our Promoters and Promoters’” Group hold total 5503400 Equity Shares representing
99.88% of the pre-issue paid up share capital of our Company.
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16. our shareholders belonging to Promoters and Promoters’ Group, Directors and their relatives have purchased or sold
following Equity Shares of our Company during the past six months immediately preceding the date of filing the
Prospectus:

The details of allotment of 705000 Fully Paid up Equity Shares made on March 26, 2021 on Right basis in the ratio of 11
equity shares for each 29 Equity shares held as on March 26,2021 having face value of X 10/- each at a price of I40/- each
(including premium of ¥ 30/-each) as follows.

No. of Equity Face Value per | Issue Price per

Name of Allottee

Shares Allotted share (in %) share (in )
1. | Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 202000 10 40
2. | Mr. Rakesh Kumar 350000 10 40
3. | Mrs. Rekha Bansal 150000 10 40

Transfer of 12425 equity shares by Mrs. Kanika Rakesh (Person Forming Part of Promoter Group) to Mr. Dhruv Rakesh
and Mrs. Bipasha Bharti on April 23, 2021.

No. of Equity Face Value per | Transfer Price
NEROOZTIS Acquired share (in ?) @n3%)

1. | Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 12325 10 40
2. | Mrs. Bipasha Bharti 100 10 40
Total 12425 10 40

The details of allotment of 27,55,000 Fully Paid up Bonus Equity Shares made on April 26, 2021 in the ratio of 1 equity
share for each 1 Equity share held as on April 24 ,2021 , by capitalizing ¥ 2,75,50,000 out of balance lying in Securities
and Premium and Profit and Loss Account under major head “ Reserve and Surplus” as follows

No. of Equity Face Value per | Issue Price per

5 WELEO S Shares Allotted share (in %) share (in %)
1. Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 2,26,750 10 -
2. Mr. Rakesh Kumar 3,62,425 10 -
3. Mrs. Rekha Bansal 21,62,425 10 -
4. Mr. Baljeet Singh 1100 10 -
5. Mrs. Ishita Swami 1100 10 -
6. Mr. Jatin Sawhney 1100 10 -
7. | Mrs. Bipasha Bharti 100 10
Total 2755000 10 -

17. The members of the Promoters’ Group, our Directors and the relatives of our Directors have not financed the purchase
by any other person of securities of our Company, other than in the normal course of the business of the financing
entity, during the six months immediately preceding the date of filing the Prospectus.

18. Details of Promoter’s Contribution locked in for three years:

Our Promoters have given written consent to include 1502000 Equity Shares subscribed and held by them as a part of
Minimum Promoters’ Contribution constituting 20.01% of the post issue Paid-up Equity Shares Capital of our Company
(“Minimum Promoters’ contribution”) in terms of Sub-Regulation (1) of Regulation 236 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations,
2018 and have agreed not to sell or transfer or pledge or otherwise dispose of in any manner, the Minimum Promoters’
Contribution, and to be marked Minimum Promoters’ Contribution as locked-in.

In terms of clause (a) of Regulation 238 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, Minimum Promoters’ Contribution as
mentioned above shall be locked-in for a period of three years from the date of commencement of commercial production
or date of allotment in the Initial Public Offer, whichever is later.

Explanation: The expression "date of commencement of commercial production” means the last date of the month in
which commercial production of the project in respect of which the funds raised are proposed to be utilised as stated in

the offer document, is expected to commence.

We further confirm that Minimum Promoters’ Contribution of 20.00% of the post Issue Paid-up Equity Shares Capital
does not include any contribution from Alternative Investment Fund.
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The Minimum Promoters’ Contribution has been brought into to the extent of not less than the 20.00% of the Post Issue
Capital and has been contributed by the persons defined as Promoters under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018.

The lock-in of the Minimum Promoters’ Contribution will be created as per applicable regulations and procedure and
details of the same shall also be provided to the Stock Exchange before listing of the Equity Shares.

The details Minimum Promoters’ Contribution are as follows:

MR. RAKESH KUMAR

Issue/
Cumulat Face ° Date upto
Date of Naltsl;:li i Number of ive No. Value Trrl?:_liscie Source of 7 0F % of Post which
Allotment / Equity of (in) Contribut Issue Shares are
Allotment / . . /Issue . A
Transfer shares Equity ion* X Capital  subject to
Transfer Capital .
Shares lock in
February 26,| Subscription Own 017
2019 (On| to 12425 12425 110.00 | 10.00 |Contributi | 0.23 ’
Incorporation) | Memorandum on
March 26, Allotment Own 3 Years®
2021 . 350000 | 362425 [10.00 | 40.00 |Contributi | 6.35 4.66
(Right Issue) on
April 26, 20211 Allotment 136,155 [ 724850 |10.00 | - NA | 658 4.83
(Bonus Issue)
Total| 724850 13.16 9.65

MRS. REKHA BANSAL

Issue/
.| Face| Transf Date upto
Date of Naltsl;:;z et Number S:;l::l?)tfl er Source of % of Post which
Allotment / of Equity . (in%)| Price Contributi Issue Shares are
Allotment / Equity . . A
Transfer shares (in3) on* Capital = subject to
Transfer Shares .
per lock in
share
February 26,| Subscription Own 017
2019 (On| to 12425 12425] 10.00] 10.00 | Contributio 0.23 ’ 3 Years®
Incorporation) | Memorandum n
June 23,2019 | Allotment
(Private
Placement) | 2000000] 2012425] 10.00] 10.00 NA| 36.30 26.64] 1 Year
(Other than
Cash)
March 26, Allotment Own
2021 . 150000| 2162425| 10.00] 40.00| Contributio 2.72 2.00] 3 Years®
(Right Issue) N
April 26,2021 Allotment {50500 1 4162425 10.00 0.00 NA 26.64| 1 Year
(Bonus Issue) 36.30
April 26,2021 Allotment 0 4551 4354850 10.00 0.00 NA| 2095 2.16| 3 Years®
(Bonus Issue)
Total | 4324850 26124250 78.49 57.60

MR. DHRUV RAKESH

Date of
Allotment /
Transfer

Nature of Number| Cumulativ

Issue
Allotment /
Transfer

of
Equity
shares

e No. of
Equity
Shares

Face
Value

Issue/
Transfe

Source of
Contribut

% of
Pre
Issue
Capital

% of Post
Issue
Capital

Date upto
which
Shares are
subject to
lock in

3 Years®
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MR. DHRUV RAKESH
Issue/
. Face o Date upto
Date of AELLVDG R (OULDIET Value Tran.sfe Source of 00! % of Post which
Issue of e No. of . r Price A Pre
Allotment / . . @in%) . Contribut Issue Shares are
Allotment / Equity Equity (in3) . Issue . .
Transfer ion* . Capital = subject to
Transfer shares Shares per Capital ]
sha lock in
share
March 26, Allotment Own
2021 . 202000 2144251 10.000 40.00] Contributi 3.67 2.69
(Right Issue) on
April 23,2021 Transfer Own
. 12325 226750| 10.00| 40.00] Contributi 0.22 0.16
(Acquisition) on
April 26, 20211 Allotment 1 56750 453500 10.00 - NA[ 412 3.02
(Bonus Issue)
Total | 453500 8697250 8.23 6.04

* The Source of Contribution as certified by M/s. Deepak Jindal and Co., Chartered Account vide their certificate dated
August 03, 2021 vide UDIN: 215147464A4AAABG1962.

& Three (3) Years from the date of commencement of commercial production or date of allotment in Initial Public Offer
whichever is later.

All the Equity Shares allotted and held by our Promoters were fully paid at the time of allotment itself.

All the Equity Shares held by the Promoters / members of the Promoters’ Group are in dematerialized form.

In terms of Regulation 237 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, we confirm that the Minimum Promoters’ Contribution
0f 20.00% of the Post Issue Capital of our Company as mentioned above does not consist of;

» Equity Shares acquired during the preceding three years for;

e  consideration other than cash and revaluation of assets or capitalization of intangible assets is involved in such
transaction;

e resulting from a bonus issue by utilization of revaluation reserves or unrealized profits of the company or from
bonus issue against equity shares which are ineligible for minimum Promoters’ contribution;

»  The Equity Shares held by the Promoters and offered for Minimum Promoters’ contribution which are subject to any
pledge with any creditor;

» Equity Shares acquired by Promoters during the preceding one year at a price lower than the price at which equity
shares are being offered to public in the Initial Public offer;

» Equity Shares allotted pursuant to conversion of Partnership Firm/LLP.

19. Lock in of Equity Shares held by Promoters in excess of Minimum Promoters’ contribution:
In addition to Minimum Promoters’ Contribution which shall be locked-in for three years, the balance 4001200 Equity
Shares held by Promoters shall be locked in for a period of one year from the date of allotment in the Initial Public Offer
as provided in clause (b) of Regulation 238 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018.

20. Lock in of Equity Shares held by Persons other than the Promoters:
In terms of Regulation 239 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the entire pre-issue capital held by the Persons other
than the Promoters shall be locked in for a period of one year from the date of allotment in the Initial Public Offer.
Accordingly 6800 Equity shares held by the Persons other than the Promoters shall be locked in for a period of one year
from the date of allotment in the Initial Public Offer.

21. Inscription or Recording of non-transferability:
In terms of Regulation 241 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, our Company confirms that certificates of Equity

Shares which are subject to lock in shall contain the inscription “Non-Transferable” and specify the lock-in period and in
case such equity shares are dematerialized, the Company shall ensure that the lock-in is recorded by the Depository.
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Pledge of Locked in Equity Shares:

In terms of Regulation 242 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the Equity Shares held by our Promoters and locked
in may be pledged as a collateral security for a loan granted by a scheduled commercial bank or public financial institution
or a systemically important non-banking finance company or housing finance company, subject to following;

>

In case of Minimum Promoters’ Contribution, the loan has been granted to the issuer company or its subsidiary (ies)
for the purpose of financing one or more of the Objects of the Issue and pledge of equity shares is one of the terms
of sanction of the loan.

In case of Equity Shares held by Promoters in excess of Minimum Promoters’ contribution, the pledge of equity
shares is one of the terms of sanction of the loan.

However, lock in shall continue pursuant to the invocation of the pledge and such transferee shall not be eligible to transfer
the equity shares till the lock in period stipulated has expired.

23.

Transferability of Locked in Equity Shares:

In terms of Regulation 243 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and subject to provisions of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 as applicable;

>

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

The Equity Shares held by our Promoters and locked in as per Regulation 238 of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018
may be transferred to another Promoters or any person of the Promoters’ Group or to a new promoter(s) or persons
in control of our Company, subject to continuation of lock-in for the remaining period with transferee and such
transferee shall not be eligible to transfer them till the lock-in period stipulated has expired.

The equity shares held by persons other than promoters and locked in as per Regulation 239 of the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018 may be transferred to any other person (including Promoter and Promoters’ Group) holding the
equity shares which are locked-in along with the equity shares proposed to be transferred, subject to continuation of
lock-in for the remaining period with transferee and such transferee shall not be eligible to transfer them till the lock-
in period stipulated has expired.

Our Company, our Directors and the Lead Manager to this Issue have not entered into any buy-back or similar
arrangements with any person for purchase of our Equity Shares issued by our Company.

As on date of the Prospectus, there are no Partly Paid-up Shares and all the Equity Shares of our Company are fully
paid up. Further, since the entire money in respect of the Issue is being called on application, all the successful

applicants will be issued fully paid-up equity shares.

Neither the Lead Manager, nor their associates hold any Equity Shares of our Company as on the date of the
Prospectus.

Prior to this Initial Public Offer, our Company has not made any public issue or right issue to public at large.
There are no safety net arrangements for this public issue.

As on the date of filing of the Prospectus, there are no outstanding warrants, options or rights to convert debentures,
loans or other financial instruments into our Equity Shares.

As per RBI regulations, OCBs are not allowed to participate in this offer.

Our Company has not raised any bridge loan against the proceeds of this Issue. However, depending on business
requirements, we may consider raising bridge financing facilities, pending receipt of the Net Proceeds.

There are no Equity Shares against which depository receipts have been issued.

As on date of the Prospectus, other than the Equity Shares, there are is no other class of securities issued by our
Company.

Our Company undertakes that at any given time, there shall be only one denomination for our Equity Shares, unless
otherwise permitted by law.
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35. An Applicant cannot make an application for more than the number of Equity Shares being issued through this Issue,
subject to the maximum limit of investment prescribed under relevant laws applicable to each category of investors.

36. Since present issue is a fixed price issue, the allocation in the net offer to the public category in terms of Regulation
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253(2) of the SEBI (ICDR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 shall be made as follows:

(a). minimum fifty per cent. to retail individual investors; and

(b). remaining to:

i) individual applicants other than retail individual investors; and

il) other investors including corporate bodies or institutions, irrespective of the number of Equity Shares applied

for;

Provided that the unsubscribed portion in either of the categories specified in clauses (a) or (b) may be allocated to

applicants in the other category.

Explanation: If the retail individual investor category is entitled to more than fifty per cent. of the Net issue size on a

proportionate basis, the retail individual investors shall be allocated that higher percentage.

37. No incentive, whether direct or indirect, in any manner, whether in cash or kind or services or otherwise shall be
offered by any person connected with the distribution of the issue to any person for making an application in the
Initial Public Offer, except for fees or commission for services rendered in relation to the issue.

38. Our Promoters and the members of our Promoters’ Group will not participate in this offer.

39. Our Company shall ensure that transactions in the Equity Shares by the Promoters and the Promoters’ Group between
the date of filing the Prospectus and the Issue Closing Date shall be reported to the Stock Exchanges within twenty-
four hours of such transaction.

40. Except as stated below, none of our other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel holds Equity Shares in our

Company.

Designation

No. of

Equity
Shares held

% of Pre
Issue Equity
Share

% of Post
Issue Equity
Share Capital

1. | Mr. Rakesh Kumar

Chairman cum Managing

Capital

Compliance Officer

Director 724850 13.16 9.65
2. | Mrs. Rekha Bansal Whole-time Director 4324850 78.49 57.60
3. | Mr. Dhruv Rakesh Executive Director 453500 8.23 6.04
4. | Mr. Baljeet Singh Chief Financial Officer 2200 0.04 0.03
5. | Ms. Amanpreet Kaur Company Secretary and 0 0.00 0.00
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SECTION VII - PARTICULARS OF THE ISSUE

OBJECTS OF THE ISSUE
The Issue constitutes a public Issue of 1998000 Equity Shares of our Company at an Issue Price of I40/- per Equity
Share.
FRESH ISSUE

The Issue Proceeds from the Fresh Issue will be utilized towards the following objects:

1. Setting up of new Manufacturing Unit at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh
2. To Meet Incremental Working Capital Requirements

3. For General Corporate Purposes

4. To meet Public Issue Expenses

(Collectively referred as the “objects™)

The proceeds of the Issue, after deducting Issue related expenses, are estimated to be 3720.00 Lakhs (the “Net Issue
Proceeds”).
The following table summarizes the requirement of funds from Initial Public Offering:

Particulars gt
® in) Lakhs
Gross Issue Proceeds 799.20
Less: Public Issue Related Expenses 79.20
Net Issue Proceeds 720.00

We believe that listing will enhance our corporate image and visibility of brand name of our Company. We also believe
that our Company will receive the benefits from listing of Equity Shares on the Emerge Platform of NSE. It will also
provide liquidity to the existing shareholders and will also create a public trading market for the Equity Shares of our
Company. Our company is engaged in manufacturing of Paper Based Packing Material, Self Adhesive Tapes (specialty
tapes likes Masking, Siliconized, Medical and Surface protection Tapes), Laminated Products and flexible Packaging.

The objects clause of our Memorandum enables our Company to undertake its existing activities and these activities
which have been carried out until now by our Company are valid in terms of the objects clause of our Memorandum of
Association.

COST OF PROJECT AND MEANS OF FINANCE

COST OF PROJECT:

% of Total

Particulars . Project
(X in) Lakhs Cost

Amount

. | Setting up of new Manufacturing Unit at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh# 690.00 44.54

2. | Incremental Working Capital Requirements 415.00 26.79
3. | Purchase of Plant and Machinery for Vadodara Unit 260.00 16.78
4. | For General Corporate Purposes 105.00 6.78
5. | Public Issue Expenses 79.20 5.11

Total Cost of Project 1549.20 100.00

# BREAK UP OF THE NEW MANUFACTURING UNIT AT BADDI, HIMACHAL PRADESH

Amount
Particulars Required
® in Lakhs)
. Acquisition of Land
2. Construction of Building and Civil Work 250.00
3. Purchase of Plant and Machinery new Manufacturing Unit at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh 240.00
Total 690.00
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MEANS OF FINANCE:
( In Lakhs)

Amount From IPO el Balance from

Borrowing*

Particulars Accruals/Equ

Required Proceeds | ;v /Reserves

Acquisition of Land for new

1. Manufacturing Plant at Baddi, 200.00 200.00 0.00 0.00
Himachal Pradesh
Construction of Building and Civil

2. Work for new Manufacturing Plant at 250.00 60.00 25.00 165.00

Baddi, Himachal Pradesh
Purchase of Plant and Machinery at

3. new Manufacturing Plant at Baddi, 240.00 45.00 25.00 170.00
Himachal Pradesh

4, | Incremental - Working  Capital | 54 310.00 105.00 0.00
Requirements

5 Purchase of Plant and Machinery for 260.00 0.00 95.00 165.00
Vadodara Unit

6. For General Corporate Purposes 105.00 105.00 0.00 0.00

7. Public Issue Expenses 79.20 79.20 0.00 0.00

Total 1549.20 799.20 250.00 500.00

*QOur company has received the Expression of Interest from Canara Bank vide letter dated July 27, 2021 for loan amount
of Rs. 500.00 Lakhs for the proposed project of our company as a term loan.

Accordingly, we confirm that we are in compliance with the requirement to make the firm arrangement of finance under
Regulation 230(1) (e) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations and Clause 9 (C) of Part A of Schedule VI of the SEBI ICDR
Regulations (which requires firm arrangements of finance through verifiable means for 75% of the stated means of
finance, excluding the Issue Proceeds and existing identifiable internal accruals).

The fund requirement and deployment is based on internal management estimates and have not been appraised by any
bank or financial institution. These are based on current conditions and are subject to change in the light of changes in
external circumstances or costs or other financial conditions and other external factors. In case of any increase in the
actual utilization of funds earmarked for the Objects, such additional funds for a particular activity will be met by way
of means available to our Company, including from internal accruals. If the actual utilization towards any of the Objects
is lower than the proposed deployment such balance will be used for future growth opportunities including funding
existing objects, if required. In case of delays in raising funds from the Issue, our Company may deploy certain amounts
towards any of the above mentioned Objects through a combination of Internal Accruals or Unsecured Loans (Bridge
Financing) and in such case the Funds raised shall be utilized towards repayment of such Unsecured Loans or recouping
of Internal Accruals. However, we confirm that no bridge financing has been availed as on date, which is subject to being
repaid from the Issue Proceeds.

We further confirm that no part proceed of the Issue shall be utilized for repayment of any Part of unsecured loan
outstanding as on date of Prospectus. As we operate in competitive environment, our Company may have to revise its
business plan from time to time and consequently our fund requirements may also change. Our Company’s historical
expenditure may not be reflective of our future expenditure plans. Our Company may have to revise its estimated costs,
fund allocation and fund requirements owing to various factors such as economic and business conditions, increased
competition and other external factors which may not be within the control of our management. This may entail
rescheduling or revising the planned expenditure and funding requirements, including the expenditure for a particular
purpose at the discretion of the Company’s management.

For further details on the risks involved in our business plans and executing our business strategies, please see the Section
titled “RISK FACTORS” beginning on page no. 20 of this Prospectus.
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UTILIZATION OF NET ISSUE PROCEEDS

The Net Issue Proceeds will be utilized for following purpose:

% of Net
Issue
Proceeds

Amount

Particulars  in) Lakhs

Acquisition of Land for new Manufacturing Plant at Baddi, Himachal 27.78
1. 200.00

Pradesh
> Construction of Building and Civil Workfor new Manufacturing Plant 60.00 8.33

" | at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh )

Purchase of Plant and Machinery at new Manufacturing Plant at Baddi, 6.25
3. . 45.00

Himachal Pradesh
4. | To Meet Incremental Working Capital Requirements® 310.00 43.06
5. | For General Corporate Purposes 105.00 14.58

Total 720.00 100.00

&Total Incremental working capital requirement of the company is expected to be Rs. 415.00 Lakhs out of which amount
to the extent of Rs. 310.00 Lakhs will be funded out of Net Issue Proceeds and remaining requirement of funds will be
funded through Internal Accruals.

DETAILED BREAK UP OF THE PROJECT COST:

At present, our unit I is set up and located in Panchkula at Haryana having installed capacity of manufacturing of Easy
Release/Soap Banding Tape, Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Laminated Products, Promotional/ Advertising Shelf Strip Tapes
of 800 MT, 600 MT, 350 MT, 120 MT and 100 MT per annum respectively. Our company’s Unit II at Vadodra in Gujarat
having installed capacity of manufacturing Corrugated boxes and Sleeve roll, Tray and Sheet of 1800 MT per annum and
3600 MT per annum respectively. We are proposing to commence manufacturing facilities at Baddi in Himachal Pradesh
for manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Masking/specialty tapes and Laminated Products. We are also proposing
to installed machinery at Vadodara (Unit IT) for manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Masking/specialty tapes and
Laminated Products.

The overall project cost has been estimated at INR 1549.20 Lacs, which is estimated as under:

Amount
Particulars Required
® in Lakhs)
A. Acquisition of Land 200.00
B. Construction of Building and Civil Work 250.00
C. Incremental Working Capital Requirements 415.00
D. Purchase of Plant and Machinery 500.00
E. For General Corporate Purposes 105.00
F. Issue Related Expenses 79.20
Total 1549.20
ACQUISITION OF LAND

Our Company proposes to acquire land for setting up its new manufacturing plant at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh. However
no such land is identified by our company. the expected are of alnd proposed to be acquired is 8000 Sqr Mtrs. As on the
date of prospectus our company has not identified any land for prosed manufacturing plant. The total cost of land is
expected to be Rs 200.00 lakhs which includes the Registration charges, change in land usage charges and other
miscellaneous charges.

Proposed land to be acquired for setting up its new manufacturing plant at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh will be free from all
encumbrances and will have clear title in the name of our company.

Our company has not applied for any government registration pertaining for proposed project at Baddi, Himachal
Pradesh. Our company will obtain all the requisite approvals with in due time required for proposed project.

Our company proposes to utilise part of Net issue proceeds towards Acquisition of Land for our proposed project at
Baddi, Himachal Pradesh.
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B. CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDING AND CIVIL WORK:
The overall cost of building and civil works to construct the factory shed of new manufacturing unit at Baddi, Himachal
Pradesh is estimated to be Rs. 250 Lakhs. Our company has not obtained any quotation for construction of Building and

Civil work.

Details of Construction of Building and Civil work provided below is based on estimates envisaged by Management of

our compan
Particulars Type of Construction Size (Sqr. Mtr) ‘ Rate (11:: T:il;li)
1. | Manufacturing Shed RCC roof Kota stone flooring 3000 7500 225.00
2. | Office Block RCC roof Kota stone flooring 125 10000 12.50
Boundary wall, Security 12.50
3. | office, Internal roads etc.
Total cost of construction of building and Civil Work 250.00

C. INCREMENTAL WORKING CAPITAL REQUIREMENT:

Our company is engaged in manufacturing of Paper Based Packing Material, Self Adheshive Tapes (specialty tapes likes
Masking, Siliconized, Medical and Surface protection Tapes), Laminated Products and flexible Packaging. As on March
31,2021, Net Working Capital requirement of our Company on restated standalone financial basis was ¥ 347.66 Lakhs as
against that of ¥ (37.89) lakhs as on March 31, 2020. The Net Working capital requirements for the financial year 2021-
22 is estimated to be ¥ 845.55 Lakhs. The Company will meet the working capital requirement to the extent of ¥ 310.00
Lakhs from the Net Issue Proceeds and balance from borrowings and internal accruals at an appropriate time as per the
requirement.

(Rs. in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars As per Restated Standalone financial statement Projected
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22
Inventories
» Finished Goods - 15.40 33.80 81.12
» Work In Progress 13.93 17.02 19.61
» Raw Material - 136.55 409.59 471.59
Trade receivables! - 414.49 497.74 650.94
Cash and cash equivalents - 27.54 91.00 26.48
Short-term loans and advances - 52.22 97.76 100.00
Other Current Assets - 5.33 14.37 0.00
Total Current Assets - 665.46 1,161.28 1,349.74
Trade payables - 613.39 728.87 419.19
Other current liabilities - 89.96 75.48 85.00
Short-term provisions - - 9.28 0.00
Total Current Liabilities - 703.35 813.62 504.19
Net Working Capital - (37.89) 347.66 845.55
Sources of Funds
Short Term Borrowing - - 127.79 275.00
Unsecured Loan from ) ) ) )
Directors/Relatives
Internal Accruals/Existing Net worth - - 219.87 260.55
Proceeds from IPO - - - 310.00
Total - - 347.66 845.55

Includes trade receivables classified as non-current.
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Assumptions for working capital requirements
outstanding or holding level for the (in Months) Justification for

Particulars FY 18-19 FY 19-20 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 Holding
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Projected) (FY 2021-22)

Inventory
» Raw Material 0.00 0.63 1.36 1.35 Raw Material holding
period is based on last
two years outstanding
holding period.

» Work in Progress 0.00 0.05 0.05 0.05 Work In  Progress
holding period is
based on last two
years outstanding
holding period.

» Finished Goods 0.00 0.06 0.09 0.20 Finished Goods
holding period is
based on last two
years outstanding
holding adjusted to
meet requirement of
expected turnover in
FY 2021-22.

Trade Receivables 0.00 1.51 1.33 1.50 Company expects
Debtors cycle to be at
1.50 Months
approximately FY
2021-22 based on

FY 2019-20 and FY
2020-21 and adjusted
to meet expected
turnover for the FY
2021-22

Trade Payables 0.00 2.82 242 1.20 Company expects
Trade Payables cycle
of 1.2

months approximately
for

F.Y. 2021-22 to reap
the benefit of cash
Discount by early
payment.

D. PURCHASE OF PLANT AND MACHINERY
The total cost of plant & Machinery including installation and transportation charges is estimated to be Rs 500.00 lakhs
comprising out of which Plant & Machineries amounting to Rs. 260 Lakhs will be installed at our Vadodara Unit situated
at Survey No. 1, Vill Mahuvad, Padra Vadodra-391440 Gujarat and Plant & Machineries amounting to Rs 240 Lakhs
will be installed at our proposed project at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh.

Our company has received quotations from vendors for purchase of plant and machineries. Management of our company
after internal assessment have approved following quotations and the details of the Plant & Machinery to be purchased

is given below.

Our Company has not placed any orders for purchase of such plant and machineries till the date of this Prospectus. No
Second Hand Machineries will be purchased, our company will install new Plant & Machineries at both the Plants.

Our company has received quotations for supply of planta and machineries which as follows;

DETAILS OF COST OF PLANT & MACHINERY

(A) Baddi New Unit
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DETAILS OF COST OF PLANT & MACHINERY

No Amt.
S.no Particulars Vendor . (Rs. Lacs)
Lotus Mechanical Pvt.
1. 8 Color Printing Ltd.! 1 85.50
Lotus Mechanical Pvt.
2. Solvent Less Lamination Ltd. 1 28.80
3. BOPP Coating Sunil Engineering 1 17.75
4. Slitting (Tape) Sunil Engineering 1 3.40
5. S P F Coating Machine Surya Packaging 1 50.80
Sub Total 186.25
18% Add: GST -18% 33.53
Sub Total 219.78
Misc. (Electrical, Hot Air,
Transportation & Installation
including GST) 20.22
Total (A) 240.00
(B) Vadodara Unit
Amt. (Rs.
S.no Particulars Lacs)
Lotus Mechanical Pvt.
1. 8 Color Printing Ltd. 1 85.50
2. Multi-Color Head Sunil Engineering 1 45.00
Lotus Mechanical Pvt.
3. Cantiliver Slitter Ltd. 1 18.50
Lotus Mechanical Pvt.
4. Solvent Less Lamination Ltd. 1 28.80
BOPP Coating Sunil Engineering 1 17.75
Slitter (Tape) Sunil Engineering 1 3.40
Sub Total 198.95
18% Add: GST -18% 35.81
Sub Total 234.76
Misc. (Electrical, Hot Air,
Transportation & Installation 25.24
including GST)
Total (B) 260.00
Grand Total (A+B) 500.00

'Our Company has received quotations which are valid for upto December 19, 2021.

Our company will utilize Net Issue Proceeds for purchase of Purchase of Plant and Machineries to the extent of Rs. 45
Lakhs which will be installed at our proposed project at Baddi, Himachal Pradesh. Remaining requirement of fund for
Plant and Machinery will be finances by Internal Accruals and term loan for which our company has received Expression
of Interest from Canara Bank vide letter dated July 27, 2021 for loan amount of Rs. 500 Lakhs.

FOR GENERAL CORPORATE PURPOSES:

Our management, in accordance with the policies of our Board, will have flexibility in utilizing the proceeds earmarked
for general corporate purposes. We intend to deploy ¥ 105.00 Lakh towards the general corporate purposes to drive our
business growth. Our management, in accordance with the policies of our Board, will have flexibility in utilizing the
proceeds earmarked for general corporate purpose subject to above mentioned limit, as may be approved by our
management, including but not restricted to, the following:

1. Strategic initiatives;
2. Brand building and strengthening of marketing activities; and
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3. On-going general corporate exigencies or any other purposes as approved by the Board subject to compliance with the
necessary regulatory provisions.

The quantum of utilization of funds towards each of the above purposes will be determined by our Board of Directors
based on the permissible amount actually available under the head “General Corporate Purposes” and the business
requirements of our Company, from time to time. We, in accordance with the policies of our Board, will have flexibility
in utilizing the Net Issue Proceeds for general corporate purposes, as mentioned above in any permissible manner.

We confirm that any issue related expenses shall not be considered as a part of General Corporate Purpose. Further, we
confirm that the amount for general corporate purposes, as mentioned in this Prospectus, shall not exceed 25% of the
amount raised by our Company through this issue.

ISSUE RELATED EXPENSES

The total expenses of the Issue are estimated to be approximately I 79.20 lakhs. The expenses of this include, among
others, underwriting and management fees, printing and distribution expenses, advertisement expenses, legal fees and
listing fees. The estimated Issue expenses are as follows:

Expenses (% Expenses (%
of total Issue | of Gross Issue
expenses) Proceeds)

Expenses

Expenses

® in Lakh)

Lead Manger Fees including Underwriting Commission 25.00 31.57 3.13
Fees Payable to Registrar to the Issue 1.00 1.26 0.13
Fees Payable for Advertising, Advisor, Marketing Expenses

and Prin}t,ing Expenses : © 4070 >1.39 309
Fees Payable to Regulators including Stock Exchanges and

other Int}él:rmediariesg ¢ ¢ 450 268 0.56
Legal Advisor 0.50 0.63 0.06
Fees payable to Peer Review Auditor 1.00 1.26 0.13
Fees Payable to Market Maker (for Two Years) 6.00 7.58 0.75
Escrow Bank Fees 0.50 0.63 0.06
Total Estimated Issue Expenses 79.20 100.00 9.91

Notes:

1. Up to September 15, 2021 Our Company has deployed/incurred expense of X 7.77 Lakhs towards Issue Expenses
and custodian connectivity charges out of internal accruals duly certified by Statutory Auditor M/s. Deepak Jindal
and Co., Chartered Accountants vide its certificate dated September 22, 2021 bearing UDIN:
21514745AAAAEPS077.

2. Any expenses incurred towards aforesaid issue related expenses during the period from August 20, 2020 to till the
date of listing of Equity Shares will be reimburse/recouped out of the gross proceeds of the issue.

Selling commission payable to the members of the CDPs, RTA and SCSBs, on the portion for Rlls and NllIs, would
be as follows:

Portion for Rlls 0.01% or X 100/- whichever is less ™ (exclusive of GST)

Portion for NlIs 0.01% or X 100/- whichever is less  (exclusive of GST)

“Percentage of the amounts received against the Equity Shares Allotted (i.e. the product of the number of Equity
Shares Allotted and the Issue Price).

3. The Members of RTAs and CDPs will be entitled to application charges of X 10/- (plus applicable GST) per valid
ASBA Form. The terminal from which the application has been uploaded will be taken into account in order to
determine the total application charges payable to the relevant RTA/CDP.

4. Registered Brokers, will be entitled to a commission of X 10/~ (plus GST) per Application Form, on valid
Applications, which are eligible for allotment, procured from Rlls and NIlIs and submitted to the SCSB for
processing. The terminal from which the application has been uploaded will be taken into account in order to
determine the total processing fees payable to the relevant Registered Broker.

5. SCSBs would be entitled to a processing fee of X 10/~ (plus GST) for processing the Application Forms procured by
the members of the Registered Brokers, RTAs or the CDPs and submitted to SCSBs.

Issuer banks for UPI Mechanism as registered with SEBI would be entitled to a processing fee of X 10/- (plus GST) for

processing the Application Forms procured by the members of the Registered Brokers, RTAs or the CDPs and submitted

to them.
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SCHEDULE OF IMPLEMENTATION AND DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS

We propose to deploy the Net Issue Proceeds for the aforesaid purposes in accordance with the estimated schedule of
implementation and deployment of funds set forth in the table below:

Particulars

Acquisition of Land
for new

.| Manufacturing Plant

at Baddi, Himachal

Pradesh

Total

Estimate

d Cost

200.00

Amount
to be
funded
from the
Net Issue
Proceeds
R in
Lakhs)

200.00

Amount
to be
funded
from
Internal
Accruals

0.00

Amount

to be

funded

from

Borrowi

ngs

0.00

Amount
already
deployed
R in
Lakhs)

0.00

Estimate
d
Utilizatio
n of Net
Issue
Proceeds
R in
Lakhs)
(Upto
Financial
year
2021-
22)*

200.00

( In Lakhs)
Estimate
d
Utilizatio
n of Net
Issue
Proceeds
R in
Lakhs)
(Upto
Financial
year
2022-
23)*

0.00

Construction of
Building and Civil
Work for new

| Manufacturing Plant

at Baddi, Himachal

Pradesh

250.00

60.00

25.00

165.00

0.00

85.00

165.00

Purchase of Plant and
Machinery for new

.| Manufacturing Plant

at Baddi, Himachal

Pradesh

240.00

45.00

25.00

170.00

0.00

70.00

170.00

Purchase of Plant and

.| Machinery for

Vadodara Unit

260.00

0.00

95.00

165.00

0.00

260.00

0.00

Incremental Working
Capital Requirements

415.00

310.00

105.00

0.00

0.00

415.00

0.00

For General Corporate

‘| Purposes

105.00

105.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

105.00

0.00

.| Public Issue Expenses

79.20

79.20

0.00

0.00

7.77

79.20

0.00

Total

1549.20

799.20

250.00

500.00

7.77

1214.20

335.00

* To the extent our Company is unable to utilize any portion of the Net Issue Proceeds towards the Object, as per the
estimated schedule of deployment specified above; our Company shall deploy the Net Issue Proceeds in the subsequent
Financial Years towards the Object.

Baddi, Himachal Pradesh (Proposed Project)
Particulars Month of Commencement Month of Completion

Acquisition of Land October , 2021 December 2021
Construction of Building and Civil January, 2022 November 2022
Work

Purchase of Plant and Machinery November 2021 November 2022
Installation of Plant and Machinery November 2022 December 2022
Trial Run December 2022 December 2022
Commercial Production January 2023

Vadodara Unit
Particulars
Purchase of Plant and Machinery

Month of Commencement
November, 2021

Month of Completion
March 2022
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Particulars Month of Commencement Month of Completion

Installation of Plant and Machinery April 2022 June 2022

Trial Run July 2022 August 2022

Commercial Production September 2022 October 2022
APPRAISAL REPORT

None of the objects for which the Issue Proceeds will be utilised have been financially appraised by any financial
institutions / banks.

BRIDGE FINANCING

We have not entered into any bridge finance arrangements that will be repaid from the Net Issue Proceeds. However, we
may draw down such amounts, as may be required, from an overdraft arrangement / cash credit facility with our lenders,
to finance the existing ongoing project facility requirements until the completion of the Issue. Any amount that is drawn
down from the overdraft arrangement / cash credit facility during this period to finance our existing/ongoing projects will
be repaid from the Net Issue Proceeds of the Issue.

INTERIM USE OF FUNDS

Pending utilization of the Issue Proceeds for the Objects of the Issue described above, our Company shall deposit the
funds only in Scheduled Commercial Banks included in the Second Schedule of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

In accordance with Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013, our Company confirms that, pending utilization of the
proceeds of the Issue as described above, it shall not use the funds from the Issue Proceeds for any investment in equity
and/or real estate products and/or equity linked and/or real estate linked products.

MONITORING UTILIZATION OF FUNDS

There is no requirement for the appointment of a monitoring agency, as the Issue size is less than ¥ 10,000 Lakhs. Our
Board will monitor the utilization of the proceeds of the Issue and will disclose the utilization of the Net Issue Proceeds
under a separate head in our balance sheet along with the relevant details, for all such amounts that have not been utilized.
Our Company will indicate investments, if any, of unutilized Net Issue Proceeds in the balance sheet of our Company
for the relevant Fiscal subsequent to receipt of listing and trading approvals from the Stock Exchanges.

Pursuant to Regulation 32 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, our Company shall on half-yearly basis disclose to the Audit Committee the
Application of the proceeds of the Issue. On an annual basis, our Company shall prepare a statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than stated in this Prospectus and place it before the Audit Committee. Such disclosures shall be made
only until such time that all the proceeds of the Issue have been utilized in full.

VARIATION IN OBJECTS

In accordance with Section 13(8) and Section 27 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules, our Company shall
not vary the objects of the Issue without our Company being authorized to do so by the Shareholders by way of a special
resolution through postal ballot. In addition, the notice issued to the Shareholders in relation to the passing of such special
resolution (the “Postal Ballot Notice™) shall specify the prescribed details as required under the Companies Act and
applicable rules. The Postal Ballot Notice shall simultaneously be published in the newspapers, one in English and one
in the vernacular language of the jurisdiction where the Registered Office is situated. Our Promoters or controlling
Shareholders will be required to provide an exit opportunity to such Shareholders who do not agree to the proposal to
vary the objects, at such price, and in such manner, as may be prescribed by SEBI, in this regard.

OTHER CONFIRMATIONS

No part of the proceeds of the Issue will be paid by us to the Promoters and Promoter Group, the Directors, Associates,
Key Management Personnel or Group Companies except in the normal course of business and in compliance with the
applicable law.
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BASIS FOR ISSUE PRICE

The issue price has been determined by the issuer in consultation with the lead manager. The financial data presented in
this section are based on our Company’s Restated Financial Statements. Investors should also refer to the
sections/chapters titled “RISK FACTORS” and “RESTATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION” on page no. 20 and 135,
respectively of this Prospectus to get a more informed view before making the investment decision.

QUALITATIVE FACTORS

Experienced management team

Quality Products

Wide Range of our Packing Products

Long term relationship with MNC’s Customers

Infrastructure and Integrated capabilities to deliver quality Products
Provide customized packaging solution as per client requirements

VVVVYVYVY

For details of qualitative factors, please refer to the paragraph “OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS” in the chapter titled
“BUSINESS OVERVIEW” beginning on page no. 85 of this Prospectus.

QUANTITATIVE FACTORS
1. Basic & Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS):

Restated Consolidated Profit After Tax attributable to Equity Shareholders
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding

Basic earnings per share (X) =

Restated Consolidated Profit After Tax attributable to Equity Shareholders
Diluted earnings per share X) = Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding after adjusting
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares

Financial Year/Period Basic and Diluted EPS (in J)# Weights
Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 422 1
Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 5.91 2
Weighted Average 5.35
Period Ended June 30, 2021* 1.81
# Face Value of Equity Share is ¥ 10.
* Not Annualized.

2. Price to Earnings (P/E) ratio in relation to Issue Price of ¥ 40:

Issue Price
Restated Consolidated Earnings Per Share

Particulars EPS (in ) P/E at the Issue Price

Based on EPS of Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 5.91 6.76
Based on Weighted Average EPS 5.35 7.48

Price to Earnings Ratio(P/E)

3. Average Return on Net Worth:

Restated Consolidated Profit After Tax attributable to Equity Shareholders

Return on Net Worth (%) Net Worth *100
Financial Year/Period Return on Net Worth Weights
(%)
Financial Year ended March 31, 2020 45.70 1
Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 30.57 2
Weighted Average 35.61
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4. Net Asset Value per Equity Share:

Restated Net Worth as at the end of the year

Number of Equity Shares outstanding
Based on Consolidated Restated Audited Financial Statement

Particular Amount (in )

Restated Net Asset Value per equity share ) =

As at March 31, 2021* 14.48
NAYV per Equity Share after the Issue 22.85
Issue Price per Equity Share 40.00

* After giving effect for allotment of Bonus shares by our company in the ratio of 1:1 on April 26, 2021.
5. Comparison of Accounting Ratios with Peer Group Companies:

Current NAV | Revenue
Face Market EPS P/E  RONW

Ratio | (%)

Standalone/

Name of the company Value Price ()

Consolidated ® @@ Basic

Consolidated 10 40.00 6.83 | 5.85 | 30.31 | 1449 | 6,483.89
Standalone 10 40.00 4.83 | 3.50 | 24.95 | 14.49 | 4499.85

D.K. Enterprises Global Limited

Peer Group

Anuroop Packaging Limited”" Consolidated | 10 7.85 1.94 | 4.05 | 10.89 | 17.81 1406.08

- - —

Hindustan Adhesives Limited 10 | 116.00 | 17.09| 6.79 | 20.22 | 84.60 | 21,365.00
Stanalone

G.K.P. Printing & Packaging| Standalone

Limited? 10 30.00 1.09 | 27.52 | 3.59 | 29.68 | 2926.39

Note: (1) The EPS, P/E Ratio, NAV, RonW and revenue from operations of D.K. Enterprises Global Limited are
taken as per Restated Standalone/Consolidated Financial Statement for the Financial Year 2020-21.
(2) Our Company has allotted Bonus Equity Shares on April 26, 2021 in the ratio of 1:1. EPS appearing in
above for our company is after giving effect of bonus shares.

@  Current Market Price (CMP) is taken as the closing price of respective scripts as on March 31, 2021 at BSE. For
our Company, Current Market Price is taken same as issue price of equity share.

A~ The Figures as at March 31, 2021 and are taken from the financial results uploaded on respective Stock
Exchange(s).

6. The face value of Equity Shares of our Company is X 10/- per Equity Share and the Issue price is 4.00 times the face
value of equity share.

The Issue Price of ¥ 40/- is determined by our Company in consultation with the Lead Manager is justified based on the
above accounting ratios. For further details, please refer to the section titled “RISK FACTORS” and chapters titled
“BUSINESS OVERVIEW” and “RESTATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION” beginning on page nos. 20, 82 and 135
respectively of this Prospectus.
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STATEMENT OF POSSIBLE TAX BENEFITS
To,
The Board of Directors,
D.K. Enterprises Global Limited
Plot No-235 Industrial Area Phase-2 Panchkula-134109
Haryana, India

Dear Sir,

Subject - Statement of possible tax benefits (“the statement™) available to D.K. Enterprises Global Limited (“the
company”) and its shareholder prepared in accordance with the requirement in Point No. 9 (L) of Part A of Schedule
VI to the Securities Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018.

Reference - Initial Public Offer of Equity Shares by D.K. Enterprises Global Limited

We hereby confirm that the enclosed Annexure 1 and 2 (together "the Annexures"), prepared by D.K. Enterprises Global
Limited ('the Company'), provides the possible tax benefits available to the Company and to the shareholders of the Company
under the Income tax Act, 1961 ('the Act') as amended by the Finance Act 2021, circular and notifications issued from time to
time, i.e. applicable for the Financial Year 2021-22 relevant to the assessment year 2022-23. the Central Goods and Services
Tax Act, 2017 I the Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 and the Customs Act, 1962 ("GST Act"), the Customs Act,
1962 (“Customs Act”) and the Customs Tariff Act, 1975 (“Tariff Act”) as amended by the Finance Act 2021, circular and
notifications issued from time to time, i.e., applicable for the Financial Year 2021-22 relevant to the assessment year 2022-23,
presently in force in India (together, the “Tax Laws’') Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its shareholders
fulfilling the conditions prescribed under the relevant provisions of the Tax Laws. Hence. The ability of the Company and I or
its shareholders to derive the tax benefits is dependent upon their fulfilling such conditions which, based on business imperatives
the Company faces in the future, the Company or its shareholders may or may not choose to fulfil.

The benefits discussed in the enclosed Annexures are not exhaustive and the preparation of the contents stated is the
responsibility of the Company's management. We are informed that these Annexures are only intended to provide information
to the investors and are neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional tax advice. In view of the individual
nature of the tax consequences and the changing tax laws, each investor is advised to consult his or her own tax consultant with
respect to the specific tax implications arising out of their participation in the proposed initial public offering.

We do not express any opinion or provide any assurance as to whether

i) the Company or its shareholders will continue to obtain these benefits in future;

ii) the conditions prescribed for availing the benefits have been I would be met with; and
iii) the revenue authorities courts will concur with the views expressed herein.

The Content of the enclosed Annexures are based on information, explanations and representations obtained from the company
and on the basis of their understanding of the business activities and operations of the company.

No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/ Courts will concur with the view expressed herein. Our views are based on
existing provisions of law and its implementation, which are subject to change from time to time. We do not assume any
responsibility to updates the views consequent to such changes.

We shall not be liable to any claims, liabilities or expenses relating to this assignment except to the extent of fees relating to
this assignment, as finally judicially determined to have resulted primarily from bad faith or intentional misconduct. We will
not be liable to any other person in respect of this statement.

This certificate is provided solely for the purpose of assisting the addressee Company in discharging its responsibility under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 for inclusion in the
Draft Red Herring Prospectus/Red Herring Prospectus/Prospectus in connection with the proposed issue of equity shares and
is not be used, referred to or distributed for any other purpose without our written consent.

For Deepak Jindal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 023023N

CA Deepak Jindal

Partner

M.NO. 514745

UDIN: 2151475AAAADL3764

Place: Chandigarh
Date: July 19, 2021
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS

The information provided below sets out the possible special tax benefits available to the Company and the Equity
Shareholders under the Act presently in force in India. It is not exhaustive or comprehensive and is not intended to be a
substitute for professional advice. Investors are advised to consult their own tax consultant with respect to the tax
implications of an investment in the Equity Shares particularly in view of the f.1ctthat certain recently enacted legislation
may not have a direct legal precedent or may have a different interpretation on the benefits, which an investor can avail.

YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING THE INDIAN TAX

IMPLICATIONS AND CONSEQUENCES OF PURCHASING, OWNING AND DISPOSING OF EQUITY

SHARES IN YOUR PARTICULAR SITUATION

A. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS TO THE COMPANY

The Company is not entitled to any special tax benefits under the Act.

B. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS TO THE SHAREHOLDER

The Shareholders of the Company are not entitled to any special tax benefits under the Act

Note:

1. All the above benefits are as per the current tax laws and will be available only to the sole / first name holder where
the shares are held by joint holders.

2. The above statement covers only certain relevant direct tax law benefits and does not cover any Tax Laws benefits

or benefit under any other law.

We hereby give our consent to include our above referred opinion regarding the tax benefits available to the Company
and to its shareholders in the DRHP/Prospectus.

75



— S

www. dkenterprises.co.in
ANNEXURE 2 TO THE STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS

The information provided below sets out the possible special tax benefits available to the Company and the Equity
Shareholders under the Tax Laws, presently in force in India. It is not exhaustive or comprehensive and is not intended
to be a substitute for professional advice. Investors are advised to consult their own tax consultant with respect to the tax
implications of an investment in the Equity Shares particularly in view of the f.1ctthat certain recently enacted legislation
may not have a direct legal precedent or may have a different interpretation on the benefits, which an investor can avail.

YOU SHOULD CONSULT YOUR OWN TAX ADVISORS CONCERNING THE INDIAN TAX

IMPLICATIONS AND CONSEQUENCES OF PURCHASING, OWNING AND DISPOSING OF EQUITY

SHARES IN YOUR PARTICULAR SITUATION

A. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS TO THE COMPANY

The Company is not entitled to any special tax benefits under the Tax Laws.

B. SPECIAL TAX BENEFITS TO THE SHAREHOLDER

The Shareholders of the Company are not entitled to any special tax benefits under the Tax Laws.

Note:

1. All the above benefits are as per the current tax laws and will be available only to the sole / first name holder where
the shares are held by joint holders.

2. The above statement covers only certain relevant Tax Laws benefits and does not cover any direct tax law benefits

or benefit under any other law.

We hereby give our consent to include our above referred opinion regarding the tax benefits available to the Company
and to its shareholders in the DRHP/Prospectus.
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information in this section has been extracted from various websites and publicly available documents from
various industry sources. The data may have been re-classified by us for the purpose of presentation. Neither we
nor any other person connected with the Issue has independently verified the information provided in this section.
Industry sources and publications, referred to in this section, generally state that the information contained therein
has been obtained from sources generally believed to be reliable but their accuracy, completeness and underlying
assumptions are not guaranteed and their reliability cannot be assured, and, accordingly, investment decisions
should not be based on such information.

GLOBAL ECONOMY

COVID-19 caused a global recession whose depth was surpassed only by the two World Wars and the Great Depression
over the past century and a half. Although global economic activity is growing again, it is not likely to return to business
as usual for the foreseeable future. The pandemic has caused a severe loss of life, is tipping millions into extreme poverty,
and is expected to inflict lasting scars that push activity and income well below their pre-pandemic trend for a prolonged
period.

The incipient recovery was initially supported by a partial easing of stringent lockdowns. Various restrictive measures have
been reintroduced, however, as COVID-19 has continued to spread around the world. Some areas have experienced a sharp
resurgence of infections, and daily new cases remain high. That said, there has been substantial progress in the development
of effective vaccines, and inoculation has begun in some countries. A more general rollout in advanced economies and
major emerging market and developing economies (EMDEs) is expected to proceed early this year. Most other EMDEs,
however, face greater constraints in vaccine procurement and distribution. Until vaccines are widely distributed, effective
containment strategies to limit the spread of COVID-19 remain critical.

Following the initial rebound in mid-2020, the global economic recovery has slowed. Whereas activity and trade in the
goods sector have improved, the services sector remains anemic, with international tourism, in particular, still depressed.
The fall in global investment has been pronounced, particularly for EMDEs excluding China. Even though financial
conditions remain very loose, reflecting exceptional monetary policy accommodation, underlying financial fragilities are
mounting. Most commodity prices rebounded from their mid- 2020 lows as strict lockdowns were gradually lifted and
demand firmed, especially from China; however, the recovery in oil prices was more modest amid concerns over the
pandemic’s lasting impact on oil demand.

In all, the global economy is estimated to have contracted 4.3 percent in 2020—a 0.9 percentage point smaller collapse
than was expected in June forecasts. In advanced economies, the initial contraction was less severe than anticipated, but
the ensuing recovery has been dampened by a substantial resurgence of COVID- 19 cases. Meanwhile, output in China is
estimated to have rebounded last year at a faster-than expected clip, with particular support from infrastructure spending.
China’s strength was an exception, however, and disruptions from the pandemic in the majority of other EMDEs were
more severe than previously envisioned, resulting in deeper recessions and slower recoveries, especially in countries with
recent large COVID-19 outbreaks.

Advanced economies are projected to recover, with growth reaching 3.3 percent and 3.5 percent in 2021 and 2022,
respectively, on the back of pandemic containment aided by widespread vaccination and sustained monetary policy
accommodation, which is expected to more than offset the partial unwinding of fiscal support. Although aggregate EMDE
growth is envisioned to firm to 5 percent in 2021 and to moderate to 4.2 percent in 2022, the improvement largely reflects
China’s expected rebound. Absent China, the recovery across EMDE:s is anticipated to be far more muted, averaging 3.5
percent in 2021-22, as the pandemic’s lingering effects continue to weigh on consumption and investment. Despite the
recovery, aggregate EMDE output in 2022 is expected to remain 6 percent below its pre-pandemic projection.

The pandemic has caused per capita incomes to fall in more than 90 percent of EMDEs, tipping millions back into poverty.
For more than a quarter of EMDEs, the pandemic is expected to erase at least 10 years of per capita income gains— and,
in about two-thirds of EMDEs, per capita incomes are projected to be lower in 2022 than they were in 2019. After more
than two decades of steady global poverty reduction, the crisis is projected to push poverty rates back up to levels last seen
in 2017. The pandemic has also impeded future prospects for poverty reduction by adversely affecting longer-term
productivity growth—the deterioration in confidence has dampened investment, and the loss in learning-adjusted school
years and prolonged spells of unemployment have eroded earlier gains in human capital. In low-income countries (LICs),
activity in 2020 shrank 0.9 percent—the first aggregate contraction in a generation. Growth is forecast to resume at a
moderate pace in 2021-22, averaging 4.3 percent. Nonetheless, output in LICs is expected to remain 5.2 percent below its
pre-pandemic projections by 2022. The pandemic has hit fragile and conflict-affected LICs particularly hard, and their
recovery is set to be even more sluggish, in part because the large-scale rollout of vaccines among these economies is
expected to lag that of advanced economies and major EMDEs. The materialization of a number of downside risks could
derail the projected global economic recovery, however. The pandemic could accelerate, and delays in vaccine procurement
and distribution could limit the scope for achieving durable containment. Even if the pandemic is brought under control,
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its effect on potential growth could be longer lasting than expected. Debt has surged above already-high levels and,
although banking systems are generally well capitalized, a wave of bankruptcies could erode bank buffers, putting some
countries at increased risk of financial crisis. In contrast, stronger-than-expected growth outcomes could result from
improved pandemic management, aided by the rapid rollout of highly effective vaccines, which could trigger a sharp rise
in consumer confidence and unleash pent-up demand.

In light of these risks, there are various possible scenarios for the ultimate path for global growth. In particular, in a
downside scenario, new cases of COVID-19 would remain persistently higher than in the baseline in many parts of the
world, and the vaccine rollout process would be slowed by logistical impediments and general reluctance to be immunized.
Activity and financial conditions would deteriorate as a result. In these circumstances, global growth would be much more
subdued, only recovering to 1.6 percent in 2021 and 2.5 percent in 2022. In a more severe downside scenario including
widespread financial stress, global growth could even be negative in 2021.

This exceptional level of uncertainty around the near-term outlook also highlights the role of policy makers in raising the
likelihood of better outcomes while warding off worse ones. Effective containment measures are key to avoid disruptive
flare-ups of new cases. As such, the top near-term policy priority will continue to be pandemic control, such as sustaining
compliance with social distancing and masking guidelines; increasing testing capacity; and, eventually, overcoming
challenges in procuring and distributing vaccines, particularly in LICs. Timely and equitable access to vaccines across the

world will necessitate global cooperation. Only once the pandemic is contained in all countries will each country be safe
from a resurgence.

A. Evolution of the pandemic B. Global activity indicators
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E. Contributions to global growth F. Gaps with pre-pandemic
forecast revisions projections by 2022
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Sources: Google COVID-19 Community Maobility Repors (database); Haver Analytics; Qur World in
Data (database); World Bank.

Note: AEs = advanced economies; EMDEs = emerging market and developing economies; FCS =
fragile and conflict-affected situations; LICs = low-income countries.

(Source: https://www.worldbank.org/en/publication/global-economic-prospects)

INDIAN ECONOMIC

The Indian economy was negatively impacted by an unprecedented health crisis in 2020-21 with the highly contagious
corona virus (Covid-19) spreading across the country. In response to the pandemic, Government has taken several proactive
preventive and mitigating measures starting with progressive tightening of international travel, issue of advisories for the
members of the public, setting up quarantine facilities, contact tracing of persons infected by the virus and various social
distancing measures. Government imposed a strict 21 days nationwide lockdown from 25th March, 2020, under the
Disaster Management Act, 2005, with subsequent extensions and relaxations, to contain the spread of Covid-19 while
ramping up the health infrastructure in the country. The lockdown measures, imposed to contain the spread of Covid-19
pandemic in India, ubiquitously affected employment, business, trade, manufacturing, and services activities. The real
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth is projected to contract by 7.7 percent in 2020-21 as compared to a growth of 4.2
percent in 2019-20. GDP growth, however, is expected to rebound strongly in 2021-22 owing to the reform measures
undertaken by the Government.

The Government announced a special economic and comprehensive package under Atmanirbhar Bharat of X 20 lakh crore
- equivalent to 10 percent of India’s GDP — to fight the Covid-19 pandemic in India. Several structural reforms announced
as part of the package, inter alia, include deregulation of the agricultural sector, change in definition of MSMEs, new PSU
policy, commercialization of coal mining, higher FDI limits in defence and space sector, development of Industrial Land/
Land Bank and Industrial Information System, Production Linked Incentive Schemes, revamp of Viability Gap Funding
scheme for social infrastructure, new power tariff policy and incentivizing States to undertake sector reforms. Apart from
this, various steps were taken to boost consumption which, inter alia, includes cash payment in lieu of the Leave Travel
Concessions (LTC) scheme, One-time special Festival advance of ¥ 10,000 (interest-free) for central Government
employees. Other steps such as Interest-free 50- year loan to states, additional capital expenditure budget for the central
Government, launch of Emergency Credit Line Guarantee Scheme (ECLGS) 2.0, X 1.46 lakh crore boost for manufacturing
through Production-linked incentives for ten Champion Sectors, ¥ 18,000 crores additional outlay for PM Awaas Yojana
(PMAY) —Urban, Equity infusion in National Investment and Infrastructure Fund (NIIF) Debt Platform, Demand booster
for Residential Real Estate Income Tax relief for Developers & Home Buyers, Boost for Project Exports, Capital and
Industrial Stimulus has been initiated to support economic growth.

As per the first Advance Estimates of annual national income released by the National Statistical Office (NSO), Real GDP
is estimated to contract by 7.7 percent in 2020-21, as compared to a growth of 4.2 percent in 2019-20. This contraction in
GDP growth is mainly attributed to the contraction in industry and services sector. The growth of Gross Value Added
(GVA) at constant (2011-12) basic prices is estimated to contract by 7.2 percent in 2020-21, as compared to a growth of
3.9 percent achieved in 2019- 20. Positive growth in real GVA in agriculture & allied sectors at 3.4 percent in 2020- 21
against 4.0 percent in PE of 2019-20 indicates resilience of rural economic activity to the Covid-19 pandemic. From the
demand side, private consumption expenditure is estimated to contract at 9.5 percent in 2020-21 as against a growth of 5.3
percent in 2019-20 and fixed investment is estimated to decline by 14.5 percent in 2020-21 as against 2.8 percent in 2019-
20. Government consumption final expenditure is estimated to grow at 5.8 percent in 2020-21 as against 11.8 percent in
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2019-20. Exports and imports of goods and services are estimated to contract at 8.3 percent and 20.5 percent (at constant
prices) respectively in 2020-21.

(Sources: https://www.indiabudget.gov.in/doc/frbm1.pdf)
INDUSTRY

Packaging plays a pivotal role in consumers’ experience with respect to the brand and the overall purchasing experience.
There are four major functions of packaging—containment, protection, communication and utility—that are intended to
maximise sales and profits while reducing losses and wastage; and all of them are critical for enhancing consumer
experience. In a traditional brick-and-mortar commerce, packaging was used to create distinction and increase shelf
presence through attractive and easy-to-spot colors, shapes and graphics. When damage is occurred in a brick-and-mortar
store, it was easy for the consumer to keep the damaged product aside and pick an undamaged one placed right next to it.
Loss of product was not necessarily compounded by the loss of sales or customer. In an e-commerce world, however, the
effects of a damaged product are very different. A consumer makes a purchasing decision at the click of a button and to
contend with a damaged product, after delivery wait time, can lead to a conclusive decision against the online retailer. As
per eMarketer, 83% consumers are unlikely to purchase from an online retailer again after a poor experience.

Having realised the impact of their packaging decisions, companies are investing to enhance e-commerce packaging to
meet consumer expectations and positively impact their perceptions and purchasing decisions.

Rise of the Indian e-commerce sector

India has been witnessing a surge in its e-commerce sector over the last 5-6 years. The Indian e-commerce market is
projected to grow to US$ 200 billion by 2026 from US$ 38.5 billion in 2017. This growth is likely to be propelled by an
increase in internet and smartphone penetration and the ongoing digital transformation in the country. After India locked
down in March this year, the e-commerce segment witnessed a momentary decline for a few weeks; however, re-opening
of markets led to recovery and subsequently, an upsurge. Marketplaces as well as direct brand websites witnessed an
overall 130% spike in online orders.

Since June, the sector has recorded massive sales events such as Myntra’s End of Reason Sale, Flipkart’s Independence
Day Sale and Amazon’s Prime Day Sales, boosting order volumes. In fact, recently, Walmart declared (in its latest
earnings report) that Flipkart’s GMV (Gross Merchandising Volume) has exceeded the pre-COVID 19 levels.

Another driving factor for this surge in e-commerce transactions is the emergence of first-time shoppers and the digital-
first approach. Social distancing has led to significant growth of first-time online shoppers. While India’s top 5
metropolitan cities continue to dominate the e-commerce sector, Tier II and III cities have also joined the race with a
rising share of online shoppers. Amazon and Flipkart have gone a step further in supporting this growth in smaller cities
by offering their platform content in local languages.

Surge in e-commerce to continue post pandemic
The post-lockdown numbers indicate a systemic shift in consumer purchasing preferences from offline to online.
Customers are increasingly getting used to the comforts of online shopping.

Local retail outlets (Kirana shops) are also digitising and starting to deliver online to keep up with changing customer
preferences and not lose business to large marketplaces such as Amazon and Flipkart. This is largely adding to the
convenience of customers—in having everything delivered to their doorstep and saving time.

In a post-pandemic scenario, whether consumers go back to their old ways of purchasing or will the comfort, ease and
discounts of online shopping continue to lure them remains a question. Nonetheless, it can be assumed that not all
consumers will switch back to in-store shopping and continue buying online in the near future.

Another point to note is the change towards hygienic living—sanitisation, personal hygiene, social distancing or using
healthy products—as this is expected to have a lasting impact on consumers even after the pandemic.

Mixed impact of e-commerce on the packaging sector

Amid the e-commerce surge, the Indian packaging industry is witnessing steep growth and is one of the strongest growing
segments. According to the Indian Institute of Packaging (IIP), packaging consumption in India increased 200% in the past
decade, from 4.3 kgs per person per annum (pppa) to 8.6 kgs pppa.

The industry is expected to reach US$ 204.81 billion by 2025 from USS$ 50.5 billion in 2019 at 26.7% annually. The e-
commerce segment of the packaging market was estimated at US$ 451.4 million in 2019 and is forecast to reach US$ 975.4
million by 2025 at 13.8% annually.

80



— S

www. dkanterprises.co.in

The packaging sector is categorised into two major segments (by type)—rigid and flexible packaging, with rigid packaging
accounting for 64% market share. In terms of packaging materials, 55% of the sector is dominated by plastics, followed
by paper & cardboard (20%) and glass (10%).

Food processing is the largest consumer of packaging at 45%, followed by pharmaceuticals (25%) and personal care
products (10%). Increasing demand from these end-user segments is creating a huge potential for expansion.

Amid the pandemic, the demand for packaging for groceries, healthcare products and e-commerce transportation has
increased exponentially; but, at the same, the demand for industrial, luxury and sections of B2B-transport packaging has
declined. Some of the key end-user segments will witness mixed impact of the pandemic owing to a sharp increase in
demand for some sub-segments and dip in others. For example:

e Food and beverages packaging: The packaged food and beverages segment is witnessing an upsurge due to a
demand spike for essential food products and shelf-stable foods. Demand from the grocery and dairy product
segments has subsequently fuelled the demand for vacuum packaging, trays and protective films including PVC
film and shelf life-extending modified atmospheric packaging and others. However, demand from offline food
chains including cafes and restaurants, which have been either entirely closed or operating partially, is negatively
impacting the market.

e Transit and Omni channel packaging: Demand for this type of packaging has nosedived in the past few
months due to reduced industrial activity. However, some of the negative impacts have been offset by the spike
in demand from other end-user segments—such as disposable takeaway packaging for food and
pharmaceuticals, and corrugated packaging for e-commerce and grocery deliveries.

e  Consumer packaging: While the demand for packaging continues to be accentuated by the sharp increase in
home deliveries for grocery purchases and other home care products, the demand for non-food, premium/luxury
and non-essential purchases has been hit with stores remaining closed or consumer cut backs on spending.

e Healthcare packaging: Demand for all types of healthcare packaging and related substrates, including flexible
blister foils, pumps, closures and rigid plastics, has soared. Similarly, the demand has also spiralled for
packaging used in dietary supplements such as vitamins and essential supplies needed by consumers in a
pandemic situation.

Packaging: A vital bridge for adapting to change and staying relevant

Since the pandemic, companies have been tweaking their products, marketing strategies and service offerings to cater to
the evolving needs of consumers — highlighting what matters most today — safety, immunity and health. Swiggy, for
instance, introduced a double-layered packaging that keeps food safe and fresh. Similarly, Nature’s Basket switched from
cloth bags to single-use paper bags that can be disposed of immediately after use. Packaged food product companies are
focussing on packaging materials that support longer shelf-life. A few others are updating their packing designs to include
communication around appropriate sanitisation. A few months back, the world was busy shunning single-use plastics;
however, consumers have re-adopted it for better hygiene. Irrespective of the strategy adopted by the company or
consumer, each of that strategy boils down to an impact on packaging.

Packaging is now seen as a key bridge between consumers and brands to effectively communicate that hygiene is
maintained, safety is prioritised and product or service quality is not being compromised.

Packaging already had a pivotal role in consumer buying experience in the e-commerce world. And now, its impact has
even grown bigger. This sector will continue to ride the e-commerce wave long into the future.

(Sources: https://www.ibef.org/blogs/indian-packaging-industry-riding-on-the-e-commerce-wave)
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The following information is qualified in its entirety by, and should be read together with, the more detailed financial
and other information included in the Prospectus, including the information contained in the section titled “RISK
FACTORS” on Page no. 20 of the Prospectus. In this chapter, unless the context requires otherwise, any reference to
the terms “We”, “Us” “DK” and “Our” refers to Our Company. Unless stated otherwise, the financial data in this
section is as per our Restated financial statements prepared in accordance with Accounting Standard set forth in the
Prospectus.

OUR BUSINESS

Our Company was incorporated as “D.K. Enterprises Global Hub Limited” at Panchkula (Haryana) on February 26, 2019,
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 vide certificate of incorporation issued by Registrar of Companies,
Central Registration Centre. Subsequently name of our company was changed to “D.K. Enterprises Global Limited” on
April 4, 2019 vide certificate of incorporation pursuant to change in name issued by Registrar of Companies, Delhi.

We are mainly engaged in manufacturing of Paper Based Packing Material, Self Adheshive Tapes (specialty tapes likes
Masking, Siliconized, Medical and Surface protection Tapes), Laminated Products and flexible Packaging. Our Company
is ISO 9001:2015, 45001:2018 certified company. We have been working almost exclusive with major multinational
corporations in consumer space.

D.K. Enterprises, a proprietorship concern of Mrs. Rekha Bansal running its business since last two decades which was
taken over by our company (including all its movable assets, current assets and liabilities of manufacturing facilities of
Panchkula and Vadodara) at a total consideration of I 200.00 Lakhs (including goodwill of Rs. 162079.48) in terms of
agreement dated May 15, 2019 by issuing 20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each of our company to Mrs. Rekha Bansal.

Our company’s registered office and manufacturing facilities Unit I is located in Panchkula at Haryana and Unit II at
Vadodra in Gujarat. We are proposing to commence manufacturing facilities at Baddi in Himachal Pradesh for
manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Masking/specialty tapes and Laminated Products. We are also proposing to
installed machinery at Vadodara (Unit II) for manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Masking/specialty tapes and
Laminated Products.

At present, our company is also holding 80% stake in partnership firm namely M/s. Satguru Engravures which is engaged
in manufacturing and sale of Soap Stiffners, Soap Wrappers, Banding BOPP Tapes, Laminates etc. and its manufacturing
facilities is located at Khasra No. 619/489, Village Koundi, Tehsil Baddi, Distt. Solan, Himachal Pradesh. Our company
has invested X 312.87 Lakhs (including share of profit to the extent of Rs. 75.87 Lakhs upto FY 2020-21) in M/s. Satguru
Engravures. The turnover of M/s. Satguru Engravures is Rs. 2,666.36 Lakhs and profit after tax is Rs. 90.28 Lakhs for the
financial year ended March 31, 2021.

Our Company has robust growth and improvement in top line and bottom line on standalone basis in the past Financials
years which is explained below:

(X In Lakhs)

Particulars June 30, 2021 FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19
Revenue from

Operations 1239.53 4499 .85 3297.39 0.00
Other Income 38.06 48.46 28.69 0.00
Total Revenue 1277.59 4548.32 3326.08 0.00
Profit Before Tax 107.42 250.44 158.60 0.00
Profit After Tax 90.29 199.18 124.71 -

. sankvo
We are using trademark '

Rekha Bansal.

” taken on licenses basis for a period of 5 years from our promoter Mrs.
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OUR PRODUCTS

CINTHOL

ORIGINAL

Easy Release Tapes/Soap Banding
Tapes — These tapes are used for
romotional Marketing in soap Packs
rinted as per customer requirements.

Self Adhesive BOPP Tapes

Surface Protection Tapes
Siliconized Tapes
Promotional BOPP Tapes

e Plain/Printed BOPP Tapes
e Printed BOPP Tapes

e  Masking Tapes

e Medical Tapes

e Tamper Evident Tapes

L]

L]

L]

[Corrugated Boxes

Boxes need to contain the product from

anufacturing through distribution to sale
and sometimes end-use. Boxes provide
some measure of product protection by
hemselves but often require inner
components such as cushioning, bracing
and blocking to help protect fragile
contents. One of the important functions
of a corrugated box is to provide crush
esistance  (product protection) and
adequate strength for stacking in
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|C0rrugated Sleeve Rolls

[Corrugated fiberboard is a material
consisting of a fluted corrugated sheet and
one or two flat linerboards. It is made on
"flute lamination ~ machines" or
"corrugators" and is used for making
cardboard boxes. The corrugated medium
sheet and the linerboard(s) are made of
aft containerboard, a paperboard
aterial usually over 0.01 inches (0.25
m) thick. Corrugated fiberboard is
sometimes called corrugated cardboard,
although cardboard might be any heavy
aper-pulp based board.
ry Lamination +  Extrusion
Lamination

II—]eat sealable Laminates for Mosquito
epellant coils

Iliopier Paper, Masala Liners, Chips,
oodles etc.

Soap Wrappers with full coating &
[Registered Hot melt coating.

|Paper based packing material

[Flexible Packing.
|Extrusion Coated Lamination

Soap Stiffners of various GSMs ~

Sandwich Lamination Products
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LOCATION
Location Total Area Usage Purpose
1000 Square| > Registered office and Manufacturing
Meteres facilities Unit — I.
v" Manufacturing of Easy Release/Soap
. Banding tape,
Plot No. 235, Industrial Area Phase- 2, v Promotional/Advertising Shelf Strip

Panchkula, Haryana Tapes,

v Clear/Printed Bopp Tape,

v" Masking / Speciality Tape,

v Laminated Products

6421 Square meter | > Manufacturing facilities Unit — II
v" Corrugated Box

v Sleeve Roll, Tray & Sheets

Survey No. 1, Vill Mahuvad, Padra
Vadodra-391440 Gujarat

Our Subsidiary Partnership Firm M/s. Satguru Engravures Plant Location

Location Total Area Usage Purpose
Khasra No. 619/489, Village Koundi,
Tehsil Baddi, Distt. Solan, Himachal

» Manufacturing and sale of :
v" Soap Stiffners,

Pradesh 2,790 Sqr Mtr v Soap Wrappers,
And v Banding BOPP T
Khasra No. 487, Village Koundi, Tehsil anee e
Laminates

Baddi, Distt. Solan, Himachal Pradesh

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

1. Experienced Promoters management team

Our promoters have been actively involved in the business from continues personal attention. The combined experience of
our promoters is of more than 50 years. Further, our management has adequate and rich experience in our line of business.
We believe that experience and their understanding of our industry will enable us to continue to take advantage of both
current and future market opportunities. Our Company is having a number of experienced staffs. There is a good
communication system between all the levels of management level i.e. from top level management to bottom level. Our
Management’s experience and knowledge enables us to identify new opportunities, rapid respond to market conditions,
and enhances the growth in the business.

2. Long term relationship with MNC’s Customers

We have long term relationship with our customers especially MNC’s like Vodafone Idea, Patanjali Ayurvedic Limited,
Crompton Greaves Consumer Electrical Limited, Godrej, Phonepey, ITC, Amul, etc. Our Company believes that business
is a by-product of relationship. The business model is based on client relationships that are established over period of time
rather than a project-based execution approach. Our Company believes that a long-term client relationship with large
clients fetches better dividends. Long-term relations are built on trust and continuous maintaining of the requirements of
the customers. It forms basis of further expansion for our Company, as we are able to monitor a potential product/ market
closely.

3. Infrastructure and Integrated capabilities to deliver quality Products

We are in requirement of new machinery and we need to be updated with the new technology, with our updated staff
members and customer demand we do updation as and when required. Our aim is to continuously earn customer's trust
and confidence through personal attention, and hence the output of the product as per customer requirement is the foremost
thing which shall be considered and attended through technology mode. We believe in providing quality products to our
customers. We are devoted to quality assurance. The quality checks ensure that no defective products reached the customer
and ensure reduced process rejection. We believe that our quality products have earned us a goodwill from our customers,
which has resulted in customer retention and order repetition also new addition to the customer base. Further, Our Company
is ISO 9001:2015,45001:2018 certified company. We provide products with competitive rates. We have developed internal
procedure of checking the products at each stage of production right from receipt of raw material to dispatch of our
products. Our Company focuses on consistently delivering qualitative products, thereby building customer loyalty for our
product.
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4. Provide customized packaging solution as per client requirements

We have high level of knowledge about the needs of customers, resulting from continuous two -way communication
between our representatives and customers. We have been engaged in the business by providing customized product as
per the respective requirement of the customer. The wide variety of products enables us to cater our customer taste and
preference. Also, we have well established systems and procedures for staffing and the implementation of current and long
term objectives so we will able to market our products more effectively.

SWOT ANALYSIS

«Sufficient Installed — *Rising of Raw
Capacity Material Cost

*Experienced * Capital Intensive
Management Industry

Locational Advantage

Strengths Weaknesses

m

Threats

*Economical and A / . * Expanding new
Political scenario in N ; geographical Markets
the country NG *Increase in Product

Range

OUR BUSINESS STRATEGY

1. Optimal Utilization of Resources

Our company constantly endeavours to improve our production process, skill up gradation of workers, modernization of
plant and machineries to optimize the utilization of resources. We regularly analyse our material procurement policy and
manufacturing process to de-bottle neck the grey areas and take corrective measures for smooth and efficient working
thereby putting resources to optimal use.

2. Quality Assurance

Our Company is dedicated towards quality of our products which has helped us to maintain long term relations with our
customers and has also facilitated us to entrench with new customers. Our Quality Assurance department ensures our
products comply with quality standards. We perform tests and inspections on finished products and then supply them to
the customers. Each consignment from our company is passed through tests and inspections as a part of our commitment
to quality.

3. Expand Product Portfolio

Our Company has a varied product base to cater to the requirements of our customers. Our Product Portfolio includes
diversified variety of which are customized corrugated box packing, printing on corrugated box which are used in various
industries. Our products which include Easy Release Tapes/Soap Banding Tapes, Self Adhesive BOPP Tapes,
Plain/Printed BOPP Tapes, Printed BOPP Tapes, Masking Tapes, Medical Tapes, Tamper Evident Tapes, Surface
Protection Tapes, Siliconized Tapes, Promotional BOPP Tapes, Dry Lamination + Extrusion Lamination, Extrusion
Coated Lamination are widely used majorly in all type of Industry/Sector. Our range of products allows our existing
customers to source most of their product requirements from a single vendor and also enables us to expand our business
from existing customers, as well as address a larger base of potential new customers.
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4. To set up new Project at Baddi

At present, our unit I is set up and located in Panchkula at Haryana having installed capacity of manufacturing of Easy
Release/Soap Banding Tape, Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Laminated Products, Promotional/ Advertising Shelf Strip Tapes
of 800, 600, 350, 120 and 100 MT per annum respectively. Our company’s Unit IT at Vadodra in Gujarat having installed
capacity of manufacturing Corrugated boxes and Sleeve roll, Tray and Sheet of 1800 MT per annum and 3600 MT per
annum respectively. We are proposing to commence manufacturing facilities at Baddi in Himachal Pradesh for
manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Masking/specialty tapes and Laminated Products. We are also proposing to
installed machinery at Vadodara (Unit II) for manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Masking/specialty tapes and
Laminated Products.

87



— S

www. dkanterprises.co.in

PROCESS FLOW CHART OF BOPP TAPE
|

Tnks || BOPP Film H BOPP Adhesive ‘

¥ ¥ l

INCOMING MATERTAL

BOPP Film GSM and thiciness
g be verified
BOPP Film and Ink Adhesive coating thickness to
If Rejected) be-Checked
Inspection
Recheck) If Accepted) s BOPP Adhesive
¥ WOPP Film {Charged Layer) ﬂSpBCﬁOﬂ
Keep rejected If Rejected)
matenalaside and
bring in fresh matenal . -
c Printing Machine I£ Accepted)
Recheck)
Printing as -
per approved Sample Prnted BOPP
Film h 4
L4 Keep rejected
Adhestve Coating Machine BOPP Adhesive Q‘ﬂlFﬂ={|35IdE and_
* bring in fresh material

Tape Jumbo
Rolls

Slitting Machine

Slitting Rolls to size

Re-sorting, packing
Storage & Dispatch
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Manufacturing Process- Soap Wrapper

Lamimation Adhesive I PET Film | Inks | Poster Paper I PEG | HiA
INCOMING MATERIAL /
1. PET Film G5M and
PET Film and Ink {if thickness to be verjfied
poster Paper + PEG applicable) 1. Poster Paper G50 to be
- vergfiod

Inspection
(If Rejactad)

LI Accepted) ""\--..._\_

Inspectic
Brinting o0 per

approved somple

IRecheckl (IF Accepted)

{If Rejacted)

= - Frinting Machine
PEG Coating Machine/as per
S0P

Printed/Unprinte foe . o) {Recheck] I

d substrate

Keep rejected materiz]
aside and bring in fresh
material

(IF Accepted)

(I Rejacted)

P— f Lamination Adhesive
Lamination Machine i (Check

(If Rejected) Lm!‘?:l..ﬂﬁoﬂ
Adhezive

Laminated Jumbo
Rolls
HMA  Coating &5 per

Registered Hot Melt Coating Machine customer KLD; check gsm

¥=ep rejected material
aside and bring in fresh
matgrial
T

¥
Slitting Machine

|Slitting Rolls 1o size
v

Re-zorting, packing,
Storage & Dispatch
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Manufacturing Process- Extrusion Coating Laminated paper

Paper LDPE 1070LALT

Incoming Miaterial

P md LDEE 1. Paper GEMand ARSRw
apar -
1OTOLALT beverifisd

If Rejected )

Anti Eyngla Chemical

1

Rechedk) {IF Accepted

¥ Pameer {to e coated inside)
Eeep nejected
meaterial aside and

Extruzion Coating Lamination

M pul
g sl

IF Rejected

bring in fresh material

Nlachin= If Acocpied)
Recheck)
Coating as per desived Wpsly mt
Coart weizht LDPE coated o i
Plain papsr -
h Keep rejected
Anchor Coatine Machins Miwine Tank meaterial aside and
= . = Birimg in fresh meaterial
fumba Foolls of Apt fingal
i ffemear
5litting hlachine

Slitting Fooll: to size

Fe-sorting, packins, Storagd
& Dispatch
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Manufacturing Process — Sleeve Rolls

Re-cycled Craft Paper
Inner Layer

| Paper || Ink ‘
¥ ¥ Agro Gum
INCOMING MATERIAL —
1
‘white Paper
Inspection

NOT OK

Reject in
incoming

| ok ‘ | ‘White Paper I{’.‘-nt-:-rl.ai:ll—‘

Insp

Printing Machine

Printed Papar

Paper GEME.F to be
verffied

GLM Fiscozify ro be
checked

FPringing as per
approved Sompls

MOT QK

Reject in

—* Corrugation Machine

Agro Bazed G

Slitting Rolls to size

2-Ply Corrugated
Jumbea Ralls
¥
Slitting Machine
Re-zorting, Storage &
Dispatch

Manufacturing process (Sleeve Folls):

Tha White Papar iz printed on Fotary hachine to the desired design and specifications.
Thiz slong with re-cycled Eraft paper & Gum iz fed to the comugation Mic. The jumbo
Foollz of desired thickmess & specifications are made. Then the Tumbo Folls are cut to

*incoming

dezivad width & laneth af amall ralls Tha ralls ara resnrtad & readv for dianatch
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Manufacturing Process — Corrugated Boxes

Saper

INCOMIMG BMATERIAL L_'El
& Paper GEMSE Fio be re- vorified. Misterial to b wred, 87
[y ———

X sl Tl i o chooked!

Paper Pragar Mizieg of GLAS

| Cormuaation Fachine |

Flufd fkeizkridsr for & rceifidedd

2-Ply Cofrugation

k.

| Shgesgs Machine |'-—

|2 Ply Sheet ta slze |
k4 A ¢
Paatizg fe b chdekad & fhd Eeiriirgh &
Gum Sdixing Gum Coating & Inspection in “\? » Saprimning &
Preparation Pasting M ey Foowbe Raills

3-Ply Printed Shest 1o Sine

L3

| Printing flachine and Cutting |

l

3. Frintng ax per gajpge of aooroved Sample

| Creasing & Slotting [R5

l | Baom for Stapling
_| stapling "_l Marmfacioring Preose
Tars Fapsr soch of the doured guality, & 5M
1L & Width of papor, doponding om the bow o bo

mamefactarsd, =7s fod ts the sserapstisn Mis
The cwtpot & taken to the shostar, which oots
ths tws ply sssragstism  dmts  ahestn =d
1 apocificd  length. Faper of samec length &

width @ sl =ot =m the whosten Bath,
serrogatizm ahest (Iphd & peper ahost anc d=d

Bom Drying M fc
L H Maisiure conbent s >15%)

Re-zorting, Storage &
Dispatch

to ths ing MU= It tu #t imbs 3-Flhy
ahoct. After drdng, thess aheosts oz fod te
primting M=

The primtcd soevagatsd ahostn anc fod t= RS-
4, whith dc=u the Togoiwsd  oeswimg  and
alstting. The swotpot fromm thi Mz & czmplcts
Bz, which @ piappicd'peatsd  snd the beow @
mendy

The bomoy a7z packsd in bondloy & sy for
Zapeth

CAPACITY AND CAPACITY UTILIZATION

We are having manufacturing and processing unit at Plot No. 235, Industrial Area Phase- 2, Panchkula, Haryana and at
Survey No. 1, Vill Mahuvad, Padra Vadodra-391440 Gujarat for manufacturing of paper based packing, self Adhesive
BOPP Tapes and Laminated Pouches and products. The details of installed and capacity utilization product wise is given
here below table:
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FY 2018-19 FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21
Instal Instal Instal
led led led
Capa Capa Capa
Name of city city city
Products No. of No. of No. of No. of No. of No. of
Units Units | % of Units Units % of Units Units % of
Manufactu (M.T | Install Manufactu | (M.T Install Manufactu | (M.T Install
red per ed red (M.T per ed red per ed
(M.T per Annu | Capaci per Annu Capac (M.T per Annu Capac
Annum) m) ty Annum) m ity Annum) m) ity
Panchkula (Unit — I)
Easy
Release/Soap
Banding Tape NA NA NA 401.49 800 50 508 800 63%
Clear/Printed
Bopp Tape NA NA NA 187.38 600 31 448 600 75%
Laminated
Products NA NA NA 221.45 350 63 259 350 74%
Promotional/
Advertising
Shelf Strip
Tapes NA NA NA 65.55 120 55 73 120 61%
MASKING 14.65 32%
Corrugated
Box NA NA NA 1233.09 1800 69 1108 1800 62
Sleeve Roll,
Tray & Sheets NA NA NA 1786.60 | 3600 50 2125 3600 59

Note: a) In the financial year 2019-20, our manufacturing facilities at Panchkula (Unit I) and Vadodara (Unit II) were
operative for 10.5 months, as our company had acquired the running business of D.K. Enterprises (including all its
movable assets, current assets and liabilities of manufacturing facilities of Panchkula and Vadodara) in terms of
agreement dated May 15, 2019. The capacity utilization for the financial year 2019-20 is not capitalized, where as
installed capacity is considered for the full financial year.

PLANT & MACHINERY

Our manufacturing units are equipped with requisite plant and machinery like Roto Gravure Printing, Lamination and
Coating, Tape Coating Machine, Tape Slitter, Tape Shaft Rewinder, Tape Slicer, Automatic Packing Machine,
Rewinding Machine for Tape, 3 Bar Rotary, Sheeter (PIB), Sheet Printing Flexo Machine, Corrugation Machine (B-
Flute), Box Stitching Machine, Roll Slitting Machine, Semi Automatic Flute Laminator, Die Punching Machine, RS4
Slotting Machine.

TECHNOLOGY

Our Company works with a number of niche technologies that are presently available with few convertors across the
country. These include siliconized self-adhesive products, removable adhesive (no residue/clean removal), tamper
evident tapes, UV adhesion promotion coatings, etc.

COLLABORATIONS, ANY PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE OR ASSISTANCE IN MARKETING BY THE

COLLABORATORS

Our Company has not entered into any collaboration, or Performance guarantee or assistance for marketing with any
Company.

MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION ARRANGEMENT
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Our success lies in the strength of our relationship with our customers who have been associated with us for reasonable
continues period. Our Promoter Directors through their experience and good relations with customers owing to timely
and quality delivery of products plays an instrumental role in creating and expanding a work platform for our Company.

We are engaged in the manufacturing of paper-based packaging, self-adhesive BOPP tapes, soap banding tapes, laminated
pouches, extrusion coated lamination and dry laminations. One of the directors Mr. Dhruv Rakesh is directly managing
the marketing segment, which includes cold callings, references and relationship to market the products efficiently. The
management and promoters strive hard to maintain their standards and excellence in service to meet maximum customer
contentment.

Presently, Company mainly focuses on B2B trading, currently drop-shipping to MNC’s like HUL, Godrej, PhonePe,
Amul, Crompton, Greaves, ITC, Vodafone idea, Patanjali etc. Company have been enjoying long-term association with
many of our customers getting orders repeatedly. Company have created their own brand for masking tape in the name of
SANKYO which have huge demand and collected by distributors from our doorstep. Company delivers our goods and
services to PAN India, majorly covering Gujarat, Uttarakhand, Himachal Pradesh, Maharashtra, Tamil Nadu,
Pondicherry, Madhya Pradesh and various other states. We also export our products to Srilanka directly.

Customer satisfaction and the zeal to develop new products keep us going and growing. Promoters continuously work to
provide timely delivery of products with superior quality at marked-down prices. Promoters strongly believe in
accompanying our customers from selecting the design of the product to the final delivery stage.

END USERS

The product manufactured by us is mainly used in packing industry which is used by all industrial and commercial
packaging units.

COMPETITION

We operate in a highly competitive market and there are large numbers of players in organized sector. We operate in the
competitive environment; price is the main factor in most cases for client making decision to have our products. We may
face competition from our peers who have similar one or more division of our business. Competition emerges not only
from small but also from big regional and National and international players. Our experience in this business has enabled
us to provide quality products in response to customer‘s demand for best quality. Moreover, there are minimal entry
barriers in this industry and any expansion in capacity of existing producers would further intensify competition.

UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITIES LIKE RAW MATERIAL, WATER ETC.
RAW MATERIAL

Our major raw material is Kraft Paper, Adhesive, Stiching Wire, Paper Core, Printing Ink, Biaxially Oriented Poly
Propylene Films (BOPP FILM), Paste etc. Raw material are procured from Panchkula, Mohali, Haryana, Delhi, Punjab,
Ludhiana and Uttrakhand.

UTILITIES AND INWATER

Our manufacturing units does not require water in processing/manufacturing process. Water is required for normal human
consumption which is provided by Haryana Shahri Vikas Pradhikara for our unit located at Panchkula and for our unit
located at Vadodara water requirements are suffice by Borewell.

POWER

We require power supply for processing of our products and to meet our requirement, we have been sufficient sanctioned
load for Units located at Panchkula from UHBVN (Uttar Haryana Bijli Vitran Nigam), Genset (Generating Set), Solar
Plant and for units located at Vadodara from MGVCL (Madhya Gujarat Vij Company Limited), Solar Plant.

PACKING

As our company is engaged in paper based packing, consequently, our products are packed in our packing material
manufactured in house. A small machine is used to pack our products in corrugated boxes.

HUMAN RESOURCES
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Human resource is an asset to any industry. We believe that our employees are the key to the success of our business.
Our manpower is a prudent mix of experienced and young personnel which gives us the dual advantage of stability and
growth. Our work processes and skilled resources together with our strong management team have enabled us to
successfully implement our growth plans. As on June 30, 2021, we have the total strength of 40 and 24 Employees
including contract Labours at Panchkula (Unit I) and Vadodara (Unit II) respectively.

Sr. Particulars ‘ Employees
No.
1. | Finance 5
2. | Administration
3. | Production Manager 5
4. | Skilled and Semi Skilled 50
Total 64

Further, we have not experienced any strikes, work stoppages, labor disputes or actions by or with our employees, and
we have cordial relationship with our employees.

LOGISTIC

We exclusively rely on third party transporters for delivery of our products to our customers and also for procurement of
Raw Materials from suppliers.

DETAILS OF IMMOVABLE PROPERTY

The Details of the immobile property taken on lease basis is given here below:

Sr. Name of Name of Description of Area Usage Purpose Rent Tenure
No. |[Lessor Lessee Property

1. [Mrs. D.K. Plot No. 235,]1000 Registered Rs.1,20,000/- PJuly 29, 2021 to
Rekha Enterprises  |Industrial Area |Square office and |(Rupees One |June 28, 2022
Bansal Global Phase- 2, [Meters manufacturing |Lakh Twenty

Limited Panchkula, facilities Thousand
Haryana Only) Per
Unit — 1 Month  plus
GST.

2. |Mrs. D.K. Survey/Block/Plot  [6421 Manufacturing |Rs.1,20,000/- [July 29, 2021 to
Rekha Enterprises  |No. 1, Vill [Square facilities (Rupees One [June 28, 2022
Bansal Global Mahuvad,  Padra meter Lakh Twenty

Limited Vadodra-391440 Unit — 11 Thousand
Gujarat Only) Per
Month  plus
GST.
3. [Mr. Dhruv |D.K. Salasar  Enclave, |[325 Square [Warehouse Rs. 40,000 |February 01, 2020
Rakesh Enterprises  |Guru Nanak |Yard (Rupees Forty |to January 31, 2025
Global Colony, Vijay Thousand
Limited Morthikri, Sub- Only) Per
Tehsil  Zirakpur, Month.
Dist. SAS Nagar
Punjab
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DETAILS OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

The details of intellectual property are as under:

Trademark

Trademark

Type

Class

Trademark

Date of

No. Issuance

Valid Upto

L1 sankyvo

Device

17

3692970

December

02,2017

December 1, 2027

Mrs. Rekha Bansal is owner of the trademark, which she has assigned through on lease basis for a period of 5 years upto
July 29, 2026 though trademark license agreement dated July 30, 2021. Our company is required to pay license fees of ¥

50,000 per annum.

DETAILS OF INDEBTEDNESS

The details of facilities avail from Banks are as follows and for details of other indebtedness please refer the Annexure
A.4.1 of Restated financials statement appearing on page no. 156 of prospectus.

1. Canara
Bank

Sanction
Amount

% 2,75,00,000

Purpose

Cash credit

Amount
o/s as on
June 30,

2021 R
In
Lakhs)

272.98

Interest /

Commission Rate

per annum

One Year MCLR
8.40%(now) +
2.75%=11.15%
p.a

Security/Margin

Primary:

Stock and Book
debts-100%

Entire Plant and
machinery of Unit
I and II — Value X
277.71 lacs.

Collateral Security

1) Continuing EMT
of Commercial
property having
market value of Rs.
497.56 Lakhs
|situated at  Plot
IN0.235, Industrial
Area, Phase I,
Panchkula

measuring of 1000
Sq. Mt in the name
of Mrs. Rekha
Bansal (Proprietor).

2) Continuing EMT
of Commercial
property having
market value of Rs.
87.98 lakhs situated
at Khewat/ Khatoni
106/122, Khasra, no

619/489, Hadbast
180, village,
Koundi, Tehsil

Period &
Repaymen
t Schedule

Working
capital to
be
repayable
on
demanded
and term
loan as per
Repayment
Schedule.
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Sanction
Amount

Amount
o/s as on

P
urpose June 30,

Interest /
Commission Rate

per annum

2021 R
In
Lakhs)

Security/Margin

Baddi, District
Solan, Himachal
Pradesh in the name
of M/s. Satguru
Engravures

3) Continuing EMT
of DSS booth no. 8,
Market-4 (Double
Story) of Block 6,
marla, admeasuring
360.00Sq.ft in
Amravati Enclave
near Panchkula
measuring 28 Sq
Yds. having
valuation of Rs.
34.60 Lakhs Stands
in the names of
Smt. Rekha Bansal.

4) Fresh Emt, of
Land measuring 1
Bigha 17 biswa

comprised in
Hadbast  no,181,
khasra no. 487
Situated in Vill
Kaundi, The-
Baddi, Dis-Salon,

Himachal Pradesh.
(Rs. 75.00 Lakhs as
per agreement to
sale executed on
11.07.2019 (to be
mortgaged  after
execution of sale
deed).

Personal
Guarantees  given
by Shri Rakesh
Kumar, Smt. Rekha
Bansal, Shree
Dhruv Rakesh,
M/S. Satguru
Engravures.

Period &

Repaymen
t Schedule

Canara
Bank

a) Working
Capital
Demanded
Loan
27,50,000

To Meet
liquidity
mismatches
arising out
of COVID-
19
Outbreak

8.05%

1681 (RLLR+0.75)

Primary: Stock of
Rs. 381.92 lacs

Book Debts:
445.67 lacs as on
February 28, 2020

Collateral Security:

24 Months
and
Moratoriu
mof 6
months.

A
Moratoriu
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Amount
Sanction o/s as on

Purpose v
Name of Amount P June 30, Interest /
Commission Rate

per annum

Bank 2021 R
In
Lakhs)

Security/Margin

1) Continuing EMT
of Commercial
property having
market value of Rs.
497.56 Lakhs
situated at  Plot
INo0.235, Industrial
Area, Phase I,
Panchkula
measuring of 1000
Sq. Mt in the name
of Mrs. Rekha
Bansal (Proprietor)

2) Continuing EMT
of Commercial
property having
market value of Rs.
87.98 lakhs situated
lat Khewat/Khatoni
106/122, Khasra, no
619/489, Hadbast

180, village,
Koundi, Tehsil
Baddi, District
Solan, Himachal

Pradesh in the name
of M/s. Satguru
Engravures

3) Continuing EMT
of DSS booth no. 8§,
Market-4 (Double
Story) of Block 6,
marla, admeasuring
360.00Sq.ft in
Amravati Enclave
near Panchkula
measuring 28 Sq
Yds. having
valuation of Rs.
34.60 Lakhs Stands
in the names of Smit.
Rekha Bansal

4) Fresh Emt, of
Land measuring 1
Bigha 17 biswa
comprised in
Hadbast no,181,
khasra no. 487
Situated in Vill
Kaundi, The-Baddi,
Dis-Salon,

Period &
Repaymen
t Schedule

m of 6
months
from the
date of
disburseme
nt is
provided
thereafter
repayment
in 18 equal
monthly
installment
s of Rs.
1,52,778/-
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Amount

Sanction o/s as on .
Name of Amount Purpose Interest / Period &

June 30, Commission Rate | Security/Margin | Repaymen

Bank 20111 (K per annum t Schedule

Lakhs)

Sr. No.

Himachal Pradesh.
(Rs. 75.00 Lakhs as
[per agreement to
|sale executed on
11.07.2019 (to be
mortgaged after
execution of sale
deed)

Personal Guarantees

given by  Shri

Rakesh Kumar, Smt.

Rekha Bansal, Shree

Dhruv Rakesh, M/S.

Satguru Engravures.
1) Primary
Security

For Working
capital Limits

Stock & Book
debts of  the
Company (Unit I
& Unit IT) Stock of
Rs. 389.80 Lakhs
and Book debts of
Rs. 422.37 Lakhs.

Working

Capital For Term Loan 12 months
Tem? Loan moratoriu
under Entire Plant and | m from the
GECL 7.50% machinery of Unit i %:te of
3. Canara Scheme to RLLR+0.60 _ | I'and Unit II (Both | disburseme
anara 1 2 16,20,000 o 16.20 (Cumm I)(LLR Existing a5 wll a3 ntgnd f6
O . a
liquidity being 6.90% future) qu
mismatch . Mtoﬁthly t
arising out Collateral for | ' af gen
of Covid- Working  Capital 542 003‘
19 outbreak and Term Loan >

1) Continuing EMT
of Commercial
[property having
market value of Rs.
497.56 Lakhs
|situated at  Plot
(No0.235, Industrial
Area, Phase 1I,
Panchkula
measuring of 1000
Sq. Mt in the name
of Mrs. Rekha
Bansal (Proprietor)
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Amount
o/s as on

P
urpose June 30,

Period &
Repaymen

t Schedule

Interest /
Commission Rate
per annum

Security/Margin

2021 R
In
Lakhs)

2) Continuing EMT
of Commercial
property having
market value of Rs.
87.98 lakhs situated
at Khewat/Khatoni
106/122, Khasra, no

619/489, Hadbast
180, village,
Koundi, Tehsil
Baddi, District
Solan, Himachal
Pradesh in the name
of M/s. Satguru
Engravures

3) Continuing EMT
of DSS booth no. 8§,
Market-4  (Double
Story) of Block 6,
marla, admeasuring
360.00Sq.ft in
Amravati  Enclave
near Panchkula
measuring 28 Sq
Yds. having
valuation of Rs.
34.60 Lakhs Stands
in the names of Smt.
Rekha Bansal

4) Fresh Emt, of
Land measuring 1
Bigha 17 biswa
comprised in
Hadbast no,181,
khasra no. 487
Situated in  Vill
Kaundi, The-Baddi,
Dis-Salon,
Himachal Pradesh.
(Rs. 75.00 Lakhs as
per agreement to
|sale executed on
11.07.2019 (to be
mortgaged after
execution of sale
deed)

Personal

Guarantees given
by Shri Rakesh
Kumar, Smt.
Rekha Bansal,
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Amount
Sanction o/s as on
P | .
Name of Amount urpose June 30, Int.er_est/ ' . Period &
Sr. No. Commission Rate | Security/Margin | Repaymen
Bank 2021 R ;
In per annum t Schedule
Lakhs)
Shree Dhruv
Rakesh and Miss
Kanika Rakesh
Corporate
Guarantees of M/s.
Satguru
Engravures

For further details of financial indebtedness please refer Annexure A.4.1 of restated standalone financial statement and
restated consolidated financial statement appearing on page no.189 and 156 of this Prospectus repectively.

INSURANCE

Presently, our Company has taken following Insurance Policy to insure its Assets.
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On the risks of
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said to contain
all
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Policy No.

Sum
Assured

R in Lakh)

Premiu
m Paid
(in %)

kinds of
finished goods
such as BOPP
o S | Tres B f
gﬁifid fsng)gt:fl Marine 9,202 | _Promotional 38 00?00 00 ;6&05;/ _
S Cargo | 1to | Tapes, Masking | 1102002121P10563 el Y oIx
Insurance | Limited . 0/-( Thirty | Thousan
Open | Septe | Tapes, Tissue 0668 . .
Company - . Eight Crore d Fifty
. Policy | mber Tapes, Heat
Limited Panchkula Only) One
Unit 8,202 | Sealable films, Only)
2 All kinds of Y
Flow Wraps,
laminates
& other similar
nature of stocks
pertaining to
the insured as
trade
Material
pertaining to
the insured
trade including
papers
STAN adhesives, ink, 3 18,644
Dk DARD films, printing (Eightee
. Octob .
. Enterpris | FIRE rollers whilst n
United er 19,

India es Global | AND 2020 stored &/or % Thousan
Insurance Limited | SPECI to lying &/or kept | 1102001120P10812 | 1,00,00,000 d Six
Compan Salasar, AL Octob at above said 0590 (One Crore | Hundred

. p Y Mohali PERIL address, Only) and

Limited R er 18, .
Punjab S 2021 belonging to Forty
POLIC the above Four
Y mentioned Only)
insured, built of
non kutcha
construction
being used as
godown
Octob . 33540
United Burglar | er 19, Stock in Trade % (Three
India Dk 2020 | O Goods in the 1,00,00,000 | Thousan
Enterpris M custody of the 1102001220P10812 N .
Insurance Standar to /-(Rupees d Five
es Global Insured - 0997
Company . d Octob One crore | Hundred
. Limited . Other general
Limited policy | er 18, oods only) Forty
2021 & only)
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material, stocks
in process &
other
similar nature
of stocks Lying
&/or
stored &/or
kept at above
address

3
15,00,0000(
Rupees
. Fifteen 3
United f ) Lakhs only) | 82,600(
. Dk Bharat
United Enterpris | Sooksh 16, Plant and Rupees
India P 2021 Floater Machiner Eighty
es Global ma 1102001121P10147
4. | Insurance .. to Cover(Stock of 320,00,000( Two
Limited- | Udyam . 6764
Company . May | all description) Rupees Thousan
. Unit- Suraks .
Limited Vadodara ha 15, Twenty d Six
Polic 2022 lakhs only) | Hundred
Y Cardboard Only)
Box
Manufacturi
ng
To extent of
%2,00,00,000/-
on
the risk of
entire stocks of
raw
material
including
paper, films,
adhesives, inks,
finished
& semi-
Dk May | finished stocks 32950
Iﬁgizd Enterpris | BUelar 21)62’1 S 111;"1‘5?1‘“5 %2,00,00,00 TI(ITWO
es Global Y CH-adhiesve 1 1102001221P10147 | 0 (Rupees ousan
5. | Insurance o Standar to tapes, d Nine
Limited- . 8025 Two Crores
Company . d May laminates, Hundred
. Unit- . only) .
Limited Vadodara policy 15, corrugated Fifty
2022 boxes, card only)
board
boxes, Rolls,
Packing

EXPORTS & EXPORTS OBLIGATIONS

As on the date of this Prospectus, our Company does not have any Export Obligation.

As on date we export directly to Srilanka. For the details of Export Sales of our Company, please refer to “Annexure — K
under the Chapter titled “RESTATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION” on Page no. 203 of this Prospectus.
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KEY INDUSTRY REGULATIONS

The statements produced below are based on the current provisions of Indian law, and the judicial and administrative
interpretations thereof, which are subject to change or modification by subsequent legislative, regulatory, administrative
or judicial decisions and may not be exhaustive, and are only intended to provide general information to investors and
is neither designed nor intended to be a substitute for professional legal advice. The information detailed in this Chapter
has been obtained from the various legislations, including rules and regulations promulgated by the regulatory bodies
and the bye laws of the respective local authorities that are available in the public domain.

We are subject to a number of Central and State legislations which regulate substantive and procedural aspects of the
business. Additionally, the business activities of our Company require sanctions, approval, license, registration etc. from
the concerned authorities, under the relevant Central and State legislations and local bye-laws. For details of Government
and Other Approvals obtained by the Company in compliance with different regulations, see section titled
“GOVERNMENT APPROVALS” beginning on page no. 219 of this Prospectus. The following description is a summary
of the few relevant regulations and policies as prescribed by the Government of India, and the respective bye laws framed
by the local bodies, and others incorporated under the laws of India.

INDUSTRY SPECIFIC REGULATIONS

The Factories Act, 1948

The Factories Act defines a ‘factory’ to be any premises including the precincts thereof, on which on any day in the
previous 12 months, 10 or more workers are or were working and in which a manufacturing process is being carried on
or is ordinarily carried on with the aid of power; or where at least 20 workers are or were working on any day in the
preceding 12 months and on which a manufacturing process is being carried on or is ordinarily carried on without the aid
of power. State governments prescribe rules with respect to the prior submission of plans, their approval for the
establishment of factories and the registration and licensing of factories.

The Factories Act provides that the ‘occupier’ of a factory (defined as the person who has ultimate control over the affairs
of the factory and in the case of a company, any one of the directors) shall ensure the health, safety and welfare of all
workers while they are at work in the factory, especially in respect of safety and proper maintenance of the factory such
that it does not pose health risks, the safe use, handling, storage and transport of factory articles and substances, provision
of adequate instruction, training and supervision to ensure workers’ health and safety, cleanliness and safe working
conditions.

Legal Metrology Act, 2009

The Legal Metrology Act, 2009 (“L.M. Act”) governs the standards/units/denominations used for weights and measures
as well as for goods which are sold or distributed by weight, measure or number. It also states that any transaction/contract
relating to goods/class of goods shall be as per the weight/measurement/numbers prescribed by the L.M. Act. Moreover,
the L.M. Act prohibits any person from quoting any price, issuing a price list, cash memo or other document, in relation
to goods or things, otherwise than in accordance with the provisions of the L.M. Act. The specifications with respect to
the exact denomination of the weight of goods to be considered in transactions are contained in the Rules made by each
State. The Act also provides Legal Metrology (General) Rules, 2011, which may be followed for due compliance, if the
respective State does not provide for Rules in this regard. State of Maharashtra has prescribed the Maharashtra Legal
Metrology (Enforcement) Rules, 2011 for due compliance.

Bureau of Indian Standards Act, 2016 (the “BIS Act”)

BIS Act was notified on March 22, 2016 and came into effect from October 12,2017. The BIS Act establishes the Bureau
of Indian Standards (BIS) as the National Standards Body of India. The BIS Act has enabling provisions for the
Government to bring under compulsory certification regime any goods or article of any scheduled industry, process,
system or service which it considers necessary in the public interest or for the protection of human, animal or plant health,
safety of the environment, or prevention of unfair trade practices, or national security. The BIS Act also allows multiple
type of simplified conformity assessment schemes including self-declaration of conformity against a standard which will
give simplified options to manufacturers to adhere to the standards and get certificate of conformity. The BIS Act enables
the Central Government to appoint any authority/agency, in addition to the BIS, to verify the conformity of products and
services to a standard and issue certificate of conformity. Further, there is also a provision for repair or recall, including
product liability of the products bearing standard mark but not conforming to the relevant Indian Standard.
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LAWS RELATING TO SPECIFIC STATE WHERE ESTABLISHMENT IS SITUATED

Haryana MSME Policy 2019

Vision Statement of Haryana MSME Policy, 2019 is creating globally competitive and locally relevant MSMEs in
Haryana” with objective to promote balanced regional development through geographical dispersal of industry, to
increase competitiveness of MSMEs through cluster development and adoption of quality manufacturing practices,
Facility MSME in accessing domestic and export market, to provide conducive eco-system for promotion and growth of
MSME:s in the thrust sectors of Haryana, to provide access finance to MSMEs, to promote entrepreneurship through
startup and incubation support, to support revival of sick enterprise and to enhance competitiveness through ease of doing
business.

To achieve the overall policy objectives, an enabling environment for MSMEs in the state needs to be created. In line
with the objectives stated in the Haryana Enterprise Promotion Policy 2015 - ease of doing business, thrust sector growth,
geographical dispersal of industries as well as the capacity building and promotional outreach; a holistic policy
framework is being laid out. This policy also aligns itself with major national initiatives like Make in India, Skill India,
Digital India and Start-up India and also takes cognizance of 'Ease of Doing Business' initiatives and reform measures
taken by the Central and State Government.

Department will constitute a committee to review the impact of policy every 3 years to review and revise the policy to
take into consideration the latest changes in the MSME Ecosystem.

Himachal Pradesh Industrial Investment Policy, 2019

Vision statement of Himachal Pradesh Industrial Investment Policy, 2019 is “To create an enabling ecosystem to enhance
the scale of economic development & employment opportunities; ensure sustainable development & balanced growth of
industrial & service sectors to make Himachal as one of the preferred destination for investment”.

Policy aims to create a congenial investment climate, to address issues impeding industrial growth and ensure
Simplification, key physical and social infrastructure, human resource development, access to credit and market, promote
Ease of Doing Business by digitization of all processes and to promote self-certification, promote MSME sector for
uniform sustainable growth of service and industrial sector throughout the State promote start-ups and entrepreneurship
to create and generate local entrepreneurial base, recognize and encourage the role of large investment to enhance the
scale of economic development and uplift weaker sections of the society.

Policy provides various strategies to achieve objective envisaged as above such as streamlining the process, creating and
up gradation of existing industrial infrastructure, ensuring the availability of quality power, by rationalizing the provisions
of incentives, concessions and facilities, by focusing and providing an ideal eco system to boost startups &
Entrepreneurship, by discouraging polluting industries to create a responsible eco-friendly environment

In Ease of Doing Business (EODB) ranking, the State has improved its implementation score from 65.48% to 94.13% in
2017-18 and also emerged as the fastest growing State in the EODB.

Shops and Establishments Legislations

Under the provisions of local shops and establishments legislations applicable in the states in which establishments are
set up, establishments are required to be registered. Such legislations regulate the working and employment conditions
of the workers employed in shops and establishments including commercial establishments and provide for fixation of
working hours, rest intervals, overtime, holidays, leave, termination of service, maintenance of shops and establishments
and other rights and obligations of the employers and employees. All industries have to be registered under the shops and
establishments legislations of the state where they are located. There are penalties prescribed in the form of monetary
fine or imprisonment for violation of the legislations.

ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS

National Environmental Policy, 2006

The dominant theme of this policy is that while conservation of environmental resources is necessary to secure livelihoods
and well-being of all, the most secure basis for conservation is to ensure that people dependent on particular resources
obtain better livelihoods from the fact of conservation, than from degradation of the resource.

Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 as amended (“EPA”)
EPA provides for the prevention, control and abatement of pollution. Pollution control boards have been constituted in
all states in India to exercise the powers and perform the functions provided for under these statutes for the purpose of
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preventing and controlling pollution. Companies are required to obtain consents of the relevant state pollution control
boards for emissions and discharge of effluents into the environment.

Hazardous and Other Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016 as amended
(“Hazardous Wastes Rules”)

The Hazardous Wastes Rules impose an obligation on every occupier of an establishment generating hazardous waste to
recycle or reprocess or reuse such wastes in a registered recycler or to dispose of such hazardous wastes in an authorized
disposal facility. Every person engaged, inter alia, in the generation, processing, treatment, package, storage and
destruction of hazardous waste is required to obtain an authorization from the relevant state pollution control board for
collecting, recycling, reprocessing, disposing, storing and treating the hazardous waste. The Environmental Impact
Assessment Notification dated September 14, 2006 read with various notifications issued from time to time under the
Environment Protection Act and the Environment (Protection) Rules, 1986, requires prior environmental clearance of the
Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change which impacts the environment in any manner.

Noise Pollution (Regulation & Control) Rules 2000 (“Noise Regulation Rules”)

Noise Regulation Rules regulate noise levels in industrial, commercial and residential zones. The Noise Regulation Rules
also establish zones of silence of not less than 100 meters near schools, courts, hospitals, etc. The rules also assign
regulatory authority for these standards to the local district courts. Penalty for noncompliance with the Noise Regulation
Rules shall be under the provisions of the Environment (Protection) Act, 1986.

Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974

The Water Act was enacted in 1974 in order to provide for the prevention and control of water pollution by factories and
manufacturing industries and for maintaining or restoring the wholesomeness of water. In respect to an Industrial
Undertaking it applies to the (i) Occupier (the owner and management of the undertaking) (ii) Outlet (iii) Pollution and
(iv)Trade effluents. The Act requires that approvals be obtained from the corresponding Pollution Control Boards in the
state.

Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Act, 1971

The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Cess Act, 1971 provides for the levy and collection of cess on water
consumed by persons carrying on certain industries and by local authorities, with a view to augment the resources of the
Central Board and the State Boards for the prevention and control of water pollution constituted under the Water
(Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974.

Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981, as amended (the “Air Act”)

With a view to ensuring that the standards for emission of air pollutants are complied with, the State Government shall,
in consultation with the State Board, give such instructions as may be deemed necessary to the concerned authority and
such authority shall, notwithstanding anything contained in that Act or the rules made thereunder be bound to comply
with such instructions.

The Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991

Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991 provides for public liability insurance for the purpose of providing immediate relief
to the persons affected by accident occurring while handling any hazardous substance and for matters connected therewith
or incidental thereto. It is the duty of the owner to take out one or more insurance policies providing for contracts of
insurance whereby he is insured against liability to give relief.

Plastic Waste Management Rules, 2016

Under the Plastic Waste Management Rules, 2016, all institutional generators of plastic waste, are required to inter alia,
segregate and store the waste generated by them in accordance with the Solid Waste Management Rules, 2016, and
handover segregated wastes to authorized waste processing or disposal facilities or deposition centers, either on its own
or through the authorized waste collection agency.

LABOUR LAWS
The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 (“ESI Act™)

The “ESI Act”, provides for certain benefits to employees in case of sickness, maternity and employment injury. All
employees in establishments covered by the ESI Act are required to be insured, with an obligation imposed on the
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employer to make certain contributions in relation thereto. In addition, the employer is also required to register itself
under the EST Act and maintain prescribed records and registers.

The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (“Gratuity Act”)

The “Gratuity Act” establishes a scheme for the payment of gratuity to employees engaged in every factory, mine, oil
field, plantation, port and Railway Company, every shop or establishment in which ten or more persons are employed or
were employed on any day of the preceding twelve months and in such other establishments in which ten or more
employees are employed or were employed on any day of the preceding twelve months, as notified by the Central
Government from time to time. Penalties are prescribed for non-compliance with statutory provisions.

Under the Gratuity Act, an employee who has been in continuous service for a period of five years will be eligible for
gratuity upon his retirement, resignation, superannuation, death or disablement due to accident or disease. However, the
entitlement to gratuity in the event of death or disablement will not be contingent upon an employee having completed
five years of continuous service. The maximum amount of gratuity payable may not exceed Rs. 1 million.

The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952(“EPF Act”)

The “EPF Act” applies to factories employing over 20 employees and such other establishments and industrial
undertakings as notified by the Government of India from time to time. It requires all such establishments to be registered
with the State provident fund commissioner and requires such employers and their employees to contribute in equal
proportion to the employees’ provident fund the prescribed percentage of basic wages and dearness and other allowances
payable to employees. The EPF Act also requires the employer to maintain registers and submit a monthly return to the
State provident fund commissioner.

Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923

The employment of workers for the Company’s business is regulated by various labour laws, rules and regulations
including the Workmen Compensation Act, 1923. The Workmen Compensation Act, 1923 lays down for liability for
compensation by an employer if a personal injury is caused to any workman during the course of his/her employment.
Further, the Act provides for amount of compensation which the employer is obligated to pay in case of any injury where
death, disablement is caused during the course of employment.

Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 imposes statutory liability upon the employers of every establishment covered under
this Act to pay bonus to their employees. It further provides for payment of minimum and maximum bonus and linking
the payment of bonus with the production and productivity.

Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 provides for payment of equal remuneration to men and women workers and for
prevention of discrimination, on the ground of sex. It states that no employer shall pay to any worker, employed by him
in an establishment or employment, remuneration, whether payable in cash or in kind, at rates less favourable than those
at which remuneration is paid by him to the workers of the opposite sex in such establishment or employment for
performing the same work or work of a similar nature.

Minimum Wages Act, 1948 (“MWA Act”)

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 gives power to appropriate government (Central or State) to fix minimum wages to be
paid to the persons employed in scheduled or non-scheduled employment and the concerned employer is required to pay
the minimum wages, fixed by the appropriate government. Such employer is also required to maintain registers and
exhibits giving the particulars of wages paid to employees.

Child Labour Prohibition and Regulation Act, 1986

The Child Labour Prohibition and Regulation Act 1986 prohibits employment of children below 14 years of age in certain
occupations and processes and provides for regulation of employment of children in all other occupations and processes.

Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

The purpose of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 is to regulate the employment of pregnant women and to ensure that they
get paid leave for a specified period during and after their pregnancy. It provides, inter alia, for paid leave of 12 weeks,
payment of maternity benefits and enacts prohibitions on dismissal, reduction of wages paid to pregnant women, etc.
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Trade Union Act, 1926 and Trade Union (Amendment) Act, 2001

Provisions of the Trade Union Act, 1926 provides that any dispute between employers and workmen or between workmen
and workmen, or between employers and employers which is connected with the employment, or non-employment, or
the terms of employment or the conditions of labour, of any person shall be treated as trade dispute. For every trade
dispute a trade union has to be formed. For the purpose of Trade Union Act, 1926, Trade Union means combination,
whether temporary or permanent, formed primarily for the purpose of regulating the relations between workmen and
employers or between workmen and workmen, or between employers and employers, or for imposing restrictive
condition on the conduct of any trade or business etc.

STATUTORY LEGISLATIONS
The Companies Act, 2013

The consolidation and amendment in law relating to Companies Act, 1956 made a way to enactment of Companies Act,
2013. The Companies Act, 2013, has been introduced to replace the existing Companies Act, 1956 in a phased manner.
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has vide its notification dated September 12, 2013 has notified 98 Sections of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the same are applicable from the date of the aforesaid notification. A further 183 Sections have
been notified on March 26, 2014 and have become applicable from April 1, 2014. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, has
also issued rules complementary to the Companies Act, 2013 establishing the procedure to be followed by companies in
order to comply with the substantive provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Companies Act primarily regulates the financing, functioning and winding up of companies. The Act prescribes
regulatory mechanism regarding all relevant aspects including organizational and financial aspects of companies. In the
functioning of the corporate sector, although freedom of companies is important, protection of the investors and
shareholders, on whose funds they flourish, is equally important. The Companies Act plays the balancing role between
these two competing factors, namely, management autonomy and investor protection.

The act deals with incorporation of companies and the procedure for incorporation and post incorporation. The procedure
relating to winding up, voluntary winding up, appointment of liquidator also forms part of the act. The provision of this
act shall apply to all the companies incorporated either under this act or under any other previous law. It shall also apply
to banking companies, companies engaged in generation or supply of electricity and any other company governed by any
special act for the time being in force.

TAX RELATED LEGISLATIONS

Income Tax Act, 1961

Income Tax Act, 1961 is applicable to every Domestic / Foreign Company whose income is taxable under the provisions
of this Act or Rules made under it depending upon its “Residential Status” and “Type of Income” involved. U/s 139(1)
every Company is required to file its Income tax return for every Previous Year by 30" September of the Assessment
Year. Other compliances like those relating to Tax Deduction at Source, Fringe Benefit Tax, Advance Tax, Minimum
Alternative Tax and like are also required to be complied by every Company.

Goods and Service Tax (GST)

Goods and Services Tax (GST) is levied on supply of goods or services or both jointly by the Central and State
Governments. It was introduced as the Constitution (One Hundred and First Amendment) Act 2017 and is governed by
the GST Council. A destination based consumption tax GST would be a dual GST with the center and states
simultaneously levying tax with a common base. The GST law is enforced by various acts viz. Central Goods and Services
Act, 2017 (CGST), State Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 (SGST), Union Territory Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017
(UTGST), Integrated Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017 (IGST) and Goods and Services Tax (Compensation to States)
Act, 2017, The Integrated Goods And Services Tax (Extension To Jammu And Kashmir) Act, 2017, The Central Goods
And Services Tax (Extension To Jammu And Kashmir) Act, 2017 and various rules made there under.

Every person liable to take registration under these Acts shall do so within a period of 30 days from the date on which he
becomes liable to registration. The Central/State authority shall issue the registration certificate upon receipt of
application. The Certificate shall contain fifteen digit registration numbers known as Goods and Service Tax Identification
Number (GSTIN). In case a person has multiple business verticals in multiple locations in a state, a separate application
will be made for registration of each and every location. The registered assessee is then required to pay GST as per the
rules applicable thereon and file the appropriate returns as applicable thereon.
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GST has replaced the following indirect taxes and duties at the central and state levels:

Central Excise Duty, Duties of Excise (Medicinal and Toilet Preparations), additional duties on excise — goods of special
importance, textiles and textile products, commonly known as CVD — special additional duty of customs, service tax,
central and state surcharges and cesses relating to supply of goods and services, state VAT, Central Sales Tax, Luxury
Tax, Entry Tax (all forms), Entertainment and Amusement Tax (except when levied by local bodies), taxes on
advertisements, purchase tax, taxes on lotteries, betting and gambling. It is applicable on all goods except for alcohol for
human consumption and five petroleum products.

Exports and supplies to SEZ units and SEZ developers are zero-rated in GST. Zero-rating effectively means that no tax
is payable on exports but the exporter/supplier is entitled to the input tax credit on inputs/input services used in relation
to exports. The exporters have two options for zero rating, which are as follows:

(1) To pay integrated tax on supplies meant to be exported and get refund of tax so paid after the supply is exported.

(2) To make export supplies under a bond or letter of undertaking and claim refund of taxes suffered on inputs and input
services in relation to such exports.

Customs Act, 1962 (the “Customs Act”)

The Customs Act governs among other things, the import and export of goods, determination of rate of duty, tariff
valuation, the manner of payment to authorities, and loading and unloading of goods. The Customs Act also provides for
levy of penalty and/or confiscation of prohibited or dutiable goods. The duties imposed on the import and export of goods
are subject to rates specified under the Customs Tariff Act, 1975. Further, pursuant to the Customs Act, the Department
of Customs appoints ports or airports as customs ports or customs airports and places as Inland Container Depots (ICDs).

GENERAL LEGISLATIONS

The Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996

This act was enacted by Parliament in the Forty-seventh Year of the Republic of India to consolidate and amend the law
relating to domestic arbitration, international commercial arbitration and enforcement of foreign arbitral awards as also
to define the law relating to conciliation and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto. The main objectives
of the Act is to comprehensively cover international and commercial arbitration and conciliation as also domestic
arbitration and conciliation, to make provision for an arbitral procedure which is fair, efficient and capable of meeting
the needs of the specific arbitration, to provide that the arbitral tribunal gives reasons for its arbitral award, to ensure that
the arbitral tribunal remains within the limits of its jurisdiction, to minimise the supervisory role of courts in the arbitral
process, to permit an arbitral tribunal to use mediation, conciliation or other procedures during the arbitral proceedings
to encourage settlement of disputes, to provide that every final arbitral award is enforced in the same manner as if it were
a decree of the court, to provide that a settlement agreement reached by the parties as a result of conciliation proceedings
will have the same status and effect as an arbitral award on agreed terms on the substance of the dispute rendered by an
arbitral tribunal and to provide that, for purposes of enforcement of foreign awards, every arbitral award made in a country
to which one of the two International Conventions relating to foreign arbitral awards to which India is a party applies,
will be treated as a foreign award.

The Competition Act, 2002

The Competition Act, 2002 prohibits anti-competitive agreements, abuse of dominant positions by enterprises and
regulates “combinations” in India. The Competition Act also established the Competition Commission of India (the
“CCI”) as the authority mandated to implement the Competition Act. The provisions of the Competition Act relating to
combinations were notified recently on March 4, 2011 and came into effect on June 1, 2011. Combinations which are
Likely to cause an appreciable adverse effect on competition in a relevant market in India are void under the Competition
Act. A combination is defined under Section 5 of the Competition Act as an acquisition, merger or amalgamation of
enterprise(s) that meets certain asset or turnover thresholds. There are also different thresholds for those categorized as
Individuals and Group. The CCI may enquire into all combinations, even if taking place outside India, or between parties
outside India, if such combination is Likely to have an appreciable adverse effect on competition in India. Effective June
1, 2011, all combinations have to be notified to the CCI within 30 days of the execution of any agreement or other
document for any acquisition of assets, shares, voting rights or control of an enterprise under Section 5(a) and (b) of the
Competition Act (including any binding document conveying an agreement or decision to acquire control, shares, voting
rights or assets of an enterprise); or the board of directors of a company (or an equivalent authority in case of other entities
approving a proposal for a merger or amalgamation under Section 5(c) of the Competition Act. The obligation to notify
a combination to the CCI falls upon the acquirer in case of an acquisition, and on all parties to the combination jointly in
case of a merger or amalgamation.

The Indian Contract Act, 1872
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The Contract Act is the legislation which lays down the general principles relating to formation, performance and
enforceability of contracts. The rights and duties of parties and the specific terms of agreement are decided by the
contracting parties themselves, under the general principles set forth in the Contract Act. The Contract Act also provides
for circumstances under which contracts will be considered as “void” or ‘voidable’. The Contract Act contains provisions
governing certain special contracts, including indemnity, guarantee, bailment, pledge, and agency.

Transfer of Property Act, 1882 (“TP Act”)

The transfer of property, including immovable property, between living persons, as opposed to the transfer property by
operation of law, is governed by the TP Act. The TP Act establishes the general principles relating to the transfer of
property, including among other things, identifying the categories of property that are capable of being transferred, the
persons competent to transfer property, the validity of restrictions and conditions imposed on the transfer and the creation
of contingent and vested interest in the property. Transfer of property is subject to stamping and registration under the
specific statutes enacted for the purposes which have been dealt with hereinafter.

The Indian Stamp Act, 1899

Under the Indian Stamp Act, 1899, stamp duty is payable on instruments evidencing a transfer or creation or
extinguishment of any right, title or interest in immovable property. Stamp duty must be paid on all instruments specified
under the Stamp Act at the rates specified in the schedules to the Stamp Act. The applicable rates for stamp duty on
instruments chargeable with duty vary from state to state. Instruments chargeable to duty under the Stamp Act, which are
not duly stamped are incapable of being admitted in court as evidence of the transaction contained therein and it also
provides for impounding of instruments that are not sufficiently stamped or not stamped at all.

The Registration Act, 1908

The Registration Act, 1908 was passed to consolidate the enactments relating to the registration of documents. The main
purpose for which the Act was designed was to ensure information about all deals concerning land so that correct land
records could be maintained. The Act is used for proper recording of transactions relating to other immovable property
also. The Act provides for registration of other documents also, which can give these documents more authenticity.
Registering authorities have been provided in all the districts for this purpose.

The Specific Relief Act, 1963

The Specific Relief Act, 1963 is complimentary to the provisions of the Contract Act and the Transfer of Property Act,
as the Act applies both to movable property and immovable property. The Act applies in cases where the Court can order
specific performance of a contract. Specific relief can be granted only for purpose of enforcing individual civil rights and
not for the mere purpose of enforcing a civil law. “Specific performance” means Court will order the party to perform his
part of agreement, instead of imposing on him any monetary liability to pay damages to other party.

Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881

In India, cheques are governed by the Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881, which is largely a codification of the English
Law on the subject. The Act provides effective legal provision to restrain people from issuing cheques without having
sufficient funds in their account or any stringent provision to punish them in the event of such cheque not being honoured
by their bankers and returned unpaid. Section 138 of the Act, creates statutory offence in the matter of dishonour of
cheques on the ground of insufficiency of funds in the account maintained by a person with the banker which is punishable
with imprisonment for a term which may extend to two year, or with fine which may extend to twice the amount of the
cheque, or with both.

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“SHWWPPR Act”)
provides for protection against sexual harassment at the workplace to women and prevention and redressal of complaints
of sexual harassment. The SHWWPPR Act defines “Sexual Harassment” to include any unwelcome sexually determined
behavior (whether directly or by implication). “Workplace” under the SHWWPPR Act has been defined widely to include
government bodies, private and public sector organizations, non-governmental organizations, organizations carrying on
commercial, vocational, educational, entertainment, industrial, financial activities, hospitals and nursing homes,
educational institutes, sports institutions and stadiums used for training individuals. The SHW WPPR Act requires an
employer to set up an “Internal Complaints Committee” at each office or branch, of an organization employing at least
10 employees. The Government in turn is required to set up a “Local Complaint Committee” at the district level to
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investigate complaints regarding sexual harassment from establishments where our internal complaints committee has
not been constituted.

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999

Foreign investment in India is primarily governed by the provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999
(“FEMA”) and the rules and regulations promulgated there under. The act aims at amending the law relating to foreign
exchange with facilitation of external trade and payments for promoting orderly developments and maintenance of foreign
exchange market in India. It applies to all branches, offices and agencies outside India owned or controlled by a person
resident in India and also to any contravention there under committed outside India by any person to whom this Act
applies. Every exporter of goods is required to a) furnish to the Reserve Bank or to such other authority a declaration in
such form and in such manner as may be specified, containing true and correct material particulars, including the amount
representing the full export value or, if the full export value of the goods is not ascertainable at the time of export, the
value which the exporter, having regard to the prevailing market conditions, expects to receive on the sale of the goods
in a market outside India; b) furnish to the Reserve Bank such other information as may be required by the Reserve Bank
for the purpose of ensuring the realization of the export proceeds by such exporter. The Reserve Bank may, for the purpose
of ensuring that the full export value of the goods or such reduced value of the goods as the Reserve Bank determines,
having regard to the prevailing market conditions, is received without any delay, direct any exporter to comply with such
requirements as it deems fit. Every exporter of services shall furnish to the Reserve Bank or to such other authorities a
declaration in such form and in such manner as may be specified, containing the true and correct material particulars in
relation to payment for such services.

Regulation of Foreign Investment in India

As laid down by the FEMA Regulations, no prior consents and approvals are required from the Reserve Bank of India,
for Foreign Direct Investment under the automatic route within the specified sectoral caps. In respect of all industries not
specified as FDI under the automatic route, and in respect of investment in excess of the specified sectoral limits under
the automatic route, approval may be required from the FIPB and/or the RBI. The RBI, in exercise of its power under the
FEMA, has issued Foreign Exchange Management (Mode of Payment and Reporting of Non-Debt Instruments)
Regulations, 2019 and Central Government in exercise of its power under the FEMA, has made Foreign Exchange
Management (Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 to prohibit, restrict or regulate, transfer by or issue security to and from
a person resident outside India.

Foreign investment in India is governed primarily by the provisions of the FEMA which relates to regulation primarily
by the RBI and the rules, regulations and notifications there under, and the policy prescribed by the Department of
Industrial Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce & Industry, Government of India The Government of India, from
time to time, has made policy pronouncements on Foreign Direct Investment (“FDI”) through press notes and press
releases. The Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Government of India
(“DIPP”), has issued consolidated FDI Policy Circular of 2020 (“FDI Policy 2020), which, consolidates and supersedes
all previous press notes, press releases and clarifications on FDI Policy issued by the DIPP that were in force. The
Government proposes to update the consolidated circular on FDI policy once every year and therefore, FDI Policy 2020
will be valid until the DIPP issues an updated circular.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY LAWS
The Trademarks Act, 1999 (“Trademarks Act”)

Under the Trademarks Act, a trademark is a mark capable of being represented graphically and which is capable of
distinguishing the goods or services of one person from those of others used in relation to goods and services to indicate
a connection in the course of trade between the goods and some person having the right as proprietor to use the mark. A
‘mark’ may consist of a device, brand, heading, label, ticket, name signature, word, letter, numeral, shape of goods,
packaging or combination of colors or any combination thereof. Section 18 of the Trademarks Act requires that any
person claiming to be the proprietor of a trade mark used or proposed to be used by him, must apply for registration in
writing to the registrar of trademarks. The trademark, once applied for and which is accepted by the Registrar of
Trademarks (“the Registrar”), is to be advertised in the trademarks journal by the Registrar. Oppositions, if any, are
invited and, after satisfactory adjudications of the same, a certificate of registration is issued by the Registrar. The right
to use the mark can be exercised either by the registered proprietor or a registered user. The present term of registration
of a trademark is 10 (ten) years, which may be renewed for similar periods on payment of a prescribed renewal fee.

The Copyright Act, 1957 (" Copyright Act")

The Copyright Act governs copyrights subsisting in original literary, dramatic, musical or artistic works, cinematograph
films, and sound recordings, including computer programmes, tables and compilations including computer databases.
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Software, both in source and object code, constitutes a literary work under Indian law and is afforded copyright protection
and the owner of such software becomes entitled to protect his works against unauthorised use and misappropriation of
the copyrighted work or a substantial part thereof. Any such acts entitle the copyright owner to obtain relief from a court
of law including injunction, damages and accounts of profits. Further, copyright registration is not a prerequisite for
acquiring or enforcing a copyright in an otherwise copyrightable work and once registered, copyright protection remains
valid until expiry of 60 years from the demise of the author. Reproduction of a copyrighted software for sale or hire or
commercial rental, offer for sale or commercial rental, issuing copy(ies) of the computer programme or making an
adaptation of the work without consent of the copyright owner amount to infringement of the copyright. However, the
Copyright Act prescribes certain fair use exceptions which permit certain acts, which would otherwise be considered
copyright infringement.

OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS
Other Laws

In addition to the above, our Company, being corporate entity, is governed by all the statutes enacted in India and it
requires to comply all such statutes to the extent applicable.

Laws Applicable For Operations outside India
Our Company operates in various jurisdictions, including through our Subsidiary. The relevant laws in these jurisdictions

are applicable to our Subsidiaries, which relate to incorporation or registration as applicable, labour, immigration,
intellectual property, data protection, and other business related laws.
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HISTORY AND CERTAIN CORPORATE MATTERS

COMPANY’S BACKGROUND

Our Company was incorporated as “D.K. Enterprises Global Hub Limited” at Panchkula (Haryana) on February 26, 2019,
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 vide certificate of incorporation issued by Registrar of Companies,
Central Registration Centre. Subsequently name of our company was changed to “D.K. Enterprises Global Limited” on
April 4, 2019 vide certificate of incorporation pursuant to change in name issued by Registrar of Companies, Delhi.

We are mainly engaged in manufacturing of Paper Based Packing Material, Self Adheshive Tapes (specialty tapes likes
Masking, Siliconized, Medical and Surface protection Tapes), Laminated Products and flexible Packaging. Our Company
is ISO 9001:2015, 45001:2018 certified company. We have been working almost exclusive with major multinational
corporations in consumer space.

D.K. Enterprises, a proprietorship concern of Mrs. Rekha Bansal running its business since last two decades which was
taken over by our company (including all its movable assets, current assets and liabilities of manufacturing facilities of
Panchkula and Vadodara) at a total consideration of I 200.00 Lakhs (including goodwill of Rs. 162079.48) in terms of
agreement dated May 15, 2019 by issuing 20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each of our company to Mrs. Rekha Bansal.

Our company’s registered office and manufacturing facilities Unit I is located in Panchkula at Haryana and Unit II at
Vadodra in Gujarat. We are proposing to commence manufacturing facilities at Baddi in Himachal Pradesh for
manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Masking/specialty tapes and Laminated Products. We are also proposing to
installed machinery at Vadodara (Unit II) for manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Masking/specialty tapes and
Laminated Products.

At present, our company is also holding 80% stake in partnership firm namely M/s. Satguru Engravures which is engaged
in manufacturing and sale of Soap Stiffners, Soap Wrappers, Banding BOPP Tapes, Laminates etc. and its manufacturing
facilities is located at Khasra No. 619/489, Village Koundi, Tehsil Baddi, Distt. Solan, Himachal Pradesh. Our company
has invested ¥ 312.87 Lakhs (including share of profit to the extent of Rs. 75.87 Lakhs upto FY 2020-21) in M/s. Satguru
Engravures. The turnover of M/s. Satguru Engravures is Rs. 2,666.36 Lakhs and profit after tax is Rs. 90.28 Lakhs for the
financial year ended March 31, 2021.

Our Company has robust growth and improvement in top line and bottom line on standalone basis in the past Financials
years which is explained below:

(X In Lakhs)
Particulars JUNE 30, 2021 FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19
Revenue from
Operations 1239.53 4499.85 3297.39 0.00
Other Income 38.06 48.46 28.69 0.00
Total Revenue 1277.59 4548.32 3326.08 0.00
Profit Before Tax 107.42 250.44 158.60 0.00
Profit After Tax 90.29 199.18 124.03 -

REGISTERED OFFICE:

Registered Office of the Company is presently situated at Plot No-235 Industrial Area Phase-2 Panchkula Haryana 134109
India. The Registered office of our Company has not been changed since incorporation:

Date of
Change of .
Registered Registered Office
office
On Plot No-235 Industrial Area Phase-2 Panchkula Haryana 134109 India. Not Applicable
Incorporation

KEY AWARDS, CERTIFICATIONS, ACCREDITATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS

NIL
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AMENDMENTS TO THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION

CHANGE OF NAME
Dateot Particulars Reason
Approval
On . D.K.Enterprises Global Hub Limited Not Applicable
Incorporation
March 20, Name of our company chaneed from In order to broad base the activities of the company and to
2019 pany & enlarge the existing operations and to run the business more

“D.K.Enterprises Global Hub Limited”

{0 “D.K. Enterprises Global Limited”. effectively, economically and efficiently and to make the

name commensurate main object of the company.

CHANGES IN MAIN OBJECT OF THE COMPANY

The following changes have been made in the main object of our Company since its inception

Date of
Approval
On
Incorporation

Particulars

Manufacturing of packaging material

March 20, |1) To carry on the business of Manufacturing of all types of primary & secondary packagings

2019 including paper corrugation, adhesive tapes like can bopp, banding, masking and other speciality
tapes, extruded and other laminates for the soaps and food industry for sale in domestic as well
as foreign territory.

December 1) Manufacturing of Packaging material
31,2020 2) To carry on the business of manufacturing of all types of Primary and Secondary packaging

Materials, including self adhesive tapes like BOPP, Banding, Masking and other speciality tapes,
extrusion lamination and other laminated products for the soaps and food industry and corrugated
rolls and boxes for sale in domestic as well as foreign markets.

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL
The following changes have been made in the Authorized Capital of our Company since its inception:

Date of

Amendment Particulars

On Incorporation Authorized Capital of ¥ 5.00 Lakhs divided into 50000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/-

May 14, 2019 Increased in authorized capital from ¥ 5.00 Lakhs divided in to 50000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/-
each to ¥ 305.00 Lakhs divided in to 3050000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each.

March 01, 2021 Increased in authorized capital from ¥ 305.00 Lakhs divided in to 3050000 Equity Shares of ¥
10/- each to ¥ 750.00 Lakhs divided in to 7500000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each.

April 24, 2021 Increased in authorized capital from X 750.00 Lakhs divided in to 7500000 Equity Shares of X
10/- each to ¥ 751.00 Lakhs divided in to 7510000 Equity Shares of I 10/- each.

MAJOR EVENTS

There no major events in the company since its incorporation except as mentioned below.

Year Key Events/Milestone/ Achievement

2019 Incorporation of our company in the name of D.K.Enterprises Global Hub Limited

2019 Our company completed takeover of Packaging Business Undertaking of M/s. DK Enterprises,
proprietor Mrs. Rekha Bansal, one of the promoter of our company.

2019 Acquisition of 51% Stake in Partnership Firm M/s Satguru Engravures

2021 Increase in stake of our company to 80% in Partnership Firm M/s Satguru Engravures

OTHER DETAILS REGARDING OUR COMPANY
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For information on our activities, services, products, growth, technology, marketing strategy, our standing with reference
to our prominent competitors and customers, location of plants, capacity and capacity utilization, please refer to sections
titled “Business Overview”, “Industry Overview” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions
and Results of Operations” beginning on page nos. 82, 77 and 210 respectively of this Prospectus. For details of our
management and managerial competence and for details of shareholding of our Promoter, please refer to sections titled
“Our Management” and “Capital Structure” beginning on page nos. 117 and 45 respectively of this Prospectus.

RAISING OF CAPITAL IN FORM OF EQUITY OR DEBT

For details regarding our capital raising activities through equity and debt, please see the section entitled “Capital
Structure” and “Restated Financial Statement” on page nos. 45 and 135 respectively of this Prospectus.

DEFAULTS OR RESCHEDULING OF BORROWINGS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS/ BANKS AND

CONVERSION OF LOANS INTO EQUITY

There have been no defaults or rescheduling of borrowings with financial institutions/banks in respect of our current
borrowings from lenders. None of our outstanding loans have been converted into equity shares.

SUBSIDIARIES/HOLDINGS AND JOINT VENTURES OF THE COMPANY

Our company does not have any Subsidiaries/Holdings and Joint Ventures except mentioned below;

Name of Associate Entity M/s Satguru Engravures
Nature of Business Manufacturing and sales of Polycoated Paper, Laminates, Tapes & Specialty Tapes
Capital Structure as on date of
this Prospectus Sr. | Name of Partners Number of Shares | % Profit/ (Loss)
No. Sharing Ratio
L Mr. Dhruv Rakesh NA 16.00%
2 Mr. Rakesh Kumar NA 2.00%
3 Mrs. Rekha Bansal NA 2.00%
4. M/s. D.K. Enterprises o
Global Limited NA 80.00%
Total NA 100.00%
Profit / Sharing Ratio of our | As on date of this prospectus our company is participates in 80.00% of profit and
company losses of M/s Satguru Engravures.

Amount of Accumulated | Our Company became partner in M/s Satguru Engravures via partnership deed dated
profits or losses of the | May 04" 2019. Our company has accounted for all profits and losses of M/s Satguru
subsidiary (ies) not accounted | Engravures as per applicable accounting standard.

for by our company.

Till the date of this prospectus there is no Accumulated profits or losses of the
Associate Entity not accounted for by our company.

RAISING OF CAPITAL IN FORM OF EQUITY

For details of increase in equity capital of our company please refer section “Capital Structure” on page no. 45 of this
Prospectus.

INJUNCTION AND RESTRAINING ORDER

Our company is not under any injunction or restraining order, as on date of filing of this Prospectus.

MANAGERIAL COMPETENCE

For managerial Competence, please refer to the section “Our management” on Page no. 117 of this Prospectus.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS / AMALGAMATIONS / MERGERS/ REVALUATION OF

ASSETS/DIVESTMENT OF BUSINESS/UNDERTAKING IN LAST TEN YEARS

115



I--__

www. dkenterprises.co.in

There has been no Material Acquisitions/Amalgamations/Mergers/Revaluation of Assets/Divestment of
Business/Undertaking in last ten years mentioned except as mentioned below;

Nature Name of Entity Business Activity
1. | Acquisition (Takeover) M/s. D.K. Enterprises, proprietor Mrs. | Manufacturing of Paper
Rekha Bansal based packaging material,
self-adhesive tapes and
laminated products
2. | Acquisition (Investment) M/s Satguru Engravures, Partnership Firm | Manufacturing and sales of
(Profit and Loss Sharing of 51%) Polycoated Paper,
Laminates, Tapes &
Specialty Tapes
3. | Acquisition (Further | M/s Satguru Engravures, Partnership Firm | Manufacturing and sales of
Investment) (Profit and Loss Sharing of 80%) Polycoated Paper,
Laminates, Tapes &
Specialty Tapes

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHAREHOLDERS OF OUR COMPANY

As on the date of filing of this Prospectus, the total numbers of equity shareholders are 7 (Seven). For more details on the
shareholding of the members, please see the section titled “Capital Structure” at page no. 45 of this Prospectus.

MAIN OBJECTS AS SET OUT IN THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

The object clauses of the Memorandum of Association of our Company enable us to undertake the activities for which
the funds are being raised in the present Issue. Furthermore, the activities of our Company which we have been carrying
out until now are in accordance with the objects of the Memorandum. Our Company has not changed its Object since its
Incorporation. The objects for which our Company is established is:

1) Manufacturing of Packaging material

2) To carry on the business of manufacturing of all types of Primary and Secondary packaging Materials, including self
adhesive tapes like BOPP, Banding, Masking and other speciality tapes, extrusion lamination and other laminated
products for the soaps and food industry and corrugated rolls and boxes for sale in domestic as well as foreign
markets.

SHAREHOLDERS’ AGREEMENTS

Our Company has not entered into any shareholders agreement as on the date of filing this Prospectus.

OTHER AGREEMENTS

As on the date of this Prospectus our Company has not entered into any agreements other than those entered into in the
ordinary course of business and there are no material agreements entered as on the date of this Prospectus.

JOINT VENTURE AGREEMENTS

Our Company has not entered into any joint venture agreement as on the date of this Prospectus.

COLLABORATION AGREEMENTS

Our Company has not entered into any collaboration agreement as on the date of this Prospectus.

STRATEGIC PARTNERS

Our Company is not having any strategic partner as on the date of filing this Prospectus.

FINANCIAL PARTNERS

Our Company has not entered into any financial partnerships with any entity as on the date of filing of this Prospectus.
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OUR MANAGEMENT

In accordance with our Articles of Association, unless otherwise determined in a general meeting of the Company and
subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable rules, the number of Directors of the Company
shall not be less than 3 and not more than 15, at least two thirds of whom shall be liable to retire by rotation other than
independent directors. Our Company currently has 5 (Five) directors on our Board out of which 3 (Three) are Executive
Directors and 2 (Two) are Non-Executive Independent Directors.

Nk

Mr. Rakesh Kumar
Mrs. Rekha Bansal
Mr. Dhruv Rakesh

Mr. Jeenendra Prakash Singhvi

Mr. Khagesh Kaushal

Chairman Cum Managing Director
Whole-Time Director

Executive Director

Non-Executive Independent Director
Non-Executive Independent Director

The Following table sets forth details regarding the Board of Directors as on the date of this Prospectus:-

MR. RAKESH KUMAR

Father’s Name

Mr. Dev Prakash

Appointment and
date of expiration
of current term
office.

DIN 08374550
Date of Birth August 09, 1953
| Age 68 years
Designation Chairman Cum Managing Director
Status Executive
Qualification Bachelor of Engineering in Electrical from Punjabi University, Patiala
No. of Years of| He has a rich work experience of more than 3 decades in the field of paper based packaging
Experience industry, BOPP Tapes and Gummed Paper Tapes.
Address 1062, Sector-02 Panchkula, Panchkula Sector 8§ Haryana, 134109
Occupation Business
Nationality Indian
Date of | Appointed as a first director on Incorporation of Our Company, i.e. from February 26, 2019, At
Appointment present he is Chairman Cum Managing Director for a term of 5 years w.e.f. March 1, 2021.
Term of

Holds office for a period of 5 years w.e.f. March 1, 2021.

Other
Directorships

Father’s Name

MRS. REKHA BANSAL

Mr. Ved Prakash Dewan

Appointment and
date of expiration

DIN 08374551
Date of Birth October 07, 1956
| Age 64 Years
Designation Whole Time Director
Status Executive
Qualification She holds the degree of Master of Arts (History)
No. of Years of| She is having experience of more than 24 years in the field of paper based packaging industry,
Experience BOPP Tapes and Gummed Paper Tapes.
Address 1062, Sector-02 Panchkula, Panchkula Sector 8 Haryana, 134109
Occupation Business
Nationality Indian
Date of | Appointed as a first director on Incorporation of Our Company, i.e. from February 26, 2019.
Appointment Later on she is appointed as whole Time Director for a term of 5 years w.e.f. March 1, 2021.
Term of | Holds office for a period of 5 years w.e.f. March 01, 2021 and liable to retirement by rotation.
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MRS. REKHA BANSAL

of current term
office.

Other -
Directorships
MR. DHRUV RAKESH
Father’s Name Mr. Rakesh Kumar
DIN 08374549
Date of Birth August 09, 1987
| Age 34 Years
Designation Executive Director
Status Executive
Qualification Master of Business Administration (International Business) from Indian Institute of Foreign

Trade (IIFT) (Deemed University).
Bachelor of Engineering in Computer Science & Engineering from PEC University of
Technology, Chandigarh.

No. of Years of

He has an experience of more than 5 years in the field of manufacturing and marketing of paper

Experience based packaging industry, BOPP Tapes and Gummed Paper Tapes.

Address 1062, Sector -02, Panchkula, Panchkula Sector 8, Haryana, 134109

QOccupation Business

Nationality Indian

Date of | Appointed as an Executive Director of the company w.e.f. March 01, 2021.

Appointment

Term of | Holds office for a period of 5 years w.e.f. March 01, 2021 and liable to retirement by rotation.
Appointment

Other -

Directorships

Father’s Name

MR. JEENENDRA PRAKASH SINGHVI

Mr. Himmat Chand Singhvi

DIN 09027788
Date of Birth February 12, 1969
| Age 52 Years
Designation Director
Status Non-Executive & Independent
Qualification MD (Neurology)
No. of Years of| He has been practicing Neurology since last 20 years.
Experience
Address #647 Sector 33 B Chandigarh -160020
QOccupation Professional
Nationality Indian
Date of | Appointed as an Independent Director of Company w.e.f. December 31, 2020.
Appointment
Term of | Holds office for a period of 5 years upto December 31, 2025
Appointment
Other -
Directorships

Father’s Name

MR. KHAGESH KAUSHAL

Mr. Pardeep Kaushal

DIN 09027797
Date of Birth February 16, 1988
| Age 33 Years
Designation Director
Status Non-Executive & Independent
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MR. KHAGESH KAUSHAL

Qualification B.E. (Mechanical), Post Graduate Diploma in Management

No. of Years of| He has work of experience of more than 5 years years as an associate consultant for Automotive
Experience and Engineering at Tata Strategic Management group.

Address #284 Kendriya Vihar, Sector 48 B Chandigarh-160047

QOccupation Professional

Nationality Indian

Date of | Appointed as an Independent Director of Company w.e.f. December 31, 2020.
Appointment

Term of | Holds office for a period of 5 years upto December 31, 2025

Appointment

Other -

Directorships

As on the date of the Prospectus;
A. None of the above mentioned Directors are on the RBI List of willful defaulters.

B. None of the Promoters, persons forming part of our Promoter Group, our Directors or persons in control of our
Company or our Company are debarred from accessing the capital market by SEBI.

C. None of the Promoters, Directors or persons in control of our Company, has been or is involved as a promoter,
director or person in control of any other company, which is debarred from accessing the capital market under any
order or directions made by SEBI or any other regulatory authority.

D. None of our Directors are/were director of any company whose shares were delisted from any stock exchange(s) up
to the date of filling of this Prospectus.

E. None of Promoters or Directors of our Company are a fugitive economic offender.

F. None of our Directors are/were director of any company whose shares were suspended from trading by stock
exchange(s) or under any order or directions issued by the stock exchange(s)/ SEBI/ other regulatory authority in the
last five years.

G. In respect of the track record of the directors, there have been no criminal cases filed or investigations being

undertaken with regard to alleged commission of any offence by any of our directors and none of our directors have
been charge-sheeted with serious crimes like murder, rape, forgery, economic offence.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE DIRECTORS

There is no relationship between any of the Directors of our Company except the following relationship: -

Name of Director Designation Relation

Mr. Rakesh Kumar Promoter Cum |Spouse of our Promoter, Whole-time Director, Mrs. Rekha Bansal and
Chairman cum |Father of Our Promoter and Executive Director Mr. Dhruv Rakesh.
Managing Director

Mrs. Rekha Bansal Promoter Cum Whole- |[Spouse of Our Promoter , Chairman cum Managing Director, Mr.
time Director Rakesh Kumar and Mother of Our Promoter and Executive Director

Mr. Dhruv Rakesh.

Mr. Dhruv Rakesh Promoter Cum [Son of our Promoters Mr. Rakesh Kumar and Mrs. Rekha Bansal.

Executive Director

ARRANGEMENT AND UNDERSTANDING WITH MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS, CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS

AND OTHERS

There is no arrangement or understanding with major sharcholders, customers, suppliers or others, pursuant to which any
of the above mentioned Directors was selected as director or member of senior management.

SERVICE CONTRACTS

119



— S

www. dkanterprises.co.in

None of our directors have entered into any service contracts with our company and no benefits are granted upon their
termination from employment other than the statutory benefits provided by our company. However, Executive Directors
of our Company are appointed for specific terms and conditions for which no formal agreements are executed, however
their terms and conditions of appointment and remuneration are specified and approved by the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of the Company.

Except statutory benefits upon termination of their employment in our Company or retirement, no officer of our Company,
including the directors and key Managerial personnel, are entitled to any benefits upon termination of employment.

BORROWING POWERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The shareholders of the Company, through a special resolution passed at the Extra Ordinry General Meeting held on March
01, 2021 authorized our Board to borrow monies, together with monies already borrowed, up to ¥ 100 Crores (Rupees
Hundred Crores Only) if the aggregate for the time being of the paid-up capital of the Company and its free reserves is less
than X 100 Crores.

BRIEF PROFILE OF OUR DIRECTORS

MR. RAKESH KUMAR

Mr. Rakesh Kumar, aged 68 years is Promoter, First Director of the Company. He is holding degree of Bachelor of
Engineering in Electrical from Punjabi University, Patiala. He is appointed as a first director on Incorporation of our
Company, i.e. from February 26, 2019. At present he is Chairman Cum Managing Director for a term of 5 years w.e.f.
March 1, 2021. He has a rich work experience of more than 3 decades in the field of paper based packaging industry, BOPP
Tapes and Gummed Paper Tapes. He is the guiding force behind all the corporate decisions and is responsible for the entire
Business operations of the Company since incorporation.

MRS. REKHA BANSAL

Mrs. Rekha Bansal, aged 64 years, holds Degree of Master of Arts (History). She is Promoter cum whole-time Director of
our company. She was Originally appointed as director of our company on incorporation. Subsequently she was appointed
as a Whole Time Director of the company w.e.f March 01, 2021 for a period of five years. She is having experience of
more than 24 years in the field of paper based packaging industry, BOPP Tapes and Gummed Paper Tapes. She has been
sole proprietor of D.K. Enterprises, firm taken over by our company. She combines quality of business women and a house
wife very nicely. She has been awarded with “Best Woman Entrepreneur” by Canara Bank, Chandigarh circle in the year
2005.

MR. DHRUV RAKESH

Mr. Dhruv Rakesh, aged 34 years, holds degree of Bachelor of Engineering in Computer Science & Engineering from PEC
University of Technology, Chandigarh and Master of Business Administration (International Business) from Indian
Institute of Foreign Trade (IIFT) (Deemed University). He is Promoter Cum executive director of our company. He is
appointed as a Director since Incorporation of the Company, i.e. February 26, 2019. Subsequently he was appointed as an
Executive Director of the company for the period of five years w.e.f March 01, 2021. He has an experience of more than
5 years in the field of manufacturing and marketing of paper based packaging industry, BOPP Tapes and Gummed Paper
Tapes. He has been instrumental in setting up partnership firm Satguru Engravures in which our company at present holds
80% stake.

MR. JEENENDRA PRAKASH SINGHVI

Mr. Jeenendra Prakash Singhvi, aged 52 years, holds degree of MD, DM (Neurology), He is appointed as an Independent
director of our company w.e.f December 31, 2020 for a period of 5 years upto December 31, 2025. He is practicing
Neurology since 1999 and also senior consultant in Fortis Hospital, Mohali, Punjab. He is also faculty at ART of Living,
Indian Organization spread in more than 155 countries. He is also life member at Neurological society of India, American
Academy of Neurology, Indian Academy of Neurology, Indian Stroke Society, PGI Neurlogical society, Association of
physician of India.

MR. KHAGESH KAUSHAL
Mr. Khagesh Kaushal, aged 33 Years, holds degree of B.E. (Mechanical) from PEC University of Technology and Post

Graduate Diploma in Management from The Indian Institute of Management of Indore. He is appointed as an Independent
director of our company w.e.f December 31, 2020 for a period of 5 years upto December 31, 2025. He is an associate
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consultant for Automotive and Engineering at Tata Strategic Management Group and has rich experience of working global
clients, automotive OEMs and supplier for strategy formulation, operations improvement, strategic sourcing etc. He has
been awarded “Quartely Award” for outstanding contribution in product development and cost saving. He has been 2™
runner up in NASA Moon Buggy competitition at Hunstville U.S. in the International team category and also have received
“Certificate of Excellence” from Governor, Punjab and Chandigarh for outstanding performance at NASA, USA.

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS TO THE CHAIRMAN, MANAGING DIRECTOR AND WHOLE TIME

DIRECTOR ARE AS FOLLOWS:-

Name
Designation

Date of Appointment/
Change in Designation

Mr. Rakesh Kumar
Chairman Cum Managing Director

Mrs. Rekha Bansal
Whole Time Director

Originally appointed as director of our
company on incorporation i.e February
26, 2019. Subsequently he was appointed
as a Managing Director of the Company
for the Period of five years w.e.f.
December 31, 2020. At present he is

Originally She was appointed as director of
our company on incorporation. i.e February
26, 2019.Subsequently she was appointed
as a Whole Time Director of the company
for the period of five years w.e.f. March 01,
2021 liable to retire by rotation.

Chairman Cum Managing Director for a
term of 5 years w.e.f. March 1, 2021.

5 Years w.e.f. March 1, 2021 and not
liable to retire by rotation

Basic Salary up to ¥ 3,00,000/- per month
for a period of five years from the date of
appointment.

Bonus - -
Perquisite/Benefits - -
Compensation/
remuneration paid during
the F.Y. 2020-21

5 Years w.e.f. March 1, 2021 and liable to
retire by rotation
Basic Salary up to < 2,00,000/- per month
for a period of five years from the date of
appointment.

Period

Salary

% 24.00 Lakh

SITTING FEES PAYABLE TO NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Till date, our Company has not paid any sitting fees to any of the Non-Executive Directors for attending any of the Board
or Committee Meetings. Further, The Board of Directors of our company has formed policy for payment of sitting fees to
non-executive director on July 17, 2021.

SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS

The shareholding of our directors as on the date of this Prospectus is as follows:

Sr. No. Name of Directors No. Equity Shares held Category/ Status

1. Mr. Rakesh Kumar 7,24,850 Executive Director
2. Mrs. Rekha Bansal 43,24,850 Executive Director
3. Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 4,53,500 Executive Director
4. Mr. Jeenendra Prakash Singhvi 0 Non-Executive Independent
5. Mr. Khagesh Kaushal 0 Non-Executive Independent

INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

All the non-executive directors of the company may be deemed to be interested to the extent of fees, payable to them for
attending meetings of the Board or Committee if any as well as to the extent of other remuneration and/or reimbursement
of expenses payable to them as per the applicable laws.

The directors may be regarded as interested in the shares and dividend payable thereon, if any, held by or that may be
subscribed by and allotted/transferred to them or the companies, firms and trust, in which they are interested as directors,
members, partners and or trustees. All directors may be deemed to be interested in the contracts, agreements/arrangements
to be entered into by the issuer company with any company in which they hold directorships or any partnership or
proprietorship firm in which they are partners or proprietors as declared in their respective declarations.

Executive Director is interested to the extent of remuneration paid to them for services rendered to the company.
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Except as stated under ““Annexure — J”” and “Annexure — J” - Related Party Transaction” on page no. 166 and 196 of this
Prospectus, our company has not entered into any contracts, agreements or arrangements during the preceding two years
from the date of the Prospectus in which our directors are interested directly or indirectly.

CHANGES IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DURING THE LAST THREE YEARS

Name of Director li;f:n(;f Nature of Event ‘ Reason for the changes in the board
Mr. Khagesh Kaushal December Appointment  |Appointed as Non-Executive Independent
31,2020 Director
Mr. Jeenendra Prakash Singhvi December Appointment  |Appointed as Non-Executive Independent
31,2020 Director
Originally appointed as director of our company
on incorporation i.e February 26, 2019.
. Subsequently he was appointed as a Managing
Mr. Rakesh Kumar Mzagczhl L Dcelsl?nf;;:n Director of the Company for the Period of five
£ years w.e.f. December 31, 2020 At present,
appointed as Chairman cum Managing Director
for a term of five years w.e.f. March 1, 2021.
Originally She was appointed as director of our
company on incorporation. i.c February 26,
March 1, Change in 2019.Subsequently she was appointed as a Whole
Mrs. Rekha Bansal 2021 Desigr%ation Time Direc?or of};he compalrn)}rl) for the period of
five years w.e.f. March 01, 2021 liable to retire by
rotation.
Originally appointed as director of our company
. on incorporation i.e. February 26, 2019.
Mr. Dhruv Rakesh M:zagczhl L DCe];?nriletil(l:n Subsequently he was appointed as an Executive
& Director of the Company for the Period of five
years w.e.f. March 01, 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In additions to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the Corporate Governance, provisions
of the SEBI Listing Regulations will be applicable to our company immediately up on the listing of Equity Shares on the
Stock Exchanges.

As on date of this Prospectus, as our Company is coming with an issue in terms of Chapter IX of the SEBI (ICDR)
Regulations, 2018, the requirements specified in regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i)
of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to our Company, although we require to comply with requirement of
the Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable. In spite of certain regulations and schedules of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosures Requirement) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to our Company, our Company endeavors to comply
with the good Corporate Governance and accordingly certain exempted regulations have been compiled by our Company.

Our Company has complied with the corporate governance requirement, particularly in relation to appointment of
independent directors including woman director on our Board, constitution of an Audit Committee, Stakeholders
Relationship Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee. Our Board functions either on its own or through
committees constituted thereof, to oversee specific operational areas.

Composition of Board of Directors

Currently the Board has 5 (Five) Directors. In compliance with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013, our Company
has 3 (Three) Promoter — Executive Directors and 2 (Two) None Executive Independent Directors.

Composition of Board of Directors is set forth in the below mentioned table:

Sr.
No.
1. |Mr. Rakesh Kumar Chairman Cum Managing Director |[Executive & Non-Independent [08374550

Name of Directors Designation Status
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1511(;. Name of Directors Designation

2. |Mrs. Rekha Bansal Whole Time Director Executive & Non-Independent  |08374551
3. [Mr. Dhruv Rakesh Executive Director Executive & Non-Independent  |08374549
4. lg/illrl.thfienendra Prakash Independent Director Non-Executive & Independent 09027788
5. |Mr. Khagesh Kaushal Independent Director Non-Executive & Independent 09027797

Constitution of Committees
Our company has constituted the following Committees of the Board,
1. Audit Committee;
2. Stakeholders Relationship Committee; and
3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
Details of composition, terms of reference etc. of each of the above committees are provided hereunder;
1. Audit Committee:
The Board of Directors of our Company has, in pursuance to provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, or
any subsequent modification(s) or amendment(s) thereof in its Meeting held on March 12, 2021, constituted Audit

Committee.

The constitution of the Audit Committee is as follows:

Name of the Directors Designation Nature of Directorship
Mr. Khagesh Kaushal Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Jeenendra Prakash Singhvi Member Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Dhruv Rakesh Member Executive Director

Our Company Secretary and Compliance officer will act as the secretary of the Committee.
Terms of Reference
The Role of Audit Committee not limited to but includes:-

i.  The recommendation for the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or removal of the auditor,
their remuneration and fixation of terms of appointment of the Auditors of the Company;

ii. Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

iii. Examination of financial statement and auditors’ report thereon including interim financial result before submission
to the Board of Directors for approval;

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management

Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings

Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements

Disclosure of any related party transactions

. Qualifications in the draft audit report.

iv. Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related party;
Provided that the Audit Committee may make omnibus approval for related party transactions proposed to be entered
into by the company subject to such conditions as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or any
subsequent modification(s) or amendment(s) thereof;
Provided further that in case of transaction, other than transactions referred to in section 188 of Companies Act 2013
or any subsequent modification(s) or amendment(s) thereof, and where Audit Committee does not approve the
transaction, it shall make its recommendations to the Board;
Provided also that in case any transaction involving any amount not exceeding one crore rupees is entered into by a
director or officer of the company without obtaining the approval of the Audit Committee and it is not ratified by the
Audit Committee within three months from the date of the transaction, such transaction shall be voidable at the option
of the Audit Committee;

v. Reviewing, with the management, and monitoring the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue
(public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated

mo a0 o
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in the offer document/ prospectus/notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization
of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this
matter;

vi. Scrutiny of Inter-corporate loans and investments;

vii. Reviewing and discussing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there
is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter
to the board;

viii. To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism, in case the same is existing;

ix. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, where ever it is necessary;

x. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems and reviewing, with the management,
performance of internal auditors, and adequacy of the internal control systems; and

xi. To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in
case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

xii. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-time Finance Director or any other person heading the finance
function or discharging that function) after assessing the qualifications, experience & background, etc. of the
candidate; and

xiii. Carrying out any other function as assigned by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Review of Information

i.  Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;

ii. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by management;
iii. Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

iv. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

v. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Internal Auditor.

Powers of Committee

i.  To investigate any activity within its terms of reference;

ii. To seek information from any employees;

iii. To obtain outside legal or other professional advice; and

iv. To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.
Quorum and Meetings
The audit committee shall meet as and when required to discuss and approve the items included in its role. The quorum of
the meeting of the Audit Committee shall be one third of total members of the Audit Committee or 2, whichever is higher,
subject to minimum two Independent Director shall present at the Meeting.

2. Stakeholders Relationship Committee:
The Board of Directors of our Company has, in pursuance to provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, or
any subsequent modification(s) or amendment(s) thereof in its Meeting held on March 12, 2021, constituted Stakeholders

Relationship Committee.

The constitution of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is as follows:

Name of the Directors Designation Nature of Directorship
Mr. Khagesh Kaushal Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Jeenendra Prakash Singhvi Member Non-Executive Independent Director
Mrs. Rekha Bansal Member Executive Whole-Time Director

Our Company Secretary and Compliance officer will act as the secretary of the Committee.
Terms of Reference

To supervise and ensure;
i.  Efficient transfer of shares; including review of cases for refusal of transfer / transmission of shares;
ii. Redressal of shareholder and investor complaints like transfer of Shares, non-receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt
of declared dividends etc.;
iii. Issue duplicate/split/consolidated share certificates;
iv. Dematerialization/Rematerialization of Share;
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v. Review of cases for refusal of transfer / transmission of shares and debentures;

vi. Reference to statutory and regulatory authorities regarding investor grievances and to otherwise ensure proper and
timely attendance and redressal of investor queries and grievances; Provided that inability to resolve or consider any
grievance by the Stakeholders Relationship Committee in good faith shall not constitute a contravention of Section
178 of Companies Act, 2013 or any subsequent modification(s) or amendment(s) thereof.

vii. Such other matters as may be required by any statutory, contractual or other regulatory requirements to be attended
to by such committee from time to time.

Quorum and Meetings
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee shall meet as and when require to discuss and approve the items included in its
role. The quorum shall be one third of total members of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee or 2 members, whichever
is higher.

3. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:
The Board of Directors of our Company has, in pursuance to provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, or
any subsequent modification(s) or amendment(s) thereof in its Meeting held on September 23, 2019, constituted

Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows:

Name of the Directors Designation Nature of Directorship
Mr. Khagesh Kaushal Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Jeenendra Prakash Singhvi Member Non-Executive Independent Director
Mr. Rakesh Kumar Member Executive - Chairman and Managing
Director

Our Company Secretary and Compliance officer will act as the secretary of the Committee.
Terms of reference
Role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee not limited to but includes:-

i.  Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees;

ii. Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

iii. To ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

iv. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board of Directors their appointment and removal and
shall carry out evaluation of every director‘s performance.

Quorum and Meetings
The Committee is required to meet at least once a year. The quorum necessary for a meeting of the Nomination and

Remuneration Committee is one third of total members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or 2 members,
whichever is higher.

MANAGEMENT ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

The Management Organization Structure of the company is depicted from the following chart;
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OUR KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The Key Managerial Personnel of our Company other than our Executive Director are as follows:-

Remuneration paid

Name, Designation and Date of Joining Qualification Elﬂri‘)’lol::n ¢ in F.Y. 2020-21)
ploy (% in Lakhs)
Name Mr. Baljeet Singh Master of Business
Designation Chief Financial Officer Administration and
N.A. T5.95
Date of [December 05, 2020 Bachelor of Commerce
Appointment from Punjab University
Overall He has overall experience of 8 years in the field of packaging and BOPP Tapes.
Experience
Name Ms. Amanpreet Kaur
Designation Compapy Secretary & Bachelor of Commerce
Compliance Officer Fresher %0.51
and Company Secretary
Date of [December 05, 2020
Appointment
Overall Ms. Amanpreet Kaur, aged 27 years, is Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company.
Experience She is Qualified Company Secretary from The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

BONUS OR PROFIT SHARING PLAN FOR THE KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Currently, Our Company does not have any bonus or profit sharing plan for our Key Managerial personnel. In future,
Discretionary bonus may be paid as may be decided by Nomination and Remuneration Committee/Board of Directors,
depending upon the performance of the Key Managerial Personnel, working of the Company and other relevant factors
subject to Maximum of annual salary within the limits laid down under Para A of Section II of Part II of Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013.

CHANGES IN THE KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The following are the changes in the Key Management Personnel other than directors in the last three years preceding the
date of filing this Prospectus, otherwise than by way of retirement in due course.

Name of Key Managerial Date of Event Nature of

Personnel Event Reason for the changes

Originally appointed as director of our company
on incorporation i.e February 26, 2019.
Subsequently he was appointed as a Managing
Director of the Company for the Period of five
years w.e.f. December 31, 2020 At present,
appointed as Chairman cum Managing Director
for a term of five years w.e.f. March 1, 2021.
Originally She was appointed as director of our
company on incorporation. i.e February 26,
Change in [2019.Subsequently she was appointed as a
Designation  |Whole Time Director of the company for the
period of five years w.e.f. March 01, 2021 liable
to retire by rotation.

Appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f.

Change in

Mr. Rakesh Kumar March 1, 2021 . .
Designation

Mrs. Rekha Bansal March 1, 2021

December 5,

Mr. Baljeet Singh 2020 Appointment December 5, 2020.
December 5, . Appointed as Company Secretary and
Mr. Amanpreet Kaur 2020 Appointment Compliance Officer

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

As on the date of filing of Prospectus, our company does not have any ESOP Scheme for its employees.

RELATION OF THE KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL WITH OUR PROMOTERS/ DIRECTORS
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Name of Key
Managerial Designation Relation
Personnel
Mr. Rakesh Promoter Cum Chairman cum Spouse of our Promoter, Whole-time Director, Mrs. Rekha
Kumar Managing Director Bansal and Father of Our Promoter and Executive Director

Mr. Dhruv Rakesh.

Mrs. Rekha | Promoter Cum Whole-time Director |Spouse of Our Promoter , Chairman cum Managing Director,

Bansal Mr. Rakesh Kumar and Mother of Our Promoter and
Executive Director Mr. Dhruv Rakesh.

Mr. Dhruv| Promoter Cum Executive Director |Son of our Promoters Mr. Rakesh Kumar and Mrs. Rekha

Rakesh Bansal.

PAYMENT OF BENEFIT TO OFFICERS OF OUR COMPANY (NON-SALARY RELATED)

Except the statutory payments made by our Company, in the last two years, our company has not paid any sum to its
employees in connection with superannuation payments and ex-gratia/ rewards and has not paid any non-salary amount or
benefit to any of its officers.

Notes:
»  All the key managerial personnel mentioned above are on the payrolls of our Company as permanent employees.

» There is no arrangement / understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others pursuant to which
any of the above mentioned personnel have been recruited.

» None of our Key Managerial Personnel has been granted any benefits in kind from our Company, other than their
remuneration.

» None of our Key Managerial Personnel has entered into any service contracts with our company except acting in
their Individual Capacity as Chairman Cum Managing Director or Whole-Time Directors and no benefits are granted
upon their termination from employment other that statutory benefits provided by our Company. Further, our
Company has appointed certain Key Managerial Personnel i.e. Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary and
Compliance officer for which our company has not executed any formal service contracts; although they are abide
by their terms of appointments.

SHAREHOLDING OF THE KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Except as disclosed below, none of the Key Managerial Personnel hold any Equity Shares of our Company as on the date
of this Prospectus.

Sr. No. Name of Key Management Personnel No. Equity Shares held \ Category/ Status
1. |Mr. Rakesh Kumar 7,24,850 Executive Non Independent
2. |Mrs. Rekha Bansal 43,24,850 Executive Non Independent
3. |Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 4,53,500 Executive Non Independent
4. |Mr. Baljeet Singh 2200 Chief Financial Officer
> Mr. Amanpreet Kaur 0 Compa.ny Secretary and
Compliance officer

128



— S

www. dkentaerprises.co.in
OUR PROMOTERS AND PROMOTERS GROUP
Promoters of Our Company are;

1. Mr. Rakesh Kumar
2. Mrs. Rekha Bansal
3. Mr. Dhruv Rakesh

For details of the Capital build-up of our Promoters in our Company, see section titled “Capital Structure” beginning on
page no. 45 of this Prospectus.

The details of our Promoters are as follows:

MR. RAKESH KUMAR

Mr. Rakesh Kumar, aged 67 years is Promoter, First Director of the Company. He is holding
degree of Bachelor of Engineering in Electrical from Punjabi University, Patiala. He is
appointed as a first director on Incorporation of our Company, i.e. from February 26, 2019.
At present he is Chairman Cum Managing Director for a term of 5 years w.e.f. March 1,
2021. He has a rich work experience of more than 3 decades in the field of paper based
- | packaging industry, BOPP Tapes and Gummed Paper Tapes. He is the guiding force behind
all the corporate decisions and is responsible for the entire Business operations of the
| Company since incorporation.

ol

Date of Birth August 09, 1953
Age 68 Years

PAN ABYPK3497L
Passport Number 15204398

Aadhar Card No. 6900 0167 8442
Driving License HR-0320030015508
Name of Bank* Canara Bank

Bank Account No. 1625101019908

Educational Bachelor of Engineering in Electrical from Punjabi University.

Qualification

Experience 1it| He has a rich work experience of more than 3 decades in the field of paper based packaging

Business industry, BOPP Tapes and Gummed Paper Tapes.

| ST RN 1062, Sector-02 Panchkula, Panchkula Sector 8 Haryana, 134109

Address
LS AR GETE Originally appointed as director of our company on incorporation i.e February 26, 2019.
the past Subsequently he was appointed as a Managing Director of the Company for the Period of
five years w.e.f. December 31, 2020. At present he is Chairman Cum Managing Director for
a term of 5 years w.e.f. March 1, 2021.
Directorship held -

Other Ventures M/s Satguru Engravures

MRS. REKHA BANSAL

Mrs. Rekha Bansal, aged 64 years, holds Degree of Master of Arts (History). She is Promoter
cum whole-time Director of our company. She was Originally appointed as director of our
company on incorporation. Subsequently she was appointed as a Whole Time Director of
the company w.e.f March 01, 2021 for a period of five years. She is having experience of
more than 24 years in the field of paper based packaging industry, BOPP Tapes and
Gummed Paper Tapes. She has been sole proprietor of D.K. Enterprises, firm taken over by
our company. She combines quality of business women and a house wife very nicely. She
has been awarded with “Best Woman Entrepreneur” by Canara Bank, Chandigarh circle in
the year 2005.

Date of Birth October 07, 1956
Age 64 years
PAN AAPPB4881M
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Passport Number N8536046

Educational
Qualification
Experience 11t She is having experience of more than 24 years in the field of paper based packaging
Business industry, BOPP Tapes and Gummed Paper Tapes.

| e T DRI 1062, Sector-02 Panchkula, Panchkula Sector 8 Haryana, 134109

Address

OGO S GETE Originally She was appointed as director of our company on incorporation. i.e February 26,
the past 2019.Subsequently she was appointed as a Whole Time Director of the company for the
period of five years w.e.f. March 01, 2021 liable to retire by rotation.

Directorship held -

Other Ventures M/s Satguru Engravures
"MR.DHRUVRAKESH

Mr. Dhruv Rakesh, aged 33 years, holds degree of Bachelor of Engineering in Computer
Science & Engineering from PEC University of Technology, Chandigarh and Master of
Business Administration (International Business) from Indian Institute of Foreign Trade
(ITFT) (Deemed University). He is Promoter Cum executive director of our company. He is
appointed as a Director since Incorporation of the Company, i.e. February 26, 2019.
Subsequently he was appointed as an Executive Director of the company for the period of
five years w.e.f March 01, 2021. He has an experience of more than 5 years in the field of
manufacturing and marketing of paper based packaging industry, BOPP Tapes and Gummed
Paper Tapes. He has been instrumental in setting up partnership firm Satguru Engravures in
which our company at present holds 80% stake.

Date of Birth August 09, 1987
Age 34 years
PAN ARTPR2047N

Passport Number 73573858
Aadhar Card No. 3348 2413 4560
Driving License HRO03 20050006296
Name of Bank Canara Bank
Bank Account No. 1625101601978
Educational Bachelor of Engineering in Computer Science & Engineering from PEC University of
Qualification Technology, Chandigarh.
Master of Business Administration (International Business) from Indian Institute of Foreign
Trade (IIFT) (Deemed University).
Experience 1it| He has an experience of more than 5 years in the field of manufacturing and marketing of
Business paper based packaging industry, BOPP Tapes and Gummed Paper Tapes.
| e T RIS 1062, Sector -02, Panchkula, Panchkula Sector 8, Haryana, 134109
Address
OGO B BRI Appointed as a Director since Incorporation of the Company, i.e. February 26, 2019.
the past Subsequently he was appointed as an Executive Director of the company for the period of
five years w.e.f March 01, 2021 liable to retire by rotation.
Directorship held -

Other Ventures M/s Satguru Engravures
M/s. Sankyo Enterprise

She holds degree of Master of Arts (History).

Aadhar CaraNo ' E ISR
Driving License | Not Available
Name of Bank | Canara Bank
IO N O] 1625101014451
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DECLARATION

We declare and confirm that the details of the permanent account numbers, bank account numbers and passport numbers
of our Promoters are being submitted to the NSE, stock exchange on which the specified securities are proposed to be
listed along with filing of this Prospectus with the Stock Exchange.

CHANGE IN THE CONTROL OR MANAGEMENT OF THE ISSUER IN LAST FIVE YEARS

There has been no change in the control or management of our Company in last five years.

INTEREST OF OUR PROMOTERS

» Except as stated in “Annexure — J” and “Annexure — J” - “Related Party Transaction” on page no. 166 and 196 of
this Prospectus and to the extent of compensation, remuneration/ sitting fees to be paid, Perquisites to be given,
reimbursement of expenses to be made in accordance with their respective terms of appointment and to the extent of
their shareholding and benefits, if any, arise on the shareholding, our Promoters do not have any other interest in our
business.

»  Further, our Promoter may be deemed to be interested to the extent of the payments made by our Company, if any,
to the Group entities and payment to be made by our Company to the Group Entities. For the payments that are made
by our Company to certain Group entities, please refer “Annexure — J” and “Annexure — J” - “Related Party
Transactions” on page no. 166 and 196 of this Prospectus. For the payments proposed to be made by our Company
to certain Group Entities, please refer page no 224 this Prospectus.

»  Our Promoter, Directors or Group Companies do not have any interest in any property acquired by our Company in
the preceding three years before filing this Prospectus. Further, they do not have any interest in any property to be
acquired by our Company till the date of this Prospectus.

» Excepted as otherwise as stated in this Prospectus, we have not entered into any contract, agreements or arrangements
during the preceding three years from the date of this Prospectus in which promoter is directly or indirectly interested.

PAYMENT OF BENEFITS TO OUR PROMOTERS

Except as stated in the section “Annexure — J” and “Annexure — J” - “Related Party Transactions” on page no. 166 and
196 of this Prospectus, there has been no payment of benefits made to our Promoters in the two years preceding the filing
of this Prospectus. Further, our Company may enter into transaction with or make payment of benefit to the Promoters
Directors or Promoters’ Group, towards remunerations as decided by Board of Director.

CONFIRMATIONS

Our Company and Promoters confirmed that they have not been declared as willful defaulters by the RBI or by any other
government authority and there are no violations of securities laws committed by them in the past or are currently pending
against them or restraining period are continued.

Further, our Promoters, promoters’ group or directors have not been directly or indirectly, debarred from accessing the
capital market or have not been restrained by any regulatory authority, directly or indirectly from acquiring the securities.

Additionally, our Promoters, promoters’ group or directors do not have direct or indirect relation with the companies, its
promoters and whole time director, which are compulsorily delisted by any recognized stock exchange or the companies
which is debarred from accessing the capital market by the Board.

Also, our promoters or directors are not a fugitive economic offender.

We and Our Promoters, Group Entities, and Companies promoted by the Promoters confirm that:

» No material regulatory or disciplinary action has been taken by a stock exchange or regulatory authority in the past
one year against us;

»  There are no defaults in respect of payment of interest and/or principal to the debenture/bond/fixed deposit holders,
banks, FIs during the past three years.
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» The details of outstanding litigation including its nature and status are disclosed in the section title “Outstanding
Litigation and Material Developments” appearing on page no. 216 of this Prospectus.

Dissociation of Promoters in the last three year:

Our Promoters have not disassociated themselves from any Company or Firm during the preceding three years except as
mentioned below.

Name \ Company/Entity Name Dissociation date Reason
NIL

RELATIONSHIP OF PROMOTER WITH EACH OTHER AND WITH OUR DIRECTORS

There is no relationship between Promoters of our Company with other Directors except as described below;

Name of Director Designation Relation
Mr. Rakesh Kumar | Promoter Cum Chairman cum | Spouse of our Promoter cum Whole-time Director, Mrs.
Managing Director Rekha Bansal and Father of Our Promoter and Executive

Director Mr. Dhruv Rakesh.

Mrs. Rekha Bansal | Promoter Cum Whole-time Director | Spouse of Our Promoter , Chairman cum Managing
Director, Mr. Rakesh Kumar and Mother of Our
Promoter and Executive Director Mr. Dhruv Rakesh.

Mr. Dhruv Rakesh | Promoter Cum Executive Director Son of our Promoters Mr. Rakesh Kumar and Mrs.
Rekha Bansal.

OUR PROMOTERS’ GROUP

In addition to our Promoters named above, the following individuals and entities form a part of the Promoters’ Group:

A. Natural persons who are part of our Individual Promoter Group:

Relationship

with Promoter Mr. Rakesh Kumar Mrs. Rekha Bansal Mr. Dhruv Rakesh
Father Dev Parkash Ved Prakash Dewan Rakesh Kumar
Mother Santosh Devi Rama Dewan Rekha Bansal
Spouse Rekha Bansal Rakesh Kumar Bipasha Bharti
Brothers - -
Sisters - - Kanika Rakesh
Sons Dhruv Rakesh Dhruv Rakesh Master
Agastya
Rakesh
Spouse’s Father Ved Prakash Dewan Dev Parkash Rakesh Bharti
Spouse’s Mother Rama Dewan Santosh Devi Anita Bharti
Spouse’s Brothers - - -
Spouse’s Sisters - - -

B. Companies related to our Promoter Company: Not Applicable

Nature of Relationship \ Name of Entities
Subsidiary or holding company of Promoter Company. Not Applicable
Any Body corporate in which promoter (Body Corporate) holds Not Applicable

20% or more of the equity share capital or which holds 20% or
more of the equity share capital of the promoter (Body
Corporate).

Any Body corporate in which a group or individuals or Not Applicable
companies or combinations thereof which hold 20% or more of
the equity share capital in that body corporate also hold 20% or
more of the equity share capital of the Issuer.
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C. Companies, Proprietary concerns, HUF’s related to our promoters

Nature of Relationship \ Name of Entities
Any Body Corporate in which twenty percent or more of the -
equity share capital is held by promoter or an immediate relative
of the promoter or a firm or HUF in which promoter or any one
or more of his immediate relative is a member.
Any Body corporate in which Body Corporate as provided | Not Applicable
above holds twenty percent or more of the equity share capital.
Any Hindu Undivided Family or Firm in which the aggregate | Rakesh Kumar (HuF)
shareholding of the promoter and his immediate relatives is | Sankyo Enterprise (Proprietor Mr. Dhruv Rakesh)
equal to or more than twenty percent. M/s. Satguru Engravures (Partnership Firm)

For further details on our “Group Entities” refer Chapter titled “Information With Respect To Group Companies/Entities”
beginning on page no. 223 of this Draft Prospectus.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Under the Companies Act, 2013 our Company can pay dividends upon a recommendation by our Board of Directors and
approval by a majority of the shareholders at the General Meeting and as per provisions of Article of Association of our
Company . The shareholders of the Company have the right to decrease but not to increase the amount of dividend
recommended by the Board of Directors. The dividends may be paid out of profits of our Company in the year in which
the dividend is declared or out of the undistributed profits or reserves of previous fiscal years or out of both. The Articles
of Association of our Company also gives the discretion to our Board of Directors to declare and pay interim dividends.
All Dividends upon recommendation by our Board of Directors and approved by the shareholders at the General Meeting
will be paid to credit of registered shareholders by way of cheque or warrant or in any electronic mode.

Our Company does not have any formal dividend policy for the Equity Shares. The declaration and payment of dividend
will be recommended by our Board of Directors and approved by the shareholders of our Company at their discretion
and will depend on a number of factors, including the results of operations, earnings, capital requirements and surplus,
general financial conditions, applicable Indian legal restrictions and other factors considered relevant by our Board of
Directors.

For details of risks in relation to our capability to pay dividend, see “Risk Factors — Our ability to pay Dividends in the
future will depend on our future cash flows, working capital requirements, capital expenditures and financial condition.

Since Incorporation of our Company, no dividend has been declared till date of this Prospectus.
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SECTION IX- RESTATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Independent Auditors' Report on the Restated Consolidated Statement of Assets & Liabilities as at 30™
June 2021, as at March 31,2021 and as at March 31, 2020, and Restated Consolidated Statement of Profit
& Loss for the quarter ended on June 30, 2021, and for the year ended on 2021 March 31, 2021 and on
March 31, 2020, and Restated Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the quarter ended on June 30, 2021
and for the year ended on March 31, 2021, and on March 31, 2020, and Restated Significant Accounting
Policies and Notes to the Restated Consolidated Financial Statements and Other Annexures forming part
of Restated Consolidated Financial Statements

To,

The Board of Directors

D.K. Enterprises Global Limited
Panchkula

Dear Sir,

1. We have examined the attached Restated Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities of D.K.
Enterprises Global Limited (the “Holding Company”) and its partnership firm (M/s Satguru
Engravures) (collectively referred to as “the Group”)as at 30" June, 2021, as at 31st March, 2021, as
at 31st March, 2020 and the related Restated Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the quarter
ended on June 30, 2021 and for the year ended on March 31, 2021,and on March 31, 2020, and
Restated Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the quarter ended on June 30, 2021 and for the year
ended on March 31, 2021, and on March 31, 2020, annexed to this report for the purpose of inclusion
in the offer document prepared by the Company (collectively the ”Restated Consolidated Summary
Statements” or “Restated Consolidated Financial Statements”). These Restated Consolidated
Summary Statements have been prepared by the Company and approved by the Board of Directors in
their meeting held on September 21, 2021 of the Company in connection with the Initial Public
Offering (IPO) in SME Platform of the National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE Emerge).

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the Restated Consolidated
Financial Statements for the purpose of inclusion in the Draft Prospectus/ Prospectus to be filed with
Stock Exchange, Securities and Exchange Board of India, and Registrar of Companies, Delhi in
connection with the proposed IPO. The Restated Consolidated Financial Information have been
prepared by the management of the Company for the quarter ended on June 30, 2021 and for the year
ended on March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 on the basis of preparation stated in note IV to the
Restated Consolidated Financial Information. The Board of Directors of the company’s responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining adequate internal control relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Restated Financial Information. The Board of Directors are also
responsible for identifying and ensuring that the Group complies with the Act, ICDR Regulation and
Guidance Note.

3. These Restated Consolidated Summary Statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirements of:

(1) Section 26 Part I of Chapter III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules 2014;

(i1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2018 (“ICDR Regulations”) issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(“SEBI”) in pursuance to Section 11 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and
related amendments / clarifications from time to time;
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(i)  The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectus (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“Guidance Note”).

4. We have examined such Restated Financial Statements taking into consideration:

a) The terms of reference and terms of our engagement agreed upon with you in accordance with
our engagement letter dated December 05, 2020 in connection with the proposed IPO of equity
shares of the Company;

b) The Guidance Note also requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of
Ethics issued by the ICAI,

c) Concepts of test checks and materiality to obtain reasonable assurance based on verification of
evidence supporting the Restated Financial Information; and ,

d) The requirements of Section 26 of the Act and the ICDR Regulations. Our work was performed
solely to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your compliance with the
Act, the ICDR Regulations and the Guidance Note in connection with the IPO.

5. The Restated Consolidated Summary Statements of the Company have been extracted by the
management from the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the quarter
ended on June 30, 2021 and for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, and 31st March, 2020
and prepared in accordance with the Indian GAAP ,which have been approved by the Board of
Directors.

6. Inaccordance with the requirements of Part I of Chapter I1I of Act including rules made therein, ICDR
Regulations, Guidance Note and Engagement Letter, we report that:

(1) The “Restated Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities” as set out in Annexure A to this
report, of the Company as at 30" June, 2021, as at 31st March, 2021, and 31st March, 2020, have
been prepared by the Company and approved by the Board of Directors. These Restated
Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities, have been arrived at after making such
adjustments and regroupings to the individual financial statements of the Group, as in our opinion
were appropriate and more fully described in Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to
Accounts as set out in Annexure D to this Report.

(i1) The “Restated Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss” as set out in Annexure B to this report,
of the Company for the quarter ended on June 30, 2021, and for the year ended 31st March,
2021,and 31st March, 2020, have been prepared by the Company and approved by the Board of
Directors. These Restated Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, have been arrived at after
making such adjustments and regroupings to the individual financial statements of the Group, as
in our opinion were appropriate and more fully described in Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes to Accounts as set out in Annexure D to this Report.

(ii1) The “Restated Consolidated Cash Flow Statement” as set out in Annexure C to this report, of the
Company for the quarter ended on June 30, 2021, and for the year ended on 31st March, 2021,
and 31st March, 2020, are prepared by the Company and approved by the Board of Directors.
These Restated Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, have been arrived at after making such
adjustments and regroupings to the individual financial statements of the Group, as in our opinion
were appropriate and more fully described in Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to
Accounts as set out in Annexure D to this Report.

7. Based on the above, and according to the information & explanations made available to us by the
Company and also reliance placed by us on the audited consolidated financial statements of the
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a)

b)

g)

h)

Company, we are of the opinion that the Restated Consolidated Financial Statements have been made
after incorporating:

Adjustments for the changes in accounting policies retrospectively in respective financial years/
quarter to reflect the same accounting treatment as per the changed accounting policy for all reporting
periods, if any.

Adjustments for prior period and other material amounts in the respective financial years/ quarter to
which they relate and there are no qualifications which require adjustments.

There are no extra-ordinary items that need to be disclosed separately in the accounts and
qualifications requiring adjustments.

There were no qualifications in the Audit Reports issued by the Statutory Auditors for the quarter
ended on June 30, 2021 and for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, and 31st March, 2020,
which would require adjustments in this Restated Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group.

These Consolidated Profits and Losses have been arrived at after charging all expenses including
depreciation and after making such adjustments/restatements and regroupings as in our opinion are
appropriate and are to be read in accordance with the Significant Accounting Polices and Notes to
Accounts as set out in Annexure D to this report.

There were no change in Significant Accounting Policies which needs to be adjusted in the Restated
Financial Statements.

There were no revaluation reserves which need to be disclosed separately in the Restated Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Company has not paid any dividend since its incorporation.

Audit for the quarter ended on June 30, 2021 and for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021,
and 31st March 2020, was conducted by us.

We have also examined the following other financial information relating to the Group prepared by
the Management and as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and annexed to this report
relating to the Group for the quarter ended on June 30, 2021 and for the financial year ended on 31st
March, 2021, and 31st March, 2020, proposed to be included in the Draft Red Herring
Prospectus/Prospectus (“Offer Document”).

Annexures of Restated Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company:

1.

00 N R W

Restated Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Restated Financial Statements as appearing in
Annexure D to this report;

Reconciliation of Restated Profit as appearing in Annexure E to this report;

Details of Restated Share Capital as appearing in Annexure A.1 to this report;

Details of Restated Reserves and Surplus as appearing in Annexure A.2 to this report;

Details of Restated Minority Interest as appearing in Annexure A.3 to this report;

Details of Restated Long Term Borrowings as appearing in Annexure A.4 to this report;

Details of Restated Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) as appearing in Annexure A.5 to this report;
Details of Restated Short Term Provisions as appearing in Annexure A.9 to this report;

Details of Restated Short Term Borrowings as appearing in Annexure A.6 to this report;

10 Details of Restated Trade Payables as appearing in Annexure A.7 to this report;
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Details of Restated Other Current Liabilities as appearing in Annexure A.8 to this report;
Details of Restated Property, Plant & Equipment as appearing in Annexure A.10 to this report.
Details of Restated Loans & Advances as appearing in Annexure A.11 to this report;

Details of Restated Long term receivables as appearing in Annexure A.12 to this report;
Details of Restated Inventories as Annexure A.13 to this report;

Details of Restated Trade Receivables as Annexure A.14 to this report;

Details of Restated Cash and Cash Equivalent as appearing in Annexure A.15 to this report;
Details of Restated Short-Term Loans and Advances as Annexure A.16 to this report

Details of Restated Other Current Assets as appearing in Annexure A.17 to this report;

Details of Restated Revenue from Operations as appearing in Annexure B.1 to this report;
Details of Restated Other Income as appearing in Annexure B.2 to this report;

Details of Restated Cost of Material Consumed as appearing in Annexure B.3 to this report;
Details of Restated Changes in Inventories of FG and WIP as appearing in Annexure B.4 to this report
Details of Restated Employees' Benefit Expenses as appearing in Annexure B.5 to this report;
Details of Restated Finance Cost as appearing in Annexure B.6 to this report;

Details of Restated Depreciation and Amortization as appearing in Annexure B.7 to this report;
Details of Restated Other expenses as appearing in Annexure B.8 to this report.

Details of Restated Deferred Tax as appearing in Annexure B.9 to this report

Details of Statement of tax shelter as appearing in Annexure F to this report.

Details of Statement of Capitalisation as appearing in Annexure G to this report.

Details of Restated Statement Of Contingent Liabilities as appearing in Annexure H to this report
Details of Restated Accounting ratios as appearing in Annexure I to this report

Details of Restated Related Party Transactions as appearing in Annexure J to this report
Details of Restated Segment Reporting as appearing in Annexure K to this report

Details of Amalgamation of Proprietorship as appearing in Annexure L to this report

We, Deepak Jindal & Co., have been subjected to the peer review process of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) and hold a valid peer review certificate issued by the “Peer Review
Board” of the ICAL

The preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements referred to above are based
on the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and are in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and ICDR Regulations. The Consolidated Financial Statements and information
referred to above is the responsibility of the management of the Company.

The report should not in any way be construed as a re-issuance or re-dating of any of the previous
audit reports issued by any other Firm of Chartered Accountants nor should this report be construed
as a new opinion on any of the financial statements referred to therein.

We have no responsibility to update our report for events and circumstances occurring after the date
of the report of Restated Consolidated financial Statements and Audited Consolidated financial
statements.

The report should not in any way be construed as a re-issuance or re-dating of any of the previous
audit reports issued by any other Firm of Chartered Accountants nor should this report be construed
as a new opinion on any of the financial statements referred to therein.

In our opinion, the above financial information contained in Annexure A to K of this report read with
the respective Significant Accounting Polices and Notes to Restated Consolidated Financial
Statements as set out in Annexure D are prepared after making adjustments and regrouping as
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considered appropriate and have been prepared in accordance with the Act, ICDR Regulations,
Engagement Letter and Guidance Note.

16. Our report is intended solely for use of the management and for inclusion in the Offer Document in
connection with the SME IPO. Our report should not be used, referred to or adjusted for any other
purpose except with our consent in writing.

For Deepak Jindal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No.- 023023N

Sd/-

Deepak Jindal

Partner

Membership No. 514745
Chandigarh

Date: September 21, 2021
UDIN: 21514745AAAAEMS8980
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ANNEXURE — A : RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Rs. in Lakhs)

Sr.  Particulars Note = As at 30th June As at 31st March
No. No. 2021 2021 2020
A. | Equity and Liabilities
1 Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital A.l 551.00 275.50 205.00
Reserves & Surplus A.2 349.48 534.70 122.18
Minority Interest A3 95.46 85.97 153.85
Subtotal 995.94 896.17 481.04
2 Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Borrowings A4 334.66 356.77 529.41
Other Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Provisions - - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) A5 14.94 14.37 10.19
Subtotal 349.60 371.14 539.60
3 Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings A.6 604.10 427.41 24.59
Trade Payables : A7
(A) total outstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises; - - -
and
(B) Total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro 730.55 988.18 733.54
enterprises and small enterprises.".]
Other Current Liabilities A.8 103.20 86.15 127.28
Short Term Provisions A9 23.02 9.28 -
Subtotal 1,460.87 1,511.02 885.41
Total 2,806.41 2,778.33 1,906.05
B. | Assets
1 Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Tangible Assets 1039.76 1050.60 520.38
Intangible Assets A.10 1.17 1.28 1.34
Capital Work in Progress - - 455.25
Long Term Loans & Advances A.l1 24.13 24.13 24.06
Long Term Trade Receivables A.12 11.97 9.89 -
Subtotal 1,077.03 1,085.89 1,001.03
2 Current Assets
Inventories A.13 749.87 726.73 281.73
Trade Receivables A.14 709.76 682.29 507.78
Cash and Cash Equivalents A.15 169.48 149.08 29.54
Short-Term Loans and Advances A.16 86.21 119.45 80.27
Other Current Assets A.17 14.06 14.89 5.71
Subtotal 1,729.38 1,692.45 905.03
Total 2,806.41 2,778.33 1,906.05

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to
restated summary, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,B & C
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For Deepak Jindal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No : 023023N
Peer Review No. : 012493

CA Deepak Jindal

Partner

M. No. 514745

UDIN: 21514745AAAAEM8980

Date : September 21, 2021
Place : Chandigarh

Rakesh Kumar

(Managing Director)
DIN: 08374550

Baljeet Singh
(CFO)
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Dhruv Rakesh
(Director)
DIN: 08374549

Amanpreet Kaur
(Company Secretary)



— S

www. dkanterprises.co.in

ANNEXURE - B: RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

Particulars

Note
No.

For

the Quarter

Ended 30th June

2021

(Rs. in Lakhs)
For The Year Ended 31st March
2021 2020

A. | Revenue:
Revenue from Operations B.1 1,900.95 6,483.89 4511.24
Other income B.2 11.64 11.9 43.79
Total revenue 1,912.59 6495.79 4555.03
B. | Expenses:
Cost of Raw Material Consumed B.3 1,565.59 5,247.06 3649.10
Changes in Inventories of FG & WIP | B.4 (14.77) (21.49) (29.33)
Employees Benefit Expenses B.5 58.91 241.00 199.58
Finance costs B.6 18.27 70.79 55.39
Depreciation and Amortization B.7 17.32 53.30 34.90
Other expenses B.8 138.20 601.13 438.41
Total Expenses 1,783.52 6191.78 4348.05
Profit be.fore e).(ceptional and 129.07 304.01 206.97
extraordinary items and tax
Exceptional Items -
Profit before extraordinary items 129.07 304.01 206.97
and tax
Extraordinary items -
Profit before tax 129.07 304.01 206.97
Tax expense :
Current tax 28.73 55.97 47.27
Deferred Tax B.9 0.57 4.18 10.19
Tax Provision for previous year
Proﬁt (Loss) for the period from 99.77 243.86 149.51
continuing operations
Earning per equity share in Rs.:
(1) Basic 1.81 5.91 4.22
(2) Diluted 1.81 5.91 4.22

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary,

Statement of Assets & liabilities and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A& C.

For Deepak Jindal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No : 023023N
Peer Review No. : 012493

CA Deepak Jindal

Partner

M. No. 514745

UDIN: 21514745SAAAAEM8980
Date : September 21, 2021
Place : Chandigarh
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D.K. Enterprises Global Limited

Rakesh Kumar Dhruv Rakesh
(Managing Director) (Director)

DIN: 08374550 DIN: 08374549
Baljeet Singh Amanpreet Kaur
(CFO) (Company Secretary)
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ANNEXURE - C: RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Particulars

For the Quarter
Ended 30th June

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For The Year Ended 31st March

2021

2020

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

2021

Profit/ (Loss) before tax 129.07 304.01 206.97
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 17.32 53.30 34.90
Interest Income - (0.91) (0.37)
Interest Expense 18.27 70.79 55.39
Operating profit before working capital changes 164.66 427.19 296.89
Movements in working capital :
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables (257.64) 254.64 645.34
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities 17.05 (130.13) 109.06
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories (23.09) (445.04) (202.97)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (29.61) (184.35) (319.41)
Increase/(Decrease) in other long term liabilities - - -
(Increase)/Decrease in short-term loans and advances 33.25 (39.18) (35.78)
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets 0.83 (2.12) (5.33)
Cash generated from operations (94.55) (119.00) 487.80
Income tax paid during the year (14.97) (55.58) 45.64
Net cash from operating activities (A) (109.53) (174.59) 442.16
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Sale/(Purchase) of Investments -
Purchase of Fixed Assets (6.38) (128.21) (922.97)
Interest Received - 0.91 0.37
[irécrease in Other Non-Current Assets/Loans & ) 0.07) (24.06)
vances
Net cash from investing activities (B) (6.38) (127.36) (946.66)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on borrowings (18.27) (70.79) (55.39)
Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Borrowings 176.69 402.82 24.59
Change in Minority Interest - (110.73) (54.03)
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Borrowings (22.12) (81.82) 409.25
Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital - - 200.00
Net Proceeds From Right Issue 282.00
Net cash from financing activities (C) 136.29 421.48 524.41
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
(ATBAC) q 20.39 119.53 19.91
yCe:f-h and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 149.09 29.54 5.00
Cash and cash equivalents of firm acquired
during the year ) ) 4.63
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 169.48 149.08 29.54
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Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary,
Statement of Assets & liabilities and profits and losses appearing in Annexure D,A& B.

For Deepak Jindal & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No : 023023N
Peer Review No. : 012493

CA Deepak Jindal

Partner

M. No. 514745

UDIN: 21514745AAAAEM8980
Date : September 21, 2021
Place : Chandigarh
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On behalf of Board of Directors
D.K. Enterprises Global Limited

Rakesh Kumar
(Managing Director)
DIN: 08374550

Baljeet Singh
(CFO)

Dhruv Rakesh
(Director)
DIN: 08374549

Amanpreet Kaur

(Company Secretary)
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Annexure: D Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Restated Consolidated Financial Statements

1.

Company Overview

We are mainly engaged in manufacturing of Paper Based Packing Material, Self Adheshive Tapes (specialty
tapes likes Masking, Siliconized, Medical and Surface protection Tapes), Laminated Products and flexible
Packaging. Our Company is ISO 9001:2015, 45001:2018 certified company. We have been working almost
exclusive with major multinational corporations in consumer space.

D.K. Enterprises, a proprietorship concern of Mrs. Rekha Bansal running its business since last two decades
which was taken over by our company (including all its movable assets, current assets and liabilities of
manufacturing facilities of Panchkula and Vadodara) at a total consideration of * 200.00 Lakhs (including
goodwill of Rs. 162079.48) in terms of agreement dated May 15, 2019 by issuing 20,00,000 Equity Shares of
Rs. 10 each of our company to Mrs. Rekha Bansal.

Our company’s registered office and manufacturing facilities Unit I is located in Panchkula at Haryana and Unit
IT at Vadodra in Gujarat. We are proposing to commence manufacturing facilities at Baddi in Himachal Pradesh
for manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Masking/specialty tapes and Laminated Products. We are also
proposing to installed machinery at Vadodara (Unit II) for manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape,
Masking/specialty tapes and Laminated Products.

Significant Accounting Policies :

i) Basis for preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of D.K. ENTERPRISES GLOBAL LIMITED (“the Holding Company”), and its
partnership firm (M/s SATGURU ENGRAVURES), have been prepared and presented to comply with the
historical cost conventions in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP),
including the Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and on
the basis of going concern.

The company follows accrual method of accounting.
ii) Uses of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the
period in which the results are known/ materialized.

iii) Fixed Assets and Depreciation

(a) Fixed Assets have been stated at original cost, inclusive of inward freight, incidental expenses related to
acquisition, financing cost till commencement of commercial production and related pre-operative
expenses, less depreciation, while arriving at original cost.

(b) Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on SLM basis based on useful life of assets as prescribed in
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

iv) Impairment of Assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment
loss is charged to Profit and Loss Account in the year/ quarter in which asset is identified as impaired. The
impairment loss recognized in prior accounting periodis reversed if there has been a change in the estimate
of recoverable amount.

v) Foreign Currency Transaction

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction or that approximates the actual rate at the date of transaction.
e Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year/ quarter end are restated at year/ quarter
end rates.
e Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.
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e Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or translation is recognized
in the Profit & Loss Account.

vi) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part
of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready
for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to Profit and Loss account.

vii) Inventories

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence, if
any. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including
manufacturing overheads incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition.

viii) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized only when it can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate
applicable.

ix) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent
Liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor
disclosed in the financial statements.

x) Investments

Long term investments, if any, are carried at cost less provision for diminution other than temporary, if any, in
value of such investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value.

xi) Leases

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term,
are classified as operating lease. Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the profit
and loss account

xii) Provision for Current Tax and Deferred Tax

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company has opted for Section 115BAA of Income Tax Act,1961 during the year/
quarter. Deferred Tax resulting from “timing difference” between taxable and accounting income is accounted
for using the tax rates and laws that are enacted of substantively enacted as on balance sheet date.

xiii) Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits:

Employee benefits payable fully within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term
employee benefit and are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-Employment Benefits ( Defined Contribution Plans)
Contributions to the Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution scheme, is recognized as an expense in the
profit and loss account in the period in which the contribution is due.

xiv) Segment Reporting

The company operates in the business segment of BOPP Tape & laminates and Corrugated boxes & sleeve rolls.
As such the activities are defined as two different segments in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS-
17) issued under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, as amended up to date.
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ANNEXURE -A.1 : C i S of Share Capital

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 30th June As at 31st March
2021 2021 2020

Equity Share Capital

Authorised Share Capital

75,10,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each (Previous Year 75,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each) 751.00 750.00 305.00)
Total 751.00 750.00 305.00

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Up Share Capital

55,10,0000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each (Previous Year: 20,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each) 551.00 275.50 205.00
Tolal| 551.00 275.50 205.00

Notes :

A.1.1 Right, Preferences and Restrictions attached to Shares :

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity sharcholders are
eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company in proportion of their shareholding.

A.1.2  Reconciliation of No. of Shares Outstanding at the end of the year
(Rs. In Lakhs)

: As at 30th June As at 31st March

Particulars
2021 2021 2020

Equity Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,755,000 2,050,000 50,000
Shares issued during the year - 705,000 2,000,000
Bonus Shares issued during the year 2,755,000 - -
Share oulslanding at the end of the year 5,510,000 2,755,000 2,050,000

Notes :
A.1.2 Bonus Issue
Our company has issued Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on April 24, 2021 i.e. after the balance sheet data but before the date on which financials statement were approved by Board of Directors.

ANNEXURE - A.2 : C i of Reserves and Surplus
(Rs. In Lakhs)
: As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020

Reserves & Surplus
Balance in S of Profit & Loss
Balance as at the beginning of the year 323.20 122.18 -
Add: Profit for the year 99.77 243.86 149.51
Less: Bonus Issue 64.00 - -
Less : Transferred to Minority Interest 9.48 42.85 27.33
Balance as at the end of the year 349.48 323.20 122.18

(A) 349.48 323.20 122.18
Security Premium Reserve
Balance as at the beginning of the year 211.50 - -
Add: Additions during the year 211.50 -
Less: Bonus Issue 2115
Balance as at the end of the year - 211.50 -

(B) - 211.50 -

Toatl(A+B) 349.48 534.70

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in
Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - A3 : R dC i of Minority Interest
(Rs. In Lakhs)
q As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020

Minority Interest
Balance as at the beginning of the year 85.97 153.85 -
Add: Share on date of Investment - ) 180.56
Add: Transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss 9.48 42.85 2733
Add: Increase/(Decrease) in Capital Post-Acquisition - (110.73) (54.03)
Balance as at the end of the year 95.46 85.97 153.85

Total 95.46 85.97 153.85

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in
Annexure D,A,B,C.
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ANNEXURE - A4 :R dC i of Long Term Borrowings

(Rs. In Lakhs)

N As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020
Secured:
Term Loan From Bank: 328.42 342.68 381.45
Vehicle Loan 6.24 14.09 11.58
Unsecured:
Loan From Director - - 136.38
Total 334.66 356.77 529.41

Note A.4.1: There were no re-schedulement or default in the repayment of loans taken by the Company.

Note A.4.2 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities,profits and losses and cash flows
appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - A.5: R d C lidated Stat of Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) (Net)
(Rs. In Lakhs)
N As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020

Deferred Tax Liability
Related to Fixed Assets 67.82 62.86 39.18

Total (a) 67.82 62.86 39.18
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision For Disallowance of Expenses 8.47 5.77 -

Total (b) 8.47 5.77 -
Net deferred tax asset/(liability){(a)-(b)} 59.35 57.09 39.18
Deferred Tax Liabilities( Tax Impact) 14.94 14.37 10.19

Note A.5.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows
appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - A6 : C i S of Short Term Borrowings

(Rs. In Lakhs)

: As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020
Unsecured Loan Repayable on Demand :
From Directors - -
Working Capital Borrowings From Banks (Secured) 492.18 311.99 -
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings 111.92 115.42 24.59
Total 604.10 427.41 24.59

Note A.6.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities,profits and losses and cash flows
appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - A8 : R d C i of Other Current Liabilities
Particulars As at 30th June As at 31st March
2021 2021 2020

Statutory Remittances 25.58 17.00 20.63
Provision for Employee Benefits 17.02 10.97 14.12
Advance From Customer 4.81 3.08 5.30
Other Liabilities 55.80 55.10 87.23
Grand Total 103.20 86.15 127.28

Note A.8.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows
appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - A9 : R dC lidated S of Short Term Provisions
(Rs. In Lakhs)
N As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020
Provsion for Income Tax 23.02 9.28 -
Total 23.02 9.28 -

Note A.9.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities,profits and losses and cash flows
appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - A.11 : R d C i of Long Term Loans & Advances
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 30th June As at 31st March
2021 2021 2020
Security Deposits 24.13 24.13 24.06
Total 24.13 24.13 24.06

Note A.11.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities,profits and losses and cash flows
appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.
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ANNEXURE - A.12 : R d C of Long Term Trade Receivables

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 30th June As at 31st March
2021 2021 2020

Long Term Trade Receivables
From Directors/Promoters/Promoter Group/Associates/ Relatives of Directors/ Group Companies. (For Related -
Party Transactions Refer Annexure J) B -
Others 11.97 9.89

Total 11.97 9.89 -
Note A.12.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities,profits and losses and cash flows

appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - A.13 : R

dC Tidated S

of Inventories

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 30th June As at 31st March
2021 2021 2020
Raw Material 684.28 675.96 25241
‘Work In Progress 21.57 17.02 13.92
Finished Goods 44.02 33.75 15.40
Total 749.87 726.73 281.73

Note A.13.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities,profits and losses and cash flows

appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - A.15 : Restated Consolidated Cash and Cash Equivalents

(Rs. In Lakhs)

: As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020
Cash in hand 4.13 6.45 11.00
Balances with Banks:
Current Accounts 165.35 142.63 18.54
Total 169.48 149.08 29.54

Note A.15.1 :
appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C..

The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of As:

sets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows

ANNEXURE - A.16 : R dC lidated of Short Term Loans and Advances

(Rs. In Lakhs)

N As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020
Advances to Suppliers 49.48 65.68 33.06
Other Loans & Advances 36.73 53.77 47.21
Total 86.21 119.45 80.27

Note A.16.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of As:

appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

sets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows

ANNEXURE - A.17 : of Other Current Assets

(Rs. In Lakhs)

: As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020
Preliminary Expenses 12.09 12.45 2.92
Prepaid Expense 1.97 2.44 2.79
Total 14.06 14.89 5.71

Note A.17.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows

appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - B.1: R dC lidated S

of R

from Operations

(Rs. In Lakhs)

A 100 e (Gl e L For The Year Ended March 31,
Particulars 30th June
2021 2021 2020
Turnover from Sale of Goods (For Related Party Transactions Refer Annexure J) 1,899.56 6,470.96 4505.95
Other Operating Income 1.39 12.93 5.28
Revenue from operations 1,900.95 6,483.89 4,511.24

Note B.1.1 :
appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows
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Revenue Bifurcation based in Geographical areas

9 fontief0uarterlinded For The Year Ended March 31,
Particulars 30th June
2021 2021 2020
Indigenous
Jammu and Kashmir 180.13 433.14 147.60
Himachal Pradesh 590.02 1,962.12 1,189.83
Punjab 58.53 221.77 163.27
Chandigarh 45.68 120.71 146.01
Uttarakhand 507.98 1,399.75 816.43
Haryana 30.37 76.65 299.90
Delhi 69.91 100.35 17.86
Rajasthan 1.36 2.74 9.12
Uttar Pradesh 49.10 209.72 109.56
Bihar - 6.21 -
Assam 5.49 5.71 13.69
West Bengal 1.43 16.41 2.73
Odisha 0.03 1.35 3.49
Chattisgarh 1.73 10.67 0.97
Madhya Pradesh 32.46 103.96 60.82
Gujarat 239.35 1,517.55 1,367.73
Dadra and Nagar Haveli 0.10 0.68 -
Maharashtra 35.96 80.47 73.14
Karnataka - 5.62 4.49
Kerala - 324 0.14
Tamil Nadu 3.18 9.34 7.11
Pondicherry 4.43 14.04 11.69
Tel - 1.62 -
Andhra Pradesh (New) 1.07 14.99 7.15
Daman and Diu - - 0.28
1.858.31 6.318.81 4.453.01
Export
Srilanka 42.64 152.15 46.45
Bangladesh - - 6.49
42.64 152.15 52.94
Total 1,900.95 6,470.96 4,505.95
ANNEXURE -B.2 : R dC i S of Other Income
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Parteniny T thesoot:a}::;Ended For The Year Ended March 31,
2021 2021 2020
Interest Income - 0.91 0.37
Discount Received - 321 8.82
GST Refund 7.32
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation Gain 0.13
Misc. Income 4.20 7.78 34.60
Total 11.64 11.90 43.79

Note B.2.1 :
appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows

d Stat

ANNEXURE -B.3 : R dC

t of Cost of Material Consumed

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the Quarter Ended | For The Year Ended
Particulars 30th June March 31,
2021 2021 2020

Opening Stock 675.96 252.41 78.76
Add : Purchases During The Year (For Related Party Transactions Refer Annexure J) 1,573.91 5,670.61 3,822.75
2,249.87 5.923.02 3.901.51
Less : Closing Stock 684.28 675.96 252.41
Total 1,565.59 5,247.06 3,649.10

Note B.3.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows

appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE -B.4 : R dC i d

of Changes in Inventories of FG & WIP

(Rs. In Lakhs)

. 1907 e (Gl e L For The Year Ended March 31,
Particulars 30th June
2021 2021 2020
Stock at Close-Finished 44.02 33.80 15.40
Stock at Close-WIP 21.57 17.02 13.93
65.59 50.82 29.33
Stock at Commencement-Finished 33.80 15.40 -
Stock at Commencement-WIP 17.02 13.93 -
50.82 29.33 -
(Increase)/Decrease in Stock (14.77) (21.49) (29.33)
Total (14.77) (21.49) (29.33)

Note B.3.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows

appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.
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ANNEXURE -B.5 : R d C lidated S of Employee Benefit Expense

(Rs. In Lakhs)

q fogtsOuapiegiced For The Year Ended March 31,
Particulars 30th June

2021 2021 2020
Salaries, wages and Other Benefits (For Related Party Transactions refer Annexure J) 38.88 162.72 135.30
Director Remuneration (For Related Party Transactions refer Annexure J) 9.00 36.00 31.50
Bonus Expenses 1.06 4.22 5.92
Grautity Expenses 2.69 10.78 4.46
Staff Welfare Exp 3.76 15.08 1531
Provident Fund Expenses 3.52 12.20 7.09
Total 58.91 241.00 199.58

Note B.5.1 :
appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows

ANNEXURE -B.6 : R d C of Finance costs

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the Quarter Ended
Particulars 30th June For The Year Ended March 31,
2021 2021 2020
Interest Expense - Banks 16.51 59.73 42.20
Interest Expense - Other (For Related Party Transactions refer Annexure J) 1.76 11.06 13.19
Total 18.27 70.79 55.39

Note B.6.1 :
appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows

ANNEXURE -B.7 : C of Depreciation & Amortization
(Rs. In Lakhs)
q 190 e (Gl e i For The Year Ended March 31,
Particulars 30th June
2021 2021 2020
Depreciation 17.21 52.88 34.62
Amortization 0.11 0.42 0.28
Total 17.32 53.30 34.90
Note B.7.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows

appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE -B.8 : R d C i d

of Other Expenses

(Rs. In Lakhs)

. 1A e (Ui Ll For The Year Ended March 31,
Particulars 30th June

2021 2021 2020
Bank Charges 0.68 12.63 9.88
Power & Fuel 51.82 204.08 140.32
Office Rent (For Related Party Transactions refer Annexure J) 9.15 39.03 18.37
Repairs and Mai 18.58 56.00 70.52
Travelling Exp. 0.01 0.85 11.05
Other Manufacturing Expenses 12.08 4538 33.57
Selling Expenses 36.40 191.75 130.92
Administrative Expenses 9.48 5141 23.78
Total 138.20 601.13 438.41

Note B.8.1
appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

: The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows

ANNEXURE -B.9 : R d C of Deferred Tax Asset / Liabilities

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the Quarter Ended

Particulars 30th June For The Year Ended March 31,

2021 2021 2020
WDV as per Companies Act, 2013 (A) 358.99 361.83 359.45
'WDV as per Income tax Act, 1961 (B) 291.17 298.97 320.27
Difference in WDV (A-B) (67.82) (62.86) (39.18)
Gratuity- DTA 8.47 5.77 -
Restated Closing Balance of Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) (14.94) (14.37) (10.19)
DTA/(DTL) Balance as per Books -
Additional Provision to be made/Reversal of Provision/ Creation of Deferred Tax Asset 0.57 4.18 10.19

Note B.9.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows

appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.
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A.1.3 Details of Shareholding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the pany
30-Jun-21 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
f Sharehol
Name of Sharcholder Nos % of Holding Nos % of Holding Nos % of Holding
Dhruv Rakesh 453,500 8.23% 214.425 7.79% 12,425 0.61%)
Rakesh Kumar 724,850 13.16% 362,425 13.16% 12,425 0.61%
Rekha Bansal 4,324,850 78.49% 2,162,425 78.49% 2,012,425 98.17%
Kanika Rakesh - 0.00% 12,425 0.45% 12425 0.61%
Total 5,503,200 99.88% 2,751,700 99.89% 2,049,700 99.99%

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, statement of assets and liabilities, profits and losses
and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

Detail of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Promoter’s Name No. of shares % of total shares % chang:e::rlng the
30-Jun-21
Dhruv Rakesh 453500 8.23% 0.44%
Rakesh Kumar 724850 13.16% 0.00%
Rekha Bansal 4324850 78.49% 0.00%
Kanika Rakesh - - -0.45%
31-Mar-21
Dhruv Rakesh 214425 7.79% No Change
Rakesh Kumar 362425 13.16% No Change
Rekha Bansal 2162425 78.49% No Change
Kanika Rakesh 12425 0.45% No Change
31-Mar-20
Dhruv Rakesh 214425 7.79% -17.06%
Rakesh Kumar 362425 13.16% -11.69%
Rekha Bansal 2162425 78.49% 53.64%
Kanika Rakesh 12425 0.45% -24.40%
31-Mar-19
Dhruv Rakesh 12425 24.85% Ist Year
Rakesh Kumar 12425 24.85% 1st Year
Rekha Bansal 12425 24.85% Ist Year
Kanika Rakesh 12425 24.85% 1st Year
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ANNEXURE - A.14: R d C i of Trade Receivables

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 30th June

As at 31st March

2021

2021

2020

O ing for a period exceeding six months (Unsecured and considered Good)

From Directors/Promoters/Promoter Group/Associates/ Relatives of Directors/ Group
Companies.

Others

8.16

8.74

3.41

O ding for a period not

6 months (Unsecured and idered Good)

From Directors/Promoters/Promoter Group/Associates/ Relatives of Directors/ Group
Companies.

0.31

Others

701.02

678.88

49931

Total

709.76

682.29

507.78

profits and losses and cash flows..

[Note A.14.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities,

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than 6 months [ 6 months - 1 year More than 3
1-2 years 2-3 years years
As at 30th June, 2021*
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable - considered good 701.02 8.74 11.97( - -
721.73
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable — - - - - -
considered doubtful
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivable — - - - - -
considered good
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable — considered doubtful - - - - -
As at March 31,2021*
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable — 678.88 3.41 9.89( - -
considered good
692.18
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable — considered doubtful - - - - -
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivable — - - - - -
|considered good -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable — considered doubtful - - - - -
As at 31st March,2020*
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable — considered good 499.62 8.16 - - -
507.78

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable —
considered doubtful

(i) Disputed Trade Receivable
considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable — considered doubtful

Long Term Receivable:

ANNEXURE -A.7 : R d C i S of Trade Payables
(Rs. In Lakhs)
: As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particul;
articuars 2021 2021 2020
Trade Payables due to
- Micro and Small Enterprises - - -
- Others - - -
- Promotor/Promotor Group - - -
- Others 730.55 988.18 733.54
Total 730.55 988.18 733.54

liabilities,profits and losses and cash flows..

Note A.7.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets &
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(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment / Invoice

To

date tal
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More
vear than 3
As at 30th June, 2021
(i) MSME - - - - -
(ii) Others 727.69 1.80 1.06 - 730.55
(iii) _Disputed dues - MSME - - - _ _
(iv) _ Disputed dues — Others - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2021
(i) MSME - - - - _
(ii) Others 985.57 2.61 - - 988.18
(i) __Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) __ Disputed dues — Others - - - _ _
As at 31st March,2020
(i) MSME - - - - _
(i) Others 733.54 - - - 733.54

(i) Disputed dues - MSME

(iv) __ Disputed dues — Others
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ANNEXURE - E : STATEMENT OF MATERIAL ADJUSTMENT TO THE RESTATED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT

1 Material Regrouping

Appropriate adjustments have been made in the Restated Standalone Financial Statements of Assets and Liabilities, Profit and Losses and Cash Flows, wherever required, by
reclassification of the corresponding items of income, expenses, assets and liabilities in order to bring them in line with the regroupings as per the audited financial statements of the
company and the requirements of SEBI Regulations.

2. Material Adjustments :

The Summary of results of restatement made in the Audited Standalone Financial Statements for the respective years and its impact on the profit/(loss) of the Company is as
follows:

For the Quarter Ended June

Particulars 30, For The Year Ended March 31,

2021 2021 2020

(A) Net Profits as per audited fi ial (A) 99.77 242.03 152.03

Add/(Less) : Adjustments on account of -

1) Prepaid exp of P.Y. Trf to Exps - - _

2)Prepaid Expenses of current Year - -

3)Provision for Interest accured but not Due - - |

4) Previous Year Expenses transferred to Current year - - |

4)Reversal of Interest Accrued but not due for previous year - - |

5) Difference on Account of Calculation in Deferred Tax - - _

6) Change in Provision for Current Tax - 1.83 (2.51)

7) Difference on account of Foreign Exchange Gain - - _

8) Difference on Account of Provision for Gratuity - - _

9) Difference on Account of Misc Exp - -

Total Adjustments (B) - 1.83 (2.51)

Restated Profit/ (Loss) (A+B) 99.77 243.86 149.51

Statement of Changes in Equity

oo e or The Quarter Ended June 3 For The Year Ended March 31,
2021 2021 2020
Total Equity as per Audited Financials 901.17 810.89 329.69
Add/(Less) : Adjustments on account of -
Changes on Account of Changes in Profit and Loss Statement | (0.69) | (0.69) (2.51)
Total Equity as per Restated Financials | 900.49 | 810.20 327.18

3. Notes on Material Adiustments pertaining to prior years

(1) Preapid Expenses charged to Profit & Loss Account
Expenses related to Next year were transferred in Prepaid of Current Year

(2) Provision for Interest Accured but not due

Provision for Interest accured on loan EMI but not due has been made in restated financials

(3) Difference on Account of Calculation in Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is calculated on the difference of WDV as per Companies Act & income tax Act in Resated financials but in Audited financials the same has been calculated between
difference of Depreciation

(4) Change in Provision for Current Tax
Since the Resated profit has been changed so that the Provision for current tax is also got changed

(5) Difference on Account of Foreign Exchange Gain/loss
Foreign Exchange gain/loss is calculated on the closing balance of foreign debtors in restated financials

(6) Difference on account for Provsion for Gratuity
Provision for Gratuity has been made in resated finaniclas to comply with requirements of AS - 15

159



ANNEXURE - F : RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF TAX SHELTERS

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Sr.No |Particulars As at 30th June As at 31st March
2021 2021 2020
A Restated Profit before tax 129.07 304.01 206.97
Short Term Capital Gain at special rate - -
Partnership profit 59.58 101.00 78.41
Normal Corporate Tax Rates (%) 22% 22% 25.00%
Partnership Tax rate 31.20% 31.20% 31.20%
Short Term Capital Gain at special rate 16.69% 16.69% 16.69%
MAT Tax Rates (%) 16.69% 16.69% 16.69%
B Tax thereon (including surcharge and education 25.17% 25.17% 26.00%
cess)
Tax on Partnership Firm 18.59 31.51 24.46
Total (Only Subsidiary Firm) 18.59 31.51 24.46
Adjustments:
C Permanent Differences
Deduction allowed under Income Tax Act - - -
Exempt Income - - -
Allowance of Expenses under the Income Tax Act - - -
Section 35
Disallowance of Income under the Income Tax Act - - -
80IC Deduction (Firm) - 10.92
Disallowance of Expenses under the Income Tax - - 0.30
Act
Total Permanent Differences - - (10.62)
D Timing Differences
Difference between Depreciation as per Income tax, (20.59) (72.50) -
1961 and Companies Act 2013
Provision for Gratuity disallowed - -
Expense disallowed u/s 43B - -
Total Timing Differences (20.59) (72.50) -
E Net Adjustments E= (C+D) (20.59) (72.50) (10.62)
F Tax expense/(saving) thereon (6.42) (22.62) (3.31)
G Total Income/(loss) (A+E) 108.48 231.51 196.36
Taxable Income/ (Loss) as per MAT 129.07 304.01 206.97
I Income Tax as per normal provision 12.17 8.89 21.15
J Income Tax under Minimum Alternative Tax - -
under Section 115 JB of the Income Tax Act
Net Tax Expenses (Higher of 1J) 12.17 8.89 21.15
K Relief u/s 90/91
Total Current Tax Expenses 12.17 8.89 21.15
L Adjustment for Interest on income tax/ others - - 1.73
M Total Tax Expenses of Holding Company 16.56 47.08 24.39
Total Current Tax Expenses 28.73 55.97 47.27

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, statement of assets and
liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.
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ANNEXURE - G : RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CAPITALISATION

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sr. No Particulars Pre issue Post issue

Debts*

A Long Term Debt 334.66 334.66

B Short Term Debt 604.10 604.10

C Total Debt 938.76 938.76
Equity Shareholders Funds
Equity Share Capital 551.00 750.80
Reserves and Surplus# 432.85 965.14

D Total Equity 983.85 1,715.94

E Total Capital 1,922.61 2,654.70
Long Term Debt/ Equity Ratio (A/D) 0.34 0.20
Total Debt/ Equity Ratio (C/D) 0.95 0.55

Notes :

1) Long Term Debt are borrowings other than short-term borrowings and also includes current maturities of

long- term debt included in other current liabilities

* The amounts are consider as outstanding as on 30.06.2021

# After Adjusting preliminary expenses to the extent not written off
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ANNEXURE - H : RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(Rs. In Lakhs)

q As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020

1. Bank Guarantee/ LC Discounting for which FDR margin - - -
money has been given to the bank as Security
2. Capital Commitment - - -
3. Income Tax Demand - - -
4. TDS Demands 0.06 0.03 -
5. ESIC Demand - - -
Total 0.06 0.03 -
ANNEXURE -1: RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING RATIOS

(Rs. In Lakhs)

. As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020

Restated PAT as per P& L Account (Rs. in Lakhs) 99.77 243.86 149.51
EBITDA 164.66 428.10 297.26
Actual No. of Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the 5,510,000 2,755,000 2,050,000
period
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares at the end of the 2,061,589 1,770,548
Period (Note -2) 5,510,000
Net Worth 888.39 797.75 327.18
Current Assets 1729.38 1692.45 905.03
Current Liabilities 1460.87 1511.02 885.41
No Of Shares (Pre Bonus) 5510000 2061589 1770548
No Of Shares (Post Bonus) 5510000 4123178 3541096
Earnings Per Share
Basic EPS (Pre Bonus) 1.81 11.83 8.44
Eps (Post Bonus) 1.81 5.91 4.22
Return on Net Worth (%) 11.23% 30.57% 45.70%
Net Asset Value Per Share
Pre Bonus 16.12 28.96 15.96
Post Bonus 16.12 14.48 15.96
Current Ratio 1.18 1.12 1.02
EBITDA 164.66 428.10 297.26
Nominal Value per Equity share(Rs.) 10 10 10

* The Company does not have any diluted potential Equity Shares. Consequently the basic and diluted profit/earning per share of the company

remain the same.
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Notes :

1)  The ratios have been calculated as below:

a) Basic Earnings Per Share (Rs.) = Restated PAT attributable to Equity Shareholders/ Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares
outstanding during the year.

b) Diluted Earnings Per Share (Rs.) = Restated PAT attributable to Equity Shareholders/ Weighted Average Number of Diluted Potential
Equity Shares outstanding during the year.

¢) Return on Net Worth (%) = Restated PAT attributable to Equity Shareholders/ Net Worth X 100

d) Restated Net Asset Value per equity share (Rs.) = Restated Net Worth as at the end of the year/ Total Number of Equity Shares
outstanding during the year.

2)  Weighted Average Number of equity shares is the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year adjusted by the
number of equity shares issued during the year multiplied by the time weighting factor. Further, number of shares are after considering impact
of the bonus shares in the ratio of 1 bonus share for 1 fully paid up equity share to the existing shareholders Alloted on April 26, 2021 i.e. after
the balance sheet date but before the date on which financials are approved by Board of Directors.

3) Earnings Per Share calculation are in accordance with Accounting Standard 20- Earnings Per Share, notified under the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, as amended.

4) Net Worth = Equity Share Capital + Reserve and Surplus (including surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss)

5) The figures disclosed above are based on the Restated Financial Statements of the Company.
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ANNEXURE - J(A) : RESTATED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

As required under Accounting Standard 18 "Related Party Disclosures" as notified pursuant to Company (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006, following are details of
transactions during the year with related parties of the company as defined in AS 18.

A.  List of Related Parties and Nature of Relationship :

Particulars [ Name of Related Parties

1. Other Related Parties:

Mr. Dhruv Rakesh

Mr. Rakesh Kumar

a) Key Management Personnel's Mrs. Rekha Bansal

Ms. Amanpreet Kaur (Company's Secretary)

Mr. Baljeet Singh (CFO)

D.K. Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mrs. Rekha Bansal)

b) Concern's in which KMP or their relatives are

. Rakesh Kumar HUF
interested

Sankyo Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mr. Dhruv Rakesh)

Note 1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, statement of assets and liabilities, profits and
losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.
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ANNEXURE - J(B) - Transactions carried out with related parties referred to in (1) above, in ordinary course of business:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
q q As at June 30 As at March 31
Nature of Transactions Name of Related Parties 2021 2021 2020
. . Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 3.00 12.00 10.50
1. Directors Remuneration
Mr. Rakesh Kumar 6.00 24.00 21.00
Total 9.00 36.00 31.50
- . Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 1.20 4.80 -
2. Office Rent paid Mrs Rekha Bansal 7.20 28.80 12.60
Total 8.40 33.60 12.60
Rakesh Kumar HUF
Opening Balance - 46.38 -
Loan Received / Interest during the year - 533 46.38
Loan Paid during the year - (51.72)
. X . Closing Balance - 46.38
3. Loan Recived(Paid) during the Year to
Related Parties
Mr. Rakesh Kumar
Opening Balance - 90.00 -
Loan Received / Interest during the year - 5.73 90.00
Loan Paid during the year - (95.73)
Closing Balance - - 90.00
Mr. Baljeet Singh (CFO 1.55 5.95 -
4. Salary to KMP Ms. Anfanprccth:ur (C)ompany's Secretary) 0.75 0.51 -
Total I 2.30 6.46 -
5. Sale to Related Parties I D.K. Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mrs. Rekha Bansal) - 437.76
Total 437.76
6. Purchase from Related Parties Sankyo Emer.prises - - 7.29 3881 19.73
D.K. Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mrs. Rekha Bansal) - - 32.91
Total 7.29 38.81 52.64
7.Right Issue of Shares Mr. Dhruv Rakesh - 80.80 -
Mr. Rakesh Kumar - 140.00 -
Mrs. Rekha Bansal - 60.00 -
Mr. Baljeet Singh (CFO) - 0.40 -
- 281.20 -
3. Interest on Loan Mr. Rakesh Kumar - 5.73 8.73
Rakesh Kumar HUF - 5.33 4.46
Total - 11.06 13.19
9. Takeover | DK Enterprises* | - | - | 200.00
Total [ -1 -] 200.00

*Proprietorship of Rekha Bansal - "D.K. Enterprise" was acquired in the F.Y. 2019-20 for the comsideration of Rs. 200 Lacs by issue of 2000000 equity shares of Rs. 10 for

consideration other than Cash

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, statement of assets and liabilities, profits and losses and cash

flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.
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ANNEXURE - J(C) - Outstanding Balance as at the end of the year

(Rs. In Lakhs)
2022 (1st Quarter) 2021 2020
1. Payables Mr. Rakesh Kumar 1.40 90.00
Rakesh Kumar HUF - 46.38
Total 1.40 136.38
2022 (1st Quarter) 2021 2020
2. Recievables Sankyo Enterprises 0.97 0.31
Total 0.97 0.31

and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, statement of assets and liabilities, profits and losses
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ANNEXURE - K - Segment Reporting (For 1st QTR FY 2021-22)

The company operates in the business segment of BOPP Tape & laminates, Corrugated sheet and boxes & soap stiffeners. As such the activities are defined as two different segments
in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS-17 ) issued under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, as amended up to date.

Segment Reporting Disclosure

Rs. In Lacs
Sarticulars Bof:mTir?:tee?”d Shé:e‘tt;‘;%aggxes Soap Stiffener | Other (Trading) |  Eliminations  |Unallocable Items Coni‘gt'gfted
Current Quarter | Current Quarter | Current Quarter | Current Quarter | Current Quarter | Current Quarter | Current Quarter

REVENUE
External Sales

Indigenous 887.44 239.35 731.51 0.00 - 1,858.31

Export 42.64 - - - 42.64
Inter Segment Sales 71.65 - 335.84 116.50 (523.98) - -
Total Sales 1,001.73 239.35 1,067.35 116.50 (523.98) - 1,900.95
Miscllaneous Income -
Operating - - - - - -
Non Operating 38.06 - 11.52 - (37.93) - 11.64
Segment Revenue 1,039.79 239.35 1,078.87 116.50 (561.92) - 1,912.59
Total Revenue 1,039.79 239.35 1,078.87 116.50 (561.92) - 1,912.59
RESULT
Segment Result 93.46 12.99 72.91 6.59 (37.93) - 148.02
Unallocated Corporate Expenses - - - - -
Interest Expense 5.55 0.14 13.33 - - 19.02
Profit Before Taxation 87.92 12.85 59.58 6.59 (37.93) - 129.00
Income Taxes - - - (29.28) (29.28)
Profit Before Prior Period Expenses 87.92 12.85 59.58 6.59 (37.93) - 99.72
Prior Period Expenses - - - - -
Profit For the Year - - - - 99.72
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets 1,476.23 339.50 1,312.67 6.58 - - 3,134.97
Unallocated Corporate Assets - - - - -
Total Assets 1,476.23 339.50 1,312.67 6.58 - - 3,134.97
Segment Liabilities 604.73 301.53 866.40 (0.01) - 14.94 1,787.60
Total Liabilities 604.73 301.53 866.40 - 14.94 1,787.60
Depreciaion 5.05 2.69 9.55 0.03 - - 17.32

The company has three primarily reportable business segments as

(a) Business Segments
For management purposes the company is organized into three

(1) BOPP Tape and laminates
(2) Corrugated sheets and boxes
(3) Soap Stiffeners

The divisions are the basis on which the company reports its primary segment information. The ‘BOPP Tape and laminates’ segment produces BOPP Tape, Laminate and liner.
The ‘Corrugated sheets and boxes’ segment manufactures Corrugated sleeves, sheets and Boxes. The “Soap stiffeners” segment manufactures soap paper and stiffeners.

(b) Segment revenues and expenses
All segment revenues and expenses are directly attributable to

(c) Segment assets and liabilities:
Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in respective segments. Tax related assets and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated
to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

(d) Inter-segment transfers:
Segment revenue, segment expenses and segment result include transfers between business segments and between geographical segments. Such transfers are accounted
for at competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated customers for similar goods. Those transfers are eliminated in consolidation.

(e) Accounting policies:
The accounting policies consistently used in the preparation of

(f) Unallocable and Head office expenses
Scricial aulliisduve CAPEIIDED, T1Iedau-ullILe CAPEIIDED, diiu
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168



ANNEXURE - K - Segment Reporting (For FY 2020-21)

The company operates in the business segment of BOPP Tape & laminates, Corrugated sheet and boxes & soap stiffeners. As such the activities are defined as two different segments

in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS-17 ) issued under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, as amended up to date.

Segment Reporting Disclosure

Rs. In Lakhs
Particulars BO::m’];::fe:nd Cor::.gda:;e:xz:eets Soap Stiffener Other Eliminations Unallocable Items Consolidated Total
Current Year Current Year Current Year | Current Year Current Year Current Year Current Year

REVENUE
External Sales

Indigenous 2,802.96 1,530.28 2,666.36 1.53 -682.33 - 6,317.26

Export 152.14 - - - - - 153.69
Inter Segment Sales 37.38 - - 131.42 -168.8 - -
Total Sales 2,992.49 1,530.28 2,666.36 132.95 -851.13 - 6,470.95
Miscellaneous Income -
Operating 12.6 0.33 - - - - 12.93
Non-Operating 0.4 0.51 10.88 0.12 - - 11.91
Segment Revenue 3,005.49 1,531.12 2,677.24 133.07 -851.13 - 6,495.79
Total Revenue 3,005.49 1,531.12 2,677.24 133.07 -851.13 - 6,495.79
RESULT
Segment Result 200.24 34.78 151.69 0.71 - - 387.41
Unallocated Corporate Expenses - - - - - - -
Interest Expense 31.69 1.03 50.69 - - 83.42
Profit Before Taxation - - - - - - 304
Income Taxes - - - - - -61.98 -61.98
Profit Before Prior Period Expenses - - - - - - 242.02
Prior Period Expenses - - - - - - -
Profit For the Year - - - - - - 242.02
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets 1,091.01 314.9 1,235.33 136.91 - - 2,778.15
Unallocated Corporate Assets - - - 0.88 0.88
Total Assets 1,091.01 314.9 1,235.33 136.91 - 0.88 2,779.03
Segment Liabilities 469.55 561.78 836.48 - - 14.37 1,882.17
Total Liabilities 469.55 561.78 836.48 - - 14.37 1,882.17
Depreciation 29.51 0.11 23.67 - - - 53.3

The company has three primarily reportable business segments as f

(a) Business Segments
For management purposes the company is organized into three

(1) BOPP Tape and laminates
(2) Corrugated sheets and boxes

(3) Soap Stiffeners

The divisions are the basis on which the company reports its primary segment information. The ‘BOPP Tape and laminates’ segment produces BOPP Tape, Laminate and liner.

The ‘Corrugated sheets and boxes” segment manufactures Corrugated sleeves, sheets and Boxes. The “Soap stiffeners” segment manufactures soap paper and stiffeners.

(b) Segment revenues and expenses
All segment revenues and expenses are directly attributable to the

(c) Segment assets and liabilities:

Segment Assets and Segment Liabilities represent Assets and Liabilities in respective segments. Tax related assets and other assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated

to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as “Unallocable”.

(d) Inter-segment transfers:

Segment revenue, segment expenses and segment result include transfers between business segments and between geographical segments. Such transfers are accounted

for at competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated customers for similar goods. Those transfers are eliminated in consolidation.

(e) Accounting policies:
The accounting policies consistently used in the preparation of the

(f) Unallocable and Head office expenses
General administrative expenses, head-office expenses, and other
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ANNEXURE - K - Segment Reporting (For FY 2019-20)

The company operates in the business segment of BOPP Tape & laminates, Corrugated sheet and boxes & soap stiffeners. As such the activities are defined as two different
segments in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS-17 ) issued under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, as amended up to date.

Segment Reporting Disclosure

BOPP Tape and | Corrugated Sheet . N Un-allocable [Consolidated
Particulars laminates and boxes Soap Stiffener Eliminations Items Total
Current Year Current Year Current Year Current Year Current Year

REVENUE
External Sales

Indigenous 1,887.99 1,351.17 1,387.42 -173.57 - 4,453.01

Export 52.94 - - - 52.94
Inter Segment Sales 12.62 - -12.62 - -
Total Sales 1,953.55 1,351.17 1,387.42 -186.19 - 4,505.95
Miscellaneous Income -
Operating 5.28 - 43.43 - - 48.71
Non Operating - - 0.13 -28.44 28.69 0.38
Segment Revenue 1,958.83 1,351.17 1,430.98 -214.63 28.69 4,555.04
Total Revenue 1,958.83 1,351.17 1,430.98 -214.63 28.69 4,555.04
RESULT
Segment Result 73.5 92.77 107.26 -28.44 28.69 273.78
Unallocated Corporate Expenses - - - 1.53 1.53
Interest Expense - - 30.44 - 34.84 65.28
Profit Before Taxation - - - - - 206.98
Income Taxes - - - - - 54.95
Profit Before Prior Period Expenses - - - - -
Prior Period Expenses - - - - - -
Profit For the Year - - - - - 152.03
OTHER INFORMATION
Segment Assets 717.04 292.92 930.99 -244.64 210.44 1,906.75
Unallocated Corporate Assets - - - - - -
Total Assets 717.04 292.92 930.99 -244.64 210.44 1,906.75
Segment Liabilities 308.41 419.53 532.49 -34.2 186.75 1412.99
Total Liabilities 308.41 419.53 532.49 -34.2 186.75 1412.99
Depreciation 16.17 6.71 12.01 - - 34.9

The company has two primarily reportable business segments as follows:-

(a) Business Segments

For management purposes the company =is organized into three major reportable segments:
(1) BOPP Tape and laminates

(2) Corrugated boxes and sleeve rolls

(3) Soap Stiffeners

The divisions are the basis on which the company reports its primary segment information. The ‘BOPP Tape and laminates’ segment produces BOPP Tape, Laminate and liner.
The ‘Corrugated boxes and sleeve rolls’ segment manufactures Corrugated sleeves, sheets and Boxes. The “Soap stiffeners” segment manufactures soap paper and stiffeners.

(b) Segment revenues and expenses
All segment revenues and expenses are directly attributable to the segments.

(¢) Segment assets and liabilities:

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of operating cash, debtors, inventories and fixed assets, net of allowances and provisions
which are reported as direct offsets in the balance sheet. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of creditors and accrued liabilities. Segment
assets and liabilities do not include deferred taxes assets and liabilities.

(d) Inter-segment transfers:

Segment revenue, segment expenses and segment result include transfers between business segments and between geographical segments. Such transfers are accounted for at
competitive market prices charged to unaffiliated customers for similar goods. Those transfers are eliminated in consolidation.

(e) Accounting policies:
The accounting policies consistently used in the preparation of the financial statements are also applied to items of revenues and expenditure in individual segments.
(f) Unallocable and Head office expenses

General administrative expenses, head-office expenses, and other expenses that arise at the corporate level and relate to the Group as a whole, are shown as unallocable item
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ANNEXURE L

Disclosure as per AS 14

Name

D.K. Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mrs. Rekha Bansal)

Nature Of Business

Manufacturing of Packing Material

Effective Date 15.05.2019
Method of accounting Purchase Method
Scheme Sanctioned under a statue NA

Additional Disclosure

Consideration for amalgamation

"D.K. Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mrs. Rekha Bansal) was acquired for the
consideration of Rs. 200 Lacs by issue of 2000000 equity shares of Rs. 10.

Goodwill on amalgamation of business

Goodwill amounting to Rs 1,62,080 arises on amalgamation of business. It is
shown as intangible asset in the books of accounts and amortised over a period
of 5 years on straight line method basis.
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Independent Auditors' Report on the Restated Standalone Statement of Assets & Liabilities as at June 30, 2021, as
at March 31, 2021, as at March 31, 2020, and as at March 31, 2019 and Restated Standalone Statement of Profit &
Loss for the quarter ended on June 30, 2021 and for the year ended on March 31, 2021, on March 31, 2020, and on
March 31, 2019, and Restated Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the quarter ended on June 30, 2021 and for the
year ended on March 31, 2021, on March 31, 2020, and on March 31, 2019, and Restated Significant Accounting
Policies and Notes to the Restated Standalone Financial Statements and Other Annexures forming part of Restated
Standalone Financial Statements

To,

The Board of Directors

D.K. Enterprises Global Limited
Panchkula

Dear Sir,

1. We have examined the attached Restated Standalone Statement of Assets and Liabilities of D.K. Enterprises
Global Limited (the “Company”, “Issuer”) as at 30th June, 2021, as at 31st March, 2021, as at 31st March,
2020 and 31st March 2019 and the related Restated Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the quarter ended
on June 30, 2021 and for the year ended on March 31, 2021, on March 31, 2020, and on March 31, 2019, and
Restated Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the quarter ended on June 30, 2021, and for the year ended on
March 31,2021, on March 31, 2020, and on March 31, 2019 annexed to this report for the purpose of inclusion
in the offer document prepared by the Company (collectively the “Restated Standalone Summary Statements”
or “Restated Standalone Financial Statements™). These Restated Standalone Summary Statements have been
prepared by the Company and approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 21, 2021
of the Company in connection with the Initial Public Offering (IPO) in SME Platform of the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (NSE Emerge).

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the Restated Standalone Financial
Statements for the purpose of inclusion in the Draft Prospectus/ Prospectus to be filed with Stock Exchange,
Securities and Exchange Board of India, and Registrar of Companies, Delhi in connection with the proposed
IPO. The Restated Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared by the management of the Company for
the quarter ended on June 30, 2021 and for the year ended on March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 on the basis
of preparation stated in Annexure D to the Restated Standalone Financial Statements. The Board of Directors of
the company’s responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining adequate internal control
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Restated Financial Information. The Board of Directors are
also responsible for identifying and ensuring that the company complies with the Act, ICDR Regulation and
Guidance Note.

3. These Restated Standalone Summary Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of:

(1) Section 26 Part I of Chapter III to the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”)read with Companies (Prospectus and
Allotment of Securities) Rules 2014;
(i1) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations

2018 (“ICDR Regulations”) issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) in pursuance
to Section 11 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 and related amendments /
clarifications from time to time;

(ii1) The Guidance Note on Reports in Company Prospectus (Revised 2019) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India as amended from time to time. (“Guidance Note”).

4.  We have examined such Restated Financial Statements taking into consideration:
a) The terms of reference and terms of our engagement agreed upon with you in accordance with our
engagement letter dated December 05, 2020 in connection with the proposed IPO of equity shares of the
Company;
b) The Guidance Note also requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the ICAI;
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¢) Concepts of test checks and materiality to obtain reasonable assurance based on verification of evidence
supporting the Restated Financial Information; and ,

d) The requirements of Section 26 of the Act and the ICDR Regulations. Our work was performed solely
to assist you in meeting your responsibilities in relation to your compliance with the Act, the ICDR
Regulations and the Guidance Note in connection with the IPO.

The Restated Standalone Summary Statements of the Company have been extracted by the management from
the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the quarter ended on June 30, 2021 and for
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, 31st March, 2020, and 31st March 2019 and prepared in
accordance with the Indian GAAP, which have been approved by the Board of Directors.

In accordance with the requirements of Part I of Chapter III of Act including rules made therein, ICDR
Regulations, Guidance Note and Engagement Letter, we report that:

The “Restated Standalone Statement of Assets and Liabilities” as set out in Annexure A to this report, of
the Company as at 30th June, 2021, as at 31st March, 2021, 31st March, 2020, and 31st March 2019 have
been prepared by the Company and approved by the Board of Directors. These Restated Standalone and
Liabilities, have been arrived at after making such adjustments and regroupings Statement of Assets to the
individual financial statements of the Company, as in our opinion were appropriate and more fully described
in Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts as set out in Annexure D to this Report.

The “Restated Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss” as set out in Annexure B to this report, of the
Company for the quarter ended 30th June, 2021 and for the year ended on 31st March, 2021, 31st March,
2020, and 31st March 2019 have been prepared by the Company and approved by the Board of Directors.
These Restated Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, have been arrived at after making such adjustments
and regroupings to the individual financial statements of the Company, as in our opinion were appropriate
and more fully described in Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts as set out in Annexure
D to this Report.

The “Restated Standalone Cash Flow Statement” as set out in Annexure C to this report, of the Company
for the quarter ended 30th June, 2021 and for the year ended on 31st March, 2021, 31st March, 2020, and
31st March 2019 are prepared by the Company and approved by the Board of Directors. These Standalone
Restated Cash Flow Statement, have been arrived at after making such adjustments and regroupings to the
individual financial statements of the Company, as in our opinion were appropriate and more fully described
in Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts as set out in Annexure D to this Report.

Based on the above, and according to the information & explanations made available to us by the Company and
also reliance placed by us on the audited standalone financial statements of the Company, we are of the opinion
that the Restated Standalone Financial Statements have been made after incorporating:

Adjustments for the changes in accounting policies retrospectively in respective financial years/ quarter to reflect
the same accounting treatment as per the changed accounting policy for all reporting periods, if any.

Adjustments for prior period and other material amounts in the respective financial years/ quarter to which they
relate and there are no qualifications which require adjustments.

There are no extra-ordinary items that need to be disclosed separately in the accounts and qualifications requiring
adjustments.

There were no qualifications in the Audit Reports issued by the Statutory Auditors for the quarter ended on June
30, 2021 and the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, 31st March, 2020, and 31st March 2019 which
would require adjustments in this Restated Standalone Financial Statements of the Company.

These Standalone Profits and Losses have been arrived at after charging all expenses including depreciation and
after making such adjustments/restatements and regroupings as in our opinion are appropriate and are to be read
in accordance with the Significant Accounting Polices and Notes to Accounts as set out in Annexure D to this
report.
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There were no change in Significant Accounting Policies which needs to be adjusted in the Restated Financial
Statements.

There were no revaluation reserves which need to be disclosed separately in the Restated Standalone Financial
Statements.

The Company has not paid any dividend since its incorporation.

Audit for the quarter ended on June 30, 2021 and for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, 31st March
2020, and 31st March 2019 was conducted by us

We have also examined the following other financial information relating to the Company prepared by the
Management and as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company and annexed to this report relating to
the Company for the quarter ended on June 30, 2021 and for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021, 31st
March, 2020, and 31st March 2019 proposed to be included in the Draft Red Herring Prospectus/Prospectus
(“Offer Document”).

Annexures of Restated Standalone Financial Statements of the Company:

1.
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Restated Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Restated Financial Statements as appearing in Annexure
D to this report;

Reconciliation of Restated Profit as appearing in Annexure E to this report;

Details of Restated Share Capital as appearing in Annexure A.1 to this report;

Details of Restated Reserves and Surplus as appearing in Annexure A.2 to this report;

Details of Restated Long Term Borrowings as appearing in Annexure A.3 to this report;

Details of Restated Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) as appearing in Annexure A.4 to this report;

Details of Restated Short Term Provisions as appearing in Annexure A.8§ to this report;

Details of Restated Short Term Borrowings as appearing in Annexure A.5 to this report;

Details of Restated Trade Payables as appearing in Annexure A.6 to this report;

. Details of Restated Other Current Liabilities as appearing in Annexure A.7 to this report;

. Details of Restated Property, Plant & Equipment as appearing in Annexure A.9 to this report.

. Details of Restated Non-Curre nt Investments as appearing in Annexure A.10 to this report;

. Details of Restated Loans & Advances as appearing in Annexure A.11 to this report;

. Details of Restated Other Non- Current Assets as appearing in Annexure A.12 to this report;

. Details of Restated Inventories as Annexure A.13 to this report;

. Details of Restated Trade Receivables as Annexure A.14 to this report;

. Details of Restated Cash and Bank Balances as appearing in Annexure A.15 to this report;

. Details of Restated Short-Term Loans and Advances as Annexure A.16 to this report

. Details of Restated Other Current Assets as appearing in Annexure A.17 to this report;

. Details of Restated Revenue from Operations as appearing in Annexure B.1 to this report;

. Details of Restated Other Income as appearing in Annexure B.2 to this report;

. Details of Restated Cost of Material Consumed B.3 as appearing in Annexure B.3 to this report;
. Details of Restated Changes in Inventories of FG and WIP as appearing in Annexure B.4 to this report
. Details of Restated Employees' Benefit Expenses as appearing in Annexure B.5 to this report;

. Details of Restated Finance Cost as appearing in Annexure B.6 to this report;

. Details of Restated Depreciation and Amortization as appearing in Annexure B.7 to this report;
. Details of Restated other expenses as appearing in Annexure B.8§ to this report.

. Details of Restated Deferred Tax as appearing in Annexure B.9 to this report.

. Details of Statement of tax shelter as appearing in Annexure F to this report.

. Details of Statement of Capitalisation as appearing in Annexure G to this report.

. Details of Restated Statement Of Contingent Liabilities as appearing in Annexure H to this report
. Details of Restated accounting ratios as appearing in Annexure I to this report

. Details of Restated Related Party Transactions as appearing in Annexure J to this report

. Details of Restated Segment Reporting as appearing in Annexure K to this report
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Details of Amalgamation of Proprietorship as appearing in Annexure L to this report

We, Deepak Jindal & Co., have been subjected to the peer review process of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) and hold a valid peer review certificate issued by the “Peer Review Board” of
the ICAL

The preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements referred to above are based on the
Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company and are in accordance with the provisions of the Act
and ICDR Regulations. The Standalone Financial Statements and information referred to above is the
responsibility of the management of the Company.

The report should not in any way be construed as a re-issuance or re-dating of any of the previous audit reports
issued by any other Firm of Chartered Accountants nor should this report be construed as a new opinion on any
of the financial statements referred to therein.

We have no responsibility to update our report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of the report
of Restated Standalone Financial statements and Audited Standalone Financial statements.

The report should not in any way be construed as a re-issuance or re-dating of any of the previous audit reports
issued by any other Firm of Chartered Accountants nor should this report be construed as a new opinion on any
of the financial statements referred to therein.

In our opinion, the above financial information contained in Annexure A to K of this report read with the
respective Significant Accounting Polices and Notes to Restated Standalone Financial Statements as set out in
Annexure D are prepared after making adjustments and regrouping as considered appropriate and have been
prepared in accordance with the Act, ICDR Regulations, Engagement Letter and Guidance Note.

Our report is intended solely for use of the management and for inclusion in the Offer Document in connection
with the SME IPO. Our report should not be used, referred to or adjusted for any other purpose except with our
consent in writing.

For Deepak Jindal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN No.- 023023N

Deepak Jindal

Partner

Membership No. 514745
Chandigarh

Date: September 21, 2021
UDIN: 21514745AAAAEN2714
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D.K. ENTERPRSIES GLOBAL LIMITED

ANNEXURE — A: RESTATED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Note = As at 30th As at 31st March
No. June
2021 2020
Equity and Liabilities
Shareholders’ Funds
Share Capital A.l 551.00 275.50 205.00 5.00
Reserves & Surplus A.2 349.49 534.70 124.03 -
Subtotal 900.49 810.20 329.03 5.00
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Borrowings A3 34.51 42.93 186.75 -
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) A4 14.94 14.37 10.19 -
Subtotal 49.45 57.30 196.94 -
Current Liabilities
Short Term Borrowings A.S 316.46 174.77 24.59 -
Trade Payables : A.6
(A) total outstanding dues of
micro enterprises and small -
enterprises; and
(B) total outstanding dues of
creditors other than micro
. 459.01 728.87 613.39 -
enterprises and small
enterprises.". ]
Other Current Liabilities A7 80.55 75.47 89.96 0.38
Short Term Provisions A.8 15.66 9.28 - -
Subtotal 871.68 988.39 727.94 0.38
Total 1,821.62 1,855.89 1,253.91 5.38
Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
Tangible Assets A9 357.83 361.83 358.11 0.00
Intangible Assets 1.17 1.28 1.34 -
Non-Current Investments A.10 350.81 312.87 210.44 0.00
Long Term Loans & Advances A.11 19.31 19.32 19.25 -
Long term Trade Receivables A.12 11.38 9.89 - -
Subtotal 740.50 705.18 589.14 -
Current Assets
Inventories A.13 479.44 460.41 165.88 -
Trade Receivables A.14 389.04 487.85 414.49 0.00
Cash and Cash Equivalents A.15 136.52 91.00 27.54 5.00
Short-Term Loans and Advances A.16 62.06 97.08 51.53 -
Other Current Assets A.17 14.06 14.37 5.33 0.38
Subtotal 1,081.12 1,150.71 664.77 5.38
Total 1,821.62 1855.89 1253.91 5.38

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, profits
and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,B & C
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For Deepak Jindal & Co. On behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants D.K. Enterprises Global Limited
Firm Registration No : 023023N

Peer Review No. : 012493

Rakesh Kumar Dhruv Rakesh
(Chairman cum Managing Director)  (Executive Director)
DIN: 08374550 DIN: 08374549

CA Deepak Jindal

Partner Baljeet Singh Amanpreet Kaur

M. No. 514745 (CFO) (Company Secretary)

UDIN : 21514745AAAAEN2714
Date : September 21, 2021
Place : Chandigarh
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ANNEXURE - B: RESTATED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS
(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the Quarter

Not For The Year Ended 31st March

Particulars € Ended 30th June

NO: 2021 2021 2020 2019

A. | Revenue:

Revenue from Operations B.1 1239.53 4499.85 3297.39 -
Other income B.2 38.06 48.46 28.69 -
Total revenue 1277.59 4548.32 3326.08 -
B. | Expenses:

Cost of Material Consumed B.3 1030.73 3611.59 2610.87 -
Changes in Inventories of

Finished Goods, Work In (14.77) (21.49) (29.33) -
Progress and Stock in Trade B.4

Employees Benefit Expenses B.5 46.55 203.76 170.70 -
Finance costs B.6 5.34 26.66 32.19 -
Depreciation and Amortization | B.7 7.77 29.63 22.88 -
Other expenses B.8 94.56 447.73 360.16 -
Total Expenses 1170.17 4297.88 3167.47 -

Profit before exceptional and

extraordinary items and tax 107.42 250.44 158.60 )
Exceptional Items - - - -
.Proflt before extraordinary 107.42 250.44 158.60 )
items and tax
Extraordinary items - - - -
Profit before tax 107.42 250.44 158.60 -
Tax expense :
Current tax 16.56 47.08 24.39 -
Deferred Tax B.9 0.57 4.18 10.19 -
E“’ﬁt (Loss) for the period 90.29 199.18 124.03 -
om continuing operations
Earning per equity share in
Rs.:
(1) Basic 1.64 4.83 3.50 -
(2) Diluted 1.64 4.83 3.50 -

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary,
Statement of Assets & liabilities and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A& C

For Deepak Jindal & Co. On behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants D.K. Enterprises Global Limited
Firm Registration No : 023023N

Peer Review No. : 012493

Rakesh Kumar Dhruv Rakesh
(Chairman cum Managing Director)  (Executive Director)
DIN: 08374550 DIN: 08374549

CA Deepak Jindal

Partner Baljeet Singh Amanpreet Kaur

M. No. 514745 (CFO) (Company Secretary)

UDIN : 21514745SAAAAEN2714
Date : September 21, 2021
Place : Chandigarh
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ANNEXURE - C: RESTATED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Rs. in Lakhs)
For the
Quarter Ended For The Year Ended 31st March

Particulars 30th June
2021 2021 \ 2020 2019

A. CASH FLOW FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 107.42 250.44 158.60 -
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 7.77 29.63 22.88 -
Interest Income - (0.91) (0.25) -
Interest Expense 5.62 26.66 32.19 -
Opferatlng profit before working 120.81 305.81 213.42 }
capital changes
Movements in working capital :
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade
Receivables (269.85) (73.37) (414.49) -
(Increase)/Decrease in Loans &
Advances 0.31 (45.54) (51.34) -
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Current
Assets/ Non-Current Assets ) (9.04) (4.95) (0.38)
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories 97.32 (294.53) (165.88) -
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 1.57 115.48 613.39 -
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current
Liabilities (19.03) (14.49) 89.58 0.38
Cash generated from operations (68.87) (15.67) 279.74 -
Income tax paid during the year (10.17) 37.80 24.58 -
Net cash from operating activities (A) (79.05) (53.48) 255.16 -
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Sale/(Purchase) of Investments (37.93) (102.43) (210.44) -
Purchase of Fixed Assets (3.66) (33.28) (382.34) -
Interest Received - 0.91 0.25 -
Increase in Other Non-Current
Assets/Loans & Advances 3501 (9.96) (19.25) )
Net cash from investing activities (B) (6.58) (144.76) (611.78) -
C. CASH FLOW FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid on borrowings (5.62) (26.66) (32.19) -
Increass:/(Decrease) in Short Term 145.19 150.18 2459 )
Borrowings
Proceeds from Issue of Share Capital - 282.00 200.00 5.00
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Borrowings (8.42) (143.82) 186.75 -
Net cash from financing activities (C) 131.14 261.70 379.15 5.00
Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents (A+B+C) 45.52 63.47 22.53 5.00
Cafh zfnd cash equivalents at the 91.00 27.54 5.00 )
beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end 136.52 91.00 27.54 5.00
of the year
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Note: The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary,
Statement of Assets & liabilities and profits and losses appearing in Annexure D,A& B.

For Deepak Jindal & Co. On behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants D.K. Enterprises Global Limited
Firm Registration No : 023023N

Peer Review No. : 012493

Rakesh Kumar Dhruv Rakesh
(Chairman cum Managing Director)  (Executive Director)
DIN: 08374550 DIN: 08374549

CA Deepak Jindal

Partner Baljeet Singh Amanpreet Kaur

M. No. 514745 (CFO) (Company Secretary)

UDIN : 21514745AAAAEN2714
Date : September 21, 2021
Place : Chandigarh
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Annexure: D Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Restated Standalone Financial Statements

1. Company Overview

We are mainly engaged in manufacturing of Paper Based Packing Material, Self Adheshive Tapes (specialty tapes
likes Masking, Siliconized, Medical and Surface protection Tapes), Laminated Products and flexible Packaging.
Our Company is ISO 9001:2015, 45001:2018 certified company. We have been working almost exclusive with
major multinational corporations in consumer space.

D.K. Enterprises, a proprietorship concern of Mrs. Rekha Bansal running its business since last two decades which
was taken over by our company (including all its movable assets, current assets and liabilities of manufacturing
facilities of Panchkula and Vadodara) at a total consideration of * 200.00 Lakhs (including goodwill of Rs.
162079.48) in terms of agreement dated May 15, 2019 by issuing 20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each of our
company to Mrs. Rekha Bansal.

Our company’s registered office and manufacturing facilities Unit I is located in Panchkula at Haryana and Unit 11
at Vadodra in Gujarat. We are proposing to commence manufacturing facilities at Baddi in Himachal Pradesh for
manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape, Masking/specialty tapes and Laminated Products. We are also
proposing to installed machinery at Vadodara (Unit II) for manufacturing of Clear/Printed Bopp Tape,
Masking/specialty tapes and Laminated Products.

2. Significant Accounting Policies :

i) Basis for preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of M/S. D.K. ENTERPRISES GLOBAL LTD. have been prepared and presented to
comply with the historical cost conventions in accordance with the Indian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP), including the Accounting Standards notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and on the basis of going concern.

The company follows accrual method of accounting.
ii) Uses of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the
period in which the results are known/ materialized.

iii) Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed Assets have been stated at original cost, inclusive of inward freight, incidental expenses related to acquisition,
financing cost till commencement of commercial production and related pre-operative expenses, less depreciation,
while arriving at original cost.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided on SLM basis based on useful life of assets as prescribed in Schedule II to
the Companies Act, 2013.

iv) Impairment of Assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is
charged to Profit and Loss Account in the year/ quarter in which asset is identified as impaired. The impairment
loss recognized in prior accounting periodis reversed if there has been a change in the estimate of recoverable
amount.

v) Foreign Currency Transaction

e Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction or that approximates the actual rate at the date of transaction.

e Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year/ quarter end are restated at year/ quarter
end rates.

e Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.
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e Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or translation is recognized
in the Profit & Loss Account.

vi) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of
the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to Profit and Loss account.

vii) Inventories

Items of inventories are measured at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing for obsolescence, if any.
Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs including manufacturing
overheads incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and condition.

viii) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized only when it can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.
Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate
applicable.

ix) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognized when there is a present
obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities
are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the
financial statements.

x) Investments

Long term investments, if any, are carried at cost less provision for diminution other than temporary, if any, in value
of such investments. Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value.

xi) Leases

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term,
are classified as operating lease. Lease payments under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the profit
and loss account

xii) Provision for Current Tax and Deferred Tax

Provision for current tax is made after taking into consideration benefits admissible under the provisions of the
Income Tax Act, 1961. The Company has opted for Section 115BAA of Income Tax Act,1961 during the year/
quarter. Deferred Tax resulting from “timing difference” between taxable and accounting income is accounted for
using the tax rates and laws that are enacted of substantively enacted as on balance sheet date.

xiii) Employee Benefits
Short Term Employee Benefits:

Employee benefits payable fully within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee
benefit and are recognized in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-Employment Benefits (Defined Contribution Plans)
Contributions to the Provident Fund, which is a defined contribution scheme, is recognized as an expense in the
profit and loss account in the period in which the contribution is due.

xiv) Segment Reporting
The company operates in the business segment of BOPP Tape & laminates and corrugated boxes & sleeve rolls. As
such, the activities are defined as two different segments in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS-17)
issued under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, as amended up to date.
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ANNEXURE - A.1 : Restated Standalone Statement of Share Capital

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 30th June

As at 31st March

2021

2021

2020

2019

Equity Share Capital

Authorised Share Capital

75.10.000 (Previous Year: 75,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 751.00 750.00 305.00 5.00
Total| 751.00 750.00 305.00 5.00

Issued, Subscribed & Fully Paid Up Share Capital |

55,10,000 (Previous Year: 27,55,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 551.00 275.50 205.00 5.00
Total| 551.00 275.50 205.00 5.00

Notes :
A.1.1 Right. Preferences and Restrictions attached to Shares :

remaining assets of the Company in proportion of their sharcholding.

A.1.2 Reconciliation of No. of Shares Outstanding at the end of the year

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/~ per share. Each Shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation, the equity sharcholders are eligible to receive the

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 30th June

As at 31st March

Notes :
A.1.2.1 Bonus Issue
Our company has issued Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 on April 24, 2021

2021 2021 2020 2019
Equity Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 2,755,000 2,050,000 50,000 -
Shares issued during the year (For Related Party Transactions Refer Annexure J)* - 705000 2.000.000 50.000
Bonus Shares issued during the year 2,755,000 - - -
Share outstanding at the end of the year 5,510,000 2,755,000 2,050,000 50,000
*In FY 2019-20 Equity Shares were issued for consideration other than Cash for takeover of running business of Mrs. Rekha Bansal, M/s DK enterprises on going convern basis. A25

ANNEXURE — A.2 : Restated Standalone Statement of Reserves and Surplus

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 30th June

As at 31st March

2021

2021

2020

2019

Reserves & Surplus

Balance in of Profit & Loss

Balance as at the beginning of the year 323.20 124.03 - -

Add: Profit for the year 90.29 199.18 124.03 -

Less: Issue of Bonus Shares 64.00 - - -

Balance as at the end of the year 349.49 323.20 124.03 -
|Security Premium

Balance as at the beginning of the year 211.50 - - -

Add: Profit for the year - 211.50 - -

Less: Issue of Bonus Shares 211.50

Balance as at the end of the year - 211.50 - -

Total 349.49 534.70 124.03

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - A.3 :Restated Standalone Statement of Long Term Borrowings

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 30th June

As at 31st March

Particulars
2021 2021 2020 2019
Secured:
Term Loan From Bank: 28.27 36.44 38.79 -
Vehicle Loan 6.24 6.49 11.58 -
Unsecured:
Loan From Director (For Related Party Transactions Refer Annexure J) - 136.38
Total| 34.51 42.93 186.75 -

Note A.3.1: There were no r¢ or default in the r

of loans taken by the Company.

D.A,B,C.

Note A.3.2 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities,profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure

ANNEXURE - A.4: Restated Standalone Statement of Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 30th June

As at 31st March

2021

2021

2020

2019

Deferred Tax Liability

Related to Fixed Assets 67.82 62.86 39.18 -

Loss Carried forward - - - B
Total (a) N

Deferred Tax Assets

Provision For Disallowance of Expenses 8.47 5.78 - -
Total (b) -

Net Deffered Tax Liabilities (A-B) 59.35 57.08 39.18 -

Deferred Tax Liabilities( Tax Impact) 14.94 14.37 10.19 -

D.AB.C.

Note A.4.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure
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ANNEXURE — A5 : Restated Standalone Statement of Short Term Borrowings

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 30th June

As at 31st March

Particulars

2021 2021 2020 2019
Working Capital Borrowings
From Banks 272.98 127.79 - -
Current Maturity of Long Term Borrowings 43.48 46.98 24.59
Total 316.46 174.77 24.59 -

Notc A.5.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure

D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - A.7 : Restated Standalone Statement of Other Current Liabilities

(Rs. In Lakhs)

" As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020 2019

Statutory Remittances 6.53 13.37 5.90 -
Provision for Employee Benefits 14.03 8.18 11.96 -
Advance From Customer 4.76 3.08 5.30 -
Other Liabilities 55.21 50.85 66.80 0.38
Grand Total 80.55 75.47 89.96 0.38

Note A.7.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Ass

D.,A,B,C.

s & liabilities, profits and losses

and cash flows appearing in Annexure

ANNEXURE - A.8 : Restated Standalone Statement of Short Term Provisions

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 30th June

As at 31st March

2021

2021

2020

2019

Provsion for Income Tax

15.66

9.28

Total;

15.66

9.28

Note A.8.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities,profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure

D,AB,C.

ANNEXURE - A.10 : Restated Standalone Statement of Non-Current Investments

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 30th June

As at 31st March

Particulars
2021 2021 2020 2019
Other non-current investments (Non trade)
Fixed Deposits (Unquoted) (At cost) - 0.00 0.00
Trade Investments
Investment in Partnership Firm- (For Related Party Transactions Refer Annexure J) 350.81 312.87 210.44
350.81 312.87 210.44 -

Tou%

Note A.10.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure

D,AB,C.

Detail of the names of all the partners, total capital and shares of each partner of the partnership firm.

For 1st Quarter F.Y. 21-22

Name of Partner Ratio (Till Feb 21)| New Ratio (w.e.f. Mar21)[Amt (In Lacs)
Sh. Dhruy Rakesh 39% 16% 73.24
Sh. Rakesh Kumar 5% 2% 11.08
Smt. Rekha bansal 5% 2% 1113
M/s D.K. Enterprises Golbal Limited 51% 80% 350.81
Total 100% 100% 446.27
For F.Y. 2020-21
Name of Partner Ratio (Till Feb 21)| New Ratio (w.e.f. Mar21)| Amt (In Lacs)
Sh. Dhruy Rakesh 39% 16% 68.50
Sh. Rakesh Kumar 5% 2% 8.71
Smt. Rekha bansal 5% 2% 8.76
M/s D.K. Enterprises Golbal Limited S51% 80% 312.88
Total 100% 100% 398.85
For F.Y. 2019-20
Name of Partner Ratio| Amt (In Lacs)
Sh. Dhruy Rakesh 39% 78.75
Sh. Rakesh Kumar 5% 60.71
Smt. Rekha bansal 5% 14.39
M/s D.K. Enterprises Golbal Limited S51% 210.44

100% 364.30
ANNEXURE — A.11 : Restated Standalone Statement of Long Term Loans & Advances

(Ks. In LaKns)
o As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020 2019
Security Deposits 19.31 19.32 19.25 -
Total| 19.31 19.32 19.25 -

Note A.11.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities,profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure

D.AB.C.

184




ANNEXURE - A.12 : Restated Standalone Statement of Long term Trade Receivables

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 30th June

As at 31st March

Particulars

2021 2021 2020 2019
From Directors/Promoters/Promoter Group/Associates/ Relatives of Directors/ Group
C ics. (For Related Party T ions Refer Annexure J) _ - - N
Others 11.38 9.89 - -
Total 11.38 9.89 - -

Note A.12.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities,profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure

D,A,B.C.

ANNEXURE — A.13 : Restated Standalone Statement of Inventories

(Rs. In Lakhs)

5 As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020 2019
Raw Material 413.85 409.59 136.55 -
Work In Progress 21.57 17.02 13.93 -
Finished Goods 44.02 33.80 15.40 -
Total] 479.44 460.41 165.88 -
(Note A.13.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities,profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure
D,AB,C.
ANNEXURE - A.15 : Restated Standalone Statement of Cash and Bank Balances
(Rs. In Lakhs)
q As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020 2019
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand 2.09 3.93 9.85 -
Balances with Banks:
Current Accounts 134.42 87.07 17.69 5.00
Total 136.52 91.00 27.54 5.00

Note A.15.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure

D,AB,C..

ANNEXURE - A.16 : Restated Standalone Statement of Short Term Loans and Advances

(Rs. In Lakhs)

As at 30th June

As at 31st March

Particulars

Other Loans & Advances

2021 2020 2019
Advances recoverable in cash or kind for the value to be considered good 38.69 55.25 30.73 -
23.37 41.83 20.80
Total 62.06 97.08 51.53 -

Note A.16.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure

D,AB.C.

ANNEXURE - A.17 : Restated Standalone Statement of Other Current Assets

(Rs. In Lakhs)

" As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020 2019
Preliminary Expenses 12.10 12.45 2.92 0.26
Prepaid Expenses 1.97 1.92 2.41 0.12
Total 14.06 14.37 5.33 0.38

Note A.17.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure

D,A,B,C.

ANNEXURE - B.1: Restated Standalone Statement of Revenue from Operations

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the Quarer Ended June

For The Year Ended March 31,

Particulars 30,

2021 2021 2020 2019
Turnover from Sale of Goods (For related party transactions refer Annexure J) 1,238.14 4.486.92 3292.10] -
Other Opertaing Income 1.39 12.93 5.28 -
Revenue from operations 1,239.53 4,499.85 3,297.39 -
Note B.1.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure

D.AB.C.
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Revenue Bifurcation based in Geographical areas

. For the Quarer Ended June For The Year Ended March 31,
Particulars 30.
2021 2021 2020 2019

Indigenous
Jammu and Kashmir 34.96 98.68 46.30 -
Himachal Pradesh 405.94 1,245.90 736.01 -
Punjab 50.17 190.11 154.33 -
Chandigarh 41.08 113.31 146.01 -
Uttarakhand 193.83 519.02 187.03 -
Haryana 25.31 73.16 299.90 -
Delhi 69.91 97.29 13.61 -
Rajasthan 1.36 274 9.12 -
Uttar Pradesh 49.10 209.72 109.56 -
Bihar - 6.21 - -
Assam 5.49 5.71 13.74 -
West Bengal 1.43 16.41 2.73 -
Odisha 0.03 1.35 3.49 -
Chattisgarh 1.73 10.67 0.97 -
Madhya Pradesh 32.46 103.96 60.82 -
Guiarat 239.35 1.517.30 1.367.73 -
Dadra and Nagar Haveli 0.10 0.68 - -
Maharashtra 35.96 80.47 56.94 -
Karnataka - 5.62 4.49 -
Kerala - 3.24 0.14 -
Tamil Nadu 3.18 9.34 7.11 -
Pondicherry 4.43 14.04 11.69 -
Telangana - 1.62 - -
Andhra Pradesh (New) 1.07 8.22 7.15 -
Daman and Diu - - 0.28 -

1.196.89 4.334.77 3.239.16 -
Export _
Srilanka 42.64 152.15 46.45 -
Bangladesh - 6.49 -

42.64 152.15 52.94 -
Total Sales 1,239.53 4,486.92 3,292.10 -
ANNEXURE - B.2 : Restated Standalone Statement of Other Income
(Rs. In Lakhs)
. Lo 4 (QITETG G AT For The Year Ended March 31,
Particulars 30,
2021 2021 2020 2019
Interest Income - 0.91 0.25 -
Discount Received - 0.12
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation 0.13
Share of Income From Firm (For Related Party Transactions Refer Annexure J) 37.93 47.43 28.44 -
38.06 48.46 28.69 -
Total|

Note B.2.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, St:

D,AB.C.

atement of Asscts & liabilitics, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure

ANNEXURE - B.3 : Restated Standalone Statement of Cost of Material Consumed

(Rs. In Lakhs)

For the Quarer Ended June

For The Year Ended March 31,

Particulars 30,
2021 2021 2020 2019

Opening Stock 409.59 136.55 - -
Add : Purchases During The Year (For Related Party Transactions Refer Annexure J) 1,034.98 3.884.64 2.747.42

1,444.57 4,021.18 2,747.42 -
Less : Closing Stock 413.85 409.59 136.55 -

1,030.73 3,611.59 2,610.87 -

Total;

(Note B.3.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure

D,AB.C.

ANNEXURE - B.4 : Restated Standalone Statement of Changes in Inventories of FG & WIP

(Rs. In Lakhs)

’ ForgheOuaic e e For The Year Ended March 31,
Particulars 30,
2021 2021 2020 2019

Stock at Close-Finished 44.02 33.80 15.40
Stock at Close-WIP 21.57 17.02 13.93

65.59 50.82 29.33
Stock at C: Finished 33.80 15.40 -
Stock at Commencement-WIP 17.02 13.93 -

50.82 29.33 -
(Increase)/Decrease in Stock (14.77) (21.49) (29.33)

(14.77) (21.49) (29.33) -
Total|

Note B4.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policics and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure

D.AB.C.
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ANNEXURE - B.5 : Restated Standalone Statement of Employee Benefit Expense
(Rs. In Lakhs)

. Lo 4 (QITETG G AT For The Year Ended March 31,
Particulars 30,
2021 2021 2020 2019
Salaries, wages and Other Benefits (For Related Party Transactions refer Annexure J) 29.23 132.26 111.28 -
Director Remuneration (For Related Party Transactions refer Annexure J) 9.00 36.00 31.50 -
Bonus Expenses 1.06 4.22 5.92 -
Grautity Expenses 2.69 10.78 4.46 -
Staff Welfare Exp 2.04 11.68 11.15 -
Provident Fund Expenses 2.54 8.82 6.39
46.55 203.76 170.70 -
Total;

: The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure

ANNEXURE - B.6 : Restated Standalone Statement of Finance costs
(Rs. In Lakhs)

. Lo 4 (QITENG G T For The Year Ended March 31,
Particulars 30,
2021 2021 2020 2019
Interest Expense - Banks 3.58 15.59 19.00 -
Interest Expense - Other (For Related Party Transactions refer Annexure J) 1.76 11.06 13.19
5.34 26.66 32.19 -
Total;

Note B.6.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure
D,AB,C.

ANNEXURE - B.7 : Restated Standalone Statement of Depreciation & Amortization
(Rs. In Lakhs)

. LG (2 @y LGS For The Year Ended March 31,
Particulars 30,
2021 2021 2020 2019
Depreciation 7.66 29.21 22.60 -
Amortization 0.11 0.42 0.28
7.77 29.63 22.88 -
Total|

Note B.7.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure
D.,AB.C.

ANNEXURE - B.8 : Restated of Other Expen:
(Rs. In Lakhs)
" fritelQuareiiiinderliuns For The Year Ended March 31,
Particulars 30,
2021 2021 2020 2019

Bank Charges 0.28 6.06 2.65
Power & Fuel 38.73 160.99 123.00
Office Rent (For Related Party Ti ions refer Annexure J) 8.40 36.04 16.17
Repairs and Maintenance 8.32 35.49 52.54
Travelling Exp. - 0.76 10.83
Other Manufacturing Expenses 11.86 4043 29.55
Selling Expenses 20.05 139.77 103.12
Administrative Expenses 6.93 28.19 22.30

Total| 94.56 447.73 360.16

Note B.8.1 : The above statemes
D,A,B,C.

hould be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and los:

and cash flows appearing in Annexure

ANNEXURE - B.9 : Restated Standalone Statement of Deferred Tax Asset / Liabilities
(Rs. In Lakhs)

ForithelQuareriknded June For The Year Ended March 31,

Particulars 30.
2021 2021 2020 2019

WDV as per Companies Act, 2013 (A) 358.99 361.83 359.45 -
WDV as per Income tax Act, 1961 (B) 291.17 298.97 320.27 -
Difference in WDV (A-B) (67.82) (62.86) (39.18) -
Gratuity- DTA 8.47 5.78 - -
Restated Closing Balance of Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) (14.94) (14.37) (10.19) -
DTA/(DTL) Balance as per Books - - -

L . . . 0.57 4.18 10.19 -
Additional Provision to be made/Reversal of Provision/ Creation of Deferred Tax Asset

(Note B.9.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities, profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure
D,AB,C.
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A.1.3 Details of Slmrelmlding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the company

30-Jun-21 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
[REERCH T Nos % of Holding Nos % of Holding Nos % of Holding Nos %of Holding  [Nos % of Holding
Dhruv Rakesh 453,500 8.23% 214425 7.79% 214,425 7.79% 12425 0.61% 12425 24.85%]
|Rakesh Kumar 724,850 13.16% 362425 13.16% 362425 13.16% 12425 0.61% 12425 24.85%)
Rekha Bansal 4324.850 78.49% 2.162.425 78.49% 2,162,425 78.49% 2012425 98.17% 12,425 24.85%
Kanika Rakesh - 0.00% 12,425 0.45% 12425 0.45%) 12425 0.61%) 12425 24.85%)
Total 5503200 99.88% 2751700 99.89% 2751700 99.89% 2.049.700 99.99% 49700 99.40%

5,503,200
Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, statement of assets an

d liabilities,

profits and losses and cast

h flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

Detail of Shares held by at the end of the year
Promoter’s Name No. of shares % of total shares % changveet’l:rmg (i

[30-Jun-21

Dhruv Rakesh 453500 8.23% 0.44%
Rakesh Kumar 724850 13.16% 0.00%
Eckha Bansal 4324850 78.49% 0.00%
Kanika Rakesh - - -0.45%
31-Mar-21

Dhruv Rakesh 214425 1.79% No Change
Rakesh Kumar 362425 13.16% No Change
Rekha Bansal 2162425 78.49% No Change
Kanika Rakesh 12425 0.45% No Change
[31-Mar-20

Dhruv Rakesh 214425 7.79% -17.06%
Rakesh Kumar 362425 13.16% -11.69%
Eckha Bansal 2162425 78.49% 53.64%
Kanika Rakesh 12425 0.45% -24.40%
31-Mar-19

Dhruv Rakesh 12425 24.85% 1st Year
R: sh Kumar 12425 24.85% 1st Year
Rekha Bansal 12425 24.85% 1st Year
Kanika Rakesh 12425 24.85% 1st Year

*Including Long Term Receivables
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ANNEXURE - A.14 : R, d C i dS of Trade Receivables

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 30th June

As at 31st March

2021

2021

2020

0 1

for a period six months (Unsecured and considered Good)

From Directors/Promoters/Promoter Group/Associates/ Relatives of Directors/ Group
Companies.

Others

8.68

3.42

8.16

Outstanding for a period not exceeding 6 months (Unsecured and considered Good)

From Directors/Promoters/Promoter Group/Associates/ Relatives of Directors/ Group
Companies.

0.08

34.20

Others

380.36

48435

372.13

Total

389.04

487.85

414.49

Particulars

Note A.14.1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies

and notes to restated summary, Statement of Assets & liabilities,
Outstanding for following

periods from due date of payment

Total

Less than 6 months

6 months - 1 year
1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

As at 30th June, 2021 *

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable — considered good

380.36

8.68

11.38

400.42

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable —
considered doubtful

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivable —
considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable — considered doubtful

As at March 31,2021 *

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable —
considered good

48443

3.42

9.89

497.74

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable — considered doubtful

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivable —
considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable — considered doubtful

As at 31st March,2020 *

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable — considered good

406.33

8.16

414.49

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable —
considered doubtful

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivable —
considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable — considered doubtful

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivable —
considered good

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivable — considered doubtful

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivable —
considered good

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivable —

considered doubtful

*Including Long Term Receivables
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ANNEXURE - A.6 : R

dC

of Trade Payables

(Rs. In Lakhs)

ERCTiCIIaTS As at 30th June As at 31st March
2021 2021 2020

Trade Payables due to - - -
- Micro and Small Enterprises - - -
Others - - B
- Promotor/Promotor Group - - N
- Others 459.01 728.87 613.39

Total 459.01 728.87 613.39

Note A.6.1 : The above statements should be read with the si@iﬁcam accouming Eolicics and notes to restated summary. Statement of Assets &

(iii) _ Disputed dues - MSME

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment / Invoice date Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More
than 3
As at 30th June, 2021
(i) MSME - - - - -
(ii) _ Others 457.50 0.45 1.06 - 459.01
(iii) _ Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv)  Disputed dues — Others - - - - -
As at 31st March, 2021
(i) MSME - - - - _
(i) Others 727.73 1.14 - - 728.87
(iii) _ Disputed dues - MSME - - - - _
(iv) __ Disputed dues — Others - - - - -
As at 31st March.2020
@) MSME - - - - B
(ii) _ Others 613.39 - - -

(iv) Disputed dues — Others

(i)

As at 31st March.2019

MSME

(i)

Others

(iii) _ Disputed dues - MSME

(iv) __ Disputed dues — Others
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ANNEXURE - E : STATEMENT OF MATERIAL ADJUSTMENT TO THE RESTATED STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

1 Material Regrouping

Appropriate adjustments have been made in the Restated Standalone Financial Statements of Assets and Liabilities, Profit and Losses and Cash Flows, wherever required, by reclassification of the
corresponding items of income, expenses, assets and liabilities in order to bring them in line with the regroupings as per the audited financial statements of the company and the requirements of SEBI
Regulations.

2. Material Adjustments :

The Summary of results of restatement made in the Audited Standalone Financial Statements for the respective years and its impact on the profit/(loss) of the Company is as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

. For The Quarter Ended June 30, For The Year Ended March 31,
Particulars

2021 2021 2020 2019

(A) Net Profits as per audited fi ial (A) 90.29 199.18 124.71 -

Add/(Less) : Adjustments on account of -

1) Prepaid exp of P.Y. Trf to Exps - - B ]

2)Prepaid Expenses of current Year - - - ]

3)Provision for Interest accured but not Due - - - |

4) Previous Year Expenses transferred to Current year - - - |

4)Reversal of Interest Accrued but not due for previous year - - - ]

5) Difference on Account of Calculation in Deferred Tax - -

6) Change in Provision for Current Tax - - (0.69) -|

7) Difference on account of Foreign Exchange Gain - - - ]

8) Difference on Account of Provision for Gratuity - - B _

9) Difference of Miscellaneous Expense - - -

Total Adjustments (B) - (0.69) -
Restated Profit/ (Loss) (A+B) 90.29 199.18 124.03 -
Statement of Changes in Equity

Particulars For The Quarter Ended June 30, For The Year Ended March 31,

2021 2021 2020 2019

Total Equity as per Audited Financials 901.17 810.89 329.71 5.00
Add/(Less) : Adjustments on account of -
Changes on Account of Changes in Profit and Loss ] (0.69) I (0.69) (0.69) -
Total Equity as per Restated Fi iall | 900.48 | 810.20 329.02 5.00

3. Notes on Material Adjustments pertaining to prior years

(1) Preapid Expenses charged to Profit & Loss Account

Expenses related to Next year were transferred in Prepaid of Current Year

(2) Provision for Interest Accured but not due

Provision for Interest accured on loan EMI but not due has been made in restated financials
(3) Difference on Account of Calculation in Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is calculated on the difference of WDV as per Companies Act & income tax Act in Resated financials but in Audited financials the same has been calculated between difference of Depreciation

(4) Change in Provision for Current Tax
Since the Resated profit has been changed so that the Provision for current tax is also got changed

(5) Difference on Account of Foreign Exchange Gain/loss
Foreign Exchange gain/loss is calculated on the closing balance of foreign debtors in restated financials

(6) Difference on account for Provsion for Gratuity
Provision for Gratuity has been made in resated finaniclas to comply with requirements of AS - 15
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ANNEXURE - F : RESTATED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF TAX SHELTERS

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Sr.No |Particulars As at 30th June As at 31st March
2021 2021 2020 2019

A Restated Profit before tax 107.42 250.44 158.60 -

Short Term Capital Gain at special rate - - - -

Normal Corporate Tax Rates (%) 22.00% 22.00% 25.00% 25.00%)

Short Term Capital Gain at special rate 16.69% 16.69% 16.69% 15.60%

MAT Tax Rates (%) 16.69% 16.69% 16.69% 20.59%
B Tax th.ereon (including surcharge and 25.17% 25.17% 26.00% 26.00%

education cess)

Tax on normal profits 23.63 55.10 39.65 -

Short Term Capital Gain at special rate - - - -

Total 23.63 55.10 39.65 -

Adjustments:
C Permanent Differences

Deduction allowed under Income Tax Act

Exempt Income 37.93 47.43 28.44

Allowance of Expenses under the Income

Tax Act Section 35

Disallowance of Expenses under the Income 0 2.02 0.19

Tax Act

Total Permanent Differences (37.93) (45.41) (28.26) -
D Timing Differences

Difference between Depreciation as per (3.69) (23.74) (39.18)

Income tax, 1961 and Companies Act 2013

Provision for Gratuity disallowed - 5.78 - -

Expense disallowed u/s 43B - - - -

Total Timing Differences (3.69) (17.96) (39.18) -
E Net Adjustments E= (C+D) (41.62) (63.37) (67.44) -
F Tax expense/(saving) thereon (9.16) (13.94) (17.53) -
G Total Income/(loss) (A+E) 65.80 187.06 91.17 -

Taxable Income/ (Loss) as per MAT 69.48 203.00 130.16 -
1 Income Tax as per normal provision 16.56 47.08 23.70 -
J Income Tax under Minimum Alternative 11.60 33.89 21.73 -

Tax under Section 115 JB of the Income

Tax Act

Net Tax Expenses (Higher of 1,J) 16.56 47.08 23.70 -
K Relief u/s 90/91 - - -

Total Current Tax Expenses 16.56 47.08 23.70 -
L Adjustment for Interest on income tax/ - 0.69

others

Total Current Tax Expenses 16.56 47.08 24.39 -

Note : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, statement of assets and liabilities,
profits and losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.
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ANNEXURE - G : RESTATED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CAPITALISATION

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sr. No Particulars Pre issue Post issue
Debts*
A Long Term Debt 77.99 77.99
B Short Term Debt 316.46 316.46
C Total Debt 394.46 394.46
Equity Shareholders Funds
Equity Share Capital 551.00 750.80
Reserves and Surplus# 337.39 869.69
D Total Equity 888.39 1,620.49
E Total Capital 1,282.85 2,014.94
Long Term Debt/ Equity Ratio (A/D) 0.09 0.05
Total Debt/ Equity Ratio (C/D) 0.44 0.24

Notes :

1) Long Term Debt are borrowings other than short-term borrowings and also includes current maturities of long- term debt

included in other current liabilities.

* The amounts are consider as outstanding as on 30.06.2021

# After Adjusting preliminary expenses to the extent not written off

194




ANNEXURE - H : RESTATED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(Rs. In Lakhs)

q As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020 2019

1. Bank Guarantee/ LC Discounting for which FDR margin - - - -
money has been given to the bank as Security
2. Capital Commitment - _ _
3. Income Tax Demand - - -
4. TDS Demands 0.06 0.03 - -
5. ESIC Demand - - -
Total 0.06 0.03 - -
ANNEXURE -1: RESTATED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING RATIOS

(Rs. In Lakhs)

q As at 30th June As at 31st March
Particulars
2021 2021 2020 2019

Restated PAT as per P& L Account (Rs. in Lakhs) 90.29 199.18 124.03 -
EBITDA 120.53 306.72 213.67 -
Actual No. of Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the 2,755,000 2,050,000 50,000
period 5,510,000
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares at the end of the 2,061,589 1,770,548 50,000
Period (Note -2) (Pre Bonus) 5,510,000
Net Worth 888.39 797.75 326.11 4.74
Current Assets 1069.02 1138.26 661.85 5.12
Current Liabilities 871.68 988.39 727.94 0.38
No Of Shares Weighted Average (Pre Bonus) 5,510,000 2,061,589 1,770,548 50,000
No Of Shares Weighted Average (Post Bonus) 5,510,000 4,123,178 3,541,096 100,000
Earnings Per Share
Basic EPS (Pre Bonus) 1.64 9.66 7.00 -
Eps (Post Bonus) 1.64 4.83 3.50 -
Return on Net Worth (%) 10.16% 24.97% 38.03% -
Net Asset Value Per Share
Pre Bonus 16.12 28.96 1591 9.48
Post Bonus 16.12 14.48 15.91 9.48
Current Ratio 1.23 1.15 0.91 13.54
EBITDA 120.53 306.72 213.67 -
Nominal Value per Equity share(Rs.) 10 10 10 10

* The Company does not have any diluted potential Equity Shares. Consequently the basic and diluted profit/earning per share of the company remain the same.

Notes :

1)  The ratios have been calculated as below:

a) Basic Earnings Per Share (Rs.) = Restated PAT attributable to Equity Shareholders/ Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year.

b) Diluted Earnings Per Share (Rs.) = Restated PAT attributable to Equity Shareholders/ Weighted Average Number of Diluted Potential Equity Shares outstanding during

the year.

c) Return on Net Worth (%) = Restated PAT attributable to Equity Shareholders/ Net Worth X 100

d) Restated Net Asset Value per equity share (Rs.) = Restated Net Worth as at the end of the year/ Total Number of Equity Shares outstanding during the year.

2)  Weighted Average Number of equity shares is the number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year adjusted by the number of equity shares issued during
the year multiplied by the time weighting factor. Further, number of shares are after considering impact of the bonus shares in the ratio of 1 bonus share for 1 fully paid up
equity share to the existing shareholders Alloted on APril 26, 2021 i.e. after the balance sheet date but before the date on which financials are approved by Board of Directors.

3)  Earnings Per Share calculation are in accordance with Accounting Standard 20- Earnings Per Share, notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006, as

amended.

4)  Net Worth = Equity Share Capital + Reserve and Surplus (including surplus in the Statement of Profit & Loss)

5)  The figures disclosed above are based on the Restated Financial Statements of the Company.
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ANNEXURE - J(A) : RESTATED STANDALONE STATEMENT OF RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

As required under Accounting Standard 18 "Related Party Disclosures" as notified pursuant to Company (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006, following are details of
transactions during the quarter with related parties of the company as defined in AS 18.

A.  List of Related Parties and Nature of Relationship :

Particulars Name of Related Parties

Mr. Dhruv Rakesh

Mr. Rakesh Kumar

a) Key Management Personnel's Mrs. Rekha Bansal

Ms. Amanpreet Kaur (Company Secretary)

Mr. Baljeet Singh (CFO)

D.K. Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mrs. Rekha Bansal)
b) Concern's in which KMP or their relatives are

interested

Rakesh Kumar HUF

Sankyo Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mr. Dhruv Rakesh)
¢) Subsidiary Companies/Firm Satguru Engravures

Note 1 : The above statements should be read with the significant accounting policies and notes to restated summary, statement of assets and liabilities, profits and
losses and cash flows appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.
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ANNEXURE - J(B) - Transactions carried out with related parties referred to in (1) above, in ordinary course of business:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

g A As at 30
Nature of Transactions Name of Related Parties slafJune AslatiMarchi3]
2021 2021 2020 2019
1. Directors Remuneration Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 3.00 12.00 10.50 -
) Mr. Rakesh Kumar 6.00 24.00 21.00 -
Total 9.00 36.00 31.50 -
. Mr. Dhruv Rakesh 1.20 4.80 - -
2. Office Rent paid - e
Mrs Rekha Bansal 7.20 28.80 12.60 -
Total 8.40 33.60 12.60 -
Rakesh Kumar HUF
Opening Balance 46.38 -
Loan Received / Interest during the year 5.33 46.38
Loan Paid during the year (51.72)
. . . Closing Bal. - 46.38 -
3. Loan Recived(Paid) during the osing Sl
Year to Related Parties -
Mr. Rakesh Kumar
Opening Balance 90.00 -
Loan Received / Interest during the year 5.73 90.00
Loan Paid during the year (95.73)
Closing Balance - 90.00 -
Mr. Baljeet Singh (CFO 1.55 5.95 - -
4. Salary to KMP | r- Baljeet Singh (( )
| Ms. Amanpreet Kaur (Company Secretary) 0.75 0.51 -
Total 2.30 6.46 - -
5. Sale D.K. Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mrs. Rekha Bansal) - - 437.76 -
i Satguru Engravures 84.90 220.71 95.57
Total 84.90 220.71 533.33 -
6. Purchases Sankyo Enterprises 7.29 38.81 19.73 -
D.K. Enterprises (Proprietorship of Mrs. Rekha Bansal) - - 3291
Satguru Engravures 399.27 614.02 78.00 -
Total 406.56 652.83 130.64
7. Investment in Firm | Satguru Engravures - 55.00 182.00 -
Total - 55.00 182.00 -
8.Profit From Partnership Firm | Satguru Engravures 37.93 47.43 28.44 -
Total 37.93 47.43 28.44 -
Mr. Dhruv Rakesh - 80.80 - -
. Mr. Rakesh K - 140.00 -
9.Right Issue of Shares . RAesT Rumar
Mrs. Rekha Bansal - 60.00 -
Mr. Baljeet Singh (CFO) - 0.40 -
Total - 281.20 - -
Mr. Rakesh Kumar - 5.73 8.73 -
11. Interest on Loan
Rakesh Kumar HUF - 5.33 4.46 -
Total - 11.06 13.19
12. Takeover DK Enterprises* | - | - | 200.00 | -
Total [ -] -] 200.00 |

consideration other than Cash

*Proprietorship of Rekha Bansal - "D.K. Enterprise" was acquired in the F.Y. 2019-20 for the comsideration of Rs. 200 Lacs by issue of 2000000 equity shares of Rs. 10 for

appearing in Annexure D,A,B,C.

Note : The above statements should be read with the si